NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL

COUNCIL
Monday, 12 May 2008

YOU ARE SUMMONED TO ATTEND A MEETING OF NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH
COUNCIL, WHICH WILL BE HELD AT THE GUILDHALL NORTHAMPTON ON
MONDAY,THE TWELFTH DAY OF MAY 2008 AT SIX THIRTY O’CLOCK IN THE
EVENING WHEN THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS IS PROPOSED TO BE TRANSACTED:-

1. MINUTES.

To approve the minutes of the proceedings of the Meeting of the Council held on 17"
March 2008

2. APOLOGIES.
3. MAYOR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS.
4. QUESTION TIME

5. CABINET MEMBER PRESENTATIONS

(copies herewith)

6. NORTHAMPTON ECONOMIC REGENERATION STRATEGY

(copy herewith)

7. REPORT OF THE CONSTITUTIONAL REVIEW WORKING PARTY

(A) The Mayor to invite Suspension of Council Procedural Rules to allow Public
Addresses on the Report of the Constitutional Review Working Party.

“That in accordance with Council Procedural Rule 22, Procedural Rules be
suspended to allow public addresses on the report of the Constitutional Review
Working Party.”



(B) Report of the Constitutional Review Working Party (copy herewith)

8. MEETINGS CYCLE 2008/09
(copy to follow)

9. STAFF RESTRUCTURE - DELEGATIONS
Report of Chief Executive (copy to follow)

10. NOTICE OF MOTION
The following Motion to be moved by Councillor Flavell and seconded by Councillor
Lane:

“This Council notes that concessionary bus passes are now currently only valid in the
Borough between the hours of 9.30am and 11pm which is the national statutory minimum.
While the 9.30am start time has already been established due to heavy bus use in the
morning peak, the 11pm finish time appears to have been imposed from1st April 2008 with
the implementation of the new National Concessionary Scheme. This cut off time cannot be
justified on grounds of capacity and constitutes a reduction in service provision.

This council also notes that some bus pass holders have been in contact with councillors
and local MPs to complain that the evening cut off time is too early and to request that it be
extended.

In light of public demand, Council requests Cabinet to consider extending the period of free
travel beyond the statutory minimum to allow pass holders to travel after 11pm, until a time
relevant to the termination of the last evening services. Council further requests that
Cabinet consider that this be paid for in the current financial year with LABGI money and
added to the Council’s core budget for future years.”

11. MATTERS OF URGENCY WHICH BY REASON OF SPECIAL
CIRCUMSTANCES THE MAYOR IS OF THE OPINION SHOULD BE
CONSIDERED.

The Guildhall

Northampton

2" May 2008 D. Kennedy Chief Executive



Agenda ltem 5

Agenda Iltem

Council
Monday 12" May 2008

Portfolio Holder Presentations

. Report of the Leader of the Council, Portfolio Holder for
Partnerships and Improvement (Page 1)

. Report of the Portfolio Holder for Community Engagement &
Safety (Page 3)

. Report of the Portfolio Holder for Housing (Page 6)

. Report of the Portfolio Holder for Regeneration (Page 8)

. Report of the Portfolio Holder for Environment (Page 9)

. Report of the Portfolio Holder for Performance (Page 11)

. Report of the Portfolio Holder for Finance (Page 14)



Council
Monday 12" May 2008

Report of the Leader of the Council,
Portfolio Holder for Partnerships and Improvement

Improvement

At the Government Monitoring Board (GMB) meeting on 10 April 2008 our
Lead Official commented that the much greater clarity and focus of our plans
and reports gave him confidence that Northampton Borough Council was now
improving strongly.

At the meeting the GMB agreed to wind up the Leisure and Culture Sub-
Board and to end engagement with the Leisure and Culture Departments of
the Council.

At the same meeting the GMB agreed to wind up Finance Sub-Board
following the very significant improvements in our financial management over
the past 12 months. This represents disengagement with the Finance service,
but reports on the Council’s overall financial management will still be required
at GMB meetings as part of the corporate overview given by the Leader and
the Chief Executive, with the Director of Finance.

Staff in both departments have been thanked for their hard work in improving
their services.

Of the five sub-boards set up by the GMB only two are now operating —
Planning and Housing. We anticipate that, if current performance is
maintained, the Planning sub-board will recommend that it be wound up later
in the year. A decision on the Housing sub-board will depend on the results of
the Housing Progress Assessment in May and on significant further
improvement within the Housing Service.

The Revenues & Benefits Teams and their colleagues enjoyed a lunch party
in the Great Hall on 11 April 2008 to celebrate the end of their engagement by
the GMB earlier in the year.

Inspections

The results of our Direction of Travel inspection were presented to Cabinet on
7 April 2008 as part of the Annual Audit and Inspection Letter from the Audit
Commission.
Overall the report was presented by the Audit Commission as positive.
Improvements in political and strategic leadership and in partnership working
were praised. Inspectors raised a number of ongoing concerns which are
being addressed. Value for Money (VfM) was judged adequate but our
approach to VfM remains weak. Concerns were expressed about

e Capacity within our Human Resources function.

e Potential capacity problems resulting from any management

restructure.



e Perceived failure to learn from interim managers and directors and to
retain that learning within the organisation.

Our rate of improvement was judged to be average, based on data from
2006/7. However, we start from the back of the field so need to significantly
improve on this if we are to achieve the stated ambition of being amongst the
best performing councils within five years. Comparative data for 2007/8 will be
available towards the end of 2008.
The report of the Streetscene, Waste Management and Sustainability
inspection held in March 2008 is to be published in June 2008.
The Inspector for the Housing Progress Assessment will be on site from 6 to
16 May 2008.

Management Restructure

The Chief Executive issued a consultation document for the structure of the
Council’'s management below Director level on 17 March 2008. The period for
consultation ended on 18 April 2008. This document fleshed out the
proposals already trailed in the report on proposals for the Director level
agreed by Cabinet on 28 January 2008 and reported to Council in my report
on 17 March 2008. It proposes for consultation the establishment of a
structure based on Heads of Service rather than Corporate Managers, and
proposes to redistribute and increase management capacity to focus on the
Council’s priorities and on key improvement areas, such as Planning and
Housing.

A report will be brought to Cabinet on 6 May 2008 and a verbal update will be
provided at Council on 12 May.

It is critical that the Council has the management capacity to deliver on its
improvement journey and to make the changes needed to achieve our
ambition to be amongst the best Councils by 2013.

WNDC

Clir Church and | attended our first WNDC Board meeting on 22 April 2008.
The most important item discussed were the proposals for a tariff to replace
the current Section 106 agreements negotiated with developers on a site-by-
site basis. The tariff proposals will now be consulted on with the public and
with developers.

Tony Woods
29 April 2008



Council
Monday 12" May 2008

Report of the Portfolio Holder for
Community Engagement & Safety

Crime

The final figures for 2007-8 show a generally positive picture on crime levels
in the Borough — which means that there is less chance of our citizens
becoming a victim of crime than a year ago. Our overall measure shows 1675
fewer crimes over the year, a 9% reduction. There were 18% fewer thefts of
and from vehicles than in 2006-7, and robberies were down by 24%.
However, for several types of crime Northampton still shows higher figures
than many comparable areas, so the Safer Stronger Northampton Partnership
needs to remain ambitious in tackling the causes of these problems. These
figures are currently unaudited.

Anti-Social Behaviour

We know that anti-social behaviour is one of local people’s biggest concerns.
So it is good to see the continuing drop in the number of incidents being
reported, a reflection of how neighbourhood teams are getting to grips with
local issues. We need to know whether this reduction has been matched by
an improvement in how people think about their areas, and whether they feel
secure as well as actually being safer.

Safer Stronger Northampton Partnership

Staff from this Council and the Police and other agencies are to move in
together to refurbished offices in Fish Street, as part of the strategy to ensure
that the Safer Stronger Northampton Partnership is really working effectively.
The Partnership’s new strategy is approaching completion, based on
identified local need balanced with wider concerns. It identifies clear
outcomes and how they will be measured, with an action plan setting out who
will be responsible and by when.

Venezia!

Our Venezia! Festival is now underway and contains an enormous range of
activities to attract all ages and satisfy all the senses — opera, food,
workshops, art, drama, photography, talks, film, wine, music, family fun and a
masked ball.

Balloon Festival

Planning for this year’s festival continues, using a comprehensive risk
assessment approach. This identifies potential expenditure and income for a
number of scenarios, and is helping to inform operational decisions.
Meanwhile the councillor working party has been hearing evidence and



discussing the longer term future of the festival, with a view to reporting to
Cabinet in July with recommendations.

Culture and Leisure

The sub-group of the Government Monitoring Board (GMB) set up to look at
culture and leisure has now formally been wound up. The Government lead
official for Northampton Borough Council’s improvement wanted the group to
drive forward better partnership working within the county, both to raise the
profile of culture within our agencies and to raise this area’s cultural profile in
the region. He was clear that culture and leisure was not seen as a failing
service in Northampton. Chaired by the Improvement and Development
Agency’s lead on cultural matters, the sub-group has overseen a co-ordinated
improvement programme in Northamptonshire using the ‘TAES’ (Towards an
Excellent Service) model. The Chair has commended this Council’s team for
their enthusiastic commitment to the programme both in Northampton and
within the region. All the criteria for the group’s work were met, and so the
GMB has now agreed that its work is done — a really positive signal for this
Council.

Customer Service Performance

Operational teams have been coping with additional demand from other
services over the last 2 months — mainly billing from Council Tax, introduction
of the Concessionary Travel Scheme and the Housing Register review in
preparation to go live with Choice Based Lettings. In addition to this the team
have implemented a ‘queue management’ system in the One Stop Shop.
This is an example of where staff have used their initiative to find solutions to
an issue and used available resources effectively. It has been an extremely
busy period and staff have worked very hard to deliver timescales. The
telephone service during the Council Tax main billing period was the best
performance yet. Staff coped with 3.5 times the normal customer demand and
average waiting time in the queue was approximately 1.30 minutes.

Complaints Management

Significant levels of Stage 1 complaints continue to be received with an
increasing number of Stage 2 complaints also requested. Analysis of causal
factors includes poor quality of responses in service areas, and failures to fully
address the customer concerns raised in complaint. Training and support to
key service areas has been undertaken by Customer Services working closely
with Property Maintenance, Streetscene and Housing as priority areas.

An internal review of processes and outputs is being completed to ensure
resources are effectively deployed to provide more effective support to key
areas. A monthly report is presented to Management Board; a quarterly
report will be presented to Cabinet with effect from June 2008. A report is
currently being produced reporting for the period June 2007 — March 31
2008. There is evidence of increased performance monitoring and
management and challenge in service areas.



The Chief Executive’s office is now responsible for co-ordinating responses to
enquiries from Members of Parliament in order to enhance the relationship
between the authority and MPs and the service provided to them on
constituency matters.

Housing Progress Assessment

Key members of the team are involved in working closely with Housing
Services and supporting work leading to the Housing Progress Assessment.

Call Care - Telecare Standards Accreditation (TSA) Audit

An audit inspection is planned for the 29" May to retain part 1 of TSA. Work
has commenced to apply for part 2 TSA later this year.

Brendan Glynane
29 April 2008



Council
Monday 12th May 2008

Report of the Portfolio Holder for Housing

Partnership Working

A recent bid to the Department of Communities and Local Government (CLG)
for a hostel improvement grant has been successful. £1.4m has been
allocated to Northampton as part of their ‘Places for Change’ programme. The
aim of this programme is to create places that support people to make
positive changes in their lives and move on to independent or more
appropriate supported accommodation. This is a really important project for
the town and we would like to thank CLG for supporting Northampton
Borough Council’s bid to modernise facilities for homeless and vulnerable
people in the town. Feedback received from CLG is that our bid impressed
and that we did very well given the number of alternative good bids they
received.

Local Housing Allowance (LHA)

Changes to the way Housing Benefit is calculated were implemented
nationally on 7 April 2008.
Housing Benefit helps tenants on low income and benefits to pay their rent.
For those who rent their property in the private sector, the way their
entitlement is calculated is changing. Only claimants new to benefits will be
affected by the new rules.

Council staff have introduced these new rules efficiently and have worked with
stakeholders to ensure that the new scheme is understood and take-up
maximised.

Property Maintenance

As announced previously by the Leader of the Council, Property Maintenance
transferred to my Portfolio from the Environment Portfolio on 25th March
2008.

The Association of Public Service Excellence (APSE) Phase Two programme
is well underway. A three-year draft Business Plan has been produced and
consultation is ongoing with the Trade Unions in relation to remuneration
issues.

A review has started into procurement issues within the section, several
Procurement Consortia have been interviewed in relation to the services they
can offer and the ones that can demonstrate value for money will be chosen
as the preferred partners. This is being co-ordinated with the procurement
partnership led by the Council’'s Finance Directorate.

In general the vast majority of the local performance indicators have seen a
consistent improvement in particular the Voids team has seen their levels of
performance exceed target times.

A new post of Business Support Team Leader is shortly to be filled which will
harmonises the disparate administration function within the section.



Key issues

Housing Register review

= In preparation for the introduction of Choice Based Lettings in July, a
comprehensive review of housing register applicants has commenced.
This will ensure that data held on the Register is 100% accurate going
into the new scheme and people on the Housing waiting list have the
best possible opportunity to apply for available social housing.

Housing Progress Assessment

= The Housing Progress Assessment by the Audit Commission
commences on 6™ May. The Inspector will be around for 2 weeks and
will be looking specifically at how well the service offers value for
money, delivers services to diverse groups within the community and
will also look at the level of customer focus within housing. We
welcome this Assessment, which will give a clear indication of our
direction of travel as we aspire to be a 3 star, excellent service by

2012.
Service Plan

» The Housing Service Plan for 08/09 is at any advanced stage of
preparation. Some of the Housing service’s key priorities for this next
12 months include that we will have: -

Secured the confidence of our service customers, our partners
and the Audit Commission Housing Inspectors in our
improvement journey.

Established a culture that supports high performance and is
customer focused.

Delivered tangible improvements to value for money.

Service Awareness forum

A group of about 60 tenants attended this event on 22" April aimed at
improving awareness of the services provided by Housing. Staff from key
areas gave short presentations to small groups followed by discussion. The
event was hailed as a great success with positive and encouraging feedback
from tenants and it is hoped to run these sessions on a regular basis in future.

The Big Picture

A number of events have been held to discuss future housing strategy, with
the assistance of the Improvement and Development Agency (IDeA), and
under the banner “The Big Picture”. These are informing the improvement
agenda and assisting officers in developing further plans for the future
housing strategy of the Borough Council.

Sally Beardsworth

29 April 2008



Council
Monday 12th May 2008

Report of the Portfolio Holder for Regeneration

Grosvenor/Greyfriars

Negotiations with Legal and General for the redevelopment of the Grosvenor
Centre and the Bus Station continue to make good progress. Both parties
have now instructed their solicitors to draw up a legal agreement based upon
agreed terms.

Economic Regeneration Strategy

Following public consultation, the Northampton Economic Regeneration
Strategy has been agreed by Cabinet. We received useful input from a wide
range of interests and our partners. In particular, the Local Strategic
Partnership were supportive and will now share the strategy and the policies it
contains as the basis for our shared work.

Regeneration of the town centre is at the heart of the document, with the need
to provide a diverse range of retail and leisure facilities, specifically ensuring
that we provide opportunities for new and specialist business. In addition, we
need to promote high skilled employment opportunities, appropriate quality
housing and to work with the University and others to provide a strong
knowledge based economy.

Market Square

A report on the future use of the Market Square, and on building frontages in
the Market Square and Abington Street, are planned to be considered by
Cabinet in June.

These will provide the basis for our efforts to improve the use of the Market
Square as hub of our town centre. In addition, we have commissioned reports
on niche retail strategy and a feasibility study for a Business Start-Up Centre
in the St. John’s area. These will be considered, by Cabinet, when finalised.

RSL Management Partnership Agreement

On 29™ April, the Leader, Housing Portfolio Holder and | attended the launch
of a management partnership agreement signed by the Borough Council,
Daventry and South Northamptonshire District Councils and selected
Registered Social Landlords. The agreement sets out how we will together
with RSL’s to create high quality, affordable mixed tenure neighbourhoods
that meet the needs of our expanding population.

Richard Church
29 April 2008



Council
Monday 12" May 2008

Draft Report of the Portfolio Holder for Environment

Street Scene

A new service level agreement has been entered into with ELVIS (The End of
Life Vehicle Impound Scheme) for the removal of abandoned vehicles. This
came into effect from the 1% April and provides more flexibility for the removal
of vehicles using an extended number of removal contractors. This will result
in improved performance and has been implemented at no additional cost to
the Council.

The masterplan for Becketts Park has now commenced with HALCROW
taking the lead on the work. Funding for the project has been provided
through the regeneration team and the plan is expected to be completed by
June this year.

Regeneration works to Becketts Park entrance and Midsummer Meadow river
walk have now been completed which is the continuation of the Breathing
Spaces Project. All regeneration works have now been completed at Victoria
Park, including a maze, new MUGA (multi use games area), exercise
equipment, children’s play area and interpretation boards. This innovative and
excellent scheme is due for official opening during May.

The Council is supporting “Bands in the Park” this year with at least 15 bands
playing at Abington Park during the summer.

Waste Management

The trial kerbside collection of glass for recycling is popular with residents with
high participation rates resulting in five tonnes of glass being collected and
diverted from landfill on a weekly basis.

Work is continuing through the Northamptonshire Waste Partnership and
Milton Keynes Council regarding future residual waste treatment. The
Memorandum of Understanding and Outline Business Case has now been
approved by all partners and at Cabinet on 28™ April 2008

Changes to the Refuse Collection rounds are planned for the summer. This
will provide for more efficient use of the vehicle fleet and delay the need for
introduction of additional rounds to meet the needs of Northampton’s growing
population. Around 10,000 homes (247 streets and roads) will be affected with
a change in collection day. All ward Councillors have been consulted on
proposed changes. Work is in hand to ensure that changes are publicised to
affected households.

Carbon Management Programme

Work has commenced to procure the service of Energy Management to
implement the agreed first year investment programme, which will deliver the
target Carbon Reductions and efficiency savings.



Stray Dogs Service

As part of the Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005, the Stray
Dogs Service transferred to the Council on 6™ April 2008. New arrangements
have been put in place from 6" April and have been working well, providing a
smooth transfer from the Police to Northampton Borough Council.

Property Maintenance

As announced by the Leader of the Council, Property Maintenance
transferred from my portfolio to the Housing Portfolio on 25 March 2008 and is
reported under the Housing Portfolio Holder’s report.

Councillor Trini Crake
29 April 2008

10



Council
Monday 12th May 2008

Report of the Portfolio Holder for Performance

Induction Test for Hackney Drivers

To enhance the Service standards of Hackney Cab Drivers the Licensing
section has introduced an Induction Course for new drivers. The one-day
course will cover handling Crime and Disorder issues, Disabled Access
issues, testing basic communication skills and knowledge of Northampton.

This course alongside the recent “flagging operations” checking on the correct
application of hire rules by Private Hire Drivers are both designed to improve
the standard of service received by the public supervised by the Borough’s as
a Licensing authority.

Land Charges

Following the introduction of HIPs packs late last year the Council has
responded to Government recent consultation on further developments on
improving the Land Charges services offered by local councils.

The Borough provides a high standard of land search service and during
2007/08 provided 95.9% turnaround within 24 hours for standard local
searches.

Election Services

The section has commenced forward planning for the 2009 County and
European elections. Partnership working with other Districts Councils in the
County on joint printing is being considered to improve VFM and a joint
advertising campaign across the County to encourage Registration on the
election register is planned.

The Council’s Electoral Services Manager’s experience has been recognised
at a Regional level and he has been asked to Chair the East Midlands branch
of the Association of Electoral Administrators.

Overall Performance

The performance report for March confirms the continuing improvement in
monthly indicators with 55% of targets achieved and 77% of the indicators
showing an improvement year-on-year. The quarterly indicators show 44% of
the targets achieved and 36% showing year-on-year improvements.

These figures are currently unaudited. When the final out-turn is reported,
including the annual indicators, consideration will be given to the frequency of
reporting each indicator and adjustments made enable improvement in
delivery of key customer services.

11



Absence Management

The March out turn of 12.10 days is slightly ahead of last year and failed to
achieve the improvement target set for this year. Absence management is a
key indicator of the capacity of the authority to deliver consistent services and
therefore needs match the best Councils in the country. The action plan for
2008/09 will be revisited to ensure that appropriate support is provided to
employees and the capacity of the Council to provide services to the public.

Best Value Performance Plan

The previous statutory requirement for an annual detailed BVPP has been
removed by Government. There is only a requirement to prepare a condensed
version following revised guidance from Government. This takes the form of
reporting the out-turn for 2008/09 against our Best Value Performance
Indicators (BVPIs) to be submitted by 30th June. Targets for performance in
2008/9 are being set as part of the Corporate Plan and the Service Plans for
all services. These plans will be made available to all Members when they are
completed.

Preparation of the new set of National Indicators.

BVPIs are being replaced by a set of 198 indicators. The Council is working
closely with other councils in the County to prepare for this new reporting
framework. Agreement on which National Indicators will be included in the
Local Area Agreement should be reached by 1% June 2008. Several of these
Indicators will also be included in the final Corporate Plan. Communications
on the details of the new set of indicators will take place in the coming period.
As many of the new National Indicators are brand new and were not
previously collected, 2008/9 data will provide a baseline for future target-
setting.

New Performance Management System.

The implementation programme of Performance Plus is on target for the June
pilot in Regeneration. Following this an evaluation of the project will be
undertaken to inform the development of the further phased rollout across
services. Arrangements have been made with the Chair of Overview and
Scrutiny 3 for a presentation to be made to this Committee of the new system
as part of communication to all Councillors.

Performance Management Framework.

This is being revised to build on the progress made over the last twelve
months. The changes to achieve a more focussed approach include monthly
reviews of each Director's area by the Chief Executive and monthly
Performance Clinics in each Directorate and Quarterly Reviews for each
Portfolio undertaken by the Leader with the Portfolio Holder advised by the
Chief Executive.

Single Status & Equal Pay

The Council continues to work jointly with the Trade Unions to implement new
pay and grading arrangements for the Council. Arrangements are being

12



made for a signing day during May when it is hoped the majority of the jointly
identified potential equal pay claims will be settled.

The Chief Executive is continuing to review the options to implement Single
Status across the Council. Progress on a new way forward is anticipated
shortly.

Skills for Life

The Council has signed up to the GO local Government Award to promote
Skills for Life across the organisation. A Steering Group has been established
which will oversee the project and promote similar action by our partners in
the LSP.

The Council will be working with Tresham College to promote Numeracy and
Literacy skills with the staff and the general public during Adult Learning Week
(19th to 23rd May).

Brian Hoare
29 April 2008

13



Council
Monday 12th May 2008

Report of the Portfolio Holder for Finance

General

This is a very busy time of the year for the finance department. The key focus
is on the closure of accounts, which is now well under way.

Improvement

The Government Monitoring Board agreed that the Finance service should be
taken out of monitoring. This is very good news for the Authority and is part of
our ongoing improvement journey. | would like to express my thanks to the
Finance staff for all of the work and effort they have put in.

Value for Money

As part of our value for money / efficiency process the Council went live in
January on a single point of contact for agency worker services. The
implementation went fairly smoothly and the first quarterly review with the
supplier shows that we are delivering a data accuracy of 95% in terms of our
internal control mechanisms. This compares very well against 40% accuracy
for most local authorities generally. The project aims to deliver both financial
and efficiency savings and this first review indicates that we are on our way.

Risk Management

Risk management workshops are currently being rolled out across the
authority. So far over 80 staff have attended these workshops. This is part of
our overall improvement in governance arrangements and to ensure that the
evaluation of risk is embedded in all activities and services across the
Council.

Asset Management

English Partnerships have agreed to dispose of a small area of land at
nominal value to the Council to facilitate the completion of the ground lease at
Mencap Delapre Park to Mencap for their New Headquarters.

Following a letter to the County Council outlining the problems in relation to
the completion the lease of the site at Lings Way to Indian Hindu Welfare
Organisation (IHWO), NCC have agreed to carry over the grant funding to the
IHWO into this financial year. English Partnerships have also agreed to enter
a deed of release removing restrictive covenants, which were delaying the
project. It is therefore anticipated that legal formalities necessary to complete
the lease can be completed in the near future.

Malcolm Mildren
29 April 2008

14



-

Agerda ltem g

Appendices: 2 gqpp

i

NORTHAMPTON
BOROUGH COUNCIL

COUNCIL
12 May 2008

Agenda Status: Public Directorate: People Planning and Regeneration
Report Title Northampton Economic Regeneration Strategy
1. Summary

The Council’s Northampton Economic Regeneration Strategy will be a key document for the
Borough and relates directly to the Corporate Plan to ‘promote economic development and
growth in Northampton’. The strategy sets out the economic and regeneration vision and
priorities for NBC and its partners. The document also puts into words the actions that are
required to achieve this objective over a projected time period 2008 to 2026. Using national and
regional, planning and economic regeneration policy the Council needs to lead this process
supported by its partners

2. Recommendations
2.1 Cabinet recommends that full Council adopt the Northampton Economic Regeneration

Strategy (appendix 1).
3. Report Background
That cabinet considered the Northampton Economic Regeneration Strategy (Appendix 1) at their
meeting on 7 April 2008 and following support of this, recommended its adoption by full Council.

The paper from that meeting with the background information is attached (Appendix 2) for
consideration along with The Northampton Economic Regeneration Strategy.

4. Implications (including financial implications)

D:\modernGov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\3\219\A100024923\council12may08report0.doc



4.1 Resources and Risk

See attached Cabinet paper

4.2 Legal

See attached Cabinet paper

4.3 Other Implications

See attached Cabinet paper

5. Background Papers

Appendix 1 Northampton Economic Regeneration Strategy
Appendix 2 Cabinet paper on Northampton Economic Regeneration Strategy dated 7 4 08

Report Author and Title: Mick Lorkins
Telephone and Email: 8033

D:\modernGov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\3\219\A100024923\council12may08report0.doc



Appendices

ey E p= Item No.

R

M

1

A

NORTHAMPTON
BOROUGH COUNCIL

CABINET REPORT

Report Title Northampton Economic Regeneration Strategy

AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC

Cabinet Meeting Date: 7 April 2008

Key Decision: Yes

Listed on Forward Plan: Yes

Within Policy: Yes

Policy Document: Yes

Directorate: Regeneration and Growth
Accountable Cabinet Member: ClIr Richard Church

Ward(s) All

1. Purpose

1.1

1.2

1.3

The Council’'s Northampton Economic Regeneration Strategy will be a key
document for the Borough and relates directly to the Corporate Plan to ‘promote
economic development and growth in Northampton’. The strategy sets out the
economic and regeneration vision and priorities for NBC and its partners. The
document also puts into words the actions that are required to achieve this
objective over a projected time period 2008 to 2026. Using national and
regional, planning and economic regeneration policy the Council needs to lead
this process supported by its partners.

The strategy is in line with the Corporate Plan priority 4 objective stating that ‘we
will promote economic development and growth in Northampton’

This report seeks Cabinet approval of The Northampton Economic
Regeneration Strategy and recommends its adoption by Council.

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/02/05/08



2. Recommendations

2.1 That cabinet is asked to consider the Northampton Economic Regeneration
Strategy (Appendix 1).

2.2 That Cabinet recommends the adoption of the Northampton Economic
Regeneration Strategy to Council.

3. Issues and Choices

3.1 Report Background

3.1.1

3.1.2

3.1.3

3.1.4

The Northampton Economic Regeneration Strategy aims to provide an agreed
direction for Northampton’s Future. Northampton is within the Milton Keynes
South Midlands Growth area; this Central Government Growth Agenda gives
Northampton greater opportunity than most places in the UK. The number of
houses in the town is set to increase from the current 88,000 to 120,500 by
2026. This projected increase in housing and associated growth in population
gives an opportunity to regenerate the town and build on the successes that
Northampton has to offer. From planned housing growth comes the increased
demand for retail, jobs, leisure, green space and transport etc. The
regeneration and growth of the town will have a significant impact on the
shape of the economy over the next 18 years and into the future.

The document will be used both internally and externally with our partners to
target key priorities and projects so ensuring good communication and buy in
with all key partners. The document includes an executive summary; it shows
the current economic position of the Borough, the future aspiration and the
actions to be taken to deliver this. It is broken down into easily
understandable themes or chapters looking at the broad economy ensuring all
building blocks to success are identified. The document has taken into
consideration national and regional policy as well as local needs in its
development.

The Council’'s Regeneration and Growth Department has been developing the
strategy, working towards implementing this and working in partnership across
the region with partners including:

Local Strategic Partnership

West Northamptonshire Development Corporation,
Northamptonshire County Council,
Northamptonshire Enterprise Limited,

English Partnerships,

East Midlands Development Agency and

The University of Northampton.

The primary use of this document is to: -
1) Give leadership and direction to Northampton and bring forward
cohesion to the priorities for the Northampton Economy.

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/02/05/08



2) Promote joint workings and understanding with key partners in
delivering a long-term structured programme of work.

3) Provide corporate direction for NBC’s and our partner's activities in
Northampton.

4) Ensure clear priorities and objectives for deciding resources, including;
financial, people and assets to deliver outcomes set in the strategy.

3.1.5 The Economic Regeneration Strategy addresses the community vision of
creating a 21st century ‘Market City’ to live, work and invest in.
3.2 Issues
3.2.1 This Economic Regeneration Strategy for Northampton is more than a vision
and aims to give clear direction looking at local needs and regional strategies.
The core of the document looks at:
e Strong leadership united around a shared vision.
¢ Investment in the knowledge city.
e Building on existing strengths.
e Developing and strengthening the Boroughs markets.
o Diversifying specialisation in the Borough'’s industries.
e Attracting and retaining high skills and skilled organisations.
¢ Promoting a vibrant education sector including higher education.
e A distinctive 'knowledge city' offer.
e Strong connectivity of transport and communication.
¢ Investing in communities and tackling social exclusion.
3.2.2 The MKSM growth agenda sets housing targets, taking current numbers at

88,000 with projections to increase to 120,500 by 2026. Associated to this the
population is projected to increase from 200,000 to, up to 300,000.
Regeneration of the town is needed to expand facilities and bring back
character in a planned strategy.

3.3 Choices (Options)

3.3.1

3.3.2

3.3.3

Do Nothing - The option to do nothing would not affect the number of planned
houses as significant numbers of homes will continue to be delivered through
commercial activity. Without a clear strategy the supporting town facilities will
not be delivered in a co-ordinate and clearly planned way to ensure
Northampton is an attractive place to live, work and invest. Opportunities
presented from funders such as NEL, developer contributions or central
government funding would not be spent in a co-ordinate way.

Adopt Strategy — The Northampton Economic Regeneration Strategy will give
a co-ordinated plan for delivery based on local needs, regional and sub
regional strategies and the LSP Sustainable Community Strategy for
Northampton.

Write an alternative document — If it was felt that the strategy it felt that is does
not deliver the objective a new strategy could be written. The current strategy
went out for a three-month consultation and has general agreement on the

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/02/05/08



targets. A new document would give a delay in concluding the direction that
Northampton may wish to proceed and inputs would be needed in deciding the
new direction.

4. Implications (including financial implications)

4.1 Policy

4.1.1 The document is one of a suite of documents being developed by the Council
to address regeneration and growth. Strategic direction is given in the
Northampton Economic Regeneration Strategy along with the Joint Core
Strategy, Sustainable Community Strategy for Northampton and Central Area
Action Plan all currently evolving.

4.2 Resources and Risk

421 1t is not a statutory requirement but is essential in delivering planned and

sustained regeneration and growth of Northampton.
The production of the written document has limited financial implications, as
this is implemented by internal staff within approved budgets. The application
of the strategy will however have major implications for the town as a whole
but the long-term impact should be financially positive as investment into
facilities, infrastructure and jobs are created from the proposed actions.

4.2.2 The initial implementation of the strategy will require up front investment by
NBC and partners in planning and feasibility studies. This planning activity
will need to be budgeted for to start the process and prove the case for major
capital funding from developers and other government partners such as
WNDC, NEL and EMDA.

4.3 Legal

4.3.1 This strategy is not a legal requirement but demonstrates prudent planning
and awareness of the economic challenges facing the Borough with a fully
supported strategy.

4.4 Equality

441 The document has been out for a three-month consultation that included
consultation with community and diversity groups.

4.5 Consultees (Internal and External)

4.5.1 Partners met before the document went to consultation to discuss an earlier
draft to help shape the Consolation Draft document. This included WNDC,
NEL, NCC, EMDA and EP. From this document reviewed at the 1 October
Cabinet, an extensive 3-month consultation has taken place from 8 October
2007 to 14 January 2008. 31 partner Organisations were consulted along with
1070 Businesses and 56 parish council / resident associations. The document
was also available on the NBC web site to be filled in on line or down loaded,
and the document was referenced on the observatory and Chamber of

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/02/05/08



452

453

454

Commerce web site. The document was distributed in the Grosvenor Centre
for two days, as well as being presented at a business breakfast by the Chief
Executive and Leader of the Council. From this, replies were received from 24
partner organisations, 8 businesses, 2 parish council / resident associations
and 10 individuals.

The consultation asked people general questions on the document and what
they would like to add on each chapter. It also asked people to rank each
target on a scale from strongly agree to strongly disagree. From these results,
the average (median) reply was plotted to find if a majority of people agreed
with each target or not. The results show that for all targets the majority either
strongly agree or agreed with 33 strongly agreed targets and 26 generally
agreed out of the total 59 targets.

These results were fed back to the Consultees in a public meeting on 29
January 2008 and the analysis of the result have also been put on the NBC
web site.

The Draft Northampton Economic Regeneration Strategy document has been
changed in response to the comments and suggestions submitted during the 3
month consultation period. The main high level changes are:

o References to NBC in the document have been changed to refer to
Partners. This is in response to the Chair of the LSP wanting the
document to be adopted by the LSP and requiring it to therefore be
focused towards partners.

e All partners are listed on the front of the document. This will have to
be confirmed with these partners before the final document is
published.

e  The strategy now runs from 2008 to 2026 rather than 2007 to 2021.
To align with the planning framework.

e  Statistics and tables through out the document have been revised
with the most up to date figures.

o 8 new Targets have been added. These are:

R9. Improved Building Frontages - Northampton's character is a
key asset in promoting place making.

E15. Livestock Market - Support the Farmers' Consortium's
campaign to re-open the Livestock Market.

B7. Innovation Space - Develop innovation space for business and
engineering with the focus on Northampton’s strengths and
connections.

B8. Business Support — Business Link - Develop an onsite support
hub for the evolving fledging business centres with advice.

H5. Refurbish existing estates - Housing expansion should not
only focus on building new houses but should explore the
potential of refurbishing poor existing housing estates

L4. Events Programme - Develop a programme of major events for
the town, of local, regional or national significance.

L5. Town Trail - Develop a self-guided historic town trail of
Northampton.

T9. Bus travel and modal shift - Ensure that a town Centre
transport hub is part of a wider aim.

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/02/05/08



e Develop a South Northampton Railway Station — This target was
rejected by NCC and WNDC and was a barrier to making the whole
strategy a partnering document that parties could sign up to. The
consultation identified it as the least popular target in the document
although a majority still agreed.

4.6 How the Proposals deliver Priority Outcomes

4.6.1

46.2

4.6.3

Northampton Borough Council’'s Corporate Plan sets out 5 main Priorities to
be pursued over the next 3 years. One of these is that ‘We will promote
economic development and growth in Northampton’. This NBC corporate
objective is the driving force in writing the Northampton Economic
Regeneration Strategy and in the future implementation of the strategy.

Northampton’s Economic Regeneration Strategy takes its primary lead from
local needs but also takes its guide from the East Midlands Regional
Economic Strategy (RES), Regional Spatial Strategy (RSS) and the
Northamptonshire Sub Regional Economic Strategy (SRES). These
documents feed into the Local Area Agreement (LAA) that sets out specific
targets. The Northampton Economic Regeneration Strategy does not aim to
repeat these targets and objectives the strategy document but rather to give
specific local achievable direction in areas of influence aiming to add value to
the current overarching work.

The strategy will be the framework for delivering economic development,
regeneration and growth of Northampton for NBC and our partners.

4.7 Other Implications

4.71

The Central Government Growth Agenda projects the number of houses in the
town is set to increase from 88,000 to 120,500 by 2026. This projected
increase in housing and associated growth in population gives an opportunity
to regenerate the town and build on the successes that Northampton has to
offer. From planned housing growth comes the increased demand for retail,
jobs, leisure, green space and transport etc.

5. Background Papers

5.1

Cabinet paper - 1 October 2007

Corporate Plan 2008 - 2011

Milton Keynes and South Midlands Sub Regional Strategy
Regional Economic Strategy

Sub Regional Economic Strategy

Mick Lorkins
Economic Intelligence Manager ext:8033

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/02/05/08



NORTHAMPTON

‘The Market City'

ECONOMIC REGENERATION
STRATEGY

2008-2026

Working in partnership across the region with many organisations including:

Local Strategic Partnership

West Northamptonshire Development Corporation
Northamptonshire County Council

Northampton Borough Council

Northamptonshire Enterprise Limited

English Partnerships

East Midlands Development Agency and

The University of Northampton

7 April 08




Northampton ERS 1

Contents

Foreword

Executive Summary
Introduction

Retail

Industry/ Employment
Business Start-Up
Regeneration and Growth
Education Training and Skills
Community

Housing

Leisure

Infrastructure

Leadership

Bibliography

Appendix 1 Summary Table of Targets

Final 7 April 08

Page Nos.

12
16
22
29
33
37
41
45
49
54

55

57



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08
Northampton Economic Regeneration Strategy 2007 - 2026

Foreword

Northampton is about to change, a change driven by the need for significant
numbers of new houses in the region and a desire to expand in a sustainable way to
serve the current and future citizens of this emerging “Market City”. This current
opportunity arises with funding generated from growth. Northampton requires
direction and vision to capture this opportunity.

Northampton is the largest town in the country with a population of 200,100 and sits
at the heart of the biggest growth area outside London. The town has 88,000
houses with a further 32,500 to be built by 2026. The population is projected to
expand up to 300,000 by 2026. Northampton’s current challenge is in making the
growth transform the town into a balanced green and prosperous European ‘Market
City’ for the 21 century. Currently the housing growth is leading the way in the
transformation of the town but the heart of Northampton also needs dynamic growth
from its streets, shops, leisure and economy. The opportunity is to make
Northampton a sustainable city capitalising on its central location in the UK to attract
business and residents with its distinct character, heritage and sporting legacy.

Northampton’s approach to accelerated growth requires a step change in the way
things happen. There needs to be greater drive and partnership working to achieve
the balanced results required.

Proactive intervention in Regeneration needs to go hand in hand with our exciting
economic aspirations enabling Northampton to compete at a regional, national and
international level.

Northampton’s Economic Regeneration Strategy sets out clear targets for the
transformation of Northampton’s economy with a golden thread connecting regional
to sub regional and local needs and plans. It is a Northampton Local Strategic
Partnership document supported by the LSP board that brings public, private and
voluntary sectors, together with sub-regional partners. The document went out to
consultation for three months from October 2007 to January 2008 and as a result a
set of planned target actions have been drawn up within this document bringing the
strategy to life.

Some major steps have already been made with the creation of the award winning
Upton housing development, brownfield initiative, flood alleviation work and in the
major £200 million PFI transformation of our school system (led by the County
Council).

Northampton needs to create a ‘Market City’ of opportunities and diversity, with an
economic base to provide a climate for innovation, investment and encourage
enterprise, allowing businesses to thrive.

Developing and promoting a highly skilled knowledge-driven workforce is also key in
the development of Northampton and there needs to be the opportunity for all to train
and then use these new skills in the local area to drive a dynamic economy.

The Northampton Economic Regeneration Strategy aims to give shared partnership
direction for the town’s development, promoting and channelling energy to achieve
agreed goals.



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08

Executive Summary

Northampton: City for Investment

By 2021, Northampton will be a European city of vitality known for its distinct quality
of life, history, culture and green living, enjoyed by all.

The Milton Keynes South Midlands Sub Regional Strategy, West Northamptonshire
Joint Local Development Scheme, the Joint Core Strategy (JCS), Central Area
Action Plan (CAAP) and NCC Transport Strategy for Growth will provide the strategic
framework for the spatial development of Northampton. The Economic Regeneration
Strategy identifies the key economic priorities and actions that are needed to move
forward in a planned way.

Northampton’s Economic Regeneration Strategy is a Northampton Local Strategic
Partnership document supported by the LSP board taking its primary lead from local
needs but also taking its guide from the East Midlands Regional Economic Strategy
(RES), Regional Spatial Strategy (RSS) and the Northamptonshire Sub Regional
Economic Strategy (SRES). These documents feed into the Local Area Agreement
(LAA) that sets out specific targets. The Strategic Northamptonshire Economic
Action Plan (SNEAP) is also a key document. The Northampton Economic
Regeneration Strategy does not aim to repeat these targets and objectives in this
document but rather give specific local achievable direction in areas of influence
aiming to add value to the current overarching work.

The Strategy aspires to:-

e Create the right environment to attract diverse and entrepreneurial business
to invest in Northampton

¢ Provide a focused framework to help secure public sector investment

e Promote a diverse and adaptable skilled workforce, stimulate ambition, and
ensure that these people are retained in the Northampton economy.

e Develop Northampton’s infrastructure including retail and leisure facilities to
aspire to quality that aids the attractiveness of Northampton with amenities
second to none.

e Enhance and promote the creative facilities, the unique historic character and
niche retail offer in Northampton.

e Promote strong partnership working across all sectors for genuine
commitment to the sustainable development of Northampton.

The vision for Northampton is to be a major regional and cultural economic centre
with traditional architecture mixed with high quality new urban design creating city
living. Northampton will have a cultural quarter, a riverside development, be known
nationally as a centre for education, with diverse employment opportunities, excellent
sustainable transport and a tourist destination of choice.



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08
Northampton: the City to Live, Work and Invest in

The “city with a unique quality of life” is a central concept within the Economic
Regeneration Strategy. By 2021 Northampton will be transformed into a prosperous
and dynamic regional city with a growing knowledge based economy, distinguished
by:
e Distinctive character historically, culturally and environmentally.
e Knowledge creation and retention with a nationally acclaimed university, with
infrastructure aiding technology transfer and renowned studies.
e Good skills levels throughout the workforce.
e Cluster(s) of growing knowledge industries including creative, science and
business quarters.
e Good connectivity with IT and transport links, including good cycle, bus and
walking routes.
e Known for its high quality of life, expansive retail offer and diverse leisure
activities.
e Effective local leadership (local government and other agencies).

Northampton’s Assets

Northampton has significant assets not least its history stretching back over more
than 800 years. Each generation adding a layer of activity and intrigue that is
recorded in the physical make up if its buildings, industry and infrastructure.

These assets include the green infrastructure. Its beautiful parks and village greens
hidden in suburbs of Northampton are gems that need to be preserved. New
developments need to acknowledge the success of this green infrastructure,
retaining an uplifting quality of life in the emerging green ‘market city’.

Other items that give the place a distinct identity include, The Royal and Derngate
Theatre and the town's Museums including the recently restored 78 Derngate
designed by Charles Rennie Macintosh. The town also has many notable ancient
churches including the round church of the Holy Sepulchre and All Saints Church in
the town centre. Being a County Town it has an historic grand market square that
can be seen on a map from the17th-century. The Northampton ‘Saints’ Rugby Club,
Northampton Town Football Club, Northants Cricket also add a sporting sense of
identity advertising the town to a wider audience. All of these assets and many more
give the town character, a character that ensures a sense of place and a starting
point for developing a new European city.

The Boot and Shoe industry in Northampton was aided by Northampton’s central
location in the country offering good connectivity to markets.

Today’s cities succeed by offering proximity to people and their ideas (Glazer 2005)
and this is still appropriate for Northampton when considering future plans. There
are also opportunities to support and expand the towns existing businesses.

The growth agenda gives great pressure to ensure the housing expansion and
associated projected population growth from 200,000 to 260,000 will also deliver the
facilities required of a medium sized city.



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08

Northampton has a growing education infrastructure and established specialisms in
creative arts, business, healthcare, environment, waste management, leather
technology and land management amongst others. The University of Northampton,
Northampton College and Moulton College are key drivers for up-skilling the town’s
work force, adding to the expansion of Northampton’s knowledge economy and a
critical influence on the future economic prosperity.

The town and surrounding area also hosts many events and rallies such as the
annual balloon festival, carnival, numerous steam rallies and a diverse range of
sporting and cultural events all lending weight to Northampton’s central location in
the country.

The town is surrounded with historic houses and picturesque villages offering
excellent quality of life. The aim is to bring this feeling of wealth into Northampton
town.

Northampton’s Challenges

Northampton must provide a more supportive culture for its business community to
invest. It must improve its image, promoting its cultural assets and attractions as a
place to live, work and invest.

Northampton also needs to regain its rightful place as the focus of the County and
gain support from its infrastructure to develop a city economy.

Northampton’s current economy is not as diverse as it could be, relying on too few
sectors and tends to have lower skills levels.

The town is within a commutable distance to and from London and this creates
opportunities and challenges. There are opportunities for companies to relocate to
Northampton where land is cheaper and quality of life better, and challenges as
many of the Borough’s high earners commute to London for wider opportunities.
This could be an opportunity to boost the local economy if more high knowledge
skilled careers were available locally.

Northampton needs to raise its performance to become more competitive and
diversify its economic base in order to raise incomes.

The Economic Regeneration Strategy

The Economic Regeneration Strategy for Northampton needs to promote a step
change in the focus of regenerating and growing the town in a planned way.

The key to the development of the town centre is ‘deliverability’. The CAAP will
provide the Statutory planning framework to deliver change. Partners such as
Northampton Borough Council and Northamptonshire County Council hold significant
land in the town and there is great potential for joint working with both private and
public sector partners to get the most potential from these assets. The Northampton
Economic Regeneration Strategy will have a long-term impact on the town, and
actions are set for focusing delivery.



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08

The focus being on:-

e Making Northampton a distinctive place, promoting its heritage, culture,
natural environment and creating high quality places

e Developing retail, living and employment opportunities in the town centre

e Developing sustainable living, improving connectivity and access

¢ Promoting the knowledge economy

The Economic Regeneration Strategy will need to connect with Northampton’s new
Spatial Planning Vision. The overarching aim of the strategy is to achieve a
significantly improved competitive position for Northampton and to transform it into a
competitive, diversified, balanced and well-connected economy where strong
leadership drives economic success and quality development.

The Northampton Economic Regeneration Strategy identifies ten critical
development themes that need to be progressed to achieve a rounded
transformation of the Northampton Economy.

These are broken down in the document into a set of ten subject headings expanded
upon in the following chapters:

Retail

Industry/Employment
Business start up
Regeneration

Education training and skills
Community

Housing

Leisure / Sport
Infrastructure

Leadership

These themes are the building blocks of balanced economic performance in all cities
and will become Northampton’s focus for success.

Proactive Interventions

The Focus of the Northampton Economic Regeneration Strategy develops these
themes into a set of actions, targets and standards. The most important ideas
promoted by the Strategy are:

Expand the retail offer in the town centre

Develop niche markets

Develop Market Square as the centrepiece of the ‘new city’

Improve the public realm especially Abington Street

Protect our green infrastructure, parks and greens and add similar

spaces to the new ‘Market City’ as it expands

e Promote the creative sectors of the town to retain students, add
character and provide creativity to the town’s growth

e Promote availability of land for key industry sectors for Northampton

including consultancy, headquarters of companies, knowledge based

industry and a Technology Realm

7



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08

Develop the leisure offer

Develop a branding and marketing strategy

Promote good carbon management

Promote quality affordable housing

Be receptive to initiatives and ideas that promote Northampton
expanding economy

Cutting across all of these themes is quality and stimulating ambition. The
community strategy highlighted that development should deliver cleaner, safer and
greener communities. Quality is a critical factor to ensure schemes deliver longevity
rather than short term wins with long-term problems and well considered design is
key.



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08

INTRODUCTION

The Northampton Economic Regeneration Strategy is a Northampton Local Strategic
Partnership document supported by the LSP board that aims to provide an agreed direction
for Northampton’s Future. The regeneration and growth of the current town will have a
significant impact on the shape of the economy over the next 15 years and into the
foreseeable future. The town has a partnership of regional delivery agents to implement all
aspects of the strategy. These partners include:

Local Strategic Partnership

West Northamptonshire Development Corporation
Northamptonshire County Council

Northampton Borough Council

Northamptonshire Enterprise Limited

English Partnerships

East Midlands Development Agency and

The University of Northampton

The primary use of this document is to:-

1) Give leadership and direction to Northampton and bring forward cohesion to the
priorities for the Northampton Economy.

2) Promote joint working and understanding with key partners in delivering a long-
term structured programme of work.

3) Provide corporate direction for Partner’s activities and complement the strategic
planning process.

4) Ensure clear priorities and objective for resources, including; financial, people
and assets to deliver the agreed strategy.

The Economic Regeneration Strategy addresses the community vision of wanting to create a
21st century ‘Market City’ to live, work and invest in.

The aim of the strategy is to turn Northampton into a European city with ambition, thriving
from morning to night whilst being safer, cleaner and healthier. With the expanding
economy it will develop a sense of place and excitement, grown from an evolving cultural
quarter, fully utilised European exemplar market square, expanded retail offer and wealth of
learning, living and employment opportunities. Skills will need to be improved, driving to
achieve a knowledge led economy, retaining students within Northampton.

The ‘market city’ will be modelled on Northampton’s traditional street patterns, differentiating
it from its neighbours through niche shopping, arts, culture and fashion (especially shoes) all
of which give Northampton a distinct identity. Northampton will offer a mix of historic
architecture and the best new urban design offering a variety of homes to appeal to a broad
market from city living, bespoke waterfront development to treasured village greens.

All building work will aim to be of excellent environmental and quality standards, promoting
the existing parks and village greens and adding to this in the expanding city. The city will
also have a sustainable transport, cycling, walking network and wealth of well-maintained
leisure facilities that create interest and intrigue. This will include a new landmark swimming
leisure complex that reflects Northampton’s distance from the sea but provides outstanding
inland water based facility for all ages.

This Economic Regeneration Strategy for Northampton is more than a vision and aims to
give clear direction looking at local needs and regional strategies.

9



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08

The core of the document looks at:
e Strong leadership united around a shared vision

¢ Investment in the physical ‘knowledge city’

o Building on existing strengths

o Diversifying the Borough'’s industries

o Attracting, retaining and developing high skills and skilled organisations
e Promoting a vibrant education sector including higher education

o A distinctive 'knowledge city' offer

e Strong connectivity of transport and communication

e Investing in communities and tackling social exclusion

The Central Government Growth Agenda gives Northampton greater opportunity than most
towns in the UK. The number of houses in the town is set to increase from 88,000 to
111,500 by 2021. This projected increase in housing and associated growth in population
gives an opportunity to regenerate the town and build on the successes that Northampton
has to offer. From planned housing growth comes the increased demand for retail, jobs,
leisure, green space and transport etc.

Northampton Borough Council’'s Corporate Plan sets out five main objectives to be achieved
over the next four years. One of these is ‘To promote economic development and
growth in Northampton’. This NBC corporate priority is the driving force in writing the
Economic Regeneration Strategy and to be a key partner in its subsequent implementation.

Northampton’s Economic Regeneration Strategy takes its primary lead from local needs but
also takes its guide from the East Midlands Regional Economic Strategy (RES), Regional
Spatial Strategy (RSS) and the Northamptonshire Sub Regional Economic Strategy (SRES).
These documents feed into the Local Area Agreement (LAA) that sets out specific targets.
The Strategic Northamptonshire Economic Action Plan (SNEAP) is also a key document.
The Northampton Economic Regeneration Strategy does not aim to repeat these targets and
objectives in this document but rather give specific local achievable direction in areas of
influence aiming to add value to the current overarching work.

This strategy is primarily driven around living in, working in, and developing the town centre.

A major factor is greatly increased retail demand from the growth of the town and the
opportunity to significantly enhance the shopping offer in the town centre. There is land
available in the town centre to create this opportunity from surface car parks etc. The design
of the new retail offer needs to be outstanding to create a ‘wow factor’ that differentiates
Northampton from other local offers, drawing people into the town centre through quality
landmark developments. The current historic character of the town needs to be promoted
and niche markets created. The aim is to offer outstanding retail, leisure and investment
opportunities, matched with new desirable houses, making it prosperous, progressive and
promoted.

Expansion is not a new concept for Northampton as the town was designated a new town in
the 1960’s and saw dramatic growth through the 1970’s and 1980’s increasing the housing
numbers by 20,000 with 42 miles of new roads, 10 million square feet of new office or factory
space, 10 community centres, 10 local shopping centres and over 20 schools, at a capital
cost at the time of some £200 million.

10



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08

The current growth target of 31,500 new houses (2001 to 21) is far greater than the town has
ever seen. The expansion is already happening. The greatest danger to the town is that
this is left to market forces to drive forward, developing housing and retail opportunities
where the land is cheapest and building of a low quality giving maximum returns for the
investor but very little added-value to the citizens of Northampton and the economy. If out-
of-town centres are developed there is a risk that the town centre will decline, eventually
forcing current anchor tenants to quit the town on a downward spiral. (Ref. CACI
Northampton Retail Strategy Report 2008)

Northampton has the opportunity to develop in a controlled way and the local development
framework will provide a clear Masterplan of the town and surrounding region but it must
have the support of all of its local authority agents and citizens. A piecemeal approach will
give a half-hearted result reflecting in poor architecture and a less desirable place to work,
live and invest.

A further significant element to the Economic Regeneration Strategy is the development of
the public realm with consistent design principals aimed at reflecting the character of the
town. This is extremely important to give the town the long-term desirability to invest and
live in. This document aims to evaluate the main areas of the Northampton economy looking
at:-

Retail

Industry/Employment
Business start-up
Regeneration

Education / Training and Skills
Community

Housing

Leisure / Sport

Infrastructure

Leadership

These ‘focus areas’ of the economy have been selected to ensure a rounded view of the
economy is considered. Some important subjects such as skills are covered across several
subject areas.

The report briefly looks at Northampton’s current economy and gives a focus on the future
achievements identifying specific targets. Some of these targets are research projects to
gain further information before taking action. The ‘targets’ are detailed in a table in the
appendices.

A key to the development of the town centre is deliverability. This is enhanced due to the
significant land holdings owned by the Borough Council and the County Council with the
ability to explore the potential opportunities for joint working with both private and public
sector partners. The results of this work will give rise to further targets. The strategy will
have a long-term impact on the town; however, longer-term actions will need to be reviewed
as work progresses and further detailed targets set. The focus is still envisaged to be:-

¢ Making Northampton a distinctive, ambitious and vibrant place, promoting its heritage
and creating buildings of quality

e Developing retail, living and employment opportunities in the town centre

e Developing sustainable living, improving connectivity and access

e Promoting the knowledge economy

11



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08
RETAIL

Current - Retail

Northampton as Northamptonshire’s county town and an important market town currently
has a fairly average retail offer but considering it is the largest town in the country the offer
should be much better. Most of the top 20 high street retailers are present in the town but
the size and level of the stores is disappointing.

Northampton has a total of 518 town centre retailers covering a total floor space of 123,000
sg m and retail warehousing of 131,000 sq m, making the out of town shopping larger than
the town centre retail floor space. (ref Property Market Review 2006 CBRE).

The high level of retail warehousing is a major threat to the ‘health’ of Northampton town
centre. A recent survey conducted by CBRE, ‘Fashioning a Shopping Experience’, shows
that the average shopper now has a preference for out of town location due to the availability
of free parking and larger shops. A further threat to Northampton town centre is the
improvement of ‘competing centres’ in the area, that have the potential to attract local
shoppers to those centres rather than shopping in Northampton. Current figures (2006) show
that 18% of residents in the south of the Borough shop in Milton Keynes rather than
Northampton.

The CBRE Northampton Retail & Leisure Needs Analysis Version 5 August 2006 looked at
the capacity for new retail in the town categorising the shopping experience as Convenience
goods (supermarkets) and Comparison goods (clothes, shoes, fashion etc). The results
below show a considerable opportunity in comparison goods as follows:-

Forecast capacity for new shop floorspace
Retail type 2006 2011 2016
Convenience Goods in Town 1,890 sqm 2,450 sqm 3,080 sqm
Convenience Goods out of Town 4,390 sqm 6,080 sq m 8,560 sq m
Comparison Goods 21,350 sqm 53,400sqm 86,300 sqm

When CBRE looked at Comparison Goods it was noted that Northampton town centre would
be able to achieve higher market share with a major new town centre development taking
into consideration the expanding population. The projected expansion of comparison goods
in the town centre would represent a two-thirds increase in capacity. If the extension of the
Grosvenor Centre provided an additional 50,000 sq m of space then this could equate to
2,500 new jobs.

The report also identifies the opportunity for another major supermarket within the town
centre. This demand will be strengthened with the expansion of residential space in the
Town centre.

Future - Retail
Desirable

High street shopping has experienced a change as food retail has moved to the edge of
town to ‘local’ centres as is reflected in Northampton. Town centre shopping has moved
from being a necessity to being a leisure activity where attractiveness of product is key to
sales. The internet also has a significant impact on the way people shop; Multi media and
books are major items that are now bought online taking about 16% of this market share.
Clothes shopping only has 2% internet sales but this may not be the case in the future as

12



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08

more catalogues go computerised. The Town centre needs to offer something special to
attract people in. The aim of the retailer is to promote a strong brand making the product
desirable. To successfully achieve this, not only does the product need to be as desirable
as possible, but so do the surroundings making the whole experience a pleasure to be
repeated.

To this end the architecture of the centre needs to reflect this aspiration to achieve a
memorable leisure activity that promotes return visits.

The challenge for Northampton is to construct a retail offer that can meet the demands for an
expanding town and be as beautiful as possible to inspire the economy and promote the
town as a desirable place to live and work.

Functional

A second consideration is the long-term functionality of the town centre. The design needs
to be flexible and adaptable enough to incorporate changes of life style. One such change
being the potential for shopping on the Internet and impact to the future retail offer.

It is difficult to plan for future changes but history shows that some shopping complexes
have not stood the test of time as the original perceived beauty becomes ‘old fashioned’ and
dysfunctional.

Market Forces

The increase in population and potential to enhance the shopping capacity are key to the
future success and functionality of the town. Developing the town centre is a necessity to
ensure that there is a draw to attract current and future citizens. The greatest danger is that
retail expansion is left to market forces to drive forward development with out-of-town retail
opportunities being pursued where the land is cheapest and building of a low quality giving
maximum returns for the investor but very little added value to the citizens of Northampton.
In this negative scenario, it is possible that out of town centres will over shadow the town
centre often making it a ghost town, eventually forcing current anchor tenants to quit the
town.

The Transition Period

Another consideration is the transition period from old to new ensuring the existing town
centre traders do not go bankrupt during construction as shoppers desert an unattractive,
dusty, noisy centre for more attractive alternatives. To this end, Abington Street needs to be
uplifted before a new centre is developed to ensure the town remains attractive to shoppers.

Niche Markets

The town needs to distinguish itself from the surrounding towns and their offers. Milton
Keynes has a very successful undercover shopping experience and it would be difficult to
compete with this offer directly. Northampton has a history that stretches back over a
thousand years that has left a legacy of buildings and historic streetscapes. There is an
opportunity to work with this historic landscape to create a distinctive and attractive retail
environment. An option to consider for the Northampton offer is, either a number of Leeds
style airy open Victorian glass shopping precincts or, open air Chester styled tiered walk
ways with lots of specialist shops in pleasant pedestrian areas so aiming for market
segmentation and niche markets.

13



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08
The Market Square

The market square with its daily market is historically the main focus of Northampton and
can be seen on very early maps of the town. It remains the heart of the town and is central
to projecting a vision of the future for the whole town centre. Currently the large market
square hosts a market most days of the week with two thirds of the square having fixed stalls
which restricts alternative use. The market square appears to have great potential as a
flexible space with all of the permanent stalls removed. This has been demonstrated by the
success of the French market, with the ability to attract larger crowds for a one-off event.
Markets could be held selling goods from variety of stall types so aiding flexibility of the
space. The market could have a dedicated event's organiser staging everything from; car
launches and trade fairs to concerts and big screen sporting events such as the Olympics.
Designs could include a floor level fountain enabling small children to play there on hot
summer days and with the jets turned off the area remains a flat functional space. (ref -
Sheffield Peace Gardens).

Further research and consultation with partners and stakeholders is needed before the right
decision is made.

Targets - Retail

R1. Niche Markets
Develop vibrant Niche markets to distinguish Northampton Town Centre from other
Retail Centres making it an attractive place to shop and promoting the history and
character of the town.

R2. Expand the Town Centre Retail
Increase the town centre retail offer by two-thirds i.e. 80,000m?. To make Northampton
a major competing retail centre it needs to expand and develop the Northampton offer.
The aim is to make the town centre the number one choice for the town and
surrounding catchment area. This will be achieved primarily through commercial
alliances with either existing or new partners.

R3. Consult on Retail Design
The quality and longevity of the shopping experience needs to instil a sense of pride in
the town gaining popular public support. The town centre needs to promote quality,
reflecting Northampton’s character, exploring niche markets and retail growth.
A consultative exercise and choice of designs could be given to aid the debate and
consolidate the preferred choice with the Town’s citizens.

R4. Increase Jobs/Skills and opportunity

The expansion of the retail area will bring significant employment opportunities which
should be taken up by local people skilled / trained to realise the opportunity.
Geographically these opportunities are next to areas of the town with high levels of
deprivation giving good opportunity to skill or re-skill people to work in the expanding
retail sector. (There is a need to work with the Learning and Skills Council to ensure
that training is delivered to local citizens to be able to realise the opportunities in the
expanding retail sector.)

R5. Market Square
The market has great potential as a flexible space retaining the function of the market
during the day and transforming into an events/social space in the evening.

R6 Evening Economy
The current evening economy has a bias towards a young pub culture. The town
should look at developing a diversified offer to appeal to a wider audience including
Cafes, restaurants and family friendly venues.

14



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08

R7.

Landscaping/Public Realm

Landscaping major circulation areas of the town is already recognised as important. A
major redevelopment of the route from the railway station into the town centre is being
developed. This initiative needs to be continued, in particular improving Abington
Street, which is looking tired. This needs to be carried out before there is major
building works and interruption of the current Grosvenor Centre.

The town needs to work hard at protecting its existing businesses and making their
surrounding area more attractive.

R8. Business Improvement Districts (BIDS)

R9.

There is potential for a retail area to be improved/maintained through the creation of
Business Improvement Districts. A 'BID' being a partnership between the local
Authority and the resident business in the designated area. By charging a levy on the
rates within the BID area, added value can be achieved by putting improvements and
additional services into the area. Through this initiative others such as the
Northampton Retail Crime Initiative (NRCI) can also be supported.

Improved Building Frontages

Northampton's character is a key asset in promoting place making. A programme of
improvements to existing shop frontages to complement the often fine architecture at
1% floor level could be undertaken. This programme should start in the Market Square
and expand to other streets in the town and potentially extending down the Kettering
Road and Wellingborough Road.

15



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08

INDUSTRY/ EMPLOYMENT

Current — Industry, Employment

Although Northampton has a relatively vibrant economy that has led to a healthy and
expanding property market for employment space, this is led by strategic warehousing with a
decline in manufacturing. Most of the new development is on green field sites adjacent to
the M1 motorway. This change in employment could be viewed as a dumbing down of the
quality of jobs in the area as fewer highly skilled engineering workers and professionals are
needed whilst the distribution industry requirements are land hungry but offer fewer skilled
jobs.

The town centre employment space is reducing and stock is aged. Demand for general
industrial and office accommodation is principally from local and regionally based companies
seeking relatively small units, i.e. offices up to 700 sq m and general industrial up to 2,000
sq m. Supplies of office space in the town are significantly below the national average.

Northampton’s current industry is a product of its historic connection with industry and
geographically it's central location in England making the town a good location for business
and in particular strategic warehousing. The main industries can be summed up as:-

Environmental Technical

High Performance engineering
Food & Drink

Leather

Print & Publishing
Construction

Education

Professional Services
Logistics

Financial Services
ICT

Public Sector

Sport

Some of these sectors rely on one or two major employers, such as banking and financial,

whilst others have a spread of smaller companies such as the shoe industry.
The larger employers in the town are as follows:

Employer Sector Employees
Barclaycard Banking / Finance 2,000-4,999
Nationwide Building Society Banking / Finance 2,000-4,999
Northamptonshire County Council Other Services 2,000-4,999
Northampton General Hospital Other Services 2,000-4,999
St Andrews Hospital Other Services 1,500-2,000
Northampton Borough Council Other Services 1,500-2,000
Intelligent Processing Solutions Banking / Finance 1,500-2,000
Travis Perkins Manufacturing 999-1,500
University of Northampton Education 999-1,500
Avon Cosmetics Manufacturing 500-999
Barclays Bank Banking / Finance 500-999
Carlsberg UK Ltd Manufacturing 500-999
KAB Seating Manufacturing 500-999
National Grid Service Industry 500-999
Uniq Prepared Foods Manufacturing 500-999

16




Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08

Northampton’s Current and Projected Employment

The Northampton Employment Land Study (completed July 2006) takes the MKSM 37,200
jobs growth target figure and aggregates this geographically between authorities to conclude
a target of 27,600 jobs in Northampton Borough. Although crude, it does give a basis to

review projected employment figures in 2021 compared to 2001; as detailed below.

2001 2021 Change | % Change | % Change

(Jobs) | (Jobs) | 2001-21 2001-21 2001-04
Agriculture etc 100 100 0 0% -1%
Mining & Quarrying 200 100 -100 -50% -35%
Manufacturing 17,100 | 13,300 -3,800 -22% -6%
Construction 12,700 | 14,600 2,100 16% 0%
Wholesale 9,100 | 10,900 1,800 20% 8%
Retail 12,500 | 15,000 2,500 20% 8%
Hotels & Catering 5,700 5,000 -700 -12% -2%
Transport & Communications 8,600 | 10,200 1,600 20% 20%
Fin. & Business Services 39,200 | 58,000 18,800 48% 1%
Public Admin, Education &
Health 31,700 | 36,400 4,700 15% 15%
Other Services 5,300 6,100 800 15% 5%
Total 142,300 | 169,900 27,600 19% 6%

(Ref - Northampton Employment Land Study July 2006)

Note the final column shows that the Borough'’s total employment grew by 6% per year in the
period 2001 to 2004. If a target of 27,600 jobs is to be achieved up to 2021 then a lower
growth rate of 1.3% per year could be acceptable although these might not be targeted
knowledge industry/professional jobs.

There will be losses as well as gains in all sectors over the projected time period. Some
areas such as retail may be understated when the expansion of the town centre retail is
taken into account. Hotel facilities in the town are also currently poor and this may result in
an increase rather than the projected decrease.

Employment Floorspace

The 2007 figures from Northampton Observatory identify a total floor space stock in
Northampton of 2,923,000 sq m split as follows :-

e Office (15%).
e Factory floor space (29%)
e Warehousing (56%),

Northampton’s employment floor space is concentrated on a few large estates on the
outskirts of the town whilst the much of the office stock is still located in the centre of town. In
the period 2001-05 Northampton had net 5% gain in floor space, mainly attributed to
warehousing, whilst the East Midlands region saw virtually no growth in employment floor
space over the same period.

The changes in Northampton were :-
¢ Offices remained static
e Factory floor space fell by 66,000sq m
e Very large growth of distribution warehouses

Offices - Current town centre office stock is estimated at approximately 434,000 sq m. The
office space in the town is older and of a lower quality than average across the UK with only
7.1% regarded as new i.e. completed since 1999. It is also predominantly in smaller sized
units. All major deals have been in out of town locations in recent years, such as National

17



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08

Grid Transco taking space at the former Scottish and Newcastle headquarters in Lakeside
Business Park.

Office availability (vacancy) in Northampton is currently at 8.1%, a figure that is significantly
below the UK average of 12 — 13%. This suggests there would be demand but availability
of development land is limited in comparison to Northampton’s neighbours.

The office market in Northampton is characterised by :-

Demand for modern open plan accommodation

Limited to smaller/medium sized local companies looking to expand

Popular size band is therefore up to 700sq m

Significant new office stock is now located out of town, close to major routes and
access to the M1

General Industrial/Small Distribution - Demand for large manufacturing sites has fallen
significantly aided by the closure of such manufacturing sites as British Timken and Avon
(although the Avon office headquarters remains in Northampton). Only limited
manufacturing is left. The majority of accommodation suitable for general industrial/small
distribution space is located on relatively modern industrial estates, e.g. Lodge Farm,
Moulton Park, Round Spinney and Brackmills.

Projected demand is from locally based companies in units of up to 2,000 sq m. Current
values within Northampton for modern units up to 20,000 sq ft are £5,50 per sq ft per annum,
which is in line with East and South Midlands. There is a shortage of land and buildings
available to accommodate this sector of the market seeking modern units up to 20,000 sq ft.

High precision engineering remains a strong sector with companies such as Mercedes
developing a substantial £50million research facility in Brixworth, just outside the
Northampton Boundary.

Strategic Distribution — The distribution sector has been one of the key drivers of the
economy in central England within the last decade. The demand for large strategic
distribution facilities continues unabated.

Northampton is within an area known as the ‘Golden Triangle’ for distribution because of its
strategically central location. If a planning policy decision was taken to provide land for
strategic distribution in excess of the forecast demand, a significant amount of such land
could be taken up while current market conditions last.

Projected Demand for Employment Land
The average occupancy density of employment land spaces is :-

e Office Space - 18sq m per worker.
e General Industrial Space/manufacturing - 35sq m per worker.
e Strategic Distribution Space - 88sq m per worker.

Taking the projected job demands and average occupancy density levels gives the following
demand for employment land in Northampton 2001 to 2021 :-

e Offices - 85 ha
e General industrial - 33 ha (i.e. a reduction in use).
e Strategic distribution - 77 ha

The Northampton Employment Land Study also produced an alternative demand estimate,
based on more intensive use of land, and in this alternative estimate, Northampton’s office
demand for 2001-21 falls to 63 ha, but plot ratio as high as 80% (ie more building and less
landscaping) would only be viable on town centre sites.

18



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08

Future - Industry / Employment

Office Space

The demand for office space is predicted to increase. If left to market forces development
will be in out of town locations near to motorway/major road networks with easy car parking.
It is however vital to develop office space in the town centre as workers would be more
inclined to shop, eat and socialise in the town during the day and in the evening so boosting
the Northampton economy. There are a number of new living accommodation opportunities
also being developed in the town centre which could encourage a live work culture in the
town centre, cutting down the car journeys in and out of the town freeing up the roads. This
is an important concept that should be strongly encouraged and planned for including the
development of such sites as Castle Station and along the river.

Northampton Borough Council and Northamptonshire County Council own some land
holdings in the town centre that could be utilised for office development to encourage the
local economy. This is particularly true when looking at the surface car parks in the town
(Ref. Chapter on Infrastructure). They hold the key not only to office but retail and other use
and these could be rationalised into a number of multi-storey car parks freeing up land.

Looking at the advantage of Northampton’s central location and the desire to attract high
knowledge industry, the opportunity to attract consultant head offices and/or regional offices
needs to be explored. These could be located in prestigious gateway offices in the town or,
if size dictates, could be a series of larger offices on routes into the town.

Manufacturing

The decline in manufacturing is a national trend rather than a regional or local trend. The
main driver has been that goods can be manufactured abroad and the finished item shipped
back to the UK, at lower cost than local manufacture. This is primarily due to the use of
cheap labour producing high volume whilst being able to maintain good quality standards.

Although it is desirable to increase the manufacturing base in Northampton, market trends
and reports suggest that labour intensive high volume sectors will continue to decline. The
aim should be to encourage stability in the remaining manufacturing industry in the town
including the high performance engineering and high value leather industry. Diversification
and niche markets are an answer where price is not the main driver.

One area that could see expansion is the recycling industry. There is a growing opportunity
to recycle materials in the UK and Northampton is well located to take advantage of this.
The University are already investigating this subject and have a SITA library on recycling
based at the University of Northampton.

Strategic Warehousing

Strategic Warehousing plays a major part in Northampton. The industry is land hungry and
needs to be managed and planned to ensure the right opportunities are available, ensuring
that higher density higher skilled job opportunities are not lost from weak planning decisions.
Existing estates also need better management acknowledging Northampton's strategic
geographic location in the road network and propensity for long haul lorries to stop in
Northampton Borough. In estates where overall estate management is not co-ordinated
there is a need to set up Business Improvement Districts to address poor crime statistics and
general estate management issues.

Marketing

Once new employment land has been identified a targeted marketing campaign will be
needed. The regional strategy is to promote relocation of business into the area and to
promote expansion of existing industry, the campaign would also identify and target key
growth sectors and public sector bodies relocating from London and the South East (Ref.
Lyons Review). The East Midland Development Agency (EMDA) and Northamptonshire

19



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08

Enterprise Limited (NEL) funds are available to aid this and they would be lead partners.
Others would need to contribute.

Overseas Opportunities

In partnership with the university there may be an opportunity to explore overseas
markets/business that wish to locate in the UK and see whether the strategic fit that
Northampton can offer now and in the future would appeal to them. The University and NEL
may be able to help identify these opportunities. EMDA are keen to see engagement with
expanding economies especially China, Russia, India and Korea. These and opportunities
in Europe can be explored.

Targets - Industry / Employment

To review the strategic use of NBC land to develop office space and other opportunities
within Northampton and in particular the Town centre.

E1.

E2.

E3.

E4.

ES.

E6.

Promote the Development of Office Space

The aim is to promote living and working in the town centre, reduce journeys and boost
the spend in the local economy. To further this there is a desire to promote the
increased use of office space in the town centre balanced with housing to ensure the
town has an attractive offer in the town centre.

NBC / NCC Land Holding

Review of NBC/NCC land holding with projected reuse of land for commercial
opportunities and social enterprise. (This point needs to be carried out in relation to
the car parking strategy undertaken ref infrastructure section of this report)

Create Office Site Opportunities — land Assembly

There is currently a shortage of easily accessible development land in and around
town centre. To help stimulate the renaissance in the town there is a need to clear and
create marketable land /building footprints for office/ employment opportunities.

Promote High Quality Jobs

Market led growth will lead to warehouse and distribution taking major land
opportunities in out of town locations in preference to higher density employment. A
proactive strategy is needed to correct this promoting the use of out of town areas for
high quality jobs with higher density land use in preference to land hungry distribution.
(It is acknowledge that not all employment growth opportunities can be accommodated
in the town centre)

Identify Gateway Sites
Promoting a high quality environment is important to increase the desirability of the
town to investors. To this end there is a need for developing ‘gateway’ building
projects that can house prestigious firms in high quality buildings that can be seen
when entering the town.

Proactive Targeting of Companies to Relocate in Northampton
With visible improvements in the town centre and identifiable sites in and out of the
town there will be a need to proactively target firms to locate in Northampton. Target
industries include: Consultancy

Recycling/ recovery/ sustainable emerging technology

High Value Manufacturing/ Transport Equipment

Construction

Health/ Healthcare

Food and Drink

Overseas industry looking for a UK base

20



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08

E7.

ES8.

E9.

Development Opportunities PPP / JVC

Evolving from the identification of sites for development and the clearing of sites to give
a clear footprint, will come opportunities for partners to develop the building of office
space in the town centre. As well as promoting economic activity in the town, these
opportunities should also result in a one off payment or in receiving a long-term income
to be reinvested in the process.

These opportunities will need to be worked out on a case-by-case basis balancing risk
and return (current and future) that each opportunity presents. If these opportunities
are numerous then a suite of legal documents could be developed to aid the process.

Increased Skills and Training

To up-skill the workforce/local community in preparation for the new employment
opportunities. This should be done in partnership with the Learning and Skills Council
and education establishments.

A good example of this is the promotion of apprenticeships in the building trade and
training local people for positions in the planned expanded retail sector.

Small to Medium Enterprises — SMEs
Aim to reduce the business rates to start up business in the first two years to enable
Northampton to be a centre of innovation creating growing business.

E10.Industrial Growth Space

Northamptonshire is the centre of manufacturing for key industries including motor
sport and shoes. These and other industries need to be promoted to ensure
development and growth space is available in the expanding town.

E11.Conference/Exhibition Centre

E12.

E13.

E14.

E15.

As identified in the leisure section of the report, Northampton’s central location is
naturally good for holding rallies and events with people travelling from all areas of the
UK. This suggests there is an opportunity for locating a conference /exhibition centre
in or around the town.

Local procurement

Encourage local procurement to support the local economy and help reduce
procurement miles so aiding the environment. Fairtrade produce should be promoted
to ensure the towns status as a Fairtrade town and supporting developing economies.

Management of Industrial Parks

Support needs to be given to ensure that industrial parks are given the right facilities
including better safety and proper long haul parking/facilities. With the potential for the
provision of a secure lorry park for Northampton and improved facilities, security
cameras supported through Business Improvements Districts.

Science and Technology Park — ‘Technology Realm’
Support needs to be given to ensure that Northampton provides a Science, Business
and Technology Park creating a Technology Realm. The project will provide the ‘hub’
of a major hub and ‘spoke’ Business Park throughout Northamptonshire. The project
will promote Knowledge based jobs and improve sKills..

Livestock Market

Support the Farmers' Consortium's campaign to re-open the Livestock Market, the
Strategy would both support job creation and employment diversity.

21



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08
BUSINESS START UP

Delivery of Business Support

Business Link, NEL and The University of Northampton support programmes for general
business start up. In addition to this support two commercial organisations offer general
managed workspace for small / medium business.

Business Link is the main provider of advice and support to Small to Medium Size
Enterprises (SME). The Business Link function has been franchised out to local delivery
agents working under the national brand of Business Link. In Northamptonshire the pre-start
and Business start-up support has been awarded to the University of Northampton.

The University have also championed a separate initiative to support creative industries with
an innovation / incubation centre on the University's Avenue Campus. This is currently
under going a major expansion.

Northamptonshire Enterprise Limited (NEL) is the economic facilitator for the County and an
important partner in business support. They are aimed at relocating and growing current
business in Northamptonshire but are also the Sub-regional Strategic Partnership (SSP) for
EMDA on business investment and contributes to the set up and running of the Portfolio
Innovation Centre run by the University.

Statistics

Northampton has 34.27 businesses per 1,000 population taking the population as 200,100
this gives 6,857 business located in the Borough. The average business size is 16.4 people.
The new business formation rate is 11.42% but to counter balance this the closure rate is
10.58%. This works out at 783 new businesses in 2006 and 725 businesses closed. 6.76%
of businesses are self-employed. The 36-month survival rate is approximately 65%. These
statistics do not take account of the people that engaged business link or other business
advisory services that did not eventually put into action their plans.

The UK figures show a similar picture with 37.52 businesses per population, start-ups at
10.08% closures 9.94% and 36-month survival rates at approximately 65%.

Justification for Promoting Business Start Up

Enterprise culture and business creation are vital for regional development (ref - EMDA
Business Birth Rate Consultation Document 21 April 2006). They list the four key
justifications for providing public funds to support business start-ups as being:-

1. Return on public investment — research (Allenton 2005) indicates that there is a good
return on investment.

2. Opportunity — new businesses generate at least 20% of the growth in the regions
productivity and generate a large proportion of new employment opportunities. In
addition they provide a source of innovation.

3. Need — Self-employment is the best or only viable prospect of economic inclusion for
some groups. Increasing economic inclusion and added social benefits.

4. Market support — market failures associated with business start up are greater than
for any other area of business support and need initial promotion to survive.

Enterprise skills need to be mainstreamed into education and skills development. The group
that tends to generate the greatest number and most profitable start-ups are 35 to 55 year
old skilled employees. A Small Business Service ‘household survey’ measuring the number
the number of people considering starting a business within the East Midlands shows that
this has been static at 10% since 2001.

22



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08

The Regional Economic Strateqy for the East Midlands 2006-2020

The Regional Economic Strategy (RES) sets out the following targets for start up and
survival.

i) Increase the rate of VAT registrations to 40 per 10,000 population in line with
national average by 2009.

ii) Maintain the 3 year survival rate at 71% by 2009.

iii) Identify opportunities focusing on 35 to 55 year olds, especially women and
encourage them to overcome their identified risk aversion to start up business.

iv) Provide quality advice on setting up businesses.

Business Start Up units in Northampton

e Business Link
e University of Northampton ~ 8 desks

Micro business _ _
Micro business support.

Desks rented by the hour

e Portfolio Innovation Centre
e Proposed - in Cultural Quarter

Small business — Creative/ Fashion Studio/Retail.

Small shop start-ups)

* Proposed - live/work units

Great Russell Street

N Proposed - Office block in Cultural area
offering commercial space in ‘Arts’ Quarter
Medium o Evans Easyspace — commercial SME

managed space
e KG Business Centre — commercial SME

managed space

23



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08

Student Retention in Northampton

The courses offered by the University of Northampton and Northampton College give an
insight into the expertise and skills that can be offered in the town (ref the chapter on
education). The University’s key expertise includes craft/art/design, leather technology, lift
technology (especially lift certification), health and recycling. The University house the SITA
Library on recycling information. They also have a business school that is keen to engage
with local partners and businesses. 1,879 students graduated in 2007 of which
approximately 333 are arts/creative graduates. 436 are business graduates and 111 are
studying applied science.

Courses at the University are not fully aligned to the industry within Northampton. The
industries do not rely on highly skilled people for the bulk of their workforce and the
university produces more graduates than the market in Northampton can employ. The
University has a new aim of targeting small to medium enterprises, which is not the
traditional employer of graduates. It has also been noted in several reports that the town
has a difficulty in retaining its students because the town does not offer graduates the social,
retail and lifestyle that they demand. The housing is not affordable and jobs are limited.

From a graduate retention survey made by The University of Northampton the following
observations were made;

Amongst students there is considerable agreement about what they did not
like about the county. Both groups highlight “poor cross country transport
links” and “unattractive, rundown, dirty urban environments”. However whilst
current students highlight their “fear of crime”, those who had graduated
mention a “lack of civic spirit” as a principal dissatisfaction.

The majority of students suggest that they do not expect to stay in the county
on graduation and two-thirds of recent graduates have already moved away.
This trend represents a considerable skills leakage.

Principal reasons for moving away from Northamptonshire, especially among
non-Northamptonshire based students, include “being nearer to family
friends”, “never intended to stay” and “cannot afford to live independently’.
Few of these students, less than one-in-eight, had a job lined up prior to
graduation. These factors suggest that student debt is a prime mover for
departure — without a job and with a negative bank balance students have
little choice but to return home.

It can be seen that there were limited opportunities and Northampton was not attractive
enough to give them the desire to stay.

Small Business Start-Ups

The type and nature of the current start-ups in Northampton is as expected diverse, but
tends to focus on sole trades, crafts men/women and traditional small business. A recent list
of businesses set up in Northampton aided by the University show that out of the 110 start
up businesses listed, 10% are retail. Generally, retail will include small speciality shops that
have to commit to long lease on premises that have to be paid even if the business fails. A
three or even ten-year lease without get out clauses can be a major barrier to starting a
business.

24



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08

Creative Industries

The BDP report (October 06) and the Scott Wilson report (November 04) both identify the
need to develop the creative industries and cultural offer in the town. This would also
connect with the creative graduates from the University and Moulton College and connect
with the creative start up businesses at the Portfolio Innovation Centre.

The creative industries in Northamptonshire in 2005 comprise of at least 1,500 companies
and small businesses. These employ more than 10,000 people and produce a total turnover
of some £729 million in the local economy.

This sector represents 7.7% of the total of VAT enterprises in the county. It employs 4.2% of
the total of employment of all enterprises, and generates 3% of the total turnover of
enterprises in the county.

In addition between four and five hundred very small businesses and individual practitioners
produce an estimated additional £10 million turnover.

The creative industries sector includes a wide range of different kinds of activities, and there
is a wide range of differences between them. Businesses in the audio-visual and fashion
categories in the county tend to be larger, employing on average more than 35 people, all
the other sectors apart from publishing averaging less than five. Software and computer
games generate the highest total turnover at £235 million, radio and television the lowest at
just over £3 million.

Employment in Northamptonshire fell by 42% in creative industries, principally due to the
drastic reduction in the fashion sector over the period 1997 to 2005, with more than 8,000
jobs lost, mostly in footwear. This is against the national trend, which has seen employment
in the creative sector grow at a rate of 3% per annum, compared to 1% for the whole of the
economy. The reason for the decline is specific to Northampton with many shoe
manufacturers moving or facing competition with countries offering lower wages and
cheaper production costs.

Northamptonshire has about a 12-13% share of the creative industries sector in the region.
Compared to its population of 15% of the region’s total, the county is underperforming in this
sector compared to other parts of the region. (Ref - Creative Industries in Northamptonshire
2005 A study for Creative Connections by Fred Brookes and Frangois Matarasso December
2005)

Creative Northants, as a county wide organisation, supports locally-based arts initiatives
some of the elements of its strategy include:-

e Growth and development of a diverse ecology of arts and creative industries
enterprises, in the commercial, public and third sectors, using business support
networks and expertise;

e Advocacy for the arts in the sphere of growth, regeneration and economic
development;

e Nurture and incubation of new and emerging arts projects, organisations and
enterprises, providing a unique opportunity to develop;

25



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08
The Identified Need

The need to aid business start up and small to medium size enterprise (SME) as discussed
above can be summarised by the following points:

e The RES identifies that enterprise culture and business creation are vital for regional
development.

e Northampton statistically starts up fewer businesses per head of population than the
national average.

e The RES aims to aid the removal of the risks associated with business start up, with
targets set to increasing the rate of business start-ups.

e University students especially Art/creative graduates do not find related employment
in the town and tend to leave.

e Students do not find Northampton an attractive place to stay and work

e The university produces more graduates than the market in Northampton can
accommodate.

e A gap has also been identified in the development of social enterprise ie: not for profit
‘industry’ that promotes quality of life and social inclusion.

e The BDP report (Oct 06) and the Scott Wilson report (Nov 04) both identify the need
to develop the creative industries and cultural offer in the town.

e Attracting high skill high value jobs will provide more jobs for graduates.

Future — Business Start-Up

Targets — Business Start-Up

Several specific start-up or small enterprises can be added in the retail development of the
town and/or in the cultural area.

These include;

B1.

e Bespoke shops

Start-up shop businesses hit a major barrier to entry to the market when faced with
taking on a 10-year shop lease without break clauses. If the business fails this lease
then typically needs to be sold on. New businesses also face a difficulty in needing to
break even in the first few years whilst establishing a firm customer base from a standing
start. To reduce costs many of these businesses are located in unfavourable areas for
trading with restricted passing trade. More prominent locations attract higher rents and
rates. By creating an area of the town with small units for rent by start-up business with
good passing trade would aid diversity of the town’s retail offer and aid the business
start-up survival rate. If enough small shops were located in the same area this grouping
would create a destination. They have the potential of sharing overheads and the
complex could have a trust to manage the units as a not-for-profit landlord.

Sole Trades/Start Up Business

Developing an area of the town centre for sole trades/ start up business shops to aid
start up and create a more diverse shopping offer.

(This could potentially be in the evolving Cultural Quarter of the town or in St Giles
Street and Gold Street).

e Arts studio complex

Aid the diversity that is currently lacking in the town and create employment opportunities
for artists by setting up, a complex of managed studio space selling art works. Each unit
would be a space that an artist could work and then sell their creations from. A similar
set up can be seen in St Ives (Cornwall) where several artists are situated around a

26



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08

courtyard. To ensure that a sale is not lost, a central management and till function could
be created at the exit. Students from the University could then find self-employment
straight from graduation and aid the local economy or might attract more mature return
graduates.

B2. Arts Complex/Start-Up Business
Develop an area of the town centre for an arts/creative complex supporting start-up
and growth business/ studios/ shops to aid start-up and create a more diverse niche
shopping offer and matching local graduate skills to employment opportunities in the
town. (This could potentially be in the evolving Cultural Quarter of the Town)

e Fashion Studio

The idea of a collection of studios around a central courtyard could be rolled out to a
second venue concentrating on fashion or craft designers providing not only artistic items
but more practical items to wear or use aimed at a different segment of the shopping
market. In the courtyard the central function could be selling coffee, newspapers, cakes
etc. In Birmingham there is a complex called The Mailbox housing designer wear built in
an old building with character. This could be of a similar style but use fashion designers
from the University once again diversifying the towns shopping offer but also creating
opportunity for different University graduates. The unique selling point would be the
ability to see the designer’s studio and meet the person that had made the items that are
for sale.

B3. Fashion Design/Star- Up Business
Develop an area of the town centre for fashion design retail start-up business shops to
aid start-up and create a more diverse shopping offer and matching local graduate
skills to employment opportunities in the town.
(This could potentially be in the evolving Cultural Quarter of the town)

e Antiques’ Centre

The history of the town creates Northampton’s character that is reflected in the buildings.
It is commented on in all of the regeneration studies of the town as being the town’s main
attraction but this is not reflected in the shops. There are several centres that sell
antiques in the villages around Northampton but you would be hard pressed to find a
shop in the town itself. There are opportunities to diversify the shopping offer within the
town by creating an Antiques’ Centre. By sharing the central overheads and reducing
the unit to a small size there is potential to create a cluster of units and make it a
destination rather than relying totally on market forces to make it happen. Unlike the
designer start-ups this is a more commonly found proposal in historic towns. Further
research is needed to be able to answer the question as to why an Antiques’ Centre has
not been set up in the Town.

B4. Antique Business Shops
Develop an area of the town centre for antique business, restorers, and shops to aid
start-up and create a more diverse shopping offer.

e Great Russell Street

There may also be opportunities for development of live work units on a route from the
University of Northampton (Avenue Campus) into the town. The area of terrace housing
has traditionally been where the heart of the Northampton shoe industry was based.

27



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08

BS.

B6.

B7.

BS.

Workers used to collect their work from a central supply workshop and take the material
home to work in their cellars before returning the finished goods at the end of the week.
The supply workshops still remain within the terrace housing but most do not now
provide shoes. These buildings and proposed new ones could be used to locate either
working units for a business start-up that needs to expand or for a live work set-up for a
bespoke use. The units do not have good passing trade but would suit a business that
would not need a shop front but is looking to expand from a one-person business to a
small team.

Live Work Units
Develop an area of the town for live work units start up business to aid start-up and
create a more diverse work space.
Target dates: Research project 2008
Implement 2009
e General

All of the above clusters of segmented retail offers with specialist focus would benefit
from a degree of subsidy to ensure that the start-up businesses are helped whilst their
markets develop. There may also be a level of long-term subsidy needed dependent on
the optimum number of units a cluster can reasonably support given certain market
demand. It may be desirable to support these markets to give the town a degree of
diversity that attracts a multiple of shoppers to the centre that would not have been
attracted without these additions. It may be possible to support these clusters by
developing an office complex that is owned by the same operating trust that runs the
centres/studios. The rent from the office complex would give a form of endowment for
the continued success of the units. The difficulty would be in finding funds for the office
complex as well as the start-up units.

Growth Space - Cultural Zone

There are many potential opportunities especially within the cultural zone of the town to
explore the promotion of start-up and growth business.

There is a need to develop ‘business growth space’ as start-up business expands from
such small beginning at facilities as The Portfolio Innovation Centre and elsewhere.
Rather than lose these businesses, growth space needs to be created in Northampton.
To house this in a shared unit would help overheads and create a shared sense of
direction housed in a single office/studio complex in the Town.

Innovation Space

Develop Innovation Space for business and engineering with focus on Northampton’s
strengths and connections. This could include precision engineering and recycling and
could be located on the University Park Campus or Northampton College sites.

Business Support — Business Link

Develop an onsite support hub for the evolving fledging business centres with advice
and training.

28



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08
REGENERATION AND GROWTH

Current/Future

The Economic Regeneration Strategy has emerged from the opportunities provided in the
MKSM growth agenda. The targets set throughout this document give rise to many
regeneration projects.

The emphasis is on prioritisation of projects that will act as catalysts for levering private and
public sector development. The town centre clearly should be the Council’s top regeneration
priority and the work in producing a vision for the Central Area used as the basis to identify
critical actions and activities for the town centre. The report proposes key projects that
should be brought forward now, as a priority, developed in line with the emerging Central
Area Action Plan. An indicative high-level plan of the main actions and projects required
over a 12 to 15 year period has been developed. It is imperative to demonstrate, to inward
investors, that Northampton is working in Partnership to tackle its regeneration challenges
and bringing forward key priority schemes.

In continuation of the successful partnership working that has already taken place and is
ongoing, key delivery partners need to formalise an agreed methodology for joint delivery of
major projects.

The key strategic objective of regeneration is to promote and support the key projects that
will act as catalysts to investment and regeneration in Northampton to provide:-

Improved and distinctive retail offer

Required physical infrastructure

Affordable housing

Economic environment to attract quality employment and inward investment
Sustainable communities

Improve and develop a distinctive Leisure offer

High quality public realm

These projects need to strive to deliver high quality architecture and sustainable buildings,
taking into consideration potential existing and new landmark buildings and gateway
architecture to add a sense of character.

The regeneration work to date has identified a wealth of regeneration opportunities through
the Central Area Design, Development and Movement Framework prepared by BDP in
2006. This has formed the backdrop for regeneration activity in the central area by WNDC
and Partners. The organisation and grouping of projects and programmes has created a
project list that will be supported in the CAAP and includes:-

e A central area vision for the town centre.

e Grosvenor/Greyfriars retail expansion — the focal point for retail development and
expansion.

e St Johns/County Hall/Angel Street Area — development of a cultural quarter and Civic
Hub.

e Breathing Spaces — creating quality open space and public realm focussed on
improving the areas of highest deprivation.

e Castle Station — major development of high quality office/employment.

e Public realm programme to create exceptional public realm:

o Gold Street/Marefair

o Market Square
o Abington Street

29



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08

Cultural Mile
The Cross

The Waterways
Approaches
Gateways

The Racecourse

O O O O O O

e Great Russell Street — link the Town centre and the University with live work units.
e Development of the Mounts Car Park.
e St Peter's Area — Three projects in close proximity —

o Freeschool Street — mixed use/office development expanding quality of town
centre

o St Peter's Way — mixed use along riverside

o St Peter's Square car park — retail development, potential food store and
multi-storey car park

e Bridge Street/Waterfront — expansion of social uses and opening up mixed use
(emphasis on office) adjacent to river.

Of these Town centre projects it is proposed that the Grosvenor/Greyfriars retail led scheme
is the greatest priority due to the potential regeneration and economic impact on the town.

St Johns Cultural Quarter, and Gold Street/Marefair Public Realm form the initial priorities on
the basis of deliverability in terms of land ownership and funding since they are clearly
central to the regeneration needs of the Town centre and are ongoing.

The following projects have been identified as Key regeneration projects outside of the Town
centre.
¢ Northampton Brownfield Initiative (NBI)
(Ransome Road, Sixfields, Harvey Reeves Road) — development of reclaimed
brownfield land.
e Upton
Sustainable residential development in SW Northampton.
e Nene Valley Country Park
Provision of quality riverside recreation facilities and nature reserves.
e Dallington Grange
Residential development of up to 3500 homes with local centre in NW Northampton.
e General Hospital
Private Finance Initiative redevelopment of the general hospital.
e Major Infrastructure
A major leisure facility is needed. Roads and services are required for the expanding
town and other enabling projects including long-term car parking.  Further
infrastructure needs are being identified in a number of emerging studies and will
give a focus on infrastructure priorities.

The current regeneration budget and resources mean that all partners need to work pooling
resources to achieve the envisaged regeneration including NBCCLG, NBC, NCC, EP, NEL,
The University of Northampton and WNDC. These resources include Grant Funding, land,
human resources and statutory powers that combined give considerable potential.

The Northampton Economic Regeneration Strategy aims to promote the significant increase
in size and quality of the town centre retail to make the town more dynamic to live work and
invest in. The increasing of the retail sector is therefore the key regeneration project and
needs to be a landmark project adding character to the town and creating a major interest
from people wanting to visit the town. This energy will in turn spark the economy into
activity.

30



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08

To make the development happen in a structured way the town’s infrastructure needs to be
clearly planned and put in place enabling unfettered development to take place. As already
referred to, the car parks and the way they are utilised play a major part of the key to unlock
this development potential.

A wider approach is also needed of the whole Borough mapping major infrastructure needs
to be led by the spatial strategy. This will identify the need and capacity for projects such as
the northern link road. There is potential to computer-map the town to give a preview of how
it will have evolved at a chosen time in the future. This tool will help the public visualise how
developments fit within the town, so promoting good consultation. The ability to achieve this
computer-mapping of the Borough is dependent on resources.

The projects that are to be developed need to be planned against resources to understand
how much can be achieved and at what rate the programme can be delivered. There is a
danger of taking on too many projects without achieving any if resources are not focused.

Government departments have generally adopted the OGC Gateway Principle of Evaluation
of Projects. This methodology requires appraisal of, the need, options and benefits of a
particular project be identified at an early stage of development to ensure that the right
project solution is developed for a particular need. It demonstrates good practice for
developing a project from first principles but will also give a firm basis for applying for
government funding when needed, as these will be the questions asked when applying for
funding.

Targets — Regeneration and Growth

G1. Planning and Resource Schedule
To establish an over arching master plan for delivery of the regeneration of
Northampton in line with the Local Development Framework. This will need to be
revised as development evolves (on an annual basis) and include resource scheduling
to back up the delivery programme. The plan will also need to identify the lead partner
of each particular element.

G2. OGC Gateway
Adopt the OGC Gateway method of developing projects from first principles to
establish good practice. Projects should be developed through establishing the need,
identifying the issues to be address by the project and identifying the options for
delivery.

G3. Design Quality

Ensure all projects are built of a good quality, functional design, environmentally
friendly (with environmental ratings) and be attractive. Designs also need to include the
principles of designing out crime, specifically building to accredited ‘Secured by
Design’ standards, including for example future counter terrorism standards for large
retail developments. To achieve these standards, the delivery partners should adopt a
policy of consulting before designs are concluded, with groups such as CABE or
Regeneration East Midlands, the LSP, the police, and other emergency services, with
the aim of trying to ensure design with longevity, serviceability, good spatial planning
and place shaping.

G4. Public Consultation on Designs
The first major project that will create a landmark is likely to be the Town centre
Grosvenor / Greyfriars retail project. Later major schemes are likely to be the

31



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08

G5.

G6.

redevelopment of the railway station including major office space and a major leisure
project. To raise awareness of these major projects the designs should be part of a
public consultation and potentially a design competition as this would help engage the
public in the development of the town and advertise the new scheme development to
the world.

Equalities

The partners take their equality duties seriously and have a clear commitment to
promoting equality of opportunity and tackling discrimination and harassment as an
employer and as a service provider and that this includes when procuring goods and
services. Each project needs to be screened at the early development stage and
progressively through the project stages to ensure that equalities are considered.

Carbon Neutral Future
Actions need to be taken to reverse climate change. New developments and industry
need to aim to be carbon neutral. This is in line with the Nottingham Declaration
committing all sectors of the community to adapt to the impact of climate change,
reduce greenhouse gas emissions and make public our commitment to action.
Projects need to consider:

Carbon cost,

Zero carbon targets by 2016,

Sustainable sourcing of materials,

Water resource management, and

Minimising the impact and enhancing the local environment.
These and other environmental considerations need to be strongly defined and
designed into any development.

General targets have been set in the Regeneration and Growth section of this document
however specific projects are set as targets in other sections of the document as follows:-

Retail - shopping expansion, redevelopment of Abington Street.

Leisure - major leisure complex - cultural quarter.

Infrastructure - development of the railway station, development of multi storey car
parks to free up NBC surface car park land for development.

Industry employment-development of surplus surface car parking for office use,
conference centre.

32



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08

Education, Training and Skills

Current - Education, Training and Skills

The future of the Northampton economy is a product of its citizens and their resources.
Underlying this are the educational results that they achieve in schools, colleges and
University that feed into the economy over a longer period. There is also a secondary factor
of retaining students in the Town after qualifying, so contributing to the knowledge base of
the community.

Northampton Qualifications 2006

Northampton is below standard for attaining educational qualifications in some areas with
16.3% of people in the town having no qualifications compared with 13.7% in England (ref
Nomis Official Labour Market Statistics 2006). The table below shows that qualifications in
Northampton are mixed in comparison with England as a whole, with slightly higher numbers
of people with GCSE ‘O’ levels but fewer people with 'A' Levels or a degree than the national
average.

Educational Qualifications in Northampton (Working age population)

2 2
c C z
£ 2 2 o
Q.
£ 5 g2 &
P Zz £ =
h = < © L
o 5 £
= o) 5
n Z
All people aged 16 — 74 124.5k  53.8k 401.9k 30,682k
% With highest qualification is a
First degree (or equivalent) (ONS 2006) 17.5% 245% 17.8% 19.5%
% with higher education below degree level
(ONS 2006) 11.2% 13.8% 10.4% 7.9%
% With highest qualification GCSE ‘A’ levels (or
equivalent) (ONS 2006) 20.6% 24.9% 22.5% 22.8%

% of the population whose highest qualification is
GCSE's Grade A to C (or equivalent) (ONS 2006) 25.7% 23.6% 25.7% 23.3%

% with no qualifications (ONS 2006) 16.3% 92% 13.6% 13.7%
% with other qualifications (ONS 2006) 87% 41% 101% 12.9%
% of young people (16 -24 year olds) in full time

education or employment (2003/4) 82.80% 92.40% N/A 84.82%
Schools

Current School results show Northampton has a below average GCSE (grade A to C)
achievement compared with the national average (ref - the table below) however, a few high
achieving schools and a contrasting number of low achieving schools mask the true result.
Many of the town’s school results are below the 2006 national average of 57% for the
achievement of 5 or more GCSE grade A to C passes with 5 Northampton schools having
results at or below 40%.

The results also appear to reflect a lower level of degree qualified people in the town and
potential ‘human capital’ the town can offer to business / industry.

33



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08

The trend in the county and in the country shows an overall improvement in GCSE results as
below:

% of pupils passing 5 or more GCSEs grade Ato C

Area 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
Northamptonshire 47.8 48.7 50.6 51.3 51.0 51.9 54.5
East Midlands 0 47.5 49.2 50.6 50.9 52.5 55.1
England 49.2 50.0 51.5 52.9 53.7 56.3 57.0

It is important to note that school results not only drive Northampton’s future economy but
also is a key factor in trying to attract firms to locate in the town. Northampton will need to
sell the town as a desirable place to live, work, play, and educate to Industry and business
employers looking to relocate their operation. .

The school infrastructure has recently achieved a major capital investment with the town’s
education system switching from a three-tier system to a two-tier system in 2004. Middle
schools were shut and lower and upper schools have changed into primary and secondary
schools. This change has been facilitated by a major £200 million PFI capital investment
scheme across the town with a total of 59 schools being involved.

This is extremely positive for Northampton as almost all of the schools will have new facilities
and many will have completely new school buildings equipped for the 21st century.

Colleges and University

Northampton is well catered for in education establishments and includes The University of
Northampton, Northampton College and Moulton College just outside the Borough boundary.

The educational establishments are one of the key drivers in the Northampton economy.
The colleges focus on vocational courses and have a clear role in skilling and up-skilling the
Northampton work force.

The University of Northampton achieved full university status in 2005, granting it research
degree awarding powers. It can now award PhD’s and research degrees.

The table below shows the numbers and qualifications of graduates that pass though the
University last year and shows the skills that the University could feed into the Northampton
Economy although many of these find employment outside the Borough:
University of Northampton Graduates (full and part time)

Degrees Awarded

2006 2007
School of the Arts 308 333
School of Applied Sciences 97 111
School of Education 230 268
School of Health 191 280
Northampton Business School 360 436
School of Social Sciences 352 428
Partner Colleges — Moulton 33 23
TOTAL 1571 1879

Information provided by : Information & Planning Unit, University of Northampton.
Taken from Achievement Summary AQSC Report — Tracking Good Degrees

34



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08
Occupation

The graph below shows the type of occupations in Northampton in comparison to regional
and national percentages. There are lower percentages of professional and technical
people and higher levels of personal service occupations. There are also higher levels of
elementary (unskilled) people.

c c
2 2
Q Q o
5 5 5 T
Occupation £ £ = £ o]
% of population [5) o< 30 g
(Annual Population Survey July 06-June 07) < Z0 0wz W
1 Managers and senior officials 18.7 16.7 19.5 156
2  Professional occupations 8.9 10.2 16 13.1
3  Associate professional and tech occupations 13.3 13.8 155 143
4  Administrative and secretarial occupations 9 10.3 6.7 12
5 Skilled trades occupations 9 10.5 12.3 10.8
6 Personal service occupations 8.2 6.6 6.2 7.9
7 Sales and customer service occupations 6.5 6.2 6.4 7.6
8 Process plant and machine operatives 9.3 9.4 7.9 71
9 Elementary occupations 17 16 95 113

The occupation and the qualifications table both reflect similar trends, with fewer
professionals and less degree qualifications than the national average and higher than
national average lower skills and low qualifications. There is a 4.2% difference between the
Northampton and England column for Professional occupations (above). This 4.2%
represents approximately 5,300 short fall of professionals against the national average. In
comparison, approximately 1,900 students graduate from the University in any one year.
Even if they all had the right skills for the market they would not address a rebalance in two
years.

There is, however, a potential market in South Northants with professional and managerial
that is above the national average percentage that suggests that some of these people could
be found within a short commuting distance.

The school results are also reflected in the occupations in Northampton suggesting a
potential lack of career aspirations, which may be reflected in the lack of career diversity and
opportunity offered in the Town’s current employment.

LSC

A key partner in ‘up-skilling’ Northampton’s work force is the Learning and Skills Council
(LSC). One initiative is, ‘Train to Gain’, designed to help businesses get the training they
need to succeed. The service aims to help businesses improve their productivity and
competitiveness by ensuring that staff have the right skills to do the best job. Northampton
College and Moulton College have a clear role in aiding this up skilling of the Northampton
workforce. The opportunity for significant building work within Northampton brings an
opportunity for promoting builders to take on trade apprentices as part of the town’s
expansion giving a direct long-term boost to the economy.

35



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08

Future Targets - Education, Training and Skills

Exciting improvements have already recently been made in the school infrastructure. The
results of these dramatic changes need to be reflected in results.

Consultation on the growth agenda should include school organisations such as school
councils, school heads, groups etc to inspire the future adult population in the design and
development of the way the town looks. Design consultations need to engage students and
schools pupils so that pride in the town inspires people to stay and develop the town.

NCC/Creative Northants have successfully worked on fashion design projects in schools that
connect to the University. The projects get GCSE students to work on course work with
university/industry in a fashion design exhibition competing for best design awards. The
project engages school pupils into thinking about careers that can be followed through to
university courses in Northampton and this type of thinking also needs to be encouraged.

The University's research and resulting intellectual property also gives great opportunities to
be explored for the benefit of Northampton's Community though such initiatives as business
start ups.

Retaining Students

There is a strong need to match University courses with local industry to ensure graduates
find work within the local economy.

Ensure industry/business is encouraged to promote retention of current students to find
employment in Northampton. (Note that the main volume of students that this applies to are
creative students who currently tend to find work in London.)

Occupations

The employment by occupation shows that for a developing town there is a lack of
professional/technical personnel in Northampton compared with the national average. This
needs to be addressed if the skills base of the economy is going to support growth. This is
especially true if the desired target growth is in knowledge based and professional industries
rather than in lower skilled sectors. This can be addressed by both up-skilling the current
workforce and by attracting the skills needed into the Town. If the workforce is to be up-
skilled the timing of the arrival of new companies needs to coincide with the newly trained
graduates because, as is currently happening, if these people do not find positions locally
they are forced to leave the town to find work. The solution as above is to encourage the
right type of industry to locate to the town and open up new employment opportunities.

Targets

Targets have not currently been set in this section but are to be developed through the
Northampton Local Strategic Partnership. Targets will include the contribution schools
colleges and the University could input and include how the town's growth could create
opportunities for re-skilling adults, employability skills for those currently out of work, school
diplomas, Knowledge transfer to local business, and community learning. Associated
targets are also set in other sections of this report for training and skills as the subject cuts
across all areas of the economy.

36



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08

Community

Current - Community

The community/charitable/social sector of Northampton is not as easily summarised as say
the industrial/business sector. Outputs are not easily defined in monetary terms but are
diverse and give outputs such as community help, advice or provision of service. The
economy benefits are through the increased well-being of its citizens and by adding
diversity.

At a national level there are around half a million voluntary and community organisations
(VCOs) in the UK ranging from small community groups to large national organisations.
There is no definitive source of information on the total income of VCOS however the
National Council for Voluntary Organisations (NCVO) estimates that the 140 ‘general
charities’ in the UK had a total income of £15.6 billion in 2000/01. This funding came from
local authorities, the NHS, central government and other public bodies such as the national
lottery. This shows that this is an important part of the economy. Social enterprise or not-
for-profit business is driven by social objectives and forms an expanding part of the wider
voluntary sector. It also adds to the richness of the economy. It can provide training and
employment opportunities especially for excluded groups, build social capital and create
wider social wealth. Northampton’s cultural diversity consists of:

91.6% White

1.7% Mixed heritage
2.4% Black

3.3% Asian

1.0% Chinese

Although all sectors of the community can benefit from VCOs, central government funding is
often released to the most deprived areas of the UK and this enables more refined support
to be developed. The main measurement of the social wealth of a community is through the
government figures comparing levels of deprivation throughout the UK using ‘The Indices of
Deprivation’.

Deprivation
The Indices of Deprivation is published every few years by the Government. In 1998 the

emphasis was very much on viewing deprivation as a poverty measure. In 2000 the policy
shift from measures of poverty towards issues of social exclusion.
The Social Exclusion Unit’s definition is:

‘Social exclusion is a shorthand term for what can happen when people or areas suffer from
a combination of linked problems such as unemployment, poor skills, low incomes, poor
housing, high crime environments, bad health and family breakdown.’

The Indices of Deprivation released in 2007 enable better identification of pockets of
deprivation. These areas are known as ‘Super Output Areas’. They give a clear picture of
deprivation across the country and enable comparisons between Northampton and other
conurbations. The statistics are also used by the Government to allocate funding to the
most needy areas.

There are 129 ‘Super Output Areas’ in Northampton. The most recent figures (December
2007) show that within Northampton the most deprived 20% in the country on the Index of
Multiple Deprivation (IMD) fall in the following Wards:-

Billing Castle Spencer
Delapre Eastfield Thorplands
Ecton Brook Lumbertubs

Old Duston St David St James

37



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08

The most deprived SOA in Northampton is in Castle Ward and is the only one in
Northamptonshire that falls within the worst 5% in the country. The least deprived SOA in
Northampton is ranked 31426 on the IMD and falls within Weston ward.

Counting the number of people living in Super Output Areas that fall within the most deprived
20% in the country, it is surprising to find that 34,341 people in Northampton fall in these
areas compared to 13,739 people in Corby. In fact this figure of 34,341 people in
Northampton compares with a figure of 30,851 people for the rest of the county giving a
clear picture that there is more deprivation in Northampton than in the rest of the county put
together.

Structure & Initiatives

The Voluntary and Community Organisations (VCOs) can be defined in three tiers. 1st tier
organisations deliver direct services to the community. Their ability to perform is a product
of their leadership, their finances, their internal set ups and systems / IT etc. 2nd tier
organisations exist to help deliver support to 1st tier organisations, to build and improve
capacity whilst 3rd tier organisations provide hubs of excellence and best practice for 2nd
tier organisations. All of these levels exist in Northampton.

One key community structure is the Local Strategic Partnership (LSP) that engages the VCO
sector in a wider forum along with Local Authorities and service providers. The partnership
helps to engage the community and ensure delivery of future plans and services relating
back to the community. These include the Local Area Agreement, LAA and Neighbourhood
Management Schemes.

The Northampton Local Strategic Partnership (LSP)

The Northampton Local Strategic Partnership was launched on 30 October 2001, and is a
broad based partnership of local and regional organisations representing the public, private
and voluntary sectors.

The group is non executive, having no direct powers but in bringing a broad range of partner
organisations together, it gives the opportunity for different initiatives and services to support
each other and work together to the benefit of the citizens of the town. It gives the
opportunity for the issues of the town to be given one voice in a unified forum, maximising
resources and opportunities. The LSP are a key partner in implementing this Economic
Regeneration Strategy.

In 2002, the Northampton LSP published its Sustainable Community Strategy for
Northampton, setting out its ambitions. In 2008 the plan was updated to cover the period
2008 to 2001 with a longer tern vision up to 2021.

Northampton’s Community Vision

The vision is adopted by LSP partners including NBC and aims for Northampton to be a
place of pride, respect, excitement, vitality, fun and passion. The vision states that by 2011
the town will be:-

Safer - People will use the city centre and move around all of Northampton at night
without fear.

Cleaner - All of Northampton will be clean and litter-free. We will work together to
build a community culture of no tolerance of those who litter and pollute our streets.

Healthier - Our green spaces, the streetscape and urban design will help to make
the healthiest environment so that people have good physical and mental health and
live longer.

38



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08

Recognised for good quality, environmentally friendly housing - We will
continue to promote good affordable, well-designed housing for all, with attention to
the environment and the use of sustainable resources

Be well served by modern and efficient Public Service - Local councils will have
defined their role as community leaders, working in partnership to deliver this vision
for Northampton. Their decisions will be easy to understand, transparent and will
involve local people.

By 2021 the vision is to be a place made up from caring communities and by 2031 it will be
defined by its excellent transport system and be a major regional cultural and economic
centre.

Northampton will be a centre for educational excellence — our schools will help develop good
citizens and produce exceptional results. Our colleges and university will work with local
businesses to develop and retain the jobs and workers of the future.

Our traditional architecture will be mixed with new urban design. The Cultural Mile will snake
through the city, joined together by our integrated transport system. Included within the
Cultural Mile will be a heritage trail that celebrates Northampton’s boot and shoe past. We
will take full advantage of all that the River Nene has to offer and develop a water-based
experience for all ages. All of this, plus a specialist niche shopping experience like no other,
makes Northampton a tourist destination of choice.

Local Area Agreement (LAA)

The Northampton Local Area Agreement is an agreement between Central Government,
Local Government and partners designed to improve partnership and delivery of services for
the public in Northampton.

The LAA gives a vision for Northamptonshire this being;

“Strengthen communities, deliver significant improvements in quality of
life for people and provide equal life chance by working through
purposeful partnerships that are grounded in a clear common
performance framework.”

The Northamptonshire LAA sets out detailed performance targets for achieving the vision.
These countywide targets are being revised into a new 2008 document. For an economic
strategy to work, the benefits need to be received at all levels. This economic regeneration
strategy does not intend to reiterate the initial targets but supports working in partnership to
develop and achieve these and developing the new targets.

Neighbourhood Management Partnerships

An important emerging community resource is the Neighbourhood Management Partnership.
The Borough has been split into 14 zones, 6 of which are currently developing
neighbourhood management teams of wardens and officers aimed at identifying priorities,
pooling resources and aiming to implement local area action plans.

39



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08

Future - Community

The broad future aims are captured in the Sustainable Community Strategy for Northampton
and some of the implementation is captured in the Local Area Agreement performance
targets. The Neighbourhood Management Partnerships are working to implement these and
other locally developed targets and initiatives. To ensure that the Community objectives
become a reality there is a need to promote proactive intervention in Community Safety,
Community cohesion and designing out crime.

At a detailed level it is clear that many voluntary, community and charitable sector groups
support a wide variety of initiatives, all having an impact on the areas that they serve.
Further objectives and initiatives are not therefore set as targets as these are developed
through these communities. Some specific targets are set that could be developed which
would enhance the current strategy.

Targets - Community

C1. Review the use of NBC Neighbourhood Centres
The Borough Council owns 22 community centres that provide or have the ability to
provide direct service and facility to their community. There is an opportunity to review
what they currently provide and how they could be developed including micro business
start up.

C2. Establish Groundwork in Northampton
Groundwork is a federation of Trusts in England, Wales and Northern Ireland, each
working with their partners to improve the quality of the local environment, the lives of
local people and the success of local businesses in areas in need of investment and
support.
Each Groundwork Trust is a partnership of the public, private and voluntary sectors
with its own board of trustees. Although North Northampton has a Groundwork Trust,
it currently does not cover Northampton Town. Leicester Groundwork Trust is a good
example of the type of facility that could be set up in Northampton with micro recycling
business, community regeneration schemes and environmental schemes.
(With the aim of establishing Groundwork in Northampton, working in partnership with
other environmental delivery organisations)

C3. Waste
The council needs to encourage re-use, reduce and recycle to lower the environmental
impact.

C4. Safer Communities
All activities and plans need to take account of likely effects on levels of crime,
disorder, anti-social behaviour, substance misuse and behaviour adversely affecting
the environment (Section 17 of the 1998 Crime and Disorder Act, as amended).
Developments need to 'design out crime' and potential problems as a principle, not
only applying this to the construction but the way they are used, the accessibility of
facilities and ability to build a sense of pride and 'ownership'.

C5. Neighbourhood Renewal and Neighbourhood Management
Investing in communities and tackling social exclusion is a key aim. Delivering the
Neighbourhood Renewal Strategy locally by narrowing the gap between the most
deprived neighbourhoods and the average, within Northampton there are 23 Super
Output areas that are in the most deprived 20% in the country. The objective will be to
have a lower level of worklessness, reduce crime, better health, improved skKills,
housing and physical environment.

40



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08
HOUSING

Current - Housing

The Current mix of housing tenure for Northampton as recorded in the 2001 census is as
follows:

Owned outright 19,989 25%
Mortgaged 37,601 47%
Shared Ownership 524 0.6%
Council owned 12,354 15%
Housing Association 2,313 3%
Private Landlord 5,663 7%
Rented other 2,378 3%
TOTAL 80,822 100%

It shows that 72% are owner occupied with the remaining 28% mainly rented. Current
percentages are, however, not a true guide to the mix of needs for future housing.

Kate Barker's Review of Housing Supply (March 2004) analysed the problems with the
supply of housing in England. In many parts of the country, house prices had increased
rapidly, because the supply of housing has not kept up with demand. This is attributed to
increased numbers of households caused by growth in the population and particularly the
number of one-person households. It is projected there will be 209,000 more households
overall per annum to 2026. The report identified that house prices over a 30 year period had
risen by 2.4% per annum (1974 to 2004) and in order to deliver a revised trend in real house
prices of 1.8 % per annum an additional 70,000 houses each year in England might be
required. To bring the real price trend in line with the EU average of 1.1 per cent an extra
120,000 houses each year might be required.

The report also states that the Government should set out a goal for improved market
affordability and introduction of a planning-gain supplement to capture some of the
development gains that landowners benefit from, to ensure that local communities share in
the value of development. To deliver the projected social housing, additional investment
building-up to between £1.2 and £1.6 billion per annum will be required in England. The
report also recomended that Local Authorities should be allowed to “keep” the council tax
receipts from new housing developments for a period of time to provide incentives for growth
and to meet transitional costs associated with development.

The findings of the Barker Review of Housing Supply Report are reflected in the targets set
by Milton Keynes South Midland (MKMS) growth agenda. This has led to the main driving
factor in Northampton’s growth economy i.e. the target to build circa 30,000 new houses
(MKSM figure 2001 to 2021). Northampton is familiar with growth and has faced a sustained
period of expansion since 1960’s. At the time of the Northampton Development Corporation
from 1968 to 1985, a total of 20,000 new houses were built and since the 1960’s
Northampton’s population has almost doubled to 200,100. The current house-building target
will increase the number of houses from 88,000 to 111,500 by 2021 i.e. an increase of 39%
in households. This rate of building is greater than the development of the New Town in the
70’s and 80’s and is greater than the town has ever seen over an extended period of time.
To maintain the desirability of the town to invest and live, over a sustained period, these
houses need to be of a good quality, functional design, well served and be attractive.

The Government has introduced environmental rating (Code for Sustainable Homes) to
encourage sustainability. The lowest rating is zero and highest is 6. WNDC are aiming to
ensure all new homes achieve a target rating of 3, which is broadly similar to a BRE’s
EcoHome Very Good. This should be encouraged in Northampton.

41



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08

Not all of the projected number of houses for Northampton can fit within the current
Northampton administrative boundary and would need to be within the wider West
Northamptonshire conurbation ensuring the right housing type and tenure to match jobs
need.

There is also a need for additional student accommodation in Northampton and with limited
space on the university campuses there is potential to address this through an off site private
sector initiative.

The Test of Time/Quality

Some of Northampton’s properties built in the 70’s and 80’s have not passed the test of time
and have now become less desirable. It has been recognised that existing problems were
designed into these estates. This could include reasons such as; putting design before
function, profit before quality, because ownership of common areas is unclear and resulting
in poor maintenance or because large concentrations of social housing have been grouped
together creating sink estates. In comparison many of the Victorian built terraced housing in
the Town centre is still desirable and proved to be very adaptable for modern living having
changed from having open fireplaces and outside toilets to new plumbing systems, heating
systems, replacement windows and extensions etc. without losing functionality.

Commission for Architecture and the Built Environment (CABE)

CABE has undertaken an audit of housing design in the UK and found, based on 293
schemes completed between 2001 and 2006 that 29% were rated as having poor design,
53% average and only 18% good or very good. In the East Midlands, this statistic was
worse with 55% being poor, 42% being average and only 3% being good or very good.
CABE found that the new builds failed to create a sense of place, failing to take advantage of
the surroundings and local context. The designs generally failed to create identity and a
distinct character. On a detailed level they had poorly structured layouts, lack of distinction
between public and private realm and were difficult to navigate. CABE’s audit went on to
observe that the public realm had poor integrated car parking and public realm was poorly
designed and maintained.

Demand

As the housing market is the key driver in the economic growth of Northampton as set in the
MKSM Growth Agenda it is important that this growth is sustainable. The housing market is
not easy to predict and predicting continued demand for these houses over long periods is
similarly difficult. The main driver for building these new houses (as discussed above) is to
reduce over-heating of the market and to ensure that there is a supply of houses for first-
time buyers and social need.

The Barker report states that there has been an average 2.8% annual inflation rate in house
prices over 30 years but in the middle of that period at the end of the 1980’s the housing
market crashed due to several factors.

Inflation and interest rates rose very dramatically and unemployment rose at the same time
causing people to default on their mortgage repayments. Inflated house prices made flats
and starter houses unaffordable for first time buyers. This slowing down of the market also
restricted the ability for second time buyers to move on. The result was the housing market
crash of 1989 as house prices fell, leaving some homeowners in negative equity. The
current market is showing some similar signs with high house prices and rising inflation. The
Barker report identifies that affordability is a national issue and by increasing supply will help
resolve demand.

The West Northamptonshire Strategic Housing Market Assessment Report 2007 (DTZ)
suggests that 2,320 to 2,645 houses will be built each year for the next 15 years. In the
wider West Northamptonshire (Northampton Borough, Daventry District and South
Northamptonshire) area this equates to between 34,800 to 39,675 new houses. The current
use of the housing stock in Northampton is a complex picture with some single households

42



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08

occupying properties with 2 or more bedrooms. Whilst at the other end of the housing
market, there are currently 170 households housed in temporary accommodation (West
Northamptonshire), the report states that this high number of people in temporary
accommodation is an unequivocal indicator of a shortfall of affordable housing provision in
the area.

Affordable Housing

The B. Line report Northampton Housing Market and Needs Estimate (Nov. 2006) states that
across Northampton there is a need for new supply of 'Affordable Housing' of around 1,000
units per annum over a five year period. This equates to 50% of the total Northampton’s
annual growth target of 2,000 new houses per year. 'Affordable Housing' being defined as
including 'Social rented and intermediate housing, provided to specified eligible households
whose needs are not met by the market." Over the last 10 years there has been a reduction
of 2,260 social rented units in the West Northants area. The Housing Market Assessment
Report 2007 concludes that West Northamptonshire needs as much additional affordable
housing as it can realistically secure. This target build level is seen as being 35% affordable
housing on new housing development sites.

Another sign that supply is not meeting demand is the fact that between 2002 and 2004 the
rise in lower quartile prices (34%) was far greater than the rise in lower quartile incomes
(6%), resulting in a decline in affordability over the period. The Government has tried to look
at alternatives to social rented and part ownership of housing by challenging designers to
design a £60,000 house. The results look promising and may well provide a solution to a
section of the housing market. The final price of the product, however, is likely to be greater
due to the land price, profit and contributions required via S106 agreements. There could
also be problems if delivered solely on a commercial basis as the market indicates that they
could sell for more than this basic delivery price and may contribute to increase builders’
profits rather than reduce house prices.

Average House Prices

The average house price in Northampton in January 2008 is £187,927 whist the average
wage is £23,072. This would make the average house 8.15 times the average wage.

If a current mortgage rate of 5.25% is taken and applied to a £187,927 mortgage
repayments would be 43% of the average wage. In London the average house price in is
£303,739 (January 2008). By comparing the Northampton to the London price it can be
seen that by moving to Northampton a saving of £115,812 could be made. This might well
suggest that similar to the previous New Town expansion that economics might dictate that
many of Northampton's new properties might sell to buyers from the SouthEast who will then
commute to London if local jobs are not provided. Too much commuting is a threat to the
creation of a sustainable community and highlights the need to create local jobs.

Future - Housing

The housing stock built now in Northampton will set the fortunes of the town for many years
to come. To create a vibrant economy the type, style and character for the houses needs to
be desirable and reflect the town’s aspirations of economic prosperity. In commerce highly
skilled staff are attracted to quality buildings because of the perceived prestige. Similarly
there is an aspiration to raise the knowledge level of the work force in Northampton and a
contributory factor in this is to build attractive houses to attract people to the town.

Attractive housing does not have to cost more. The aim of the governments £60,000
affordable house competition was to show the commercial house building industry that
houses do not have to be bland to be affordable. It should therefore be the aim of the
Borough to ensure that influence is used to achieve good quality homes.

43



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08

Targets - Housing

Northampton Borough Council’s Housing Strategy 2006-2011 “Enabling and Delivering
Housing Choice” supports the provision of well maintained, affordable and environmentally
sustainable homes of all tenure in Northampton by promoting the following strategic
priorities:-

Increasing the supply of affordable housing

Create sustainable communities

Improve the housing service

Provide support to the most vulnerable people

Meet the decent homes standard

Comprehensive targets for delivering the Housing Strategy 2006 to 2011 are published in
that document. This document does not intend to set further targets but highlights some of
those actions, which include:

H1. New Homes - provide better quality homes and places to live

Support the completion of 1450 new homes annually 2006 to 2011 by maximising
inward investment and by working with all our partners to plan for growth. (Ref. action
1.3 in the Housing Strategy)

(Note; It is acknowledged that land used for residential in the town centre may give a
short term higher return than commercial use but to ensure all elements of the
economy are working, it is also highly desirable to utilise town centre land for jobs as
well as houses. Jobs will stimulate and add balance the town centre economy and
give longer-term gains)

H2. Sustainable Affordable Housing — provide better quality and access
Widen the opportunity to home ownership and improve the quantity, quality and choice
of rented accommodation. Targeting 35% affordable housing on all housing
development sites. (Ref. also action 1.2in the Housing Strategy)
(Note ; The proportion of affordable housing should not be zoned but integrated into
the overall strategic plan to ensure community integration and avoiding future sink
estates.)

H3. Quality Houses

Northampton’s houses are the future assets that attract workers to move to the town.
Hence quality is of major importance. Ensuring houses are built of a good quality,
functional design, environmentally friendly (with environmental ratings) and be
attractive is essential. Plans also need to take account of spatial planning to integrate
housing with transport connections, community infrastructure and employment
opportunities. To achieve this Partners should adopt a policy of consulting before
designs are concluded, with groups such as CABE, Regeneration East Midlands,
Building Research Establishment and The Princes Foundation with the aim of trying to
ensure design with longevity and serviceability.

H4. Encouraging Houses Builders
With Northampton Central location in England and the trend for house building there is
an opportunity to encourage house builders to locate their operations in Northampton.
The Regional Economic Strategy promotes construction jobs in the East Midlands and
the MKSM growth projections provide a good opportunity to achieve this goal.

H5. Refurbish existing estates
Housing expansion should not only focus on building new houses but should explore
the potential of refurbishing existing poorly designed housing estates. In these estates
increasing densities could be explored as a mechanism for renewal where the existing
landscape and density is working against, rather than in harmony, with the estate.

44



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08

LEISURE

Current - Leisure

For Northampton to be attractive for investment it also needs to be a desirable place to live
and play as well as work. The environment and the facilities that Northampton can offer are
key to making the town desirable to investors and developers. Landmark buildings help give
a place a sense of identity and offer a focal point. If the building also offers a facility for use
by the public then it can serve two purposes. Similarly, if a town can offer good leisure
facilities it will be a more desirable place in which to invest rather than a town lacking these
facilities.

Northampton has a premier rugby club, football club and a cricket club that give the town
and its hinterland a sense of identity and pride. It is unusual for a town to have quality teams
covering three main sports. Silverstone just outside Northampton is also significant with the
Formula 1 Grand Prix. These help promote the town and also give the town different leisure
activities to watch throughout the year. Having local sports teams also promotes the desire
in the town to participate in these sports as local players are seen to have attended local
schools and now play in the teams competing at national and international level. There are
opportunities to build on these activities by developing sports related business and sports
related leisure industry, such as a sports injury therapy centre.

Outdoor Sports Facilities

The provision of good open space is also supported by the promotion of successful local
sports teams. The ‘Open Space Sports and Recreation’ (OSSR) report (Sept 2006) by PMP
makes many detailed recommendations on open space improvement, management and
development. These recommendations are in relation to outdoor sports facilities and include
the dual use of school playing fields for sport and the potential development of synthetic
pitches.

Indoor Sports Facilities

The PMP Open Space report also briefly reviews the indoor sports facilities currently
provided in Northampton relating to three areas:-

e Sports halls,
e Swimming pools and
e Health and fitness studios.

Provision of indoor leisure is not a statutory requirement but the Borough Council is the main
operator of these facilities in the town and has a major opportunity to improve the town.

Sports Halls

The report estimates the supply and demand of sports halls by looking at the capacity for
badminton courts and applies accepted sports participation rate standard to the
Northampton population to conclude that in 2005 the demand was for 57 courts. Current
supply in the town is 37 courts giving a shortfall of 20 courts.

Given that a sport’s hall usually houses 4 courts this gives a current shortfall of 5 sports halls
based on the need for badminton courts. (Ref - PMP report 2006.)

45



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08

Note: Private club facilities are excluded from the calculations due to a lack of casual public
access. Improved access to these sites and school sites may help to meet this under
supply. Village halls and community centres are also a particularly important resource and
help to meet localised unmet demand.

Swimming Pools

Northampton Borough Council owns and operates three public swimming pool facilities at
Lings Forum, Mounts Baths and Danes Camp Leisure Centre. The remaining facilities are
either for school use or private use.

Public or Private Swimming Pool size (m?)
Swimming Pools with Mounts Baths 366
full public access Danes Camp 212
Lings Forum 250
Swimming Pools on Northampton School for Girls 187.5
school sites with Weston Favell Upper School 187.5
dual-use access Northampton High School 159
Swimming Pools with Club Motivation 60
private membership Topnotch Health Club 90
Cannons Health Club 160
Marriot Health Club 78
Virgin Active Club 250
Esporta 200
Current Total supply * 1699

(*Note: Public accessibility is restricted on the other pools at various times so supply is
calculated reflecting these limitations as being a proportion of total capacity).

The PMP report sets a quantity standard for swimming pools of 10.51m? per 1000 population
and a 15 minute drive time catchment has been set based on Sport England figures.

On this basis, current demand within Northampton is equivalent to 2045m? whilst current
supply is 1699 m? giving a shortfall of 346m?. A 25 metre 4 lane standard pool equates to
212m?2. Considering the Borough Council’s facilities the under capacity roughly is equivalent
to the ‘Mounts’ swimming pool.

Another key factor in the development of the swimming pools in the Borough is that the
current pool at Weston Favell (Lings Forum) is reaching the end of its economic life. A
design master plan for the area has been undertaken (ref Weston Favell District Centre
Master plan by Atkins April 2005) but relies on land being available for this to happen.

Health and Fitness Studios

The PMP report concludes that the current provision is about right and that the Local
Authority facilities have a critical role in the provision offering reasonable priced alternatives
to the privately run facilities.

Arts/Culture/Heritage

Northampton already has two main theatres and three museums.

The Royal & Derngate reopened in autumn 2006 after a £15m redevelopment that created a
single entrance for the two auditorium Theatre. The Derngate has a capacity of 1,500 and

46



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08

the Royal a capacity of 583 seats. The venue attracts over 350,000 visitors a year and
houses national touring productions.

The town has other theatres including the recently refurbished Deco Theatre with a 900 seat
auditorium although currently not fully utilised and the small community Playhouse Theatre
with 84 seats. The town has three museums, The Northampton Museum and Art Gallery,
Abington Park Museum and the recently opened, Charles Rennie Mackintosh house at 78
Derngate. There are several venues for live music including the Roadmender and the Town
and Country Club. These are all important parts of the Northampton's cultural infrastructure
adding charter and diversity to the town.

The heritage of the town is an important asset that has great potential to attract visitors with
many historic Churches and other buildings including the Sessions House (The towns old
Court House) and Delapre Abbey that are currently under utilised.

Central Location

Because of the town’s central location in England it attracts many annual events, gatherings
and rallies, such as the Northampton Annual Balloon Festival usually held in August. Other
fairs and events also occur within the country surrounding the town including several steam
traction engine shows, the Crick National Canal Boat show, sports events such as indoor
short mat bowls attracted by the central location and easy travelling. Billing Aquadrome, a
235-acre camping, caravan and static caravan site with facilities for 400 electrical hook ups
also hosts a programme of rallies and events throughout the year, holding car events for
clubs such as VW, Jaguar and custom cars and purports to attract 1 million visitors a year.

Future - Leisure

Art/Culture/Heritage

Northampton currently has a fairly strong cultural offer in some areas with the Royal &
Derngate and the Northampton Museum located around Guildhall Road in the Town centre.
This gives great potential for a new cultural quarter to be developed around the theatre and
museum creating a focal point and a strong destination in the town. There is an aspiration
for a significant cultural venue at its centre that operates beyond the boundaries/parameters
of what is considered a typical museum function. Complementary to this, other sections of
this Economic Regeneration Strategy document support the idea of encouraging the location
of cultural business and art workshops/studios in the same area.

NCC have plans for a tourist information centre in the Sessions House and there are moves
to establish a heritage trail around the town centre churches and other town centre heritage
buildings. These heritage buildings need to be utilised to their full potential including
exploring the possibilities for Delapre Abbey. (ref also community and business start up )

A survey of cultural infrastructure is being undertaken to quantify supply, demand and
capacity for art/cultural facilities in the town and in particular the need for a gallery. A
feasibility study would help inform plans and decision-making.

Sport

The PMP report identifies a current short fall in sports facilities of 5 sports halls and a large
swimming pool. The future demand can be crudely calculated using the Sport Council’s
figure for a swimming pool need of 10.51m?per 1000 people. If the population is projected to
rise by a modest 30,000 people, this would give rise to a need for an increased capacity of

47



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08

300m? or one medium sized pool (ref Mounts is 360m?), in addition to under capacity already
calculated. This gives a minimum requirement of 2 pools with a modest population increase.

Similarly growth in population of 30,000 and applying 0,29 courts per 1000 population would
give a need for 8.7 courts or 2 sports halls.

Further work is needed to investigate details of all sporting facilities in the town along with
their current and future use. The work will need to take into consideration activities that
engage all ages including adrenalin activities, skateboard parks, quality athletics facilities or
short mat bowls etc., that may not be catered for in a traditional leisure centres. There is
clearly potential for a major sports facility in the town. Taking into consideration the Town’s
location, 70 miles from the sea, there is also an opportunity to look at the potential of
increasing the catchment area of a water-based facility/attraction that might compensate for
the lack of a beach. Locating such a facility in a landmark building would also promote the
facility to a wider audience.

Targets - Leisure

L1. Expansion of the Cultural/Arts Facilities for the New Northampton
Museums, galleries and theatre stimulate creativity, inspire learning, engage
communities and help to build the knowledge economy. Northampton has some good
facilities including the newly refurbished Royal and Derngate however the growth
agenda give the opportunity to expand /create a major arts/cultural project. The
options could include an Art Gallery that would be able to house national touring
exhibitions, climatically controlled and secure etc. Investigating this option and other
options would be part of a Cultural development in Northampton leading to major
capital works for the town.

L2 Northampton’s Museum & Gallery — an expanded and more attractive offer
The cultural facilities and history are key elements of ‘place making’ and
Northampton’s history is inextricably linked to the shoe industry. Northampton already
has a ‘designated’ Boots and Shoes collection however a significant facility should be
developed creating a ‘Big City Museum’ with National Status and an Art Gallery
bringing historic Northampton to life promoting Northampton. The exact specification
for of this needs to be developed as part of a wider Cultural Investment Plan.

L3. Build a New Major Sports Facilities for the New Northampton
Current reports shows that there is an under capacity in swimming pools and combined
with an expanding population this would suggest the development of a major new
sporting facility. There is an additional need to review current facilities and update
them. These will lead to major capital projects in landmark buildings creating a major
selling point for investment into the town.

L4. Events Programme
Develop a programme of major events for the town, of local, regional or national
significance.

L5. Town Trail
Develop a self guided historic town trail of Northampton. This could be through a
networked mobile phone system so promoting the richness of the towns’ heritage and
developed in partnership with the tourist information centre.

48



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08

INFRASTRUCTURE

A key feature of a competitive knowledge economy is having good infrastructure making the
town more attractive to invest and to live.

Transport

A key factor in a knowledge economy is connectivity (ref - Creating an ldeopolis — Case
study of Manchester). By promoting the building of new offices in the town centre along side
the current building of accommodation, people have the choice of being able to live, work
and shop in the town centre without the need for a car. This connectivity cuts down the
commuter traffic in and around the town and has a positive effect on the environment. To
encourage this life style as a positive choice the town centre needs to be attractive with
quality public realm and well-designed buildings.

Levels of congestion in and around Northampton will dramatically influence the economic
well-being and the capacity for growth; there is a need to mitigate the impact from
development by reducing the amounts of congestion on the roads.

Led by NCC there is a need to improve management of the existing highway network to
optimise the utilisation of existing capacity, by defining a core network of roads essential to
the town and the county’s prosperity.

There is also a need for good transport planning and connectivity. Transport connectivity
relates to the ability of people and goods to connect spatially and logically with seamless
interconnection to other transport modes. Good national international, , inter-regional and
intra-regional connections are vital for economic growth. It is important to note that transport
connectivity concerns much more than just transport infrastructure projects but also includes
soft measures such as travel demand management to reduce congestion. Therefore, good
connectivity means predictable and reliable movement of people and goods that can be
achieved by a combination of improved transport infrastructure and travel demand
management.

Sustainable forms of transport should also be encouraged (ref - The Northamptonshire Local
Transport plan, NCC March 2006) including journeys by walking, bike and bus.
Northampton is a comparatively compact town, being 7 miles in diameter and cycling from
one side to the other is quite possible.

The town centre is also fairly compact enabling a person to walk from one side to the other.
This ability to use sustainable methods to circulate around the town is currently not
promoted. Walking and cycling routes are quite variable in quality, often mixing cycling
routes with car users. The Northampton Multi Modal Study (2003) states that the radial
route is ‘intimidating at present’. The poorly connected cycle route and busy road does not
promote cycling use especially for first time users expecting a pleasant and safe journey.

Making the town more walkable and cycleable promotes healthy living and a feel-good factor
of the town as well as being environmentally friendly. Encouraging these and other
sustainable modes of transport, takes ftraffic off the roads freeing up road capacity and
easing the potential need to build more roads.

The Northampton County Council Transport Strategy for Growth (Sept 2007) is a key

document in establishing the right infrastructure and encourages the use of Public Transport.
The promotion of bus use and the use of park and ride can also play a part in the freeing up

49



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08

of roads and sustainable travel. The best way to cut school traffic would be for the local
school to be the first choice in an area avoiding the need for parents to drive their children
across the town to the other schools. Unfortunately school results across the town are
variable but this local use of schools may be a longer-term aspiration. In the short term,
some schools in the town use bus services to aid travel to school and others need to have
this facility so reducing traffic.

Park and ride is currently planned for Riverside Retail Park and Harvey Reeves Road by
NCC, and although it may not work in all circumstances for Northampton, it is an option to
develop for the future. Northampton is not geographically isolated from other major
conurbations and does not currently have a strong enough retail offer compared to
neighbouring towns with 18% of the south of the town already shopping in Milton Keynes.
Park and Ride could be offered as an option and phased in as the town centre offer
improves, but in the short term increased central parking fees may drive away trade to other
towns or out of town shopping rather than take the option of a bus.

Park and ride could be an option for commuters currently being charged £35 per week in
town centre car parks that wish to save money over a long period of time. It could also be
an option to make edge of town employment sites such as Moulton park or Brackmills more
accessible. Services would need to be frequent and financially sustainable.

Targets - Transport

T1. Develop for a sustainable transport network — with improved connectivity
Map out clear strategic cycle and walking routes through out Northampton and
promote the development of these routes through developer contributions and other
funding. Including strong links to the river Nene waterside.

T2. Support the Development of Sustainable Travel Plans
Encourage schools, colleges and the University of Northampton to develop School
Travel Plans and promote school bus services for all schools as a way of reducing
morning and evening traffic in the town and encourage sustainable Travel Smart
planning for local business.

Car Parking

Car parking is a critical issue in the town. From the RAC report on Commuting (Sept 2007) it
was identified that 71% of UK journeys to work are carried out by car. It is desirable to
reduce the dependence on the car from an environmental, connectivity and health
perspective. This will take time and more attractive alternatives need to be developed to aid
in this change process. In the short to medium term it would be reasonable to assume that
the travel patterns into the town centre would not dramatically change so giving a high
dependency on provision of accessible car parking. Northampton Borough Council owns the
majority of car parks and as such is aware of the sensitivity when charging to park in town
centre car parks.

Land is limited within the town centre and the car parks also provide some of the
opportunities for development. Development however needs to be carried out in a controlled
way to ensure that accessibility of the town’s car parking capacity and availability does not
restrict shoppers but is carefully planned in line with the retail expansion strategy for the
town centre.

If car parks are closed and developed on, or are temporarily inaccessible, the desirability to

shop in the town would decrease with the increased difficulty for shoppers to find a parking
space. As a worst-case scenario the economy of Northampton may be significantly affected

50



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08

as shoppers and traders desert the town centre in favour of other more accessible retail
destinations.

A car parking strategy will be included in the CAAP which will enable forward planning and
ensure development is not held up with potential unplanned demands to construct additional
parking.

Work is needed on developing a car parking strategy to ensure that -

e Current capacity of car parking, both on and off road, is understood.

e Sufficient capacity of parking is maintained during regeneration of the town centre
and that current business does not suffer from lack of trade if existing car parks
are redeveloped.

e The long-term vision for car parking is considered and planned rather than being
left to market forces.

e The future revenue income to the NBC and NCC understood.

Targets — Car Parking

T3. Support the use of Park and Ride as an option for travelling into town
Review the possibilities for park and ride schemes in and around the town.

T4. Car Parking Strategy — improved car parking offer
Car parking is significant in Northampton's current economy, for continued
accessibility, development opportunities and future investment. Through a car parking
strategy provide a comprehensive and effective network supportive of the town’s
improved and planned retail and business centre. A car parking strategy is needed for
Northampton to ensure the impact of development of any car-parking site is
understood financially and in relationship to the whole town’s capacity.

T5. Develop Car Parks
Key Council assets can be used to stimulate development in the economy. The newly
created assets could also give an alternative income source to the Council spreading
risk. New strategic car parks may be needed at the entrance points around the town
centre parameter freeing up surface car parks for development.

Roads

The strategy of living and working locally, walking and cycling and encouraging bus usage
are all aimed at reducing the pressures on the existing road infrastructure so reducing the
need to build more roads. The growth agenda and need to expand the town will however
not negate the need for new road infrastructure. This will need to be planned in close
partnership with Northamptonshire County Council to ensure all development plans are
supported by well thought out high quality roads between and around major settlements.

Target - Roads

T6. Support New Road Developments — support sustainable new road infrastructure
Plan the town centre development in partnership with the county to ensure the road
systems are adequate to support the new developments in the town.

Railways Buses and model shift

Northampton has good local rail connections with Birmingham to the north and London
Euston to the south.

51



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08

The town’s railway station sits on a loop off the Northwest main line connecting London,
Manchester and Glasgow but has a moderate service north south for these longer distance
trains. There is room for more frequent services on these longer distance trains but would
primarily require re-timetabling rather than infrastructure investment in the line.

Connections West to East along the Oxford/Cambridge arc are not so good and involves
several changes to get to destinations. A new rail connection to the Midland Mainline
(Bedford, Wellingborough, Kettering) is highly desirable and should be a longer-term
aspiration. This would provide a direct route to Europe by train without the need to travel on
London Underground.

The town did once have connections to Market Harborough and a second link to Bedford
and these links may hold potential connections but would require major capital investment.
The town centre railway station has been identified as having great potential for
redevelopment. The current station is looking tired and a new station would create an
impressive gateway into the town. By developing upward, space can be created for new
offices that could further aid business growth in the town centre. The Northampton Central
Area Design Development and movement framework suggests that 37,175m2 of office
space could be created. Most of the land for this development is in Railtrack and private
corporate ownership. The major task would be to re-locate the railway goods yard and road
salt storage. There are no significant buildings on the site.

An alternative station south of the town could also be developed to reduce the commuter
traffic in and out of the town and could provide a new hub for development of the south of
the town in Hunsbury or on the south side of the motorway.

To encourage modal shift, bus facilities also need to be reviewed and promoted. This
should include provision of frequency of services; real time travel data at bus stops; good
interchange facilities and priority lanes for efficient services. To aid modal shift there is also
a need to communicate and promote the alternative services available along with incentives
to achieve a change of habits.

Smart Cards can play an important part in encouraging the change from car use by making
alternative means of transport cheaper, easier and more attractive including removing the
need for cash payments, speeding up boarding times and avoiding having to pay separately
for each leg of a journey. This enables people to travel more often and farther and to
undertake more complex journeys. This also means that people can gain better access to
services and facilities which creates a more inclusive and more equal society, and
particularly overcomes current barriers of social exclusion, low income, disability, isolation
and inequality.

Targets — Railways and Buses

T7. Promote Better Rail Connections to Europe
Develop an east rail line to connect Northampton to the Midland Main Line and west to
Daventry.

T8. Northampton Railway Station — a major gateway
Develop Northampton Railway station as a gateway into the town promoting the use of
the site for a major office development as well as a potential site for conference and
hotel facilities.

T9. Bus travel and modal shift
Ensure that a town Centre transport hub is part of a wider aim to promote modal shift
connected to frequent bus services, with quality information and good interchanges.
Led by NCC and planned as part of a town wide initiative the project and its benefits
also need to be promoted to the public to achieve success.

52



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08

General Infrastructure

Significant infrastructure provision will be needed with the housing, industry, retail and
population growth. There is a need to ensure that with the population growth the utilities of
water, gas, communications and electricity demand is correctly forecast along with education
and heath provision. Town growth will come to a halt if supply of these is held back or
planned transport systems do not support the developments. Good partnership working is
needed to deliver these facilities with good communication to ensure that each other’s needs
and limitations are understood.

T10. Promote and support expansion of utilities to enable growth of the town.
Promote the timely planning of utilities, school and health provision to ensure they
accurately projected as part of the town’s growth.

Parks

There has been a major review of the parks and green infrastructure within Northampton
Borough undertaken by PMP in their Open Space Sports and Recreation Report (OSSR)
commissioned by NBC. This identifies the current space available and the potential
shortfalls in facilities. The work carried out in developing Northampton’s Community
Strategy through the LSP highlighted that the parks, green space and village greens in and
around the town are a major asset, coming top of the things that people liked most about
Northampton. It is clear that these spaces are a major part of the character of the town and
need to be acknowledged as such. From the audit of green space, there is a need to
develop a Green Space Strategy to ensure that these assets continue to be a major part of
Northampton and the town’s expansion. There is potential to promote economic activity to
aid the maintenance of some of these green spaces e.g. play, sport, café or parking etc in or
around the space.

Target — Parks

T11. Deliver an improved Green Infrastructure

Develop a green space strategy for Northampton and implement the strategy as part of
the growth agenda in consultation with partners including The River Nene Regional
Park (RNRP)

These spaces could include a community city farm, allotments, orchards, and places to
relax and enjoy, so creating new green infrastructure with ecosystems functions, flood
defences, control of urban run off, biodiversity and food and green products for local
markets. An example of city living is in Cuba where urban space is turned into local
city market gardens creating functional green space in a dense urban setting.

53



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08
Leadership

Good Leadership is a major building block in being able to deliver a successful Economic
Regeneration strategy. Creating and improving a knowledge economy and competitive
economic performance rely on good governance structures and a clear and speedy decision
making process.

The degree of autonomy over strategic decision-making is one of the most significant
distinguishing features between high performing continental European cities and their
English counterparts. The differences can be seen in the different levels of control that cities
have over local expenditure. There is a greater need to work in close partnership to achieve
a positive result.

This economic strategy gives a way forward by building on Northampton’s current economy,
identifying the future from overarching partnership documents (ref - The bibliography) and
from the targets set to achieve the vision.

The success of the Strategy is not only in being able to set targets but in the ability and
willingness of stakeholders to unite in the delivery of these targets. As suggested above if
there is unity and support to achieve the strategy and clear decision making then there is
greater possibility to achieve the goals. This unity also needs to transgress political parties,
as success will not be achieved by changing strategic direction half way through
implementation.

This document does not propose to suggest a governance structure but aims to highlight
that research from across the UK that governance and clear decision-making is an important
part of successfully achieving this strategy. Partners in Northampton should explore other
examples in the UK of how successful partnership has delivered results.

Target — achieve wider support for effective governance and delivery

The strategy needs to be adopted individually and collectively to be fully affective.

1.  Strategy Adoption - Internally
Adopting and implementing this strategy as an internally agreed strategy with each
partner and across political parties.

2. Strategy Adoption — External Stakeholders
Jointly adopting this strategy by key partners across Northampton as the way forward
for Northampton.

54



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08
Bibliography
Document Date of Publication lAuthor
Introduction / General Reference
Sustainable Communities Plan & Growth  February 2003 ODPM

Milton Keynes and South Midlands Sub
Regional Strategy

March 2005

Regional Economic Strategy for the East 2006
Midlands (RES)

Sub-Regional Economic Strategy 2005

Strategic Northamptonshire Economic 2008
Action Plan (SNEAP)

Creating an Ideopolis, Case Study of
Manchester

September 2006

Innovation in the East Midlands Knowledge May 2005
Economy

State of the English Cities Vol. 1 & 2 March 2006

Thinking About Regional Competitiveness 26 October 2005

Retail

Northampton Retail and Leisure Needs 2006

Analysis

Northampton Town Centre Health Check Feb 2006
Northampton Central Area Development  Feb 2006

area Framework — Benchmarking Analysis

Northampton Central Area Design November 2006

Development and Movement Framework

CA DD & MF Report; Retail & Business 2006
Survey Report

CA DD & MF Report; Property Market 2006
Review

Northampton Retail Strategy 2008

Industry Employment

Northampton Employment Land Study July 2006

State of the English Cities 2006

Needs & Future Needs

CA DD & MF Report; Property Market November 2006

Review

Business Start-Up
Graduate Retention in Northamptonshire
(GRIN)

55

GOEM and DCLG

EMDA

Northamptonshire
Partnership (NEL)
WNDC, NEL, NNDC

Laura Williams, Neil Lee,
Alexandra Jones & David
Coats, The Works
Foundations, sponsored by
Manchester City Council

Mark Hepworth, James
Leather, Lee Pickavance,
Local Futures Group for
EMDA

ODPM

Ron Martin for EMDA

CB Richard Ellis

CB Richard Ellis
CB Richard Ellis/BDP

BDP

CB Richard Ellis

CB Richard Ellis/BDP
CACI

Innes England, Roger Tym
& Partners

ODPM

Northampton Copella
CB Richard Ellis/ BDP

University of Northampton



Northampton ERS 1

Northampton Central Area Design November 2006
Development and Movement Framework
Business Birth Rate Consultation 21 April 2006

Document
Creative Industries in Northamptonshire December 2005
2005 A study for Creative Connections

Leisure/Sports/Culture
Open Space Sports and Recreation Report September 2006
(OSSR) Chapter 10

Education

Northamptonshire Observatory area 2006
profiles

University figures ref: IPU 2008
ONS 2006
Graduate Retention in Northamptonshire

(GRIN)

Community
Northampton Profile 2004 2004

The role of the voluntary and Community  Sept 2002
Sector in Service Delivery

Housing

Barker Review of Housing Supply March 2006
West Northamptonshire Strategic Housing Feb 2006
Market Assessment (HMA)

Delivering Affordable Housing Nov. 2006
CLG Stats. Release Housing Price Index  Nov 2006
Enabling and Delivering Housing Choice  Feb 2007
Northampton Housing Market and Needs 2006

Study

Infrastructure

Transport
Northamptonshire Local Transport Plan March 2006
2006/7 to 2010/11
Northampton Multi Modal Study December 2003
Transport Strategy for |Growth Sept 2007

The UK Commute Healthy or Hazardous  Sept 2007

Leadership
Enabling Cities in the Knowledge Economy Oct. 2006

State of the English Cities Vol. 1 & 2
Creating an Ideopolis, Case Study of
Manchester

March 2006
September 2006

56

Final 7 April 08
BDP

EMDA

Fred Brookes and Francois
Matarasso

PMP

NEL
University of Northampton

University of Northampton

NBC Health & Community
Involvement Division
Linda Brede

HM Treasury

Kate Barker
PMP

CLG
CLG
NBC
B. Line

NCC

NCC
NCC
RAC Foundation

Alexander Jones, Laura
Williams, David coats, Neil
Lee & Aine O’Keeffe, The
Works Foundation for
DCLG

ODPM

Laura Williams, Neil Lee,
Alexandra Jones & David
Coats, The Works
Foundations, sponsored by
Manchester City Council



Northampton ERS 1 Final 7 April 08

Appendices

Appendix 1
Summary Table of Targets

57



Summary Table of Targets as taken from each chapter of the Northampton Economic Regeneration Strategy

TARGET Related targets in Main partners Other Approximate
RES, SRES, LAA working on Partners Timescale
project
RETAIL
R1 |Niche Retail - Develop vibrant niche markets to distinguish |RES 7a, 7b NBC, TCC, TCP, |Commercial 2008-2026
Northampton from other retail centres. SRES 1.1, 3.1, 3.2, WNDC. Developer/
3.4,378&5.2 NCC NEL
EMDA
R2 |Expand the Town Centre Retail - Increase the town centre |RES 2g, 4a, 7a, 7b NBC, TCC, TCP, |Commercial 2008-2014
retail offer by two-thirds i.e. 80,000m2. SRES 1.1, 3.1, 3.2 4.3|WNDC. Developer/
This will be achieved primarily through commercial alliances |& 5.2 NCC NEL
with either existing partners or new partners. EMDA
R3 |Consult on Retail Design - It is important that the public buy |RES 7a, 7b NBC, TCC, TCP, |All oG
into the proposed changes and expansion of the retail area. |SRES 1.1, 3.1,3.2, [WNDC.
Promoting quality, reflecting Northampton’s character, 3.4,3.7,4.3
exploring niche markets and retail growth. A consultative LAA - SSC 4
exercise and choice of designs could be given to aid the
debate and consolidate the preferred choice with the town’s
citizens.
R4 |Jobs/Skills - The expansion of the retail area will bring RES 1b, 1c LSC, NBC, NCC, NEL, oG
significant employment opportunities and those opportunities |SRES 2.4, 2.5, 2.6, WNDC EMDA, TCP
sit geographically next to areas of the town with high levels (2.7, 2.8, 3.6, 5.1
of deprivation. This in turn gives good opportunity to skill or |LAA - EDEG 1
re-skill people to work in the expanding retail sector.
RS |Market Square - The market appears to have great potential|RES 2F, 9b, 9¢,10c  [NBC, NCC, TCP, |NEL, EP, 2008-2012
as a flexible space retaining the function of the market during |SRES 3.4, 3.7 TCC, WNDC EMDA
the day but with the permanent stalls removed. Further
research and consultation is needed with all before the right
format is decided.
R6 RES 2F,2G, 7C,9B |NBC, TCC, TCP, [NCC, NEL, 2008 -2015
. . SRES 1.1, 3.1,3.4, [WNDC. EP, EMDA
Evening Economy - The current evening economy has a 37 52
bias towards a young pub culture. The town should look at o
developing a diversified offer to appeal to a wide audience
including cafés, restaurants and family friendly venues.
R7 |Landscaping/Public Realm -Landscaping the major RES 2F, 9B WNDC, NCC, NEL, EP, 2008-2010
circulation areas of the town. Some of these areas, in SRES 1.1, 3.1, 3.4, NBC EMDA, TCC,
particular Abington Street, need to be carried out before 3.7,5.2 TCP
there is major interruption of the current Grosvenor Centre.
The town needs to work hard at protecting its existing
businesses and making them attractive.
R8 |Business Improvement Districts - Set up a town Centre  |RES 9a, 9b TCP NEL, WNDC, 2008-2012
Business Improvement District. There is potential for a retail |SRES 3.7, 4.3, 5.2 NBC
area to be improved/maintained through the creation of
Business Improvement Districts. It is a partnership between
the local Authority and the local business in that locally
designated area. By charging a levy within the BID area,
added value can be achieved by putting improvements and
additional services into the area.
R9 |Improved Building Frontages - Northampton's character |RES 2f, 9b, 2g, 3d NBC, WNDC, EMDA, NEL, 2008-2011
is a key asset in promoting place making. A programme of |SRES 3.4, 3.7 TCP NCC
improvements to existing shop frontages to complement the
often fine architecture at 1st floor level . This programme
should start in the Market Square and expand to other
streets in the town.
Page 1 of 10 7.04.2008




TARGET Related targets in Main partners Other Approximate
RES, SRES, LAA working on Partners Timescale
project
INDUSTRY/EMPLOYMENT
E1 |Promote the Development of Office Space - The aim is to |RES 7a NBC, NCC,NEL, |EMDA, TCP oG
promote living and working in the town centre, reduce SRES 1.1,1.7, 31, WNDC
journeys and boost the spend in the local economy. To 3.2,3.3,34
further this there is a desire to promote the increased use of |LAA - EDEG2
office space in the town centre balanced with housing to
ensure the town has an attractive offer in the town centre.
E2 |[NBC/NCC Land Holdings - Review of NBC/NCC land RES 7a NBC, NCC NEL, WNDC 2008-2011
holding with projected reuse of land for commercial SRES 1.1,1.7, 31,
opportunities and social enterprise. (This point needs to be |3.2
carried out in relation to the car parking strategy undertaken [LAA - EDEG2
ref infrastructure section of this report)
E3 |Create Office Site Opportunities - Clear and create RES 7a NBC, NCC, EP, EMDA, 2009-2011
marketable land /building footprints for office/ employment  |SRES 1.1,1.7, 3.1, |WNDC NEL
opportunities. 3.2
LAA - EDEG2
E4 |Promote High Quality Jobs -Promote the use of out of RES 7a NBC, NEL, EMDA, LSC, oG
town areas towards high quality jobs with higher density land |SRES 1.1, 1.3, 1.4 WNDC. NEL, NCC
use in preference to land hungry distribution. LAA - EDEG2
E5 |Identify Gateway Sites -Promoting a high quality RES 7a NBC, NCC, EMDA, NEL. 2008-2010
environment is important to increase the desirability of the ~ |SRES 1.1, 1.7 WNDC.
town to investors. To this end there is a need to Identify
‘gateway’ building projects that can house prestigious firms
in high quality buildings that can be seen when entering the
town.
E6 |Proactive Target Companies to Relocate in Northampton |RES 2e, 7a, 5b, 5c, [ALL ALL oG
-With visible improvements in the town centre and 9c, 10a,
identifiable sites in and out of the town proactively target SRES 1.4, 1.5, 1.6,
firms to locate in Northampton, Including consultancy, 1.7,5.3
recycling high value engineering, construction, LAA - EDEG2
health/healthcare, food & drink and overseas industry looking
for a UK base.
E7 |Development Opportunities -Evolving from the RES 5b, 5c, 7a NBC, NCC ALL oG
identification of sites for development and the clearing of SRES 1.1,1.7,5.3
sites to give a clear footprint, will come opportunities for
partners to develop the building of office space in the town
centre. As well as promoting economic activity in the town
these opportunity should also result in a one off payment or
in receiving a long-term income. These opportunities will
need to be worked out on a case-by-case basis balancing
risk and return (current and future) that each opportunity
presents. If these opportunities are numerous then a suite of
legal documents could be developed to aid the process.
E8 |Skills and Training - To up skill the workforce local RES 1a, 1b, 1¢c, 9a, |LSC, NBC, NEL [WNDC, NCC oG
community in preparation for the new employment 10a
opportunities. This should be done in partnership with the |SRES 2.2, 2.3, 2.5,
Learning and Skills Council and education establishments. 2.6, 2.7, 2.8, 3.3, 3.6
LAA - EDEG1
E9 |Small to Medium Enterprises -Aim to reduce the business |RES 2a, 2b NBC, NEL EMDA, NCC, 2008-2010
rates to start up business in the first two years to enable SRES 1.5,1.8, 2.1, WNDC
Northampton to be a centre of innovation creating growing  |3.7
business LAA - EDEG2
E10|Industrial Growth Space -Northamptonshire is the centre of|RES 2c, 3e, 5b, 7a EMDA, WNDC 2008-2026
manufacturing and key industries including the motor sport |SRES 1.4, 1.5, 1.6 NBC,NCC, NEL,
and shoes. These and other industry need to be promoted |LAA - EDEG2 U of N.
to ensure development and growth space is available in the
expanding town.
E11|Conference/Exhibition Centre -As identified in the leisure |RES 3d, 7a NEL, NBC, NCC, EMDA, 2009-2016
section of the report, Northampton’s central location is SRES 1.1, 3.1, 3.2, Uof N WNDC
naturally good for holding rallies and events with people 43,54
travelling from all areas of the UK. This suggests there is an
opportunity for locating a conference /exhibition centre in or
around the town.
Page 2 of 10 7.04.2008




TARGET Related targets in Main partners Other Approximate
RES, SRES, LAA working on Partners Timescale
project
E12|Local Procurement - Encourage local procurement to RES 2h ALL ALL oG
support the local economy and help reduce procurement SRES 1.5
miles so aiding the environment. Fairtrade produce should
be promoted to ensure the towns status as a Fairtrade town
and supporting developing economies.
E13|Management of Industrial Parks - Support needs to be RES 2c, 3e, 5b, 7a NEL, NBC EMDA, NCC, 2008-2011
given to ensure that industrial parks are given the right SRES 1.4,1.5,1.6 WNDC
facilities including better safety and proper long haul
parking/facilities supported through Business Improvement
Districts.
E14|Science and Technology Park - 'Technology Realm’ - RES 2c, 3e, 5b, 7a NEL, NCC, EMDA, NBC 2009-2016
Support needs to be given to ensure that Northampton SRES 1.4,1.5,1.7 U of N, WNDC
provides a Science Business and Technology Park creating |LAA - EDEG2
a Technology Realm. The project will provide the 'hub’' of a
major hub and 'spoke' business park throughout
Northamptonshire. The project will promote knowledge
based jobs and improve skills.
E15|Livestock Market - Support the Farmers' Consortium's RES 2b, 2¢, 3e,9c. |WNDC, NCC, EMDA, NEL 2009-2016
campaign to re-open the Livestock Market, the Strategy SRES 1.1, 1.8. NBC
would both support job creation and employment diversity.
BUSINESS START-UP
B1 [Sole Trades/Start Up Business - Developing an area of RES 2a,2b, 10c NBC, U of N, EMDA, LSC, 2008-2011
the town centre for sole trades/ start up business shops to SRES 1.2, 1.5, 1.6, WNDC NEL, WNDC
aid start up and create a more diverse shopping offer. (This |1.8,2.1,2.7,2.8,5.4
could potentially be in the evolving Cultural Quarter of the LAA - EDEG2
town or in St Giles Street and Gold Street).
B2 |Arts Complex/Start-Up Business - Develop an area of the |RES 1a, 1c, 2a,2b, [NBC, U of N, NCC, NEL, 2008-2011
town centre for an arts/creative complex supporting start-up |3d, 3e, 9a, 10c WNDC WNDC, EP,
and growth business/ studios/ shops to aid start-up and SRES 1.2, 1.5, 1.6, EMDA, LSC
create a more diverse niche shopping offer and matching 18,21,27,2.8,4.3,
local graduate skills to employment opportunities in the town. (5.3, 5.4
(This could potentially be in the evolving Cultural Quarter of [LAA - EDEG2
the Town)
B3 |Fashion Design/ Start-Up Business - Develop an area of |RES 2a, 2b, 10c NBC, U of N, NCC, NEL, 2008-2011
the town centre for fashion design retail start-up business SRES 1.2,1.5,1.6 WNDC WNDC, EP,
shops to aid start-up and create a more diverse shopping 1.8,2.1,28,4.3,5.3, EMDA, LSC
offer and matching local graduate skills to employment 54
opportunities in the town. LAA - EDEG2
(This could potentially be in the evolving Cultural Quarter of
the town)
B4 [Antique Business Shops - Develop an area of the town RES 2a, 2b, 10c NBC, NEL. EMDA, LSC, 2008-2015
centre for antique business, restorers, and shops to aid start-|SRES 1.2, 1.5, 1.6, UofN
up and create a more diverse shopping offer. 1.8,2.1,28,4.3,5.3,
5.4
LAA - EDEG2
B5 |Live Work Units - Develop an area of the town for live work |RES 2a, 2b, 2g, 10c  [NBC, U of N, EMDA, LSC, 2008-2015
units start up business to aid start-up and create a more SRES 1.2, 1.5, 1.6, WNDC. NEL
diverse work space. 1.8,21,2.7,28,54
LAA - EDEG2
Page 3 of 10 7.04.2008




TARGET

Related targets in
RES, SRES, LAA

Main partners
working on
project

Other
Partners

Approximate
Timescale

B6

Growth Space - Cultural Zone - There are many potential
opportunities especially within the cultural zone of the town
to explore the promotion of start-up and growth business.
There is a need to develop ‘business growth space’ as start-
up business expands from such small beginning at facilities
as The Portfolio Innovation Centre and elsewhere. Rather
than lose these businesses, growth space needs to be
created in Northampton.

To house this in a shared unit would help overheads and
create a shared sense of direction housed in a single
office/studio complex in the Town.

RES 2a, 2c, 2d, 2g,
10c

SRES 1.2, 1.5, 1.6,
1.8,2.1,2.7,2.8,54
LAA - EDEG 2

NBC, U of N,
WNDC.

EMDA, EP,
LSC, NCC,
NEL.

2008-2015

B7

B7. Innovation Space — Develop Innovation Space for
business and engineering with focus on Northampton’s
strengths and connections. This could include precision
engineering and recycling and could be located on the
University Park Campus or Northampton College sites.

RES 2a, 2c, 2d, 2g,
10c

SRES 1.2, 1.5, 1.6,
1.8,2.1,2.7,2.8.
LAA - EDEG 2

NBC, LSC,
U of N, WNDC

LSC, NEL,
EMDA

2008-2011

B8

Business Support — Business Link - Develop an onsite
support hub for the evolving fledging business centres with
advice and training.

RES 2d,

SRES 1.5, 1.8, 2.1,
2.6.

LAA - EDEG2

Uof N, BC

LSC, NBC,
NEL

2008-2010

REGENERATION AND GROWTH

G1

Planning and Resource Schedule - To establish an over
arching master plan for delivery of the regeneration of
Northampton in line with the Local Development Framework.
This will need to be revised as development evolves (on an
annual basis) and include a resource scheduling to back up
the delivery programme. The plan will also need to identify
the lead partner of each particular element.

WNDC, NBC,
NCC, EP.

NEL, EMDA 2008-2009

G2

OGC Gateway - Adopt the OGC Gateway method of
developing projects from first principles to establish
good practice. Projects should be developed through
establishing the need, identifying the issues to be
address by the project and identifying the options for
delivery.

WNDC, NBC,
NCC, EP.

NEL, EMDA oG

G3

Design Quality - Ensure all projects are built of a good
quality, functional design, environmentally friendly (with
environmental ratings) and be attractive. Designs also need
to include the principles of designing out crime, specifically
building to accredited ‘Secured by Design’ standards,
including. To achieve these standards, the delivery partners
should adopt a policy of consulting before designs are
concluded, with groups such as CABE or Regeneration East
Midlands, the LSP, the police, and other emergence
services, with the aim of trying to ensure design with
longevity, serviceability, good spatial planning and place
shaping .

RES 5a, 6a
SRES 3.4,5.2,5.3

ALL

ALL oG

G4

Public Consultation on Designs -The first major project
that will create a landmark is likely to be the retail project.
Later major schemes are likely to be the redevelopment of
the railways station including major office space and a major
leisure project. To raise awareness of these major projects
the designs should be part of a public consultation and
potential a design competition as it engages the public in the
development of the town and advertises new scheme
development to the world

SRES 3.4, 5.2, 5.3,
5.4

ALL

ALL oG

Page 4 of 10

7.04.2008




TARGET Related targets in Main partners Other Approximate
RES, SRES, LAA working on Partners Timescale
project
G5 |Equalities - Each project needs to be screened at the early |SRES 3.6, 3.7 LAA - |ALL ALL oG
development stage and progressively through the project SSC1
stages to ensure that equalities are a consideration.
G6 |39. Carbon Neutral Future - Actions need to be taken to RES 3a, 3b, 3c, 5a, |ALL ALL oG
reverse Climate Change. New developments and industry |5b, 5c, 6a, 6b
need to aim to be Carbon Neutral. This is in line with the SRES 3.1
Nottingham Declaration committing the Borough to
encourage all sectors of the community to adapt to the
impact of climate change, reduce greenhouse gas emissions
and make public our commitment to action.
Page 5 of 10 7.04.2008




TARGET Related targets in Main partners Other Approximate
RES, SRES, LAA working on Partners Timescale
project
EDUCATION
COMMUNITY
C1 |Review the use of NBC Community Centres -The RES 2a, 7b NBC EMDA, NEL, 2008-2010
Borough Council run 22 Community centres that provide or |SRES 1.1, 1.8, 3.2, WNDC.
have the ability to provide direct service and facility to their |3.6, 4.3,
community. There is an opportunity to review what they
currently provide and how they could be developed including
micro business start up.
C2 |Establish Groundwork in Northampton - Groundwork is a [RES 1a, 1c, 2a, 2c, NBC WNDC, NEL, 2008-2011
federation of Trusts in England, Wales and Northern Ireland, |3b, 3c, 5b, 5c, 6a, 6b, EMDA, NCC
each working with their partners to improve the quality of the |8, 9a, 9b, 9c, 10a, 10c
local environment, the lives of local people and the success [SES 1.1,1.2,1.6, 2.2,
of local businesses in areas in need of investment and 24,26,2.7,3.2,33,
support. 3.4,3.5,3.6,3.7,
4.3 LAA - CYP8
C3 |Waste - The council needs to encourage the Reuse, Reduce |RES 3a, 3b, 3c, 5a, |ALL ALL oG
and Recycle to lower the environmental impact 5b, 5c¢, 6a, 6b
SRES 3.1
C4 |Safer Communities - All activities and plans need to take  |[RES 8 ALL ALL oG
account of likely effects on levels of crime, disorder, anti- SRES 3.6
social behaviour, substance misuse and behaviour adversely |LAA - SSC1 & SSC2
affecting the environment (section 17 of the 98 Crime and
Disorder Act, as amended). Developments need to
'designing out crime' and potential problems as a principle,
not only applying this to the construction but the way they
are used, the accessibility of facilities and ability to build a
sense of pride in and 'ownership'.
C5 |Neighbourhood Renewal and Neighbourhood RES 8, 10 ALL ALL oG
Management -Investing in communities and tackling social |SRES 3.6
exclusion. Delivering the Neighbourhood Renewal Strategy |LAA - SSC1 & SSC3
locally by narrowing the gap between the most deprived
neighbourhoods and the average, within Northampton. The
objective will be to have a lower level of worklessness,
reduce crime, better health, improved skills, housing and
physical environment.
HOUSING
H1 |New Homes -Support the completion of 1450 new homes |RES 7a, 7b ALL ALL oG
annually 2006 to 2011 by maximising inward investment, by |SRES 1.1, 3.1, 3.2,
working with all our partners to plan for growth. (Note; Itis  (3.3,3.4,4.35.2
acknowledged that land used for residential in the town LAA - EDEG3
centre may give a short term higher return than commercial
use but to ensure all elements of the economy are working, it
is highly desirable to utilise town centre land for jobs as well
as houses. Jobs will stimulate and add balance the town
centre economy and give longer-term gains)
H2 |Sustainable Affordable Housing - Widen the opportunity to|RES 7b ALL ALL oG
home ownership and improve the quantity, quality and SRES 1.1, 3.1, 3.2,
choice of rented accommodation. Targeting 35% affordable |3.3,3.4,4.3,5.2
housing on all housing development sites. Affordable LAA - EDEG3
housing needs to be integrated into a development rather
than zones to ensure community integration.
Page 6 of 10 7.04.2008




TARGET

Related targets in
RES, SRES, LAA

Main partners
working on
project

Other
Partners

Approximate
Timescale

H3

Quality Houses - Northampton’s houses are the future
assets that attract workers to move to the town. Hence
quality is of major importance. Ensuring houses are built of a
good quality, functional design, environmentally friendly (with
environmental ratings) and be attractive is essential. Plans
also need to take account of spatial planning to integrate
housing with transport connections, community infrastructure
and employment opportunities. To achieve this Partners
should adopt a policy of consulting before designs are
concluded, with groups such as CABE, or Regeneration East
Midlands, Building Research Establishment and The Princes
Foundation with the aim of trying to ensure design with
longevity and serviceability.

RES 6a

SRES 1.1, 3.1, 3.2,
3.3,3.4,43,52,53
LAA - EDEG3

ALL

ALL oG

H4

Houses Builders - With Northampton Central location in
England and the trend for house building there is an
opportunity to encourage house builders to locate their
operations in Northampton.

RES 7a, 7c, 9¢c
SRES 1.1,1.7, 3.1,
3.2

LAA - EDEG2

NBC, WNDC

ALL oG

H5

Refurbish Existing Estates - Housing expansion should
not only focus on building new houses but should explore the
potential of refurbishing poor existing housing estates. In
these estates increasing densities could be explored as a
mechanism for renewal where the existing landscape and
density is working against, rather than in harmony, with the
estate.

RES 6a, 7b, 7c
SRES 1.1, 3.1, 3.2,
3.3

NBC, WNDC

ALL

LEISURE

L1

Expansion of the Cultural/Arts Facilities for the New
Northampton - Museums, galleries and theatre stimulate
creativity, inspire learning, engage communities and help to
build the knowledge economy. Northampton has some good
facilities including the newly refurbished Royal and Derngate
however the growth agenda give the opportunity to expand
/create a major arts/cultural project. The options could
include an Art Gallery that would be able to house national
touring exhibitions, climatically controlled and secure etc.
Investigating this option and other options would be part of a
cultural development in Northampton leading to major capital
works for the town.

RES 2f, 2g, 4a, 7a,7c
9b

SRES 1.1, 3.1, 3.2,
43,525354

NBC, WNDC,
NEL

Uof N, EP,
EMDA

2008-2016

L2

Northampton’s Museum & Gallery - an expanded and
more attractive offer — The cultural facilities and history are
a key element of ‘place making*‘ and Northampton’s history is
inextricably linked to the shoe industry. Northampton already
has a ‘designated’ Boots and Shoes collection however a
significant facility should be developed creating a ‘Big City
Museum’ with National Status and an Art Gallery bringing
historic Northampton to life and promoting with the current
and future importance of the shoe industry to Northampton.
The exact specification for of this needs to be developed as
part of a wider Cultural Investment Plan.

RES 2f, 2g, 4a, 7a, 7c,
9b

SRES 1.1, 3.1, 3.2,
43,525355

NBC, WNDC,
NEL

Uof N, EP,
EMDA

2008-2016

L3

Build a New Major Sports Facilities for the New
Northampton - Current reports shows that there is an under
capacity in swimming pools and combined with an expanding
population this would suggest the development of a major
new sporting facility. There is an additional need to review
current facilities and updating them. These will lead to major
capital projects in landmark buildings creating a major selling
point for investment into the town.

RES 2f, 2g, 4a, 7a, 7c,
9b

SRES 1.1, 3.1, 3.2,
43,525354

NBC, WNDC,
NEL

EP, EMDA 2008-2016

Page 7 of 10

7.04.2008




TARGET Related targets in Main partners Other Approximate
RES, SRES, LAA working on Partners Timescale
project
L4 |Events Programme - Develop a programme of major RES 2f, 2g NBC WNDC, NEL 2008-2010
events for the town, of local, regional or national significance.|SRES 3.2, 3.3, 5.3 5.4
L5 |Town Trail - Develop a self guided historic town trail of RES 2f, 2g NBC, NEL WNDC, NCC, 2008-2010
Northampton. This could be through a networked mobile SRES 3.2, 3.3, 5.3, EH, TCP
phone system so promoting the richness of the towns 5.4.
heritage and developed in partnership with the tourist
Information Centre.
INFRASTRUCTURE
T1 |Develop Routes for a Sustainable Transport Network - [RES 4a, 5a, 6a NCC EMDA, NBC, 2008-2026
With improved connectivity -Map out clear strategic cycle |SRES 1.1, 3.1, 3.2, NEL, WNDC.
and walking routes through out Northampton and promote 3.3, 3.4, 3.7,4.3, 5.2,
the development of these routes through developer 5.3,5.5
contributions and other funding. Including strong links to the |LAA - HCOP4
river Nene waterside.
T2 |Support the development of sustainable travel plans - RES 4a, 6a NCC EMDA, NBC, oG
Encourage schools, colleges and the University of SRES 3.1, 3.2,3.3 NEL, WNDC.
Northampton to develop School Travel Plans and promote
school bus services for all schools as a way of reducing
morning and evening traffic in the town and encourage
sustainable Travel Smart planning for local business.
T3 |Support the Use of Park and Ride as an Option for RES 4a, 5a, NCC EMDA, NBC, 2009-2016
Travelling into Town - Review the possibilities for park and |SRES 1.1, 3.1, 3.2, NEL, WNDC.
ride schemes in and around the town. 3.3,5.1,5.2
T4 |(Car Parking Strategy - Research a car parking strategy for |RES 4a, 7a NBC, NCC, NEL, EMDA 2007-2008
Northampton to ensure the impact of development of any car |SRES 1.1, 3.1, 3.2, WNDC
parking site is understood financially and in relationship to 3.3,5.1,5.2
the whole town’s capacity.
TS5 |Develop Car Parks - New strategic car parks may be RES 4a, 7a NBC, NCC, EP, EMDA 2009-2011
needed at the entrance points around the town centre SRES 1.1, 3.1, 3.2, WNDC
parameter freeing up surface car parks for development. 3.3,5.1,5.2
T6 |Support Road Developments - Plan the town centre RES 4a NCC, WNDC NBC, EP, oG
development in partnership with the county to ensure the SRES 1.1, 3.1, 3.2, EMDA
road systems are adequate to support the new 3.3,5.1,5.2
developments in the town.
T7 |Promote Better Rail Connections - Develop an east rail RES 4a ALL ALL oG
line to connect Northampton to the Midland Main Line and to [SRES 1.1, 3.1, 3.2,
Daventry. 3.3,38,4.2,5.1,52,
T8 [Northampton Railway Station — a major gateway - RES 3d, 4a, 7a, 7c WNDC NBC, NEL, 2008-2020
Develop Northampton Railway station as a gateway into the |SRES 1.1, 3.1, 3.2, EP, EMDA
town promoting the use of the site for a major office 3.3,5.1,5.2
development as well as a potential site for conference and
hotel facilities.
T9 (Bus Travel and Modal Shift - Ensure that a town Centre |RES 4a, 7c NCC NBC, NEL, 2010-2012
transport hub is part of a wider aim to promote modal shift SRES 1.1, 3.1, 3.2, WNDC, EP,
connected to frequent bus services, with quality information |3.3, 3.8,4.2,5.1, 5.2, EMDA
and good interchanges. Led by NCC and planned as part of
a town wide initiative the project and its benefits also need to
be promoted to the public to achieve success.
T10 |Promote/Support Expansion - Promote the timely planning |RES 4a, 5a, 7a, 7c ALL ALL 2007-2014
of utilities, school and health provision to ensure they SRES 1.1, 3.1, 3.2,
accurately projected as part of the town’s growth. 3.3,5.1,5.2
LAA - EDEG4
Page 8 of 10 7.04.2008




TARGET Related targets in Main partners Other Approximate
RES, SRES, LAA working on Partners Timescale
project
T11 [Develop a Green Infrastructure Strategy - Develop a RES 6a, 7c NBC, NCC, EP, EMDA 2008-2010
green space strategy for Northampton and implement the SRES 1.1, 3.1, 3.2, WNDC, RNRP
strategy as part of the growth agenda in consultation with 3.3,3.7,51,52
partners. LAA - SSC5
Page 9 of 10 7.04.2008




TARGET Related targets in Main partners Other Approximate
RES, SRES, LAA working on Partners Timescale
project
GOVERNANCE
1|Strategy Adoption — Internally -Adopting and ALL ALL oG
implementing this strategy as an internally agreed strategy
with each partner and across political parties.
2|Strategy Adoption — External Stakeholders - Jointly ALL ALL oG
adopting of this strategy by key partners across Northampton
as the way forward for Northampton.
Key
EMDA = East Midlands Development Agency
EP = English Partnerships
NEL = Northampton Enterprise Limited
RNRP = River Nene Regional Park
TCC = Town Centre Commission
TCP = Town Centre Partnership
U of N = University of Northampton
WNDC = West Northamptonshire Development Agency
OG = On going
Page 10 of 10 7.04.2008




Appendices: gqﬂpa [ﬁgﬁnga |tem 7
[Meetina Services use onlvl
oq &
NORTHAMPTON
BOROUGH COUNCIL
COUNCIL
12 May 2008
Agenda Status: Public Directorate: Constitutional Review
Report Title Constitutional Review
1. Summary

Following initial consideration by the Council on 17 March 2008 of the report of the Constitution
Review Working Party this report sets out the detailed drafting changes to the Constitution for
adoption.

2. Recommendations

1. That Council adopts the changes to the Constitution set out in appendix 3 of this
report.
2. That the Tree Panel be reconfigured with five Councillors who are not Members of the

Planning Committee.

3. That Council delegates powers to the Solicitor to the Council to make any minor
grammatical changes to the Constitution prior to publishing the document.

3. Report Background

3.1 The cross-party Constitutional Review Working Party has met on a number of occasions
and as a result of its deliberations, various changes to the Constitution are suggested.
The Constitutional Working Party Group’s broad thinking is contained in Appendix 1 and 2
of this report. These Appendixes have already been reported to Full Council. The
Constitutional Review Working Party last met on 28 April 2008, to consider the detailed
drafting and to make suggestions for final changes to the Constitution. As a result of that
meeting, some minor changes had been made to Appendix 2.

The detailed drafting, with changes tracked in red, are attached at Appendix 3

D:\modernGov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\4\2\9\A100024924\Report12MayCouncil2008Constitution0.doc



3.2

3.21

3.2.2

3.2.3

3.24

The headline proposals are as follows:
Public Speaking Rights

If the proposals are adopted, the public will be given additional speaking rights at ordinary
Council meetings. Currently, members of the public can speak on motions (subject to
detailed rules) and to ask questions during Council’s question time. If these proposals
are adopted, members of the public will have an additional right to address Council on
any matter on the Council’'s agenda and will have a maximum of three minutes slot to do
this. These rights will be in addition to the rights to speak on motions and to ask
questions at question time.

Length of Council Meeting

To accommodate the extra half an hour slot, it is proposed that the length of the Council
meeting be increased by half an hour. The Constitutional Working Party Group
considered two options to accommodate this. One was to start Council meetings half an
hour earlier and the other option was to adjust the guillotine so it falls half an hour later,
i.e. at 10 pm, as opposed to 9.30 pm. The suggested amendments in this report suggest
the latter course, which is for the guillotine to fall later and for Council meetings to end at
10 pm.

Portfolio Holder Presentations

When original amendments to the Constitution introduced the Portfolio Holder
presentations slot, the then administration had six Portfolios. The current administration
has seven Portfolio’'s and to accommodate them the time slot for Portfolio Holder
presentations has been increased by fifteen minutes, to a total period of forty-five
minutes.

Procedural Rules

Motions

Various amendments to Motions have been suggested in this report. Some amendments
have been drafted to clarify rules of debate whilst other changes are more substantive.

° Amendments have been made to increase the submission deadline for amendments
to Motions to two and a half working days. This will work as follows:

If a Council meeting were to be held on Monday, amendments to Motions would
need to be submitted to the Monitoring Officer by 12 noon on the Thursday before
the meeting. The purpose for this amendment is to ensure that proper professional
advice on the validity of the amendment can be provided by the Chief Executive and
Monitoring Officer and that there is adequate time to circulate the amendments
amongst groups. This amendment if approved should facilitate better quality debate
on amendments.

e Adjustments to the Constitution have been suggested to allow the Mayor to use their
discretion to amend Motions, to correct any factual or grammatical errors, but

D:\modernGov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\4\2\9\A100024924\Report12MayCouncil2008Constitution0.doc



3.2.5

3.2.6

3.2.7

3.2.8

3.2.9

without changing the main thrust of the Motion. Again, this will assist the
administration and debate of amendments.

Length of Speeches

Currently, the Constitution allows movers and seconders of Motions a total speaking time
of ten minutes, with other speeches restricted to five minutes. The proposed
amendments to the Constitution will reduce this to a maximum of a five minutes speech
from a mover of a Motion, and all other speakers including a seconder of a motion, will
have a maximum of three minutes to make a speech.

Opposition Business

The suggested amendments, introduce a new concept to the Constitution. If adopted, it
will allow opposition groups and those not part of a group, to introduce relevant items for
consideration by Council. The items of business here could include Motions, and there
will be restrictions on the ability for these to be amended. Only one item from an
opposition group or individual will be allowed at each Council meeting. The right to
introduce items will based on the groups/individual’s proportional representation on the
Council. Officers will prepare worked examples and guidance for members on their rights
to introduce items under this heading.

Tree Preservation Order

Currently, the Tree Preservation Panel is a sub-committee of the Planning Committee.
However, recently a rare circumstance has arisen whereby the current Panel members
(drawn from the Planning Committee) have been unable to hear a matter as it had
previously been discussed by the Committee. It is therefore proposed that in future the
Panel be configured from Councillors not serving on Planning Committee (or Cabinet).

Contract Procedure Rules

Various technical changes have been made to the Contract Procedure Rules, which seek
to clarify and reflect structural changes in the way the Council deals with procurement
issues.

Shadow Cabinet
Changes to the Constitution will introduce the concept of a Shadow Cabinet. However,

the protocol is actually being discussed with relevant Members and will be circulated to
Members before the Council meeting.

3.2.10 Race Equality Forum

Running in parallel to the Working Party another group has been reviewing the Race
Equality Forum. Consultations with professionals in partner organisations and networks
involved with community cohesion, race equality, hate crimes and community
engagement have taken place together with members of the Faiths Forum, Faithworks
and Churches Together in Northampton. The need for a Forum that deals not only with
faiths, but also ethnicity, culture and diverse communities for dealing with doctrine but
also with practical aspects of living together and engaging with the Council came out
strongly from these discussions. There were no concerns in respect of duplication

D:\modernGov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\4\2\9\A100024924\Report12MayCouncil2008Constitution0.doc



particularly with the independently organised Faiths Forum but rather that this proposal
would be complementary. Set out in Appendix 7 is a revised Article renaming the Race
Equality Forum as the Diverse Communities Equality Forum and setting out new
objectives for it.

4. Implications (including financial implications)

4.1 Resources and Risk

Financial Implications (if appropriate), Risk and Non-financial resource (e.g.staffing) implications
and comments from Finance if appropriate

4.2 Legal

The Constitution defines the way the Council operates and as such the agreed document will
have legal force.

4.3 Other Implications

None specifically.

5. Background Papers

FJF Constitution file.

Report Author and Title:  Francis Fernandes
Solicitor to the Council
Telephone and Email: 01604 838334

D:\modernGov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\4\2\9\A100024924\Report12MayCouncil2008Constitution0.doc



Appendix 1

Constitutional Working Party Recommendations in Response to
Motion from Council referred to Cabinet on 7th January 2008

1. Permitting the public to (A) That the current “Deputations and Public Addresses” item on the Council agenda be used for public
speak at full Council on any comments and petitions.
item listed on the agenda. o ) , . . .

(B) This item to be restricted to a maximum of thirty minutes duration.

(C)Each public speaker to have three minutes to say whatever they wish to, across any subject or other
agenda item except “Motions”.

(D) Public speakers to register by 12 noon on the day of the meeting.

(E) The Mayor to have discretion to reorder the order of public speakers so as to encourage those who have
not addressed Council before or recently and also for the purpose of balancing the contributions. Mayor to
also have discretion to either allow more public speakers for items of greater public interest or to request a
further Council meeting to hold the discussion.

(F) This provision to not prevent a member of the public also registering to speak to a motion.

2. Allowing Councillors more | (A) That Portfolio Holder presentations and questions be extended up to forty five minutes
time to question portfolio . ) - . . i ,
holders in full Council. (B) That notwithstanding the existing provisions in the Constitution, the Mayor to ensure that Portfolio Holders

do not take longer than the three minutes allotted for their presentations.

3. Extending the guillotine to Agreed that the extension of the current Guillotine time by 30 minutes. The decision of whether the 30minute
provide adequate time for extension be resolved by starting the meeting earlier at 6pm or closing the meeting later at 10pm should be
business. left with the Council to agree.

4. Reducing the deadline for (A) That the Council agenda be published seven clear working days before a meeting.
submission of written _ . _ _ _ : _—
questions from five clear (B) That the deadline for submission of written questions be 10:00am on the Monday following publication of
working days the agenda.

5. Reducing the deadline for (A) That the deadline be eight working days.

submission of motions from
twelve clear working days.

Ff/constitution/constitutional working party/reports/Appendix 1 Motions from Council




Ff/constitution/constitutional working party/reports/Appendix 1 Motions from Council



1 syuswpuaLue JeyyQ z xipuadde/suodairAned Bupiom [BUORNIISUDD/UONNIISUOD/Y

-goe|d ueye) Jou pey ajeqep
ojenbepe Ue Jely) pawesp Ji ‘UOIOJ JO 8INsop ke joafel 0} 10Ae|N 8y} 0} UBAIB @q pINOYs UOHBIOSI] =
“HOHOWN
otj}-je-o4nsojo-jsenbe:-61 1HBH-e-oAeH-Jou-PIREYS-HONOH-OY-Ho-teNedsApeaite-sey-oumiogqrion-y =
— UOIO JO 8INs0[D, uonnisuo) 8y} Jo L1'g asneln (g)=)

(POpPUSIE) “HORep-OAjtBISERS-B-to-eods-o 4bH-e-oney-PiRoYSIeOpHOSeS By 1
“uenotHEHBHO-OY}HO-HoA0-OH-O}-Alder-01 14BH-B-pue-(Sejnuit-g}HOpUeoes-pUE(Selntitie)
OAOI-BH}- O POTOHISOO6-PIROM SIHOIPHOLI-HOPUR-POMOIE-50Ho00ds-OY+—HeoNTetBrO oy to
oe|d-oXer-PIROYS-O1BGOP-O4}- SO SHUSIPUOHIY-OH} | HOHOI BARUEISGRS-OHI-to-8oe|d-el Pinoys
9126OP- ] PUE-UOHON-OAUBISERS-OH}-Otie98e-PiRoMI-Pojdesse-SHuetpuswe-Ot-—todn-pejoa
O-PIROYS-JHOPHOY Ot —Piemiol 1RSI JHOtHPUSL Y- UE-BUH}-OH} 18008 e-O3el-PINeHS-d1eqep-ONf
—Aidod-orybrita)

(pansind JoU) “*£-0SNel)-01 POASH-0G-PIRCYS-OSALID 29 =

“@A0(e | uolepuswiwooal yym ajqeolidde aq 1ebuol ou pjnom 8snepo [Ny 8yl =

‘uonow ayj Jo Buiuesw sy} uo yoedw ue
aABL 10U PIP YoIym ‘siseq [eonewiuelh 10 [enjoe) Uo UOIJOW B puswe 0} uolaidsip 8y} JoAey oAb 0] =

~ uoiNIIsuoY 8y} Jo /g asne| (9)

‘sigyeads 10)j1ouno) Jayjo
||l pUB SIOPU0Yag 10} SSINUILL £ PUB SIBAO 10} S8NUIW G 0} PadNpal aq SIo||IvunoY (e 1o} awn Bunjeads sy (g)

‘(Aepu4) Aep Buimoljoy ay) uoouz | Aq sjuesissy [eonljod pue s spea dnolo
|2ONIJO4 O} SjUSWIPUSLLE PIjEA 8y} Ajjeo1uoijosje 81enoalio o) JaoyjQ Buuojuopy ‘Bunesw ay) 81ojeq Aepsiny] ay)
Uo uoouz| Aq 1010 BuLIOHUO 8} 0} paIlIgNS 8¢ pInoys sjuswpuawe ‘Aepuopy 1o} pajnpayos ale sbuneaw
[IoUNoY J| "sAep Buppom Jjey pue Z AQ pasealoul 8q SUO)OW O} SjUSWPUSWE 10} duljpesp uoissiugns ays jey] (v)

So|Ny 2INpad0id [IoUN0) — SUOROW )

‘posibe sem BUIMO||0) Y} PUB SUOINO 10} S8|NY 8INPad0Id [IDUN0D Y} JO uoISSNOSIp e pey Aued Bunjom ay| |

‘uoljesapisuo? jo Aypom

19pisuod Aued Bupjiopn
Jeuon}ipsuo) ayj 1o
Aunniag pue malABAQ
‘190140 Buliojiuop
ay) jey) sjuawpuawe
jeuonn}ipsuod

a|qissod Jayl0 ‘9

800Z Aienuep Y}/ Uuo Jauigen 0} paliajal |Iouno) wolj uoljol ayj jo Jed se sjuswpuawe
jeuonn}iysuod ajgissod Jayjo 0} uoije|al ul suoljepuawwoddy Aled Bupopn [euonniijsuo)

Z Xipuaddyy




tion

should be given to-the-Mayor to-all
{G)(E) Motions would normally be considered in the order they had been received but at the discretign of the
Mayor (in conjunction with the Group Whips) this order could be varied.

2. Public Speaking at Planning
(A) That the Public Speaking Protocol be varied to allow the Chair discretion to allow the reallocation of
speakers’ places where a registered speaker fails to attend the Planning Committee meeting.

(B) That the Public Speaking Protocol is varied to extend the particular Ward Councillor's notification of
registration to speak, to the start of the meeting.

In-favour

e-hamed

-that

@h ) __That-these-substitution—rules—weuld-need-to-be-rigorously-enforced-due-to-the-risk-of mﬁmmm_ of
-seen-to-befully-competent:_(not pursued)

34. Opposition Group Business - _
(A) To include an Item ‘Opposition Group Business’ as a standing item on the Agenda for the Opposition Group
Business, which could include Opposition motions.

(B) Time limit of 10 minutes is allocated to the item. The meetings would consider business from only one
opposition group per meeting based on the political proportionality. Proportionality would apply over the life
of the Council and be reviewed after each election including bi-elections. Currently the proportionality
equates to one meeting for Labour Group for every three meetings to the Conservatives.

ff/constitution/constitutional working party/reports/appendix 2 Other amendments /4




¢ sjusLwpuswe Jayl0 Z xipuaddesuodaiiyed Bunpom [BUORMSUOUONMISUOD/Y

BUISIOA\ OU) O) Peniugns oq piNom UdIUym ‘sa|ny aIinpadold joesjuo) auj 0} palinbal alem sjuswpusuie Jouly
3|y aInNpadoid joenuoy ||

| "pasn uaaq sey uonebsjep siy) sieym aapiwwo) Buluueld ayy 0} podas Jusnbasgns pue
syuasuod Bulppng pajsi) Aouabiawse jo Bunuelb ay) Joj s1eo1O 0} uonebajaq e 104 AJjIqIssod/pasu sy ojul 00| 0|
sjussuo) buipjing pajsiq ‘0L

_ ‘posn uaaq pey uonebajap
sIy} aseym sspiwwoy Buluueld 8yy o} spew aq o} yodas juanbasqns pue sieoyo Aq sQdl Jo uonisod ul
Aouabiawie ay) mojje 0] Se 0S papuswe ag 0] paau SI9pIO UOIBAISSSId 8al] 0} uoljeal Ul sieoyjO o} suonebajed

SioMOd pajebajeq — (SOd1) Si1epl( UOijeAlasald 99l] '6

"9apIWWOo)
oy} ssalppe 0} Buiysim aay) Joysibal-aid 0} pasnbal aq jJou piNOM SIOJIOUNOY PJEAA Jey) Jesjo spew aq )i jeyl
pue s|ej uonealdde ayy Bale asoym ul, 1IO0UNOD Ysued e Jo dAljejuasaldal B 0) a0ualajal 8y} Se Jej oS ul payued
aq |'} ydesBeied jey; peaibe sem }] j0o0jold Buiuueld sy} 0} xipuaddy 8y} 0} suonelsye Buimolo) ayy peaiby

|o20joid Buluue|d ‘g

‘Bun@aw ay} Jo uels ay) 0} Joud Jiey) ay) wiojul 0} pasu Ajuo pjnom sbunesw

JeuIqe) e yeads 0} Bulysim siopouno) 1ey) £z ydelbeled juswuianos uadQ 10} sauljeping ayy jo j0adsal
Ul JusWLIBA0S) uad() 10} SaUIjEPING Y} PUB SB|NY [EINPAJ0I4 UOBLLIOU| 0} SS800Y 8y} O} suoljelslje ay} peaiby
jouiqed) je bupjeadg siojjidunoy J

" UONO JO S@010N, W8y ay) a10jeq a@oe|d aye) 0} epuaby ay} uo palapioal aq wa)l Aouabin Jo siapep,
epuaby [Iouno) 19pi0-ay 9

"0} pasaype Apois aq pinom wesAs Jyby| oyjely eyl jeys pue 200z Aey ul [ouno)
j0 Buneay 181y 8y} woly Jaquey) 1ouno) ey} ul weysAs jybl oiely ayl Jo asn 8y} sepnjoul uoinisSuo) ay |
Jaquiey) 1ouno) ul waysAg Jybiq oigen] jo asn ‘g

"wiayl siyy uo Bupjeads woly papn|oxa aq pINoys a1|qnd ayj Jo siequisy ()

sBuneaw Areuipio 03 Aidde Ajuo pjnoys wey ay] (q)

(Sdnodb Jagio |jé JO UoIsnjoxa)
| W8l SIY} Japun papiwgns UOROy Aue uo SjusWwpuawe JWgns O} djqe 8q Jou pjnom uopessiuiwpe ayl (D)




| Party. ]

ff/constitution/constitutional working party/reports/appendix 2 Other amendments




APPENDIX 3






Part 2

Articles of the Constitution

Constitution July 2007
2-1






r Race Equality Forum

Objectives

(Part 2 Articles of the Constitution)

DIVERSE COMMUNITIES EQUALITY FORUM

OBJECTIVES

1. The Forum seeks to equalise access by people of all ethnic and cultural backgrounds to
the services and benefits provided by the Council by:

1.1 providing information about those services and how to access them;

1.2 identifying barriers to access to services which adversely affect groups or individuals of
any ethnic, faith or cultural background: and

1.3 promoting two-way dialogue between the Council, its members and senior officers of the
Council and representives of:

1.3.1. ethnic and culturally diverse communities;

Constitution July 2007
2-28




62¢
2002 Ainp uopnysuoo

"dnoJg) BUBJIOAA [BHOWS|N 1SNEJ0|0H 24} UM JUSWBA|OAUI 8AlI0E Ubnoayl
UOBUIWILISSIP pue Jem JO SUOJJeN)IS Ul AEpO} pug jsed oy} Ul Bupelgns JO SSOUSIEME oS|el
0] b8 .JesA (oes 1agojo0) Ul Wnio4 YINOA AQ pa| JJoMm buioddns (bnoiyl Adeioowap
|20 Ul uonedpied abelnodud 0] b SWnio4 JoUlo bujpnjou] sdnoib JaUi0 UIIM JIOM 2§

SHOM SUJlepaju] U0 snooj 0] ‘D@ sdnoib yJom joeloid JO sdnolb-gns ejeiedo | v

3Ui} O] 8N} WO} ABUI WNJ0O 8yl =

"S|iews
dnolb aU] BIA J)0 SUORE}NSUOD "SJUSAS AJIUNLILLOD JNOGE UONEBULIOjU] 818Us pUg paluJojul
0833 0] AIUNHOAd0o 8Uj SI 81oy) 'SSe00E JoulojUl OABY OUM WNIO] oy} JO siequiall Jog T

Sue[d puUe SaRIAROE UMO JiaL) Jnoqe UoeluIojul obueyoxe Ueo SoloUsDe pue sanoib  y¢

SUoRE}NSUOD [euoibal pue [euojeu ojul peej UEd WNJo4 9y) JO slaquawl — ¢¢

SoNIUNWILICO
pPSUOUSW-eA0QE 8y} U0 Sjoedul] 0] Uopejal Ul bulpnjoul SanssS| AISAI9p 9JIAJ8S puUE
A51j0d U0 SaRiunuituod pouoUSLI-SA0GE 9U) JO SOAlEjJUSSaIdal JjNsuod Ued [puno) 8yl g ¢ |

"SUBSUW JOUJO pue SJUSAs 'sbupaall
Jo obuel & (bnoiyj sjeuped S) pue |jounoy) ybnolog UOJAWEBUHON AQ PopIACId S80IAIaS
U0 SM3JA JIoU] pUE J0j Spaau Jiayl ssaJdxa Ued sdnoib AJJUNWWOD pauonjusW-oA0de a4l | ¢

“UOIUM Ul WNJ0-] B BpPIAGJd 01 Z

ANUNWWOD 8y pUE [oUN0,) a4} UesMieq JUsLiabebus pue sdj|SUoNe|a] SAjoo o
J0ddns pue ojoWoJd UoIUM SABM U] BUDHOM UBNOJU; UOISaU0od ANUNWLLOD DUROWoId ¢}

SENUNWW0o ie] €€ 1

TSONIUNUILIOD DUIDJeWIe PUE PoAlE AMeu Z ¢ |



Part 4
Rules of Procedure

Constitution July-2007redline February 2008
4-1






COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULES

CONTENTS

1. Business

2. Minutes

3. Motions

4. Members and Public Question Time

5. Cabinet Member Presentations

6. Rules of Debate

7. Motions Affecting Persons Employed by the Council
8. Behaviour

9. Rescission of Preceding Resolution

10. Voting

11. Voting on Appointments

12. Certain Matters to be Confidential

13. Sealing of Documents

14. Inspection of Documents

15. Inspection of Lands, Premises etc

16. Committees and Sub-committees

17. Substitute Members (Overview and Scrutiny)

18. Powers of Cabinet and Committees

19. Meetings of Cabinet and Committees

20. Attendance at the Cabinet or Committee of the Members of the Council
21. Rules Applicable to Meetings of Cabinet and Committees’
22. Suspension of Rules

23. Interpretation of Rules

24. Interests

Constitution July-2007February 2008 redline
4-2



199 4
SUI[pal 800Z AENIga206Z-ARf uonmpsuo)

‘uonseanb Jo sjegep jJuswwod Jo Joalgns
2y} 8q “I0AB\ U] JO JUSSU0D By} Ypm }daoxa ‘jou jjleys Ge' L' ainy Japun Bulje) ssauisng

sjuswasunouuy s JoAely ¢€°L

UOISSNOSIP Jhoylim Ind pue paAolwl a9 ||BYs Yoiym papuodss pue
pasow Anp (Bupum ul ag jou pasu yoiym) uopow e uo passed uonnjosal e Aq rArAL}

pue uonaIdsIp S JOABI By} e (Al

:paueA aq Aew ssauisnq Jo Jepio Bujobelo) sy ‘Ojaloy)
109[gns ‘Inq ‘padeldsip aq Jou [[eys €'L'L Jo Z'LL ‘L1 Seiny uiyim Buie) sseuisng

ssauisng JO 19pJQ JO UoHeleA Z'L

‘[Iouno) ayj Jo uonuape ayy 03 Buiq 0} saysim Ajjeayoads |1ouno) sy}
JO aABa| UYlIM JoABI @y} yoiym uonuaye juabin Buuinbal sepew Aue yym |esp 03 LL°LL

pue ‘suowwins ay} ul payoads ‘Aue Ji ‘ssauisng Joyjo 0L 1 16F%

.8saujsng dnolg) uoljisoddQ AuUe Ulim |eap 0] 6'L°L

‘G 9|Ny Jopun suojejuasSald Jaquiajy jouige) Aue Jeay o} g'L°L

‘Bunesw jse| ayy wolj Bujujewsas (Aue Ji) ssauisnq jo asodsip 0} b 1 )
JuUBWILIBA0Y uadQ Joj

sauljepINg 8y} YIM 80Uepioode Ul UOHNad € Juasald 0] JO |IounoD) oy} ssaippe
0} 10 jo suonsenb yse 0} olqnd ay3 woly sysenbai 0} Bugejss suondallp aAlb 0) 9Ll

‘Sjusweounouue s JoAep Gl
‘aouepusye-uou 10} saibojode aAlea8l 0} il

‘[ouno)
ay) Jo Bupsaw jse| ey} Jo senujw 8y} ubis pue piodal 1081100 B Se aaoidde 0] gL

‘ssauisng
Jayjo Aue alojeq auop aq 0} @Jnels Aq palinbal ssauisng Aue Yym |eap 03 ol e 8

juesqe aq Jokey Ayndeq pue Johke|y sy 4 opisaid 0} uosied e 8sS00YD 0} Bk

:8q ||leys o|ny sIy} Jo z'} ydeibeled
Aq pepiroid asimiayio se Jdeoxe ‘j1ounon ay) Jo Bunesw Aleas je ssauisng Jo Jepio 8y

ssauisng jJo JepiQ L'}
SS3aNIisng L



1.4 Guillotine
1.4.1 Interruption of the Meeting

If the business of a Council meeting has not been concluded by 10.030 pm, the |
Mayor will draw the attention of the meeting to the time and to this Rule.

1.4.2 Motions and Recommendations not dealt with

In the case of any motions or recommendations on the agenda that have not
been dealt with by 9:2610.00 pm |

1) The Mayor shall put to the vote without further debate any motion or
amendment currently under discussion; and

2) any items remaining to be considered will be put to the meeting without
further discussion and a vote taken on whether the item should be
accepted; rejected, referred; deferred or withdrawn.

2. MINUTES

2.1 The Mayor shall put the question that the minutes of the previous meeting of the Council
be approved as a correct record. No discussion shall take place upon the minutes except
upon their accuracy, and any question of their accuracy shall be raised by motion. If no
such question is raised, or if it is raised, then as soon as it has been disposed of the
Mayor shall sign the minutes.

2.2 Council minutes which would otherwise require to be signed at an Extraordinary meeting
may be signed at the next ordinary meeting.

3. MOTIONS
3.1 Notices of Motion

Notice of every motion (other than a motion which under Rules 3.6 or 6.10 may be moved |
without notice) shall be given in writing, signed by the member or members of the Council
giving the notice, and delivered, faxed or e-mailed not later than S5pm eighttwelve working ‘
calendar days before the day of the meeting to the office of the Chief Executive. Notices
of motion shall be available for inspection at the Chief Executive’s Department.

3.2 Motions to be set out in Summons

There shall be set out in the summons for every meeting of the Council all motions of
which notice has been duly given in the order in which they have been received_(subject
fo 3.3.3 below); unless the member giving such notice intimated in writing, when giving it,

that they propose to move it at some later meeting, or has since withdrawn it in writing.
Constitution July-2007February 2008 redline

4-4



Sv

SUNpal 00T Aemga00g-AAf uopmsuoD

‘98OI B 0} 10 Jauiqe)) 8y} 0} %0eq 80usiajal JO 9ousIaja.l Y HEroe

‘9ouspeoald aABY SUOWIWINS 8Y) Ul payads ssauisng Jo Wajl Ue jey) crveeoe

‘senuIw 8y} Jo Aoeinooe ay; 0} Buie|al suojoul AR )

‘apEW S| uojow ay} yolym je Bupesw ay) Jo Jiey) e Jo jusuyuiodde 1V eFoe

-1901j0U JNOYJIM PaAOW 8q Aew sjuswpuawe pue suoiow Bummojio) oyl

921J0N INOYJIM PBAOIN @ ABW UYdIyMm SJUSWIPUSWY PUB SUOIJONSE

"UOROW Sy JO bujueaw ay)
UG joedull Ue 9ABY joU [[IM UoTuym Jng SJoilo [eonewielb Uuo [enjoe) Joui
081100 0} JopJO Ul UOROW € pUsWE 0] UORSIoSIp au) 9ABY (M JOAB @yl £0¢

*JapISuod
0} |1ouno) |In} jo siamod 8y} ulylIm Jou S Jo me| syl ypm Ajdwoo jou
S90p }i JI uoow e mojiesip o} Jomod 8y} aney [lim JaOYO BuLOUOW Byl  ZZ 0 EZee

"'sapnp Jo s1amod Sey [19Uno)
2y} yoIym 0} uolejal Ul JOjEW BWOS 0} JUBAS|SL 89 [[eys uopow AIBAT™ | Z 0 ot+ee

suoljopy Jo adoogie e

(eIny sy} yum Buihjdwoo jou Juswpuswe
UB MOJ|ESiP O} UONSIOSIP 8U} aABY [IIM JOABI @yl ‘juswpuswe ay} jo Jesodoid ayy
Aq-Bunoott-oyi-o1ej0q BUNaaW [IoUN0,) U] JO ABp oy} 910jq SAEp DUPJOM OM] UOOU ¢ |
AQ 15918| 9] Seruitt-ARIisest Je SAnoJb Ul Jou sijoquiall [enpiAlpul pue SAlyApA anols)
O] pale|nolio aq 0} paau ||IM SUOWIWINS [oUnoy) ayl Ul JNo 188 SUOoiow 0} Sjuswpuawyy

SUONOJN 0} SjUBWPUBWIYS E) e

"801J0U YSal) INOYIM panowl
2Q 10U [|lBYys puB ‘UMBIPUIM SB paleal) aq |Iounos ay} Jo Juasuod Aq pauodisod ssejun
Jleys ¥ jjeyeq 119yy uo Bupgum ul pasuoyine Jaquisw Jayjo swos Aq Jo joaisy) aonou
aneb oym Jagquaw B AQ Jaylle paAOW Jou 8¢ SUOWWNS ay} Ul N0 }8s SNy} uolow e Jj|

PaAO JON Uonow

. "SAIY/y\ ANOJ5) 8] UM UOISSNosIp
BUIMOJjo] Jopio au] AJBA ABW JOAEpy Ui Ing o01J0 S.eAnnoexs Jeigy oW Aq
jdia0a1 JO 91ED 8] AQ SUOLILINS [OUN0,) 8] U0 palaplo oq |iM SUOROW AJJEUION L o ¢

Epueby [1oUno0y UO SUOIO JO JopJ0

€¢



364344 reference or reference back to the Cabinet or to a committee; |

3.6:534.5 appointment of a |
committee or member thereof occasioned by an item mentioned in the
summons to the meeting;

3.6:63.4.6 adoption of minutes |
and recommendations of the Cabinet, committees and sub-committees and any
consequent resolutions;

3.6.73.4.7 __ that leave be given to withdraw a motion; |

3:6-83.4.8 amendments to motions (where notice is not reguired under this title or
where the Mayor's discretion has been exercised under rule 3.5 above);

2.603.4.9  thatthe question be now put; l

3.6.103.4.10 that the Council do now adjourn; I

3:6:143.4.11 suspending Council Procedure Rules where permissible under Rule 22; |

3.6.12 motions under Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended to
exclude the public;

3-6:123.6.13 that a member named under Rule 8 be not further heard; l

3.6.14 giving consent of the Council where the consent of the Council is required by
these Council Procedure Rules; and

3.6.15 excepting any item or minute under Rule 6.13 from formal agreement.

4.__PUBLIC COMMENTS AND PETITIONS

4.1 Restriction on public comments and petitions

Public comments and petitions shall not be taken at the annual Council meeting or other
civic or ceremonial meetings).

4.2 Form and eligibility to make comments or to present a petition

4.2.1 A resident or accredited representative of a business ratepayer of the Borough
may make a comment or present a petition on any matter in relation to which the
Council has powers.

Constitution July-20807February 2008 redline
4-6



F

| BUIPaI B00¢ AMENGa32002-ARP UORNINSUOD

‘}1 J1 uonsanb e josfel siepea
dnol9 pue 8ANOSX3 JBIYD SU} YUM UOEHNSUOD Ul ABW [IDUNOD Byl 0} JOHDI0S 8yl

suoyseny Jo adoag 7674

"SSOUISNQ JO SWSa) 91JI09ds Uj)im [Bap 0] pa|ed

snuuaa:.u nounoo 19 Jou sbuueew |9|uowajeo 10 JIAD 12 &es—a—*eﬁwwa—em—eieﬂﬁ\

ei—.xou Sunaam ||ounoo |enuue an, 1 uexe; oq 1ou lleus eLuu uoqsenb o1lqNd pue JQQLUGW

o] uoRSANY UO UONOLYSAY | G

JIL NOILSIND 2119Nd ANV ¥3GW3IN S

"IPUN0Y) BY} posSaJppPe Ajjuadal JO AjSNOIASId JOU Jajid eAEy OUMm a)jdoad
JO INOAE] U] Jopio 8y} AJeA 0] UOReIdSIp oU) OABY ||eys JOAB)Y o] JoAeMOol ‘Joyeads
301 JO uonensibal au) Jo JopJo Ul SJUSLIIOD Usy) pue Jsiij Uaye) aq Jm suonied AjjeuiioN

Suoljilad pue sjusallilio) JO JPpl0 G ¥

PUN0Y pue Jjeuonnad augy
0} puodsal pue uodn joe 0] JIey) @epIWlio) JO Jop|oH Olj0i0d jeulqes) ejendoldde ag)
O] peliajel puess |IM )1 JOABJ oU; AqQ pojdedde pue pejueseld Ueeq Sey uonned e eouQ

S9)ILULLOY B 10 jJaulqes O} UOilled € JO aouaiajoy v v

‘Bunaall [jIounoy) ajeledss e 0} Way oy} Jajel
0] POMOJ|E a4 |IM [Iounoy) U JO JUSSUOD 9y} UJIM JOABY oy} Jopew ay) Uiim |esp
0] JUSIINsUl JOAB)y Ul JO UOIUIGO 8y} U] o1e 9A0JE ¢ € ¥ PUE | © ¥ Sojnd UIGjim
suonejuesaldal Jljgnd aJoUym pUE Jseiejul oljqnd |enuejsgns Sey Way) Ue @8Up) S . F

" SUOROJ JO S@ORON, Jepun
UONOW € 0] jeads 0} bulasibal JO sajnJ [elNpad0oid osoy] Japun uojsenb e jlugns
0} bulAjdde wol Jljgnd ay) JO Jogquieall awes a4} edlpniaid jJou [|leys uoisiAocid
SIj] ‘uonped e juesaid 0] JO SUOOW buipnxe Nq epuabe oy uo wey Aue
U0 Sjualiuiod ayew 0] [2jo] Ul Sajnuill 9aiy) oAey |iM oljgnd oy} 1o JequielW Uoeg g o ¥

pieay
Bueq sieyeads Jounn] pue ewj Jeyun] sjuell 'siepew Jo Jopew € ul jseJajul
J1I[qnd oy} "JOAB Sy JO UOIUIdo a4 Ul JI 1d80Xe Sejnuild AU} Peooxa AJJeuIpJo
70U |I/M Uaye} oq ||leys suonned pue Sjuswiluod odngnd Uoigm buunp awn 84l L e v

BWIL UonNNad PUE SIUSWIIOY J1jand Jo IbUs1 ©F

TUBWIUIBA0S) Uad() 10] Seuleping
34} Ul N0 j8s Se jyeads 0] Jojsibal O] poau 8] oAes paJinbel S| pajuasaid
8q 0] uonpad B JO 'epew ag 0] JUeWod € JO aJmeu 8uyj Jo @onou Joud ON ¢ ¢




o is not about a matter for which the local authority has a responsibility or which
affects the borough;

o is defamatory, frivolous or offensive;

e is repetitious;

° is substantially the same as a question which has been put at a meeting of the
Council in the past six months;

B requires the disclosure of confidential or exempt information;

. concerns a planning or licensing application;

° raises a grievance for which there are other established processes for resolution;
or,

® relates to an investigation (whether completed or not) by, or ruling of, the

Standards Board for England, the Standards Committee or the Adjudication Panel,
in so far as those comments relate to the behaviour or conduct of an individual |
member or members;

- does not relate to the work of the person to whom the question is addressed.

435.3 Form and Eligibility to ask Questions

45.3.1 A member may ask questions on any matter in relation to which the Council
has powers.

45.3.2 A resident or business ratepayer of the borough may ask a maximum of two
written questions at each meeting (limited to 50 words) on any matter in
relation to which the Council has powers.

45.3.3 Each question from the public must provide the name and address of the
questioner and name the Cabinet member/committee chair to whom the
question should be put.

54.4 Deadlines

54.4.1 An application for a question to be considered will be submitted in writing and
delivered, faxed or e-mailed to Meeting Services no later than 10.00 am seven

calendarfive-clearworking days before the day of the Council meeting.

54.4.2 The date and time of receipt of such requests will be recorded in a book kept for
.that purpose and a copy of the question will immediately be sent to the Mayor
and the member to whom it is to be put. Rejected questions will include
reasons for rejection.

54.5 Length-of Public QuestionTime

Constitution July-2007February 2008 redline
4-8




6v
| BUNpal 800¢ Aeniqad002-Ahf UonNMISUoD
"UOISSNOSIP JNOYJIM UO PBJOA
Qg |IM uolOW B Uyons ‘papuodss aouQ "edpIuWod-gns Jo seplwwod djeudoidde su)
10 J8UIge) By} 0] paliajal aq uonsanb e Aq pasiel Jojjew e jey} aAow Aew Jaquew Aue
Ing ‘uogsanb Aue uo ade|d a)ej [|IM UOISSNISIP OU ‘@SIMIBY]0 SapIoap JOABI au} SSajun

‘ 293310 B 10 Jauiges ay} 03 uolisanp Jo adualajay 0+6°SY

| ‘BUn@all [IDUN0Y) aU] JO SAED DUDIOM USASS UILIIM JaMsUe Usjium B AQ Uim jjeap aq |Im
‘ind 8g 0} Sem }| WOyM 0] Jaguiaw |y} JO SOUBPUS)E-UOU B} JO 8SNedaq JO awli JO Yoe|
JO @sneodaq Jayye ‘ewyp uonsanb oygnd Buunp yym jjeep aq jouued yoym uopsenb Auy

' slamsuy USHIIM 86°Ch

‘uopsenb Jagqwaw Jo 21gnd
e 0} puodsal 0} aulosp Aew Jieyd ajeudoidde 10 1opjoH Olj0I0d ‘JopeaT sy °
1o ‘uopeolgnd jey;
0} 90U8l9j8. B [1DUN0Y 8y} JO uonedlgnd e Ul paulejuod S| UOBUWLIOJUI PaIISep 8y} aJaym—
JO Jamsue |elo Joalip e °

jo-uHeoy-oe-Aewiaq ABW JNg WJO) UBRLIM Ul 9g AJJlensn [|iM Jamsue uy
Jamsuy Jo wio4 /8'Gy

"9AOQe Z G |y ul spunolb
oy} Jo Aue uo uopsenb Aiejuswsiddns e josafel Aew JoAey ayl -Ajdes ayy Jo uopsanb
jeuibuo ayj jo 1no Apoaap esue jsnw uonsenb Arejusweiddns vy "uonsenb jeuibuo say
10 siy 0y paldas sey oym Jaquaw ayj o} adijou noyym uonsanb Arejuswsiddns suo ynd
os|e JoAel\ 8y Jo uonalosip auy Je Aew uosiad ul uonsenb e nd sey oym Jsuonsenb vy

uonsanp jejuswejddng 592Gy

‘yiim jjesp eq
10U |Im uonsanb ay) jey) ‘Jeuonsenb sy} 1o souasge ay) Ul ‘apiosp 1o uaAb oq
Jim Aidal ualm e Jey) aleoipul ‘Jeyaq s Jauonsanb ay) uo uonsenb ay} yse Aew
JoAe| 8y ‘jleysaq a9y} uo uonsanb sy} ind 0} J0Ae 8yl yse Aew Asyj ‘yussaid
aQq 0] 9|qeun S| uonsanb uspLM B papiwgns sey oym Jsuonsanb e j| “eopou sy
ul paweu Jaquiaw ay} 0} uonsanb ay} ind 0} Jauonsanb ay} syAUl [Im JOAB Byl Z'Ce'Cy

'ssaud ay} pue olignd 8y} JO SiaquiaWw 10} a|gejieAe 84 [jeys sa1doo
pue Bupsaw 8y} je (Jewio} s|geyns B ul) pPaJeINdIID aq ||leys ‘Siamsue Uapum
yim Jayjebo) ‘Bupesw suj Je yim jjesp oq o} suoisenb sy |je Jo seido) 1'9G' Sy

Bunes|y ayj je uopsany ayj bupisy 59y

Syttt - Sy USty il Otdil Sty o UoiSusP{eUe 16 antti-611epioti-8gjotjeys
HSoRUHHART-DO0oXa 10 UH1BHSHONB 0GB YSSHORSORb-oHaRa-UotgM BULIRB-SWROY+




54.140 Order of Questions answered

54.140.1 questions shall be dealt with in the order in which they are received, subject to
45.2 abovebelow;

54.140.2 questions from Councillors will be considered first, in the order they are
received and questions from members of the public will be considered next in
the order they are received;

54.140.3 the Mayor will have the discretion to allow questions from members of the
public to be considered first and will have the discretion to rearrange the order
of presentation of questions to ensure that there is a proper balance between
member and public questions.

45121 Question-Time-GuilletineLength of Question Time

@)

5.11.1  The time during which public guestions shall be taken shall not exceed thirty
minutes. It shall not be in order to move for an extension of this time limit.
When the time limit has expired, any remaining written replies shall be taken as
read.

5.11.2 Once the time limit is reached the Mayor will announce that fact. Any member or
member of the public speaking must immediately cease speaking and in the case
of a member, sit down.

OPPOSITION GROUP BUSINESS

6.1

This Rule applies where there is a majority amongst members of the Council.

6.2

A Minority Group or [ndividual Member if not part of a group may require, by notice in

6.3

writing, signed or on behalf of the Leader of the Minority Group or Individual Member,
given to the Monitoring Officer not Iater than the latest time for receipt of notices of Motion
for that meeting that any one item of business to be placed on the agenda for any
ordinary meeting of the Council to be treated as Opposition Group Business (for the
avoidance of doubt a maximum of one item shall be allowed under this head).

Opposition Group Business shall not be taken at the annual Council meeting nor at civic

or ceremonial meetings nor at a meeting called to deal with specific items of business

Constitution July-2007February 2008 redling

4-10




Li-¥

SUNPST §00¢ AJeTugadz0ez-Anf uogmisuod

31va3d 40 s3aTNy

(os
S| Xe] [ounod 8y} usym Bunsesw oy} Buipnjoul) ssauisng Jo swdy |eads yym [eap 0}
pajjeo sbuneaw [1puno) o} Jou ‘Buneaw |1PUNo) [enuuy ay) 03 Aidde jou jjeys ¢ ajny siy |

"JOqUIB J8UIgqe) auo Aue 0} 10 ‘Jaquiall auo Aue Aq 10 |ejo} ul Jayle
‘payse aq 0} (suonsanb Jaypny 10) suonsanb Jo Jaquinu ay} Jiwi Aew JoAe 8y} sioquial
usaMIeq SSaulje} Ulejulewl JO/pUe Jiwi| SSINUILL SAl-AHORASH-Hey oy} 0} deay 0} Japio u|

‘suopsenb Joj aonou Joud 10j Juswsiinbal ou s| 819y}
pue yse Aew siaquiaw suoisanb JO Jaquinu 8y} Uo JiWil OU SI a18y} Mojaq #'G a|ny 0}
109lgng "} 0} Buejal suopsenb yse Aew siequeaw uopejuasald ayj Jo uonsjdwos uodn

"9s10u09 jdoy 8q p|noys 1l pue ‘Bunssw 8y} Jo
HE}S 8y} 210jaq SI0||1DUNOY ||B 0} PajeNdII0 8q pINoyYs I apew s| uofejuasaid uspum e J|
"UONBINP Ul SB)NUIW 931y} PE8IXa Jou pinoys uonejuasald |eqlan ay) jJusae Aue ul jnq omy
@y} JO uoneuIquod e 10 Ajjleqiaa Jo Bunum ul Jaype pajussald aq Aew suonejuasaid yong

'suolsanb way) yse 0} 9|ge aq ||IM SI0j|Iounod yoiym uodn pue soljopiod aaoadsal Jioyy
0} Bunejal suonejussald piemio) Ind 0} 8|ge aq ||IIM JoUIge) By} JO siagquew yoiym Buunp
sbuesw [1DUNOD JB pamojle aq |[IM iney-ue-itey sajnulll aAll-Auol o) dn jo poued vy

SNOILVLINISTd ¥3gN3IN LINIGVD

MOJeq 7/ SejnJ ) UIIM S0UEPIOJJE Ul POMO||e
3q M peay siU] Jopun SUONoOW O] SUONEJS}je Jgnop JO SOUEPIOAE oLl Jo4 o
"Jopuooag oyj pue uonesiulupy
8} Jesodold ou) . Joplo DUmo|o} a4} U] uaye] oq ||eys UoIym Uuonow
Jons AUE U0 'sejnulll 881U} DUIABY Uoee 'sieyeads oaly) AJuo &g ||eys eiay] o
Sjuswpuswe
10 ‘Bunjeads ongnd

719

T0U o [Jeys aJay] 'wayl SIy) Jepun papiugns suoiow UoRIsodd() AUe Jo joedsel U)

"UMOP JIS pue
8Sea0 jshw bupjeads Jequiall AUy J0e} Jey] eoUunouue |[iM JOAB\ oUj peyoeal s Jiui|

L9

SWI} ey} 80U UONeINp Sejnulll Us) 0} pejonIsael aq ||eys sseuisng dnols uonisoddo

"$SauIsnq AJJOId UONISOJdo SE pelean

99

8q 0] S| Ssausng JO Wajl (AUE Ji) YOIUM EpUsbE ay) Uo Sjedipul |[eus Sa0iAleg DUnesiy

IOUN0Y) 8y} JO bujeew [eNUUE JSE| 84 90Uls polad ayj Ul uonejussaidal
[euoipodoid Siequiapy |enpialpu] JO Sdnolb @soy; JO oZis oAjejel oy} sjoojjel
AHIE] EpuUabe |jounoy) o} OJu0 PejdedJessadnou Jons JO SIBeys siequiall [enpiAlpul Jo
§,dnoJ5 AJOUI UoBa 8]qissod Se Jej 0S Jey] ainsua 0] JodJO DUNOJIUO) o3 Aq pajeoo|e

g9

3g |M bupeaw [ouno) AJBUIpIoO yoee Je ssauisng dnols) Uonpisodd() Jo UOReoo||e oyl

¥o



Motions and Amendments

A motion or amendment shall not be discussed unless it has been proposed and
seconded, and (unless notice has already been given in accordance with Rule 3) it shall,
if required by the Mayor, be put in writing and handed to the Mayor before it is further
discussed or put to the Meeting.

Seconder's Speech

A Councillor when seconding a motion or amendment may, if they then declare an
intention to do so, reserve their speech until a later period of the debate provided that
such reservation shall not be necessary in connection with the formal adoption of a
minute or a recommendation of the Cabinet or a committee.

Only one Councillor to Stand at a Time

A Councillor when speaking shall stand and address the Mayor. If two or more
Councillors rise, the Mayor shall call on one to speak; the other or others shall then sit.
While a member is speaking the other members shall remain seated, unless rising to a
point of order or in personal explanation.

Content and Length of Speeches

7.4.1——aA Councillor shall direct their speech to the question under discussion or to a
personal explanation or to a point of order. No moving or seconding speech
shall exceed fiveten minutes and no other speech shall exceed threefive
minutes, except by the consent of the Council;

7.4.2 -at meetings called for particular purposes including that for the Budget the time
limit for moving and seconding speeches will be determined by the Mayor in
conjunction with the Group Whips at the Pre-Council meeting.

When a Councillor May Speak Again

A Councillor who has spoken on any motion shall not speak again whilst it is the subject
of debate, except:

6:56-17.5.1 to speak once on an amendment moved by another Councillor;

71.52 852 if the motion has
been amended since they last spoke, to move or speak on a further
' amendment;

6-5.27.5.3 if their first speech was on an amendment moved by another Councillor, to
speak on the main issue, whether or not the amendment on which they
spoke previously was carried;

7.54 8.5-4in exercise of a right of reply given by Rules 6.9 or 6.11;

Constitution July-2007February 2008 redline

4-12




el-¥
auipal g00g MEMGaJZ06z-ARr uopmisuo)

| UoNO 0} uoneIdY L'9L

{uonow papuswWe Jelj] JO 1oA0UI U] YIiMm a4 [[eys Ssjuslpualie
18UyNn] AUB 0} AjdeJ Jo JUybld ey} 'uojow pepuslie 8y} Sewooaq pue uodn
PaJOA S| JUSWUPUSWE UE J| 'Jqnop JO S0UEPIOAE 8U) J0)) JOABN aU} Aq pojoo|as
Si9yeads oaly] pue UOHoUl [eulbllo U] JO JoAOW oy} pue juewpusalie ayj Jo
Japuooes pue Jasodold oy WoJ] 84 |IM PoMOjJe &4 |IM Jey] seyoaads Ajuo a4l 29/

[ "PaAOW 8 AW Juswipuswe Jayuny
Aue yoiym uodn uonow oy} swodeq |jeys pue uopow [euibuo oy} jo eoeid
2y} 9ye) |jleys pepuawe Se uojow 8y} ‘palled ag juswpuswe ue j -uopow
jeuibuo sy} uo pasow oq Aew Sjuswpuswe JBYJ0 ‘}SO| 8q juswpuswe ue j|

"§S8UISN( S,|IoUNoY 8y} Jo }onpuod Jedoid
2y} 8jej|ioe) pinom asinod siy) jey} jsebbns saouejswinold JI (U0 PajoA jou
1Inq) Jayjebo) passnosip aq 0} SjuswpuaLle alow J0 om] Juuad Aew JoAep 8yl

‘JO pasodsip
ue@9aq Sy UOISSNISIP JOpUN Juswpuswe ay} SSajun paAoW ag ||eys juswpuswie
Jaypny ou pue swi B }Je passnosip pue paAow ag Aew juswpuawe auo AjuQ

‘BUiueaw pue juajul Syl Joj|E O} Se
0S 1] BulLe}|E A[[EuBIsgns asimiaylo Jo [Iounos) 8y} ai0jeq uonow ayy bupebeu
10 108440 8} 9ABY JOU ||BYS SPIOM JO UOHIPPE JO UORJasU] ‘UOISSIWO Yyons Ing

SpIOMm

| ppe 1o pesul 0 vo'e TG

'SJ2Yjo ppe Jo uasul pue

‘ SPIOM N0 9ABY| O} eL9.lToe
| {SpIom N0 8Ae8| 0} c99C1l9.
uonelapIsuod
-] JO UONEISPISUOD JBYNN] 1O} S3JIWIWOD B JO Jauige) sy} 0} ajeqap
| jo pslgns e Jsjel 0} b LOLT98

\ -:Jay}le 9q ||leys pue UojoW 8y} 0} JUBASIB) @4 ||BYS JusWpuswe uy 19/

| SUOJJOJN 0} SjudWpUAWY 9'/9

1
‘uoleue|dxa
| |euosiad e jo Aem Aq 8¢ L'G'l9

| pue ‘18pJo Jo juiod e uo 090G /89



A member may with the consent of the Council, which consent, if given, shall be signified
without discussion:

6-7-17.7.1.alter a motion of which they have given notice; or
772 672 with the consent of

the seconder also alter a motion which they have moved if (in either case) the
alteration is one which could be made as an amendment thereto.

76.8 Withdrawal of Motion (once moved or seconded)

A motion or amendment may be withdrawn by the mover with the consent of the
seconder and of the Council, which consent, if given, shall be signified without
discussion, and no other Councillor may speak upon it after the mover has asked
permission for its withdrawal, unless such permission shall have been refused.

67.9 Right of Reply

The mover of a motion has a right to reply at the close of the debate on the motion
immediately before it is put to the vote except where a motion is moved under Rule 6.11
hereof. If an amendment is moved the mover of the original motion shall (so long as it is
unamended) separately on each amendment proposed have a right of reply at the close
of the debate on the amendment and shall not otherwise speak on the amendment. The
mover of an amendment shall have no right of reply to the debate on the amendment but
if the amendment is carried, shall have the right of reply to any further debate on the
original motion as amended in place of the mover of the original motion.

76.10 Motions which may be Moved during Debate
When a motion is under debate no other motion shall be moved except the following:

6-40-47.10.1 to amend the motion
(except where notice is required to be given);

7.10.2 86402 to adjourn the
meeting;

6-140-27.10.3 that the question be
now put;

7.104 '61404 that the member be

not further heard;

6-10.57.10.5 by the Mayor under
Rule 8.2 that the member do leave the meeting;

Constitution July-2007February 2008 redline
4-14



St~
aUi[pal 8002 AenIqa70Gz-ARF uonmisuc)

uositad Aue Jo }onpuod 8y} 0} Se Jo ‘9JIAI8S JO suoiipuod Jo uoisuad ‘Alejes ‘|essiwsip
‘uonowoid ‘yuswjuiodde ayy o} se |puno) ay} jo Bupesw e e sosue uopsanb Aue j|

TIONNOD FHL A8 AIA0TdINT SNOSHId ONILOFA4V SNOILOW 28

Jualis a4 [[eys [ouno) ay}
pue pajess aq ||eys Buipue)s usy) Jaquiew e ojeqep e Buunp sesu JOAB dU} JBABUBYAA

JoAepy ey} Joj 1oadsey €179

"uoissnasip 0} uado aq jou ||eys uoneue|dxa
jeuosiad e Jo Ayqissiwpe oy} Jo juiod [esnpedoid e uo Jokepy oYy jo Bulni eyl

‘poojsiapunsiw usaq aney o} Jeadde Aew yoiym ayeqep juasaid sy
ul Jaquiaw 8y} Aq yooads oo} e Jo Jed [eusiewl awos 0} pauyuod aq [jeys uoneue|dxs
jeuosiad y "u8N0Ig USSQ SBY }I SISPISUOD Jaguiawl 8y} ydiym ul Aem ayj pue uoisiaoid
Aioynels 1o any ayj Ajnads |leys Jaqueaw ay} pue ‘uoisircid Alojnjels e Jo sajny 8say)
J0 auo Jo yoeauq pabsjje ue 0} Ajuo ajefal jjeys juiod [einpacold ¥ "UYIMYHo} pieay aq 0}
papiue ag |jeys pue uoieuejdxa jeuosiad ul Jo juiod jeinpadoid B uo asu Aew Jaquisul

sjulod [einpeasoid rANE:]

"Juswiuinolpe sy} Uuo SaNUIW Al UBY} SJ0W
Jou Joj Yeads o} Jybil 8y} uogow [euibuo ayj Jo JeAow ay} Buinlb isle 8joA ay} 0}
uonow juswuinofpe sy} 1nd jjeys J0Aepy ey :Bugesw sy uinolpe 0} UoOW B U0 ZE L1 /8

TUOISSNOSIP JoUUN] JNOGIIM [[B] [leUs I passSnasIp AfUaioins uaaq
JOU Sey UoIUIdo S_JOAB) 8y} Ul Ihg pepuooes pue Jnd s | |} Z Jopun UOOW €3] 2 b1 Z

‘TGONOW ayj 9]0A auj 0] Ind [IM JOABH
3U) Uay)] pessed JI pue 8)J0A ayj 0} Jnd MOU 8q uonsenb &) jey; uonow a4 ynd
1SJ1} [IM SUS 1O 8y 'passnosip Ajusoiins Usaq sey Wajl ou) 18y} uojuido ag) Jo S|
IOAE\ @) pue pepuodas si jnd MOU aq Uonsanb ay) Jey; UOROW € LUOHORet-o4}

L'LLZ8

:SMOJ|0} Se paadold |jeys
J0ABI 9@y} ydIiym jo Buipuooas ey} uo ‘,uinolpe mou op |1uNoD ayj leyy, 1o ‘ nd mou aq
uonsenb ayl jey |, ‘Jaquiawl Jayjoue O yosads B JO UOISNOU0D 8y} 1B JUSWIWO0d 1NOYIM
aAOW ABW UOISSNOSIP JOpUN UaY} UOOW B UO ua)ods Jou sey oym iefpunresiaquis) v

_ SUOJO|\ 94nS0|D Li'eZ
‘22 9Ny Jepun sjgissiwiad aisaym sajn
asay} puadsns O} L0V LE0t°8
pue :oignd ay} apnjoxse 0} Z/6| 10V JUSWUIBAQL) |BO0T 8U} JO YO0 L Uonoas
lspun  uopow e g'0L’Le0t¢



g8,

employed by the Council such question shall not be the subject of discussion until the
Council has decided whether or not the power of exclusion of the public under Section
100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972 shall be exercised.

BEHAVIOUR

98.1 Disorderly Conduct

98.2

If at a meeting any member of the Council, in the opinion of the Mayor notified to the
Council, commits misconduct by persistently disregarding the ruling of the Mayor or by
behaving irregularly, improperly or offensively, or by wilfully obstructing the business of
the Council, the Mayor or any other member may move "That the member named be
required to cease the misconduct immediately", and the motion, if seconded, shall be put
and determined without discussion.

Continuing Misconduct by a Named MemberCeouncillor

If the MemberCeunciller named continues the misconduct after a motion under the
foregoing paragraph has been carried, the Mayor shall either:-

a move, "That the CeuneillorMember named do leave the meeting" (in which case
the motion shall be put and determined without seconding or discussion);

a or adjourn the meeting of the Council for such period as the Mayor shall
consider expedient.

98.3 General Disturbance

In the event of general disturbance which in the opinion of the Mayor renders the due
and orderly despatch of business impossible, the Mayor (in addition to any other power
vested in the position) may, without the question being put, adjourn the meeting of the
Council for such period as the Mayor may consider expedient.

98.4 Disturbance by Member of the Public

If a member of the public interrupts the proceedings at any meeting the Mayor shall warn
the person. If they continue the interruption the Mayor shall order their removal from the
Council Chamber. In case of general disturbance in any part of the Chamber open to the
public the Mayor shall order that part to be cleared.

98.5 Recording of Council Proceedings

98.5.1 The taking of photographs of any proceedings, or the use of any means to
enable persons not present to see or hear any proceedings (whether at the time
or later), or the making of any oral report on any proceedings as they take
place, is prohibited without the express consent of the Council having first been
obtained.

Constitution July-2007February 2008 redline

4-16



Lip
SUNpal 00 ABnigad00zAAf uonmisuod

1o ‘Jouigqen ay) 0
‘IouUNoY 8y} o
JO uoln[osal 8y L'vel

SINIWNDO0A 40 ONITVAS Pl

"$S8UISN( S,JIouno)
8y} Jo @sinod Aleuipio 8yl ul onygnd Swooeg A8y} jJUN puB SSBJUN |BIUSPLUOD SB
pajeas) 8 ||eys uoiewlojul [epuapyuo) Jo ydwexg 0} Bugejel syuswnoop pue spodal |1y

TVILNIQIANOD 39 OL S¥ILLVIN NIVLN3D 'ZEL

‘uosiad auo Jo JnoAej Ul UsAIb Si $8J0A Jo Ajuofew e |ijun uo 0S pue ‘ueye]
9JOA Usau) B pue ISi| 8y} 1O ¥onJs aq ||eys Saj0A Jo Jaquinu jses| ayj Buirey uosiad sy} Jo
aweu ayj ‘uosiad auo JO INOAEB} Ul Ajuolew e jou s a1y} UaAIB S8J0A BU) JO PUB ‘|Iounod
ay) Aq pay|iy @q 0} uonisod Aue 10} pajeulwou suosiad OM] UBY) SI0W e a1dy} IYAA

SLININLNIOddY NO ONILOA Ztl

‘paulejsge Jo uoiow ayj Jsurebe
10 10} P8JOA 10||IOUN0Y) ey} Jayleym plodal ||leys sajnuiw sy} ‘(ouno) ey} jo Bupesw
B j& Ud)E] S| 910A B Jaye Ajsjeipawiwl sainbal 0s Jojjiounod) Aue alaypa 210}

‘paplooal aq os|e ||leys Bunoa jou pue juasaid Jojjlouno)
Aue jo aweu ay| ‘9J0A J19y} aAeb Bunoa pue jussaid JOjIOUNOD YOBS MOY MOYUS
0} Se 0s paplodal aq ||eys pue jjeo~jjol Ag g jjeys uonsenb Aue uo Bupoa ay; (ssoejd
Jiayy ui Buisu Aq poddns siayy Ajubis oym si10jjouno) Jayjo noj Aq papoddns pue uexe}
S| 9JOA 9} 810j2q apew) [1DunoY 8y} JO Jaquiaw Aue Jo uonisinbal sy} uo jey} pepiroid
'spuey Jo moys Aq aq |jeys [1ouno) ayj jo sbupeaw je Bunoa Jo apow a8y L'Io1

ONILOA “10}

"99]IWIWIOD B JO Jauigen)
8y} JO uonepuswiwodel B JOo aouensind ul paAow suopow o) Aldde jou jleys o|ny siuy
18U} PepINOI4 "SUluOW XIS JO pouad Jeyun) B ulyim uopow Jepwis e asodoid 0} Jaquaw
Aue 03} uado aq jou (jeys J ‘louno) ayl Aq jo pesodsip ussq sey juswpusie Jo uojow
yons Aue USypA [IOUNOD BU) JO SIOJIOUN0D) SAIOM] ISE9| 1B JO SBWweu 8y} siesq ¢ ajny
J0 @ouensind ul usalb joasey) soou ay} ssejun pasodold oq |jeys ‘syiuow xis Buipssaid
2yl ulypm pejoefes useqg sey yoIym Bauo Se Joays awes ayj 0] juswpuswe Jo uojow
ou pue ‘syuow xis Buipssaid sy} uiyum passed uopnjosal Aue puldsal 0} uojow ON

NOILNTOSIA ONIAIADTd 40 NOISSIOSIN 601

1ealay) Buipiseid uosiad ayy Aq Ajgjelpawiwi sbuipeedold
ay) @Aea| 0} palinbas aq Aew 9Ny siu} 0 uonuaAenuod ul Bunpoe uosied Auy Z'G'86



Q a committee

authorising either expressly or by implication the acceptance of any tendertender, the
purchase, sale, letting or taking of any property, the issue of any stock, the presentation
of any petition, memorial, or address, the making of any tax, rate or contract, or the doing
of any other thing, shall be sufficient authority for sealing any document necessary to
give effect to the resolution.

134.2 The seal of the Council shall be attested by the Chief Executive or by the
Solicitor to the Council (or other Solicitor of at least team leader level who is so
authorised by either the Chief Executive or by the Solicitor to the Council) and an entry of
every sealing of a document shall be made and consecutively numbered in a book kept
for the purpose and shall be initialled by the person who has attested the seal.

145. INSPECTION OF DOCUMENTS

145.1 A Councillor may for the purposes of their duty as such but not otherwise
inspect any document relating to the Cabinet or any committee of the Council and if
copies are available shall on request be supplied for the like purposes with the copies of
such a document.

Provided that a Councillor shall not knowingly inspect and shall not call for a copy of any
document relating to a matter in which they are professionally interested or in which they
have directly or indirectly any pecuniary interest within the meaning of sections 94 to 98
of the Local Government Act 1972 or section 74 of the Transport Act 1985 and that this
Rule shall not preclude the Chief Executive or the Solicitor to the Council from declining
to allow inspection of any document which is or in the event of legal proceedings will be
protected by a privilege arising from the relationship of solicitor and client.

145.2 Subject as otherwise contained in the Constitution all reports or minutes of
the Cabinet or Council committees shall be open for inspection by any Councillor.

166. INSPECTION OF LANDS, PREMISES ETC.

A Councillor shall not issue any order respecting any works which are being carried out
by or on behalf of the Council, or claim by virtue of their membership of the Council -
unless specifically authorised to do so by the Council or a committee - any right to
inspect or to enter upon any lands or premises which the Council occupies or has the
power or duty to inspect or enter.

167. COMMITTEES AND SUB-COMMITTEES

Subject to the overriding provisions of the Local Government Act 2000 and any
regulations made thereunder the Council may at any time disband a committee, alter the
membership of a committee, including the appointment of Chair or Deputy-Chair, appoint
such additional standing or special committees for such purposes as comply with the
said Act and as may appear appropriate and allocate and/or delegate to such additional

Constitution July-2007February 2008 redline

4-18



6L-¥
aUPal 00 METIqad£002-AAf uonmisuoD

‘awi Aue
e jaulge) ay} jo Bupssw |epeads e ||ed Aew [DUNO) 8y} JO Jopean a8yl 2026t

‘JIoUNOY 8y} JO Jjeyaq uo paquosald aq Aew se sajep
4ONS UO pue S8WI} YoNs JB 1ol [[eys 98)iWWod yoes pue jauige) eyl L0286t

S33LLININOD ANV LINIGVD 4O SONILITN "0zt

"ulaJay} JNO }8s SUONOLISa) PuUB SIBjjewWw ay) 0} 108fgns uopnysuo)
siy} Aq papinoid 8SIMIBYIO PUB S9ILILIOD puUe jauigen ay} 0} suonebsjeg Jo sweayos
ay) ul payads |IDUNOD B} JO sUOROUNS U} [PUNOD BU} JO SISO PUB ‘SIBPILLWOD
aAjoadsal ay) ‘1auigqe) ayy 0} pejebsjep aq |leys eiey) Japunaiay} spew suonejnbal e
pue 000Z 1OV JUBWUIBA0S) (8007 8y} Jo sjuswalinbai Aloinels Buipuisao ay) 0} palgng

S33LLIANOD ANV L3INIGVI 40 SH¥3IMOd ‘Bist

920U 8y} Ul payloads awp
10 pouad yons 10} 10 Bunesw ayj Jo sjoym ay} Joj Ajdde jjeys uoneuiwiou v S8zl

"Jo8Y® 9ABY 0} S UOjeUIWOU
ay} youm Joj awy jo pouad Jo (s)bunesw ay) Jo Aep 8y} UO UOOU Z| 840j8q ‘lequiaw
Buneuiwou sy} AQq paubis ‘1ebeuei-SeoiegOHEIOWS(-BHISa0IASS DUIed 0} pajiew
-9 10 paxey ‘paJoAllep 9q ||eys 68} PUE Z'8Zl o|ny Jepun uojeujwou Yy ve'8zlL

"$59550d ABW JaqUia)y DUREUILUOU 8] Jolym JoUed Jey] o} joedsal
(UM smejs Jo uonisod |eioads AUE SWNsSsSe 0) pepjue g Jou ||eys pajeulluou uosied
3(| 'seoye] oy 90ejd asoum Jequis)y ay] Se dnolb [eonljod ewes a9y Jo Joquapy B oq
[[EUsS puUe aepIlilio,) buluue|d a4) JO Joquia]y € oq JoU [eued 2y} JO Jequia) € aq Apealje
10 jaUiqe)) JO JOQUISY € eq JOoU [[eys pajeulluou uosied ay) joued @al] o) JO osed oy} U| ¢ 81

‘'ssossod Aew Jequisw Buneuiwou
2yl yoiym espiuwo) jey) o} padses yum smejs Jo uolisod |eeds Aue awnsse 0}
pajiijue a4 Jou [jeys pajeuiwou uosiad sy ‘seye)} ay soe|d asoym Jaquiaw sy} se dnoib
|eonijod awes ay) Jo Jaquiaw B aq |[BYS pue ‘pawisouod 9ajiwwo) sy} Jo Jequaw e aq
Apeaije Jou jauige) oy} JO Jaquiaw e 8q Jou ||eys pejeulwou uosiad sy 2’821

"@)0A 0} Jamod
uim anisgns e se aode|d Jau/siy Ul @anIwwo) yons jo sbupesw siow 10 auo puspe
0} Mo[eq Z'87L Ny UlIM S0UBPIODOE U] JOJ(IOUNOY Jayjoue Sjeullliou Aewl 9a)iuIwo)
sesoding [BJoUSSD 8y} JO 88RIWWOD JIPNY 8yl ‘9piwwo) Aupgniog ¥ MBIAIBAQ
Aue Jo Jequwieiy B ‘8SIMISUI0 SQUILWLIS)Rp [1ouno) Byl aieym 1deox3 1'821

(I3NVd 3341 3HL ANV (S33LLINWOD S3sodind
TVHINID ANV LIANY ‘ANILNYOS B MIIANIAO) SYIEWIN ILNLLLSENS 871

‘soapIWwWwoo Buiobaioy syl Jo Aue Jo saynp pue siemod oy wody uoiebosap Aue
Buipueisyumiou a|qelisep J0 Alessadeu aq Aew Se sanpnp pue siamod yons S99piuwod



4820.3 The Chair of a committee may call a special meeting of the committee at
any time. A special meeting shall also be called on the requisition of at least a quarter of
the total number of members of the relevant committee delivered in writing to the Chief
Executive but in no case shall less than three members requisition a special meeting.
The summons to the special meeting shall set out the business to be considered thereat.

1920.4 The Chair shall have the power to cancel any meeting if the Chair is of the
opinion there is insufficient business to justify it being held.

4920.5 The quorum of each committee shall be not less than one quarter of the
Council members of such committee.

4820.6 At every meeting the Chair, if present, shall preside. In the absence of the
Chair the Deputy-Chair, if present, shall preside but otherwise the members shall choose
someone of their number to preside, or in the event of it not being possible to reach
agreement, a member chosen by lot shall preside.

14020.7 All questions shall be determined by a majority of votes of the members
present. The votes shall be taken by a show of hands. Where any member so requires
immediately after a vote is taken at any meeting, the minutes shall record whether that
Member voted for or against the motion or abstained.

20211. ATTENDANCE AT THE CABINET OR COMMITTEE OF OTHER MEMBERS OF

THE COUNCIL

22101.1 A member of the Council who has moved a motion which has been
referred to the Cabinet or any committee shall have notice of the meeting of the
committee at which it is proposed to consider the motion. The member shall have the
right to attend the meeting and if so shall have an opportunity of explaining the motion.

2021.2 Members will be permitted to address Cabinet upon any item on that
meeting’s published agenda (except where the Cabinet is required to follow statutory
procedure in relation to that item or exercise thereof would prejudice the Council’s duty to
act quasi judicially). Such addresses on any one item shall not without the specific
consent of Cabinet exceed three minutes and Cabinet will have the discretion to limit the
number of members speaking on any one item. Members will have a right to speak on
any item in order to declare personal and prejudicial interest in that item.

2021.3 Members of the Council who have instigated a call-in to the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee may, for the avoidance of doubt, attend and speak to any such item,
and shall not be constrained by the rights as to public participation contained in the
Guidelines for Open Government annexed to the Access to Information Rules contained
herein, which right shall nevertheless be subject to the normal rules as to the conduct
and procedure at meetings herein contained.

2122, RULES APPLICABLE TO MEETINGS OF' THE CABINET AND COMMITTEES

Constitution July-2007February 2008 redline

4-20



le¥
3UNPal G00¢ AMENIqa£002-Anf LORMINSUOD

“WOOI 9y} WO} MBIPUNM |lBYS BYsS/ay 2Sed Yyolym ul
‘apoo yons Aue Agq paquosald se |eoipnfeid si 3saia)ul 8y} SSajun 9}0A pue Yeads ‘ulewsl
Aew Ing }saJojul Jey} asoosIp YIMyuUoy) |jeys Jepew Aue ul |ed0] JO |euoijeu Jayjaym
1oNpUOd JO 9pO2 jueAdal Aue AQ pauyep jsalejul jeuosiad B SeYy OUM JOJIounod Auy

SLSIYUILNI ‘ST

‘diysisuped ealy ue

‘a0 )) spiepuels ey

-98)IlWOoY JIpny 8y}

{S99ILIWOY AUNIOS PUB MBIAIBAQ aU}

Oooo0oa0o

:BUIMOJ|0) BU} ‘IGNOP JO BOUBPIOAE Y} 10} ‘0S|e pue
S9RIWWOO-gNS B SBPN[OUl 98RILIWOD B O] S9Ny 8say} ul souslsjas Auy Zviee

"JoRJ8y} | 9PIY Ul paulejuod uojnsuo)
8y} Jo sesodind ayj 0} pisebes aney (m uonejaidiajul yong ‘oUNo) ay; jo Bunesw Aue
18 pabuajjieyd ag jou [jeys [1ouno) ay} jo sbuipeadoid Aue 0} se 10 uoNiISuo0y §,|Iouno)
ay) jJo uopeoydde Jo uoponysuocd ayj 0} se JoAely oy} jo Buyni ayl V'vZez

S371NY™ 40 NOILLV.LIddd3LNI ‘veeT

"loUNOY 8y} JO siequisw 8y JO Jequinu
9lo0Uym 8y} Jo Jley ises| Je jusseld aq |jeys ai8y} SSejun 9°¢ 9jNy Jepun 210U JNOUNIM
paAOW 8q JOU |[eYs S8|ny 8inpadoid [Iouno) asay} puadsns 0} uogow v 2tz

‘paAoW S| uoisuadsns ayj alaym Bunsaw
ay) je ssauisng Aue spiebas se e} os pspuadsns aq Aew (£66] suonenbay (sieplO
Buipue}g) senuouINy |B007 By} JO suoisinoid 8y} Jepun apew udaq SABY Udlym paulejuod
leyeupiay se|ny 8inpedold juswAhojdw3z 8y} pue 9'6lgt pue ‘ZloL ‘Z'Z seny
uey} Jayjo) so|ny asay} jo Aue ‘ajny siyl Jo z'Fzz udeibeied o) 10olgng \'€22T

S37Nd 40 NOISN3dSNS ‘€eTT

'sBupesw sapIWIWOD pue Jauige) 0} Ajdde suoneoyipow Alessadsu
Aue yum jjeys Ajeanoedsel Gyg pue 72 €222 ©L ¢} “+6'§2'C palsquinu sajny sy



ACCESS TO INFORMATION PROCEDURE RULES

1. SCOPE

These Rules apply to all meetings of the Council, the Overview and Scrutiny Committee,
Area Partnerships, the Standards, the Audit and the Regulatory committees of the
Council and public meetings of the Cabinet (together called meetings).

2. ADDITIONAL RIGHTS TO INFORMATION

These Rules do not affect any more specific rights to information contained elsewhere in
this Constitution or the law.

3. RIGHTS TO ATTEND MEETINGS

Members of the public may attend all meetings subject only to the exceptions in these
Rules, or as otherwise provided by the law.

4. NOTICES OF MEETING

The Council will give at least five clear days' notice of any meeting by posting details of
the meeting at the Guildhall Northampton (the designated office).

5. ACCESS TO AGENDA AND REPORTS BEFORE THE MEETING
The Council will make copies of the agenda and reports open to the public available for
inspection at the designated office at least five clear days before the meeting. If an item
is added to the agenda later, the revised agenda (where reports are prepared after the
summons has been sent out, the Proper Officer shall make each such report available to
the public as soon as the report is completed and sent to Councillors) will be open to
inspection from the time the item was added to the agenda.

6. SUPPLY OF COPIES

6.1 The Council will supply copies of:
6.1.1 any agenda and reports which are open to public inspection;

6.1.2 any further statements or particulars necessary to indicate the nature of the
. items in the agenda; and

68.1.3 if the Proper Officer thinks fit, copies of any other documents supplied to
Councillors in connection with an item

to any person on payment of a charge for postage and any other costs.

Constitution July-2007February 2008 redline
4-22



7
BUNPal §00g AMENIGe 2002 MAF uonMPSUoD

"sjuswnoop Adoo pue joedsul 0 pue sBunsaw pusye o} olgnd sy} jo syybu
8y} JOo Alewwins B ajNjijSU0D JUBWUIBAOS) uad( J0) SsulepIng 8y} pue sany asayl

J178nd 3HL 40 S1HOR 40 AMVINNNS 6

‘sloded punoibxoeq jo 1si| 9y} UO SJUBWNOOP 8y} JO Yyoes jo Adoo auo Bupssw
ay) JO ajep ay} Ja)e sieaA unoj 10} uopdadsul olgnd Joj S|ge|ieAR ayew [Im [IoUnoD ayl

siaded punoibyorq jJo uonosadsul dlgnd Z'8
“J0SiApe [eaijijod
Aue Jo adiape 8y} ‘spodal Jauige) Jo Jadsal ul pue (0] 9Ny Ul paulyep Se) uolewlojul
|lenguapuuo) 10 jdwex3 9sojosIp Udiym asoy) Jo SyIom paysiignd epnjoul jJou S90p Ing

uodai ayy Buuedaid ul Jusixe |eusjew e 0] UO paljal usaq aAeY yolym Z’L'8

pue paseq s| podal
8y} Jo yed juepodwi ue 1o podal a8y} yoIym uo siepew 10 sjoe) Aue asojosIp 1'1°8

:uojuido 1ayysiy ul
yoiym podal ayy Jo Jepew 109fgns ayy o) Bunejas (sieded punoibyoeq pajed) sjuswinoop
asoy} Jo 1s)| e podas A1oAe ul Ino Jas |m (Lodal ey} Jo uoneniul 8y} Joj ajqisuodsal 1900
181y 10 Joyallg 8y} og ||leys sesodind opioads asayy Joy yoiym) ooy Jedold syl

siaded punoibyoeq joisi1 '8
S¥3dVd ANNOYODMOVE '8
o1qnd sy} 03 uado sem Bunesw ay) usym swayl o} Bujelal spodal 1l

pue Bunesw ay} Joj epusbe sy ]

‘pJooal Juslayod pue Jie} Ajgeuoseal e apiaoid jJou pinom uonodadsul 0}
uado sajnuiw a8y} aseym oygnd sy} o} uado jJou sbuipssooid Aue jo Alewwns e A

‘uonewojul |enguapluo) 1o ydwexg
9s0J0sIp Yolym Jo oygnd ey} 01 uado jou sem Bunesw ayj usym sbuipessoid
JO sanuiw oy} Jo ped Aue Buipnoxe ‘(Jauigen ay) Jjo sbupesw |je Joj ‘suoseal
Unm Jaylebo) ‘ueye} suoIsioap JO spiodal 10) Bupesw sy Jo seynuiw 8yl L

:Bunssw e Jsye sieak xis 10 Buimoj|o) ayj Jo sa1dod a|gejieAe axew ||Mm Iouno) 8yl  L°Z

ONIL33N FHL ¥314V D13 SILNNIA OL SS300V 'L



10.

EXCLUSION OF ACCESS BY THE PUBLIC TO MEETINGS

10.1 Confidential information - requirement to exclude public

10.2

10.3

10.4

The public must be excluded from meetings whenever it is likely in view of the nature of
the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings that Confidential
information (as defined in paragraph 10.3) would be disclosed.

Exempt information - discretion to exclude public
The public may be excluded from meetings whenever it is likely in view of the nature of
the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings that Exempt information
would be disclosed.
Where the meeting will determine any person's civil rights or obligations, or adversely
affect their possessions, Article 6 of the Human Rights Act 1998 establishes a
presumption that the meeting will be held in public unless a private hearing is necessary
for one of the reasons specified in Article 6.
Meaning of Confidential Information
Confidential information means information given to the Council by a Government
Department on terms which forbid its public disclosure or information which cannot be
publicly disclosed by Court Order.
Meaning of Exempt Information
Exempt Information means information falling within the following 45seven categories
(subject to any condition):

Part 1
Information relating to any individual.

Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual.

Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including
the authority holding that information)

Information relating to any consultations or negotiations or contemplated consultations or
negotiations in connection with any labour relations matter arising between the authority
or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or holders under, the authority.

Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be maintained
in legal proceedings.

Constitution July-2007February 2008 redline

4-24



Se-v

aU[|Pal B00¢ AJerigaz00g-ARf uopmisuo)

‘slequiawl Jauq o} s1eo140 1o} s1 asodind 9jos asoym sbBuneew apnjoul Jou seop
wewaldinbai sy Aldde (Aousbun |epads) g ajny 40 (uondeoxs |esouab) G| a|Ny ssajun
LL-1 soIny yum Aldwoo osje jsnw I usy} ‘peplosp aq 0}.S1 }I ydiym Agq ueld plemiod
ay} o} Buipioooe slep ay) Jo sAep gz ulypm ‘Jueseud juelsisse [eonljod B uey} J9Yjo
12010 ue ypm ‘AjaARos||00 uaye) aq 0} uoisioaq A9y e SSROSIP O} Sjeaw Jauigqe) auj |

‘UONINIIISUOD SIUY JO €F ) Sj0IUY Ul paulep se si uoispa Aoy v ‘Aldde (Aouabin |ejoads)
9] 9|ny Jo (uondeaoxe |esouab) gL oNy ssoun LL-| saIny yum Ajldwod osje jsnw ji
usy} uoisioa( Aoyl e 9)E] 0] s}eaw jaulge) ay) §| (salinbais asimIBylo 1X8jU0d By} SS|(uUn
JouIgeD 8y} Jo sespiwwo) Aue Buipnjoul se peas 8q pinoys Sajni 9soy) ul puigen ayj
0] S@OUBJRJeyY) 'JBuIge) 8y} JO SaIWWoD Aue pue jauiqe) ay) o} Aldde $z-z| soiny

13NIgVI 3HL Ol S3TNY 40 NOLLYIITddV

"pasojosip 9q 0} Aj9yl| uoiewoul jo AloBsjed ay) yim Jeyjeboy ,uongeoiignd
10} 10N, paew aq |m spodal yong -olignd 8y} 0} uado aq o3 jou APy Si Buesw
ay} ‘0l |INy YuM asuepliooade Ul ‘yoiym Buunp sweyl 0} 9jejas uoiuido Jay Jo siy ul ydiym
suodai 0} olgnd ayj AQ $S8008 |pnjoxe ABW [IDUNOD 3y ‘W SHUIY) JeduO Jodoid oyl §i

S13¥0d3d 01 J179Nd 3HL A8 SS3DIV 40 NOISNTOXH

‘uonewuoul 8y} Buisosip uj jsalsjul agnd ey sybremino uondwaxe
oy} Buiuleyuiew u; 1sas8ul oliqnd By} ‘OSed ayj JO SedUBISWNAND Byl jje ul ‘se Buol
0s pue JI uoiewojul Jdwex3 si anoge (q) 10 (B) ydeibeied jo anuia Ag Jdwexs Buieq woly
pajuaalid jou si (q) pue ‘eaoqe /-] sydesbesed jo Aue uiyim sjjej () — yoiym uongewloju]

‘2661 suopejnbay [eiouac) Buiuue|d AJUNOY pue uMo] sy}
J0 ¢ uonenbal o} yuensind uoissiwad Buiuueld jjesu juelb Aew Ajuoyine Bujuueid |e00)
ayl yoiym Joj juswdojansp pasodoid 0} selefal i i uonewlojul Jdwax3 jou S| uopewIoju|

‘€661 WY senueyD syl (1) 9861 10V seneioog buipjing ey (8) 8261 — G961 SOV
S9}e100S JUBPINOIL puE [ellsnpul Ul (p) 2661 IOV saiaioog Ajpusid ayy (9) ¥261 PV
sefa0g Alpusti4 8yl (q) 686l 10V saluedwo) ay; (e) ~ sepun paainbau si )l § ydesbesed
1ey} 0 anMIA Ag uonewuojul Jdwaxa jou si aaoqe ¢ ydesbered uyym Buyje; uonewiou)

K42

b

(e)

:uonewoju] Jdwaxg aAoge a3 0) suonesylend

¢ Hed

9o Jo uopnoesoud 1o uopebisaaul
‘uonuaasld a8y} Yjm uonoauuod Ul Usye) aqg 0} Jo uade) uojoe Aue o} Bunejes uonewlou|

‘JuswioeUS AUB Japun Uo)OaJIP JO J8pJO Ue oxeul
0} (q) 10 ‘uosiad e uodn pasodw aie sjuswalinbal Yyoiym JO anuiA AQ JO Japun 050U B
uawnoeus Aue yepun aAlb 0) (B) — sasodoud Ajoyine ay; jeyl sjeaAal Uydiym UojeuLIou)



13. PROCEDURE BEFORE TAKING KEY DECISIONS

Subject to Rule 15 (general exception) and Rule 16 (special urgency), a Key Decision
may not be taken unless:

=} a notice (called here a Forward Plan) has been published in connection with the
matter in question;

a at least three-clearfourteen calendar days have elapsed since the publication
of the Forward Plan; and

a where the decision is to be taken at a meeting of the Cabinet and notice of the
meeting has been given in accordance with Rule 4 (notice of meetings).

14. THE FORWARD PLAN
14.1 Period of Forward Plan

Forward Plans will be prepared by and on behalf of the Leader of the Council to cover a
period of four months, beginning with the first working day of any month. They will be
prepared on a monthly basis and subsequent plans will cover a period beginning with the
first working day of the following month covered in the preceding Plan.

14.2 Contents of Forward Plan

The Forward Plan will contain matters which the Leader of the Council has reason to
believe will be subject of a Key Decision to be taken by the Cabinet, any committee of
the Cabinet, individual members of the Cabinet (if appropriate), officers, Neighbourhood
Partnerships or under joint arrangements in the course of the discharge of an executive
function during the period covered by the Plan. It will describe the following particulars in
so far as the information is available or might reasonably be obtained:

14.2.1 the matter in respect of which a decision is to be made;

14.2.2 where the decision taker is an individual (if so delegated by the Council), his/her
name and title, if any, and where the decision taker is a body, its name and
details of membership;

14.2.3 the date on which, or the period within which, the decision will be taken;

14.2.4 the identity of any principal groups whom the decision taker proposes to consult
' before taking the decision;

14.2.5 the means by which any such consultation is proposed to be undertaken;

14.2.6 the steps any person might take who wishes to make representations to the
Cabinet or decision taker about the matter in respect of which the decision is to
be made, and the date by which those steps must be taken;

Constitution duly-2007February 2008 redline
4-26



LT¥
BUNpa! B00Z MEMGaS£00Z-MAP UONMASUS)

:Jl uaye) aq |ns Aew uoisioap ay} (Aousbin |eoads) g ainy 0} 103lgns usay) ‘ueld
pJemiod 8y} ul papnjoul- usag jou sey uoisioa Aoy e aq 0} ARy SI yoiym Jepew e § L'GlL

NOILd3OX3 TVH3IN3IO 'Sl

‘pepnjoul g jouued
UONJBLLIO)UI |BIIUSPLUOD PUB UB|d PIEMIOL B Ul papNjoul 8q Jou paau uopewloju; Jdwexg

"S9OIYO §,JlouUN0) 3y} je olignd ay; 0} e|qejieae pue paysiignd eq
[IIM UBjd PJEMIOS UoB® UoJym UO Jeak Buimojjo} ay) ul yjuow yoes uo ssiep 8yl 'Syl

pue ejqejieAe
awooaq Asy} se (Aue i) sjuewnoop jo sjejep bBunsenbas o) ainpadoud 8y} g'Evl

‘819X e] UOISIoap 0} PaRIWIQNS 8q ABW SJUBWNOOP JBU0 JBYl L€'l

‘o|qejieAe S|
ue|d piemio- ayj ui pajsi| Juswnoop Aue ‘wolj sjoelixa Jo ‘4o se1dod ‘einsojosip
llay} uo uopouisalr 1o uogiqyosd Aue 0} joofgns ‘yoym WOl Ssaippe By} 9'C vl

‘ueld
pIEMIO- BU} UO SUOISIa(] Ae); 9y} 0] UONE|aI Ul UONBISPISUOD 10} SISYE} UOISIOap
9y} 0} PaRILIGNS SJUSWNOOP B} JO ISI| B UIBJUOD |lIIM UBld PJEMIOS UOED JBey} G'E'vl

'$901440 s,j1PunoY ayj je abieyo jo
281} SINOY 9jqeuoseal Je uoioadsul Jo) 9|ge|iBAR 9] ||IIM UB|d pJemiOd Yyoes 1By} #'€'vl

‘uonealignd sy Buimoyjo} pouad Yjuow Inoy sy}
10} ®pew 8q 0} suoisioaQ A8 8y} JO S|IBJOp UJBJUOD [|IM UBjd PIEMIOS U} By}  £€'p)

'siseq Ajyjuow e uo paledaid aq |Im usye] oq O}
aJe SUOISIOaP Yolym UO siapewl 8y} Jo sieinoiied Bululejuod uejd pilemiod e eyl  zZ'€'vl

‘lounoD 8y}l JO Jleyaq uo ueye) oq 0} ale suoisag AeM eyl  L'EvL

:Bunels ‘ease ayy ul Bupenoso Jadedsmeu
2UO ]SE?| Je Ul 920U e Jeak B souo ysignd |m JeoiQ Jedoid 8yl ‘peaisAod poued
8y} Jo UEe}S 8y} a10joq sAep JEPUS[ED ¢| Jses| Je paysiignd aq isnw uejd piemiod syl €'¥i

‘PesOoosIp
2q ||eus uoueuuo;w jdwex3 JO [eljuapiuOD OU Jey} SABS Wa) jey) Jo sienopied
‘Bupessw ay) wol} papnoxe oq Aew olgnd ay) Jejew Aue 0} uojejal ul aleym  9'Z'vl

pue lianew ayj o} uoneal
Ul UOIlBISPISUCD 10} J8)e] UOISIOSp 8yl 0] paplwgns suawnoop ayj Jo isil e 2'2'vl



16.

17.

171

15.1.1 the decision must be taken by such a date that it is impracticable to defer the
decision until it has been included in the next Forward Plan and until the start of
the first month to which the next Forward Plan relates;

15.1.2 the Proper Officer has informed the Chair of the relevant Overview and Scrutiny
Committee, or if there is no such person, each member of that committee in
writing, by notice, of the matter to which the decision is to be made;

15.1.3 the Proper Officer has made copies of that notice available to the public at the
offices of the Council; and

15.1.4 at least five clear days have elapsed since the Proper Officer complied with
Rules 15.1.1 and 15.1.2.

Where such a decision is taken collectively, it must be taken in public.
SPECIAL URGENCY

If by virtue of the date by which a decision must be taken Rule 15 (general exception)
cannot be followed, then the decision can only be taken if the decision taker (if an
individual possessing delegated authority) or the chair of the body making the decision,
obtains the agreement of the chair of the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee that
the taking of the decision cannot be reasonably deferred. If there is no chair of the
relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee, or if the chair of the relevant Overview and
Scrutiny Committee is unable to act, then the agreement of the Mayor, or in his/her
absence the Deputy Mayor will suffice.

REPORT TO COUNCIL
When the Overview and Scrutiny Committee can require a report

If an Overview and Scrutiny committee thinks that a Key Decision has been taken which
was not:

17.1.1  included in the Forward Plan; or
17.1.2  the subject of the general exception procedure; or

17.1.3 the subject of an agreement with the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee
chair, or the Mayor/Deputy Mayor of the Council under Rule 16; or

17.1.4 ' in accordance with the Council's adopted Budget or Policy Framework

the Committee may require the Cabinet to submit a report to the Council within such
reasonable time as the Committee specifies. The power to require a report rests with the
committee, but is also delegated to the Proper Officer, who shall require such a report on
behalf of the Committee when so requested by the Chairman or any 2 members.
Alternatively, the requirement may be raised by resolution passed at a meeting of the |
relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

Constitution Juhy-2007February 2008 redline

4-28



6Z¥
BUJPSI G00Z AENIGed2002-AHf uonnsuoD

"9e)IWWIOD) JBY) JO SIaquial 38U || U0 PaAISS a4 [[IM S2130U 8} ‘JIByD & eAey
10U SS0P 98RO AUNIOS PUB MBIAIBAQ UB 2I8UA\ "18UIgeD Y] JO slaquiaw
UO PaAJeS S 901I0U SE Wl BlWes 8y} Je ‘SespiWwod AUlnIiog pue MBIAIBAQ
8y} || JO sJleyd 8y} UO PaAles 8q ||Im Jauige) a8y} Jo sbupesw ajeaud Jo 800N L°L°LZ

sJoquiajy @9)IWIWO) AUlINIOS PUB MBIAIBAQ |'LZ

13NIGVD FHL 40 SONILIFN FLVARD LV JONVANILLY 12

‘Aouabin Jo Jejjew e se
22110U JaU0YSs Je pauaAuod si Bueaw ay} ssejun ‘pauocwiwuns ale Aay) yoiym o} Bunesw
e Jo @o5jou sAep Buppom Jead 8l 9AI209) 0} Pajijus aq ||IIMm JauiqeD U} JO SIaqWIB\

13NIEVD 3HL 40 ONILIIN LVARId 40 3OILON  "02

'S9oUBISWNDIID
jeuondaoxa Jayjo 10 S9Ny SINPad0Id 9SaY) JO Z'0L Pue L'0L S9Ny AQ paIaA0d siajewl
asoy} Jo 1adsal ul 1deoxe pue aaes olignd ul play g |pm sbuesw jauiged Ajewlion

SNOISIOZA A3X LON 3V HOIHM S¥3LLVIA Ol ONLLVI3Y SONILIIW LINIGVD 61

‘Bunesw jey; je pajoalal
pue paJapisuocd suondo aAleula)e Aue pue UOISIDap UYoBa J0) SUOSEa) 8y} JO Juawale)s
B 9pn[oul ||Im pJooal 8y "9|qeonoeld se uoos se Buiesw ey} je usye) uoisioap Alaae Jo
piooaJ e aonpoud |m ‘Bunssw ay) je Buipisaid uosiad ay} ‘Jussaid sem Ja2|Jo OU aiaym
‘10 1200 J9dolig 2y ‘e1eaud Jo oygnd ul pjay Jayjaym ‘1ouiqe) ay; jo Bugesw Aue Jayy

SNOISIOZA 40 QJ0D3™ 81

"ue) e} 8Jem SUOISIOBP aSOU) UoIym JO y0adsal ul siapew ay) Jo Alewwins
B pue Us)e} 0S SUOISIO|p JO Joaquuinu 8y} apnjoul |im podal sy “syjuow aaiy) Buipsosid
ay; ut (Aousbin [eioads) gi ajny Ul INO 189S SSOUBISWINOID BY) U] USXe]} SUOISIoap Jauiqed
8y} Uo |1ouno) 8y 0} suodes Ausuenb pepilgns 8g 0} 8SNeD ||IM Japea au) JuaAs Aue u|

suoisioap Aouabun jeioeds uo suodal Auauenp 741

‘uojuido jey} Jo} suoseal ay) ‘uoisia( Loy e
JoU SBeM ] jey) uoluido ey} Jo S| JopeaT au} Ji ‘pue ‘uoisioap ay} Bujew Apoq 10 [enpiAlpul
ay} ‘uoIs8ep ay) Jo sienoned Jno 189S J|IM JIouno) 03 podal syl “jeyl Jeye Bupesw ay)
0} papiwgns aq Aew Hodal 8yl usyl ‘esRILIWOD By} JO UORN|OSal AU} JO ‘900U USRIM
ay; Jo 1dieoal Jo sAep , uiyim sI 1ouUno) ayj Jo Buneaw 1xau 8yl JI ‘JOASMOH ‘[louno)
ay} Jo Bupssw sjgejieAe Xau sy} 0} uoissjugns 1oj yodel e asedaud jm Jduige) syl

l1ouno9 o3 podaa s jauiqed Z'L|



21.1.2 Any member of the Council may attend a meeting of the Cabinet as an
observer without the right to speak or vote, except when a matter in respect of
which they wouid be required to declare a personal and prejudicial interest is to
be discussed in the absence of the public.

21.1.3 Any member of the Council who has exercised the right to call-in and up to two
nominated members of the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee making
a recommendation to the Cabinet arising therefrom may, subject to the Council
Procedure Rules, address the Cabinet thereon and respond thereto

21.2 Officers

21.2.1 The Head of Paid Service, the Chief Finance Officer and the Monitoring Officer
and their nominees are entitled to attend any meeting of the Cabinet. The
Cabinet may not meet unless the Proper Officer has been given reasonable
notice that a meeting is to take place.

21.2.2 A private Cabinet meeting may only take place in the presence of the Proper
Officer or his/her nominee with responsibility for recording and publicising the
decisions.

In all of the above examples, the provisions of Rule 18 (recording and publicising
decisions) will apply.

22. DECISIONS BY INDIVIDUAL MEMBERS OF THE CABINET AND BY OFFICERS
22.1 Reports Intended to be taken into Account

In relation to decisions which are delegated to individual members of the Cabinet where
such an individual member receives a report which he/she intends to take into account in
making any Key Decision, then he/she will not make the decision until at least 5 clear
days after receipt of that report.

22.2 Provision of Copies of Reports to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee

On giving of such a report to an individual decision maker, the person who prepared the
report will give a copy of it to the chair of every relevant the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee as soon as reasonably practicable, and make it publicly available at the same
time.

22.3 Record of Individual Decision

As soon as reasonably practicable after an executive decision has been taken by an
individual member of the Cabinet or a Key Decision has been taken by an officer, he/she
will prepare, or instruct the Proper Officer to prepare, a record of the decision, a
statement of the reasons for it and any alternative options considered and rejected. The
provision of Rules 7 and 8 (inspection of documents after meetings) will also apply to the

Constitution July-2007February 2008 redline
4-30



LE¥

UIPaI B00C AJETIqa£002-AAF UORNIISUOD

(71 ®Iny ©inpad0id [IPUNOY 'J'D) JUSWNJOP Yons
0} aAeY Aew Jaqwaw e yoiym siybu Jayjo Aue apnjoaid jou ||eys ajny SIyl ey} peplaocid

‘J9siApe [eonijod B Jo 80IApe 8y} SUIBJU0D }I  Z'L'¥2

Jo ‘uonewwojul dwex3 Jo seuobejeo
8y} Jo 2 Jo G ‘Z ‘I seuobejeo uiypm Buijes uopewuosul jdwexg SUBUOD JI LLHE

‘sojjdde mojeq
Z'L'pZ 10 L'z 9Ny Jeyne ssajun Bunesw sjeaud e je pajoesuel) Ajsnojaald ssauisng
Aue o} Buneal [eusjewl sulejuod pue (Aue JiI) seapIwwod sy JO Jauigqed auj JO |0JJuod ay)
Japun Jo uolssassod ay} ul 1 ydiym juawinoop Aue joadsul 0} pajijus a4 ||IIM siaquiswl ||y
ssaujsng snoiaald 0} bunejs. jeudjep
SHIGININ ¥O04 SS3OIV 40 SLHOIN TVNOILLIaaY
"(Aue y1) Jesinpe [eopijod e Jo 8OIAPE By}  £'Z°€T

JO {@sI1uinIos 0) pualul Jo Busiugnios

1o Bumelnas aie Ayl UOISIOSP JO UOIOE Ue 0} JUBAS|S) S| UORBWIOUI ey}
$S8|UN ‘UolIBWIOUI [BJUSPLUOY JO JdWaXT SUIBjuUOD ey} Juswnoop e jo yed Aue  z'z'€Z
WO} JJeIp U] S1 1By} Juswnoop Aue  L'Z'€Z
.0} POJIIIUS 8Q JOU ||IM 98I0 AUNIDS pue MaIABAD Uy
spybiy uo Jwi

"JouIgen ay) JO Jaquislu [enpiAlpul ue Ag uaye} uoisioap Aue  Z'L'€Z

10 'seapiuwiod
Aue 1o j8uiqen ay) Jo Bunesw sjeAud 1o ofgnd e je pejoesuel) ssauisng Aue  L°L'e2

0} Bunejal |eusiew SUIBJUOD YIIyM pue S9ajILULIOD S} 10 J2uige)) Sy} JO |0JJu00
10 uolssassod ay} ul SI yoiym uswnoop Aue jo ssaidodo 0} papius aq |Im (SapiWWwoo
-gns Aue Buipnjoul) eapiwwo) AuUinIog pue MaIAIBAQD UB ‘Mojeq Z'SZ diny 03 109fgng

seido) 0} s)ybiry

SLNIWND0A OL SS3JIV FILLININOD ANLLNAUDS ANV MIIAYIAO0

‘Juejsisse [eofijod e WoLy SOIAPE JO UOHBULIOU [BUBPLUOY JO JdWeXT JO 8INsOojos|p
ay} aanbal jou seOp SIY] ‘J19UIgE) Bu) JO SJBqUSW |enpIAlpUl Ag suoisioep Jo Bunew

LV've

ve

et

L'Ee

R4



24.2 Material relating to Key Decisions
All members of the Council will be entitled to inspect any document (except those
available only in draft form) in the possession or under the control of the Cabinet (or its
committees (if any) which relates to any Key Decision unless Rule 24.1.1 or 24.1.2 above
applies.

24.3 Nature of Rights

These rights of a member are additional to any other right he/she may have.

Constitution July-2007February 2008 redline
4-32



ge-¥
sUlpal g0¢ MEnIGad200z- 4R uonmnsuc)

;1ey) pepirold Bunesw
ay] aJ0jaq uofjow e uodn JI ssaippe 0} ajdoad Xis ueyj aJow jou Jo uonendep
B 10 |ENPIAIPUI UB BAI9081 0} 9Aj0sal Juasald uay) siequaw jo Ajuolew e Aq Aew el i

pue {aInpadold JO S9Ny S,|IouN0Y ayj JO  UORDSS Y}IM 8oUBpIODO. Ul
uaAIb ueaq aaey [|eys (seuejuswel|ddns Aue 0} jsenuod ul) uopsenb jepiul ue Jo
201j0U JBy} paplaoid sainp 10 siemod sey [1Iouno) syl Uydiym o} uolejal Ul Japew
Aue uo siojlouno) uopsanb 0} olgnd ayy Jo sieqwaw o) Ajunuoddo ue 916 [~

:Buneaw Aseulplo ue je jjeys jiounod a8yl L'y
TIONNOD TTINd OL SS3JV ¥
‘Buneswl
2y} Jo alep oy} aiojeqg sAep Bupom 9Al JO WNWIUIW B }NO jJuds ale sepuaby — adueape
ul Jeak suo 0y dn jas ale sbupesw Joj seyeq ‘uaalb useq sey Bupsaw e Jo 8o0uU
Jaye |eopoeld se uoos se epuabe ay) Yyum pajejnalio aq ‘a|qissod aieym ‘jleys spodal Iy €€
‘obejsod ay) @sinquial 0} paIayo sey (jenplalpul Ue JO 8sed ayj ul) pue ‘wayy
BA19981 0} UsSIm B Jo Bunum ul Jay/wiy payijou sey oym [enpialpul Jo dnoib Ajunwwod Aue
0] piesaioje se sojnuiw pue spodal ‘sepuabe lew (jeys 1e04jO Seomuag bBupnesiy eyl Z'¢
‘20140 |ediouud
S [1oUNOY) ayj 1B uopoadsul 10} |qejieAe 8] ||leys siaded punoibyoeq Jo sisl| pue
suyodas |epuepyuco-uou ‘sepusbe 99pILIWOD-QNS PUB SBRIWWOD [DUNOD IV Al B
‘Bunesw
Aue je sduepuspe uodn olgnd 8y} O} s|qejieAe @4 ||eys suodal [euspiyuod
-uou pue sepusbe SOPWWOI-qNS/AAPIWIWIOS [IDUNOD (B ‘l8uige) &yl P B
:uonnIsuoy a8y} Jo suoisinocid pajiejap sy} 0} 1olgng
S13¥0d3y 01 §S300V '€

‘Ajunpoddo )saiee sy} 1e 9|gejieAe apewl ale suyodal yons jey) pue ydwax3
se pajeal) jJou ale a|qissod se suodal Auew se jey} ainsud 0] apew aq ||eys Hoye Aleag

S130d3y 40 ALITVILN3AIANOD T

‘uonNIISUOY S,j1ouN0Y 8y Aq papiaoid Juaixs ay) 0} algnd
pue ssaid ay} d) uado aq ||BYS S93RIWIWOI-GNS PUB SSBPILULLOD ‘JouIge)) SH ‘|1ouno) ay |

SONILLI3IW N340 '}

LININANBJIAOD NIdO d0d4 SINITIAIND



4.1.3

414

(i) a maximum of two individuals or representatives from a deputation will
be allowed to speak on any one motion; and

(i) such address on any one item shall not exceed three minutes in duration;
and

deems—relevanta member of the public will be able to ask a guestion.
make a comment, speak to a motion or present a petition at the same
meeting; and

(iv) proposed speakers have given notification, in writing, e-mail or fax to
Meeting Services by 12 noon on the working day before the Council
meeting of their intention to speak; and

(v) the Leader, Portfolio Holder or appropriate Chair shall forthwith be given
an opportunity to respond to a public question or they may decline to do
SO.

The right to speak on a motion will be based on the order the motion is received
by Meeting Services (subject to the preceeding rules).

The Mayor will have the discretion to allow particular speakers, with expertise in
relevant areas to speak on a motion if appropriate.

Access to the Cabinet, Council committees and sub-committees:

4.2.1

Subject to 4.2.2, 4.2.3 and 4.2.4 below the Cabinet, any committee or sub-
committee may by a majority of the members then present at any meeting
resolve to

4.2.1.1 receive a deputation; and/or

4.2.1.2 permit representatives of any such deputation or any other member of
the public to address it upon any item on that meeting's published
agenda.— Such addresses on any one item shall not without the
specific consent of the Committee or other body exceed three minutes
in duration. Immediately after such address the Leader, Chair of the
committee or sub-committee shall give each of its members an
opportunity to question the person who has addressed them provided
that the overall period for such questions and any answers shall be
kept within a reasonable limit by the Chair.

4.2.2. ' The procedures set out above shall not apply where a Committee or sub-

423

Committee is required to follow a statutory procedure in relation to an item of
business or when to do so would prejudice a duty to act quasi-judicially in
relation to any matter.

In respect of Planning Committee the procedures for public speaking in relation
to applications are set out in Appendix 3 of the Probity in Planning Protocol, and
shall be in place of those set out above.

Constitution July-2007February 2008 redline

4-34



G

BUpal g00z AENIgaJ£a6Z-AAf uognisuoD
‘Buijesp aie Asy) woym ypm ongnd ayj Jo siequusll |je 0} siaquinu
auoydseje) pue suoneubisep ‘saweu 19y} JOSJUNOA 0} pajoadxe aq [|eys SI8oo IV v'¥

“Jajjew ayy yim Bujjesp Ajjenjoe Jaoljjo
8y} Jo Jagqwnu auoydeja) pue aweu ay} aieis AJeso ||leys aouspuodsaliod [unod (i €v

“Yeads 03 ysim 11y} pataysibal aaey oym suosiad Jayjo Aue aoipnlaid
0} SB 0s 9AOQE 0} pauejss pouad sjnuiw AUIY) oY) SPJEMO} Junod
10U |IM 8¥e} sossalppe asay} awl ayl “Jebuo] moje 0} uonelosip
Jay 10 siy $OSivIaxe Jley) 8yl $Sajun sajnuiW 881y} JO wnwixew
B 10} 9q ||IM sessalppe yonsS ybreoujiejeuigesje-tesds{is—Heys
SH-o-toRS195Ip-oYIeABu-poieisiborjou-eAey-oym—pue’ bujesll

3] 10 jUeWa0USWLI0D oy} 0} Joud lley) 24y AJjou [[eys jeuiged
SSOIPPE 0] USIM OUM SISqUIS|\—SSeiPpe—61 HSM—OuyM SIoHtRos

‘}se193ul 2lgnd |e1oads Jo sweyl 10} S8sSalppe Yons 10} ssaippe
Jad sanujw saJy) wnwixew ay} 0} |is yolgns jois swy |ejo} Jojealb e
pue sassalppe Jo Jaquinu Jajealb e moje 0} apioap os|e Aew Jauiqe)
JO NeyD @y ‘swayl jo sequinu tajealb e uo smaa bBuuesy 1o ‘way
UB U0 SMaIA JO AlsiaAlp Jejealb e Buliesy Jo s)salajul 8y) Ul Japlo Jeyy
woJj} Yedep 0} apep Aew jauiges Jo Jieyd ayj ‘1enemoH “jeads o}
paiaysibal Aay) yoiym uj Japio sy} Ul pieay a9 Ajjeuou |Iim sioxeadss
Ardde—Aew—ui-siiieyi—siesdde—33f. DujeaW yoead Je sajnujll
931U} JO WNWiXew e 10} yeads 0] pemMoj[e a4 |\ Jaxeads ydeg 'plesy
aq |IM siayeads us} UBY) 2IoW OU S|INUIW 931y} 9)E} yoes siayeads
Jl Jey} os ‘sassalppe Joj pamojie aq |[im |Bjo} ul sanuiw Ayl AjuQ

(62288 70910) 18UIGED ‘19010 SOINISS Bunes)
8y} JO uonuaye 8y} Joj |IDunoD ay) 0} JoHoI0S 8yl :0] xe} Ag

3N"AOD UojdUIeHou@)SeoIAIesSsShjW :0} |lew-2 Ag

Jauige) ‘19010 seonieg Bunssy

JO uonusue ay} 10} 3Jdl LNN uoidweyuoN ‘esenbg
S99 IS lleypin® 8yl ‘jIpounod 8yl O} JOoJdIoS 10} Bupm uj
GGE/£8 10 1018 (#0910) auoydsje

:AQ 8q ueo uopjelsibay

‘Bunes oy jo Aep ay;
uo uoou g\ &q 0S Op 0} uonusalul Jisy} Jesibal Jsnw jauiqen ssaippe
0} Buiysim (SIeieEeReSSIagquis)y uey; Jayo) suomad_

1S1991JJQ O} SS9y

evey

cvey

V¥

:suopoLsal Buimol|oy syl 03
108[gns aq |jeys aAoge N0 }8s sainpadolid sy} Jauige) jo sbupssw Jo joadsai vl $Z2'¥



4.5 Officers receiving an enquiry from a member of the public which is related to another
employee shall either seek to transfer the enquiry immediately, or accept it and arrange
for the correct officer to contact the enquirer direct. Members of the public should not be
passed from one Directorate to another or left to negotiate the Council's organisation
unaided.

5. ACCESS TO INFORMATION

The Council shall have procedures in place for ensuring that requests for information are
dealt with in accordance with the Freedom of Information Act 2000.

6. PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT AND PUBLIC MEETINGS

6.1 The Council shall seek to maximise public involvement in decision making, using
whatever means seems most appropriate in all the circumstances.

6.2 Directors in consultation with the Leader or Chairs as the case may be, shall have the
responsibility for clearly identifying matters appropriate for public consultation, and shall,
where necessary, seek the advice of the Chief Executive.

6.3 Where public meetings are used as a means of public consultation, the basic conditions
set out in the Appendix shall apply.

6.4 The Council retains the responsibility to make the final decision, having taken into
account the views expressed as a result of public consultation.

APPENDIX
PUBLIC MEETINGS

1.  All public meetings must be notified to the Chief Executive who shall have been
consulted thereon and then be responsible for the arrangements.

2. Every group likely to be interested in the subject matter of a public meeting must be
provided with publicity material giving at least the information set out in 3 below
sufficiently in advance of the meeting for a proper discussion to take place within the
group.

3. The publicity materials for a public meeting should include the following:

The issues involved

The precise purpose of the meeting

Who has been invited

A contact point or telephone number to obtain further information
What will happen to the views expressed at the meeting.

Oo0ODoD0Oo

Constitution July-200ZFebruary 2008 redline
4-36



LEV
BUjpal B00Z AENIgeI£002-A1Rf UoBnIsuUc)

"SLHOIE AYOLNLVLS ONLLSIX3 TV Ol TVNOLLIAAav ¥V SANITIAIND 3S3IHL ‘8N

‘Bugesw ayj Buimoijoy
Jepew joslgns sy Buipiebas uonisod sy} ysijgeise ued Buipueye asoyl moy pue Bupeswl
ay} dn mojjo} O} SpPUBUI [IOUNOD BY) MOY JBaj0 )| 93BW pINoYs SaAjguesaldal |Iouno)  °g
"90USIPNE 8y} JO siequiaWl ||B 0) 8jgepue)siapun
PpuE 9[qISIA SI UYolym wuoj B ul 8q jisnw Jjesy Bupeew ey} je pepinoid |eusiely



CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES
1. INTRODUCTION

1.1  These Rules are made in pursuance of the Council’s Statement of Procurement Policy
and as part of the Constitution of the Council adopted in accordance with the
requirements of the Local Government Act 2000, their purpose being to provide a clear
regulatory Code for the procurement of: -

o goods
m] works
o services

for the Council which will ensure a framework of openness, integrity, and accountability
and evidence the probity and transparency of the process.

1.2 They are intended to provide optimum value for money and objectively demonstrate that
the Council is fulfilling its fiduciary responsibilities.

2. DEFINITIONS
n] “Authorised Officer”
A person with appropriate delegated authority to act on behalf of the Council
Q “Best Value for Money”
The optimum combination of whole life costs and benefits to meet the Council's
requirements. (Such term equates to the EU procurement reference to the “most
economically advantageous offer”)
a “Framework Agreement”
An agreement which allows the Council to call off from a Supplier supplies, services or
works in accordance with the terms of the agreement. The Framework Agreement itself
would usually constitute a non-binding offer with no obligations on the Council to call off
from the Supplier. If the Council calls off from the Supplier a binding contract comes into
being.
u I “ITT"
Invitation to Tender Tender.
Q “PQQ”

A Pre-Qualification Questionnaire
Constitution July-2007February 2008 redline

4-57



LG°%

BU[[pal §00g MergeJ160Z-ARf uopmpasuo)

‘(suoneinbey N 8y}
Ag pejuswejdwi seaoaaq Juswanoold ognd N3 sy} pue me| N3 jo sajdpund
jessuab oy ‘Ajeas) D3 oy '9'l) sojnu Juswainooid ueadoing jueAsial 8yl Z'Z'e

‘suoisinold Alojnjels juensijal jje L'z

:yum A|dwod [jeys pue suoiounj s,|1ounod) syl YIM uoijosauuod
ul Jo 0} juensind ojul paisjus ©q |[ByS |IPuno) 8yl Ag Ol palsjue joenuod) AleAl

‘0jeloy) a|qeoljdde aie sa|ny asay} Jo suoisiroid pajielep
aI0W 8y} JO |[e 10 Aue Jayjeym JO aAi0adsalll SHIOM pue saolales ‘spoob seddns oym

uonesiuebio Jayjo (w
Jo ‘Auedwod o
Jo ‘uosiad o

:Aue apnjoul [|eys 10}0B1U0Y) € 0} S80UaI8jel pue

saiped pliy} 0} UORBSLOYINE US)LIM JBaY)0 )
10 ‘sieplo (u]

‘sjuswealbe o

‘saweyos o

- :epnoul |leys sasodind yons 10} YoIUM ‘SHIOM pue
so0IAI8s ‘spoob Jo Alddns 8y} o} [10UNOD By} JO J|BUSQ UO Spew SJOBIUOY) ||e 0} uone|es Ul

Ajligeyns pue
Aousioiye Jo 1adsal ul pue suug) Alejauowl Ul yjod Asuow Joj anjeA }seq uiejqo o
pue ‘Ajeudoid anp aalasqo D
‘uoljnedwon Jiej ainsue o

:0} S8oUBISWNDID (e ui Anp [eseueb e Jepun aq
lleus ‘Jleyaq s) uo Bupoe sjuelnsuod Jeulaixe osje pue sasiojdwa syl O |je ‘Iounod ayl

JONVITdINOD

[IOUNOYD) By} 0} SHJoMm
10 saoines ‘sivliddns spinoid 0} Bupjess Jo Buipiacid suosied jo Apoq 10 uosied Auy

A91ddng, o
suopejony Joj 1senboy
I(O:IH n E

S8AlJ0II( JUBWRIN20Id Jljand N3 oy Bunusweldw suoneinbal yn oy L

suopenbey, =

(4%

L'E



3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.2.3 the Constitution, including these Contract Procedure Rules, Financial Procedure
Rules and Scheme of Delegations, and

3.24 the Council's

o Best VValue objectives required by the Local Government Act 1999
a Strategic objectives

a Statement of Procurement Policy

Q Procurement Strategy

0 Procurement Code of Practice

5] Individual policies relevant to the procurement in question

The highest standards of probity are required of all employees and Members involved in
the procurement, award and management of Council Contracts and all Council members,
employees and third parties engaged on the Council’s behalf must also ensure that any
conflicts of interest are avoided and that both employees and Members comply with the
Members and Officers Codes of Conduct contained in this Constitution.

Members and employees must not accept from contractors or potential contractors or
from any firm or organisation with whom the Council has had, is having or may have any
dealings of any kind:-

3.4.1  any gift (other than an inexpensive seasonal gift such as a calendar or diary for
use in the office); or

3.4.2 any hospitality without the written authorisation of a Director, Monitoring Officer
or Chief Finance Officer, and Members and employees should comply with the
Council's Code of Conduct in this respect.

Employees of the Council must immediately enter in a register kept for this purpose by
the Solicitor of the Council particulars of:

3.5.1 any gift (including how it has been returned to the giver or otherwise disposed of
e.g. donated for charitable purposes); and

3.5.2 any hospitality

Hospitality includes drink, meals, entertainment, overnight accommodation, travel and
holidays, but does not include a lift in a private or company car or a taxi or refreshments
in the course of office duty (e.g. working lunch).

Ll

Constitution July-2007February 2008 redline

4-58



6S-¥

BUIPa] §00Z AMENIqed400Z-ARf uonmasuoD

‘uoisioap Adijod oyoads e Jo Joalgns sy} o o]

{S90IAJ9S |1IoUN0D 0} uondnisip snoues Jo Apadoid
‘suosiod 0] MSU Sjelpawwl] SAJOAUI PINOM  SI9PISUOD  BANOSXT
JaIyD 8y} yolym salousbiowe usasalojun Jo }nsal B se Alessadau £'9°'L°G

‘o|qe|ieAe s| aAneulslje Aiojoejsijes a|qeuosesl
ou @Jeym ainjeu jsienads e jo Buieq Jo J0JoBIJUOD BUO WOl @oud
paxl} e je Ajuo pjos syJom Jo saoiaies ‘spoob pajusied Jo Alejaudoud 2516

: “Jaquiswl B sawo2eq
awi 0) awy WoJy JO JaguiswWl B S| [1ounoD ay) ydiym Jo Apoq Jejiwis
JaYJ0 1O UOReID0SSE ‘WNIKOSUOD B JO jleyaq uo 10 ybnouyy pauleiqo 1'S'1L'S

:9Je painooid 8q 0) SHIOM JO S0IAISS ‘SpPo0b 8y} aIeym SJoBJUOD  §°L'S

‘yum paijdwod ale jediouud ay Jo
sjuawalinbal ay} pue Ajuoyine Juabe ue se Buoe s| [IPUNOD BY)} 8JaYM S}PBNUOD  H#'L'G

"Yim paldwiod ale Jainsul ay) Jo syuswalinbal ay)
pue Aojjod soueinsul ue Yybnoiy) pasinquiiel 8g 0} S| [IDUNOY 8y} 819ym SJoBJUOD €°1°G

‘(sesiwald Jjo Bume| Buipnoul) pue| ul sbujjesp o} Bunelal sypenuon  Z'L'S
JuswAojdw3 jo spoenuon L°L'g

- :jdeoxe (poued joeljuod ajoym 8y} 10} SWes ay) JO} UOHBISPISUOD IO
anjeA ayj Junodoe ojul Bupje) anjeA yons) anjeA ul 000'0S3 PeeoXs 0} pajewll}se ale Yyolym
[1ouUnNoD @y} Aq apew spenuod e 0} Aldde |Im SNy ainpadold 1oenuo) Bumojo) ay |

SNOILd3OX3

990D JUBAS|al JOYJo 10 Jauiqe)
‘louno) a8y} Aq jeacidde snoiasid e o ped Bujwlio) ssajun ‘jJpuigqe) sy} Wwol) uoisep
e 10} paugjal oq ||eys Joiddng e 0} seshojdwe s |iouno) 8y} Jo Jajsuel; jenuajod Aue
SBAJOAUI UDIYM IO S|BAS] PIOYSaly} JUBAS|S] U} 9A0QE S||B} 8SIMIBUI0 YOIYM JO UORNIIISUO)D
S,[IOUNOD By} Ul paulep Se uoIsa(g A8y B SaINJIISUOD Yoym plremy joenuo) Auy

‘IouUNoD 8y Ag ojul palsue usaqg aABY Uoiym sjuswsslby yJjomaweld jsuiebe sieplo
soe|d 0} seako|dwe Jyjo esuoyine Aew siaoyjO pasuoyiny syebpng paaosdde uiyiipn

‘ "JUBWISINO0.4 Yoes o) Sploysaly} [eloueul) aiqeolidde Aue pue
Auoyine pajebsjep Aue Jo Juaixe ayj Jo Jojoal Jey/siy Aq pauuiojul ag [|eys seakojdwe
yong  "S)se} yons jno Aued o) Aloyine pelebejep ojeudoidde syl yum sesiojdwe
Ag usyeuepun aq Ajuo Aew ||ouno) 8y} JO jjeysq UO N0 palled jusweindold Auy

ALIKMOHLNY d31lvy9313d

b'S

15 4

'y

L'y



5.1.6 Subject to compliance with Rule 3, the placing of orders by users for goods or
services which are negotiated by the Council's Procurement Advisors in
accordance with the authority from time to time vested in them by the Council.

5.1.7 Any other exemption from any of these Rules may be made by direction of the
Council, Cabinet, committee, or as authorised by Rule 34. A record of any such
exemption from any of the provisions of the Rules together with the specific
reasons therefore shall be included within the minutes of the Council, the Cabinet
or such committee by which the exemption was made, or, in the event of the
proposed exercise of any delegation by any employee, a formal report in like form
shall be submitted to the Chief Finance Officer and Monitoring Officer and prior
written acquiescence by both in such proposed exception shall be necessary.

6. PRE-PROCUREMENT PROCEDURE

6.1 Before commencing procurement, it is essential that the Authorised Officer leading the
procurement has identified the need and fully assessed any options for meeting those

needs. Consideration must be given to theCensideration-shall-be-given-te-the-_Council’s
Procurement Strategy and Procurement Policy-as-appropriate.

6.2 Before undertaking a procurement the Authorised Officer shall:

(a) consider all other means of satisfying the need (including recycling and re-use
where appropriate);

(b) consider whether there is an appropriate Framework Agreement which should be
used; and

(c) establish a business case for the procurement.

6.3 Before commencing any proposed procurement process the Authorised Officer shall

(a) consult the relevant Portfolio Holder where the procurement impinges
significantly and directly on the public or may be considered controversial or is
likely to have significant budgetary implications or involve transfer of employees;

(b) consult the Council's procurement aAdvisors or Solicitor to the Council |
where the value of any contract is likely to be in excess of £20,000;

(c) consult the Council's procurement advisers where the value of any contract is
likely to be less than £20.000 to enable maximum use of core supply
 agreements.

{e)(d) _consult with the Solicitor to the Council in respect of any EU Procurement rules |
and any other legal or related issues;

and have regard to any advice, procedures and requirements arising from such
consultation and in particular to the need for any EU Procurement requirements and
formalities to be carried out directly by the Solicitor to the Council.

Constitution July-2007February 2008 redline |
4-60




Lov

BUpa] §00Z ATENIGe32602-ARF UONMASUOD

(000°0S3 NVHL ¥3LVYIAD) LINIJNIFANJ0¥d ANTVYA HOIH

‘JusWaIN00.d
anjeA UBiH e se pajess) 99 [jeys Yels JOo Jajsuel) B aAjoAUl ABw yoiym juswainooud Auy

‘JuswaInoold anjeA ybiH e se pajeas aq ||eys
uawalinooid Jey; usyl ‘ybly oq 03 paaleosad s) Juswainooid oyoeds B Ul 3SU B} SJaYAA

S9Ny ©59U) UJIM 90UepIOJ0E U] siajjddng Joujo
o] JybNos aq pjnoys slopua)/Suonejonb oy sioljddng [enualod Juaiinsul Jo AUe 8ABy
JOU So0p oseqejep au) 2iay)) eseqgejep Jey] uo siolddng Wwoi) pajsenbal aq pinoys
S19puS)/SUONejonb 8U) Gg Ny UM S0UBploJde Ul sialjddng bunoe|as Jo sueall Adewnd

6

£v'g

£8

3] Se pasn aq pNoys aseqelep Jaljadns € Jey) auiliiajap [[eys [louno.) auj Se DUo| Se 104

"SUONIPUOD pue Sswid |

S |loUN0Y 8y} 40 wioj djdwis e ujejuoo
pinoys Alinbus ayj -sielddns sauy}
JO wnwiuiw e woly suogejonb usyiLUA | 000°0S 10002
‘9|qejdeooe

aq |m uopejonb pajiew-a 10 paxe)

‘ss9)|ddns sa1y)

10 Wnwuiw e wouy suopeyonb uspupA | 000°0Z 1002
"Joays uopnejonb e uo

paplodal 8q 0} aie sadld ‘siolddns
OM] JO WNWIiujW B woJj uofielond) | 0002 (0L
paJinbas uopelonb oN | 001 0

(3) oL | (3) wouig
joesjuod/iapusizepuay/fuinbua | anjep joe3U0D SHIOM
jo adA) 10 S22IAJ2S ‘SPOOD)

"90lj0B1d
JO 9pOH JUBWIAIN00I4 8Yl UIYIIM pajielop ale 000'0S3 MOJeq JO onjeA pejewse ue
UM SJBpJO 1O S]oBjjuUOD 10} pasinbal suopejonb aAledwod sy JO ainjeu pue Jaquinu ey

(000°'083 MOT139) LNIWIHNO0Ud INTVA MO

‘suonenbay N3 8y} Jo sa|ny asay) Jo Ajjigesiidde ayj ploAe 0}
1dweye ue ul yids aq JouU ||Bys sHIOom Jo seoines ‘sofddns Jenoiped 9|qissod JeAsiaym
saseyoind Bunebeibbe Aq Jemod Buiseyoind s} JO 8sn 1$8Q 8y} 8XBW pinoys |1ouno) ayl

‘pouad J0BHUOD By} JOAO BjOUM B SB JOBJJUOYD) 8} JO} UOlBIapIsuod
10 an|eA 8y} se uaye) aq ||leys 1oesuo) Aue Jo anjea ay} sajny asauy} Jo sesodind ay} Jo4

ANTVA LOVAELNOD 3HL ONILVIILSST

1’8

¢l

V4



9.194—For procurements valued at above £50,000, a Contract Award Procedure shall be
conducted in accordance with these Rules.

9.2

Tenders for High Value Procurement shall be invited in accordance with Rule 25 save

10.

10.1

10.2

1.

11.1

11.2

1.3

where Rule 25 is inappropriate the Council, Cabinet (or Cabinet Member if delegated
powers apply) or the Authorised Officer shall invite tenders by way of a Public Notice.
Public Notice must be given in at least one local newspaper and/or relevant specialist
publication (save where specific circumstances render either requirements inappropriate).

Prior to the commencement of the Contract Award Procedure the Authorised Officer shall
develop a procurement approach, which shall set out the information requirements
detailed within the Procurement Code of Practice.

One of the followingthree Contract Award Procedures shall be used as appropriate for the
particular procurement i.e. Open, Restricted, Competitive Dialogue or Negotiated, and the
Solicitor to the Council shall be consulted as to the appropriate procedure.

CONTRACTS SUBJECT TO THE EU REGULATIONS

Where an estimated value of a Contract exceeds the relevant current EU threshold then
the Contract shall be tenderiendered in accordance with the Regulations. Under the
Regulations, the Contract may be tendertendered under the Open, Restricted or, in the
exceptional circumstances set out in the Regulations, the Competitive Dialogue or
Negotiated Procedure. A Contract Notice in the prescribed form shall be published in the
OJEU.

The Regulations set out the minimum timescales for the receipt of expressions of interest
and tendertenders. Where the Council has published a Prior Information Notice, then the
Council may rely on reduced timescales if appropriate, the Solicitor to the Council being
the determinor of this and any other interpretation or application of the EU Regulations.

INVITATION TO TENBERTENDER

The Council shall only enter into a contract with a Supplier if it is satisfied as to the
Supplier’s:

11.1.1. eligibility;
11.1.2 financial standing; and

11.1.3 technical capacity.

Technical capacity includes the Supplier's quality management systems including human
resources, health and safety and environmental management systems where relevant to
the performance of the Contract.

Any procurements subject to the Regulations shall comply with the appropriate
Regulations.

Constitution July-2007February 2008 redline

4-62




€9

SU|pal g00¢ AMETUGe 2662 AR uonmusuon

8Q p|NOYsS piooal |lelpallWl Uy ‘[Iouno) 8y} 0} JOoJDI0S 8yl AQ pajeulwou sskojdwe
JoyJ0 BUO )SB9| JB pue I80WJO pesuoyIny oyl Aq pausdo oq |leys SIEpUs]iepuedt

"awif) pue ajep BulIsOo B} 810J9q paALIe SABY 0] } JO) S} Jusoyns Ul payojedsap
usaq Buiaey I8pualepue; oy} JO) S0USPIAS JUSIDIYNS S| JOY) Jey} paysies Si [1ouno)d
2y} 0} JOJII|OS Y} SS|JUN [IDUNOD By} AQ PaIapISU0D IO paydedoe aq ||eys siepusliepus;
10 jdieoas 10 2wl pue ajep peylads ayj Joye paAledal sispuspepus; oN Buuado
119y} Jo} payoads ajep pue awil 8y} |jun pausdoun ulewal pue [1PUN0Y 8y} 0} JOJDII0S
8y} Aq aoe(d ajes e ul }dey oq |leys sISpUSepuet "pauluLL)ep 8q 0) JISpUSHeiepUs]
ay; jo Ajyuapl ay} smoje jey; Aem Aue ul paxew aq jou |jeys a2dojpAuS 8yl  ‘sejejel
} yoiym 0} Japew Joalgns ayj Aq pemo||o} Jepudiepust, pIOM ay} Yim pasiopus adojeAus
pajeas e uj [IDunoD) a8y} 0} JOJDI0S 8Y} 0} passalppe aq [|eys paAleoal sispuapepust Auy
"1 1] @Y} Ul IN0 }8s sjuawalinbal 8y} Yjim aouepiodde Ul papiwgns a4 |jeys sispus | sepuet+

SHIANILHFANTLE 40 ONINIJO ANV NOISSINGNS

"S1opua} buedald Ul S1218puaj “siopta)
Buuedaid-ui-51040pUT-]SISSE JO WIOUI |[IM UDIYM UOfBLLIOUL JOUUN) AUR-Z+H 442 L 7 L L
‘JoBIUOD By} JO}
paJinbal @oueInsu| JO |9A8) pue (938 Ajuwapul jeuoissajold ‘Aujiger ongnd ‘Ayjigen)
aofojdwa) adA} ejeudosdde ay) Jebeuey XS S|IOUNOD SY) YIIM UOHRBYNSUOD Ul L'y L1

JJalepusizesepuet] pausjeld ay) woly pasinbal aq |leys (sjqeondde y)
@sjueIENS) AuBdWwOo)) Jusied JO/pUB pUOE SOUBWLIOUSd B JOUISUM JUSLUSSISSE UB OL'¥' L]

.sJopuajsepyes JO UoISSIWgNS 101 S9Nt B¢ L)

‘pepiacid Qg 0} SjusLWwaje]s poylail Aue JO JUSJUOD pue Wioj 8yl 8'¥'LL

‘Aildde Aew J4NL 18Ul MBIA 8U] JO SI [IDUNOD Sy} Jaylaym ‘Jueasial it L'¥'Li
‘uonadwod J0j suoRoNJisul pue wsiueyosw Bupud syl o'y LL

‘ejeudoidde paispisuod se sbunybiem Aue Buipniour ‘eusjuo uonenjeAs 8y S'y'LL

:I1oUNoY 8Y) O} JOHOIIOS
ay} Aq peacidde ag jsnw Yolym ‘JOBJUOD JO SUORIPUOD PUB SWIB] S,|UN0) 8yl v L

‘9|gIssiwIad aJe sjueLeA Aue Jayleym UO SUORONISUI pue uoneoyads e €411

. ‘slepudlsepus; Jiay) esedsid 0y sjueojidde 10} pousd sjqeuoseal
B MOJ|B [|BUS UDIym ‘el pue sjep uinjal oyl Buipnou; ‘sjgelew juswainooid eyl Z'v'LL

‘painooud Buleq syiom Jo Jayddns ‘seojases ay) Jo uonduossp e  L'yLL

:Buipnjou
10BJUOD Jejndlued oy} 10} Sjuswalinbal §[1ounod Byl JO S|ielep epnjoul jjleys 11] syl

ccl

L'eL

ci

Vil



12.3

13.

131

13.2

14.

15.

15.1

15.2

16.

made of the teadertenders received including names, addresses and the date and time of
opening.

TenderTender documents shall state the nature and purpose of the contract for which
tendertenders are invited, specify the last date and time when tendertenders will be
received and state that the Council reserves the right not to accept any teadertender or to
accept a tendertender other than the lowest where payment is to be made by the Council
or the highest where payment is to be-received by the Council.

ELECTRONIC TENDERTENDERING

RFQ's, PQQ’s and ITTs should wherever practical be issued to tenderterienderers by
electronic means.

TFenderTenders may be submitted by electronic means provided that:-

13.2.1 evidence that the transmission was successfully completed is obtained and
recorded; '

13.2.2 each tendertender submitted electronically is supplemented by an identical
signed hard copy original submitted in the manner prescribed in the
advertisement or the ITT documents before the terdertender return date; and

13.2.3 electronic tendertenders are kept in a separate secure folder under the control of
the Solicitor to the Council, which is not opened until the deadline has passed for
receipt of tendertenders.

ERRORS IN TENDERTENDERS

Where an error is found in a tendertender before acceptance, details of it shall be given
to the tenderterienderer and they shall be given an opportunity of confirming or
withdrawing their offer. In the case of genuine arithmetical errors discovered before
acceptance, the tenderertenderer may be given the chance to correct the error, but no
other adjustment, revision or qualification is permitted in respect of such errors.

TENDERTENDER EVALUATION

Where appropriate, the Authorised Officer shall form an Evaluation Team with
responsibility for evaluating tendertenders.

FenderTenders shall be evaluated in accordance with the relevant Regulations (if any)
and thé evaluation criteria set out in the ITT and in all cases shall be awarded on the
basis for Best Value for Money to the Council. The evaluation criteria shall be
predetermined and listed in the ITT documentation, in order of importance if applicable.
In addition, the criteria shall be strictly observed at all times throughout the Contract
Award Procedure by any employee involved in terderiender evaluation.

BONDS, GUARANTEES AND INSURANCE

Constitution July-2007February 2008 redline

4-64



SO

Bulpal B00¢ AMeMIaa300Z-AiRF uonmnsuoD

SNOILIANOD ANV SIWH3L LOVALNOD

"0S Op 0} SJUSSUOI [BloUBUY pUe [1ouUNo) AleSSadau Aue paulejqo Sey Jedljo pasuoyiny
8y} Joyje [IdUN0Y) aU} 0] JOJRI|0S -Hounes-a4i-e14eioies ay) Aq panss] aq Ajuo Aew pue

‘diysuonead [enjoenuod e ojul saed ayj puiq (jeys Jepusliepusi
B JO 90ue}daooe UBjILIM S, |Iouno) au} ‘paIndeaxe S| JOBJJUOD |euwllo) B SB awl yons
|3Un Jey) JusLWSle}S B 9pN[oUl JOU SB0p Iepudiepus; JO WO} S, |1ouno) ay) ameym  (q)

J0 ‘j1ounc) ay) Ag eouejdedoe uapim [eLllo)
0} Joud syiom Jo salddns ‘sedialas apiaoid O} palinbal s| J8iepusizesopua; e alaym ()

“SMOJ|0} SB Se0UBJSWNoJI0 [euodeoxa ul pasn oq Ajuo [[eys Juaiuj jo sieye

LNZLNI 40 S¥3LL3IT

‘0je18y} 8jeudoidde
S9]B0S aWl} JUBASIS B} UIYIM NINO Ul 821J0N piemy Joesjuo) e ysiignd |jeys [1ounod ay)
0} JoJo1l0S 8y} ‘suoneinbay sy 0} Juensind palepusiiepus; Usaq Sey JOBJUOD B aISUpA

FOILON QAIVMY LOVILNOD

‘A1eSS908U 819UM UOHBULIOU] YONS JO JUSJUOD PUB WO} 8y} UO SIOSIAPEY JuaWaInd0)d+
s,|louno) ayy Buninsuoo ‘}senbas USRUM UO SISIBPUSHEe8pES] [NJSSS00NSUN O] UONBWLIOU!
sjeudoidde spinoid jjleys jusweindold yoes 1o} djgisuodsal JSOIO pesuUoyINy 8yl

ONId31¥g3a

Aousiedsuel; pue juswiiesl)
jenbs ‘uopeulwposip-uou jo ssidiouud syl juswsejdw] pue Jopisuod |jeys seaho|dwe
‘ou 1o suopeinbay ayy 0} algns Jayleym) juswainoosd sy} Buunp sewl (B Iy

‘ejeudoidde aiaym siaiiddng WOl UORBOYLIEID HO9S JaASMOY ABW [IDUN0Y)
ayl ‘paplwued aie suonenobou JSpUsizepuei-jsod ou sainpadoid pejouisey Jo uadQ
ayl seyie ybnouy) suonemnbay N3 ayi 0} wensind pajonpuos si Juswainooid B aloymm

NOILLVILOO3N ¥30N3LAFAGNIL-1S0d

"10BJUOD YyoB® JO) Sjuewalinbal adueInsu; JO
|joAd] pue (938 Ajuwepul jeuoissajoid ‘Aljigel olgnd ‘Aypiger esAoidws) adAy ejeudoldde
oy} Jebeuely YSiY S,]IOUN0D SY} YIIM UOIE)NSUOD U] J8PISUOD ||BYS JeoIO pasuoyiny 9yl

"JoISpUsHeoptet
paueiaud oyy woy peasnbas 9g |leys (e|geoydde ) esjuelent Auedwo)
JUsled B JO/PUB puOg SoUBULIONSL B JaUlaym ssad0id uopenjeAe pue Jusuwssesse
uoneoyfenb-aid ayj Jo Led se Jepisuod |jeys |Iounoy) oy} 0} JOOI0S U] pue-justueBeueiy
19S8y—pue odueU|d Joiobeuspoieiedion]0 PeoH oy} ‘Sjuswaindold enjeA ybiH Jod

‘e

02

‘6l

8l

cLll

(A

‘L

<9l

191



22.

22.1

22.2

22.3

22.4

23.

23.1

23.2

Contracts shall be entered into on the Council’'s terms and conditions, which shall be
included with each ITT. Exceptions to this must be approved by the Solicitor to the
Council.

ACCEPTANCE OF TENDERTENDERS

Low Value Contracts may only be accepted by employees with the requisite delegated
authority for these purposes after the Authorised Officer has ensured that the relevant
budget holder has sufficient funds in place to sustain the Contract.

In the case of High Value Contracts the Chief Executive or the Solicitor to the Council in
conjunction with the Director concerned shall have power to accept the lowest
tendertender if payment is to be made by the Council provided that such tendertender
does not exceed or fall short of the approved estimate as the case may be.

In all cases where it is proposed to accept other than the lowest tendertender if payment
is to be made by the Council, or the highest tendertender if payment is to be received by
the Council save and except in those cases where an award is made under Rule 15 in
accordance with predetermined criteria detailed in the tenderiender documents, no
acceptance shall take place until the Council, Cabinet (or Cabinet Member if delegated
powers apply), the committees, sub-committee, or Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance
Officer in exercise of their powers under Rule 5.1.7 shall have considered a report from
the appropriate employee or other relevant person indicating their recommendation and
objectively justifying this, regard being taken in such evaluation both to any EU
procurement requirements in respect of the most economically advantageous
tendertender in respect of such contract and also the general duty on the Council to
procure best value as reflected (if applicable) in any individual conditions of tendertender.

An acceptance letter for all contracts exceeding £50,000 in value shall only be issued by
the appropriate Corporate-Director.

EXECUTION OF CONTRACTS

In the case of contracts for the supply of goods or materials or the execution of works of a
value or amount in excess of £250,000 the award of which is specifically a Key Decision
requiring —an individual validation as such by the Cabinet or the Council it shall be a
further requirement for the purposes of Section 135 of the Local Government Act 1972 as
applied by the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Modification of Enactments
and Further Provisions) England Order 2001 NOT ONLY that such contracts SHALL BE
IN WRITING BUT be either under the seal of the Council or shall be signed on behalf of
the Council by any two of the following officers, namely the Solicitor to the Council, the
Chief Executive, the Chief Finance Officer and-th&l:ega%éepwees—@pe&a%ms—Manager
or other Solicitor of at least Team Leader level who is so authorised by either the Chief
Executive or by the Solicitor to the Council PROVIDED THAT for the avoidance of doubt
formal contracts exceeding £50,000 in value shall be signed by one of the foregoing.

Electronic signatures may be used in accordance with the Electronic Signature
Regulations 2002 provided the sufficiency of security arrangements has been approved
by the Solicitor to the Council.

Constitution July-200ZFebruary 2008 redline

4-66



AS 4

BUIPa] g00¢ AENIqaZ£60z-ARf uonmgsuo)

UM 90UBpJODJe Ul palsplUaliepts; 9q |leys juswaalby Jlomawel4 Auy ‘sjuswealby
yomawel4 oy} 0} saed ase oym sioiddng oasoy} usamieq aslexs aAnedwod
-ujW B Joj juswsalinbal B suwug) Ss) ulyIm apnpul Aew juswealby yiomaweld ay)
‘JOAGMOH '9S1019Xo Juswalnooid mau e Bulonpuod JNOYIM SHIOM 10 SadlAes ‘saljddns Jo
Ajddns auj J0j J0BIUOD O] SAYSIM [IoUN0Y Y} 818ym pasn aq Aew sjuswesaiby jyiomawel

SININIFHOV NAOMINVAS

‘1°1°G o|ny Ag pepirold se paplodal pue papodal aq |[Bys saouBjSWwnNoI0
a8y} {bunum Ul pajiejep ela}li0 paulluiajap-aid UIM S0UEBpIOOOE Ul G| 2|y lapun spew
S| PJEME UE 2J8UM SAES) paAledal JSemo| ay) uey) Joyjo S| jopusiepus; ay) aioym ‘jeyy
papiroid Aiojoejsies jsow ayy ‘uoluido IiBUI#ou/SHy Ul ‘St )| JepUsj#epus; asoym uosied
ayy Joliddng ujew ayj 0} ajeulwou [jeys ‘uosiad pasLioyine Jayjo 1o ‘10joali(q JueAsRl 9y |

‘pequosald ag Aew se swia) yons ul [1DuUnoD
ay) Ajjuwepul 0} juswealbe ue ojul Joud pue J0BIUOD-GNS By} Ul papnjoul spoob Jo
MJOM Y} 0} uoneja.s Ul JorjuO ) ulew ay) Japun suonebiiqo umo sy jsuiebe Joyddng ulew
ay} Ajluwepul yoym swiig} uo Janddng ulew ay) yum joequo) e ojul Jajue o) Buljim aq
llm )1 ‘pejosies st il 4 jey) JeTepusisesepus; ay) Aq Buniepspun ue aiinbai jjeys uoneAul
BU} JO sSWi8) 8y 'JPBAUOD Ulew By} Yim ajgiedwod aq ||[eys UuoniejiAul 8y} JO Swis} ay)
pue Sa|ny 9S8y} Y}IM S0UBPIOIOE Ul PajIAUI 8q JSnw STapusiepus:; Jo suopeionb Jaiddng
ulew e 0} paweu JO pajeulwou q 0} S| Jueynsuocd-gns Jo Jayddns ‘10joenuoo-gns B |

SHOLIOVHILNOD-gNS AIWVN ANV T3LVNIWON

wﬂe—qeﬂs—eenﬁspﬁew—iﬁuneaeﬂq—mw ‘6 alna a1 o} peue;e: seoue;su.unono uons

Ul J090Xas4 ~oseqejep yons uo papnjoul sielddng woly pajaul og Aeisnw suopenbay
oy} 0} 109[gns Jou aie YoIyM SIOBNUOD 10} STEpPUSHSRHS; pue suonelond) -sjuswalinbal
uoneaylienb-aid s 199w yoym siaiddng jo sjuswabuelse jusjeAinbs 10 SSEQEIEPSiSH
sie|[ddns  peAocidde jjleyeq sS)l UO paulejulew SAeY JO ulejulew Aew |lOUnoD) 8yl

S1SI7 A3AOUddV

"paulejulell 8 |[ByUS 9)Ij-Sjoeties B JOBIUOD [enpiAipt AJOAS 104

‘A|[eaiuoajose paulejuiew aq Aew

Joysibel spoenuod 8y | “HewoBeueipIesSy-puE-90uRUl] JO PESH+oiebeuei-aieiedios

ey} AQ paulejuieW 8] ||eys 000'0Z3 ©A0ge papieme S10enjuod) (e jo Je)sibal Sjoeiuod v

"000°0Z3 @A0qge JoB1JUOYD) AJBAS JO pieme 8y}
JO S|IEIOP BY} YIIM SIOSIAPY JUSWSIND0I S [IOUN0D 8y} AJjOU JSNW J8dI0 pesUoyIny oyl

‘PeAlgosl siepUalepuUs; (e JO IS B uiejuiew [jeys
wawainooid Jejnoped e jo joadsal ul Ajuoyine pejebejep yim JooiQ pasuoyiny 8yl

SLOVALNOD ANV SHUIANILEFANTL 40 SQHOI3Y

Le

[4°[4

1’92

9¢

R 14

v've

eve

Zve

b've

‘ve



28.

28.1

28.2

29,

291

29.2
30.

30.1

30.2

31.

311

31.2

these Contract Procedure Rules. Where the Council has entered into such a Framework
Agreement or is able to call off from existing Framework Agreements procured through
joint procurement arrangements, then it may utilise the same without entering into a
separate procurement.

JOINT PROCUREMENT

Any joint procurement arrangements with other Local Authorities or public bodies
including membership or use of Purchasing Consortia shall require the sanction of the
Cabinet (or Cabinet Member if delegated powers apply).

Approval shall only be given where the joint procurement arrangement assures
compliance with these Rules.

PROCUREMENTBY-CONSULTANTS

Any consultants used by the Council shall be appointed in accordance with these Rules.
Where the Council uses consultants to act on its behalf in relation to any procurement,
then the relevant Authorised Officer shall ensure that such consultants carry out any
procurement in accordance with the same. No consultant shall make any decision on
whether to award a Contract or to whom a Contract should be awarded. The Authorised
Officer shall ensure that the consultant’'s performance is monitored.

The Chief Executive must give approval for the appointment of any consultant.

STATISTICAL RETURNS

Each year the Council is required to make a statistical return to the Department for
Communities and Local Government (or successor department) for onward transmission

to the European Commission concerning the contracts awarded during the year under the
EU Rules.

The Solicitor to the Council shall be responsible for this statistical return and will make the
necessary arrangements for information to be collected annually. Directors shall comply
with these arrangements and expeditiously provide any information required.

CONTRACT EXTENSION

Any contract may be extended in accordance with its terms. Any other extensions shall
require 'the approval of Cabinet (or Cabinet Member if delegated powers apply), relevant
Committee or be otherwise authorised in accordance with these Rules and must also
comply with the Regulations if applicable.

The Authorised Officer shall always be satisfied that extension will achieve Best Value for
Money and is reasonable in all the relevant circumstances. Such extension must be
approved in writing by the Solicitor to the Council.

Constitution July-2007February 2008 redline

4-68



69-¥

SUIPa] B00¢ AMEnIgadZ00Z-MAf uonmasuod

‘(Aidde siamod pejebajap JI Jaquis|y jauige)) Jo) Jauige) ay) Wwoly uo;;epuawuiooeJ
uo |IOUNO) B8y} Aq pepuswe ag AJUO UBD UDIYM ‘UoORNIIISUO) S|IDUno) By}
J0 Jed wioy pue ‘siseq dlpouad B U0 pamalnal 8] ||Bys S9|NY 8iINpadold J0eju0) asay |

S3TNY FUNAIO0Ud LIVHELNOD 40 LNIFWANIWY ANV MIIATH

*J0818U) Joadsal Ul [ie]} Jipne ayenbape ue Bulpiacid pue uopepiiea yons BuiAysnl
Ajjewoy 19210 pesuoyiny ayj Aq podel B Jo uoIssIwgns Jaye ‘el 8oueUld JaIyD pue
JoolO Buuoyjuopy ay; jo |eacidde uspum jewloy Joud 8U} UM Ajuo pue S0UBISWNOID
|euondaoxe ul UaAIB aq AJuo |jeys s8Ny 8INped0id JOBHUOD 9S8yl JO AUB JO SISAIBAA

SITNY FENAID0Ud LIOVELNOD 40 SHIAIVM

'JoaJIay € 9|Ny Ul 0} pauajal sapnp |ejausb ay)
yim Aldwoo [jeys sjesodsip yons e JusAa Aue ul pue saARosiqo pue swiie s jiounod) ay)
BASIYoE J8)}9q ||IM |esodsip JO poylew aAljeulalje ue jey} ssuiNed suopeolijenb jueasiel
Uim Janjea e alaym jdeoxs uonone ojjgnd Jo aonou olgnd Aq sIiSpuai+epue; JO UORBJAUL
ayl Aq Jeuie aq |leys juawdinbe pue juejd ‘Ausdosd ‘pue| Jo |esodsip 8y} ‘sululs}ep
aapIWwWod 10 ‘(Ajdde siemod pejebsiep JI Joquisy Jauige) Jo) jJpuige) ‘[1uno ayl aiaym
10 ‘alow 1o Q00‘0EF S! S}9SSEe JO UOIO9||0D JO }8SSEe UB JO @NjeA pajelljss ay} aloym

i

S13SSV 40 TvsSOdsid

"JoBjUOY AUB JO uoleu|wla)
pasodoid Jo uoneuius) Aue 0) pJebal yjim paynsuod aq SN |IounoD auy} 0} JOJOI0S aYy L

1OVHELNOD 40 NOLLVNIWY3L

'G6e

h2>

%%

4>



Part 5

Codes and Protocols

Constitution July-2007Frliniat, 7008 redline
5-1






p—

A‘}}( H.:."-LI-E{ (;—.
PROBITY IN PLANNING PROTOCOL

Introduction

The aim of this Protocol: to ensure that in the planning process there are no grounds for
suggesting that a decision has been biased, partial or not well founded in any way.

The key purpose of Planning: to control development in the public interest.

Your role as a Member of the Local Planning Authority: to make planning decisions
openly, impartially, with sound judgement and for justifiable reasons.

When the Probity in Planning Protocol applies: this code applies to Members at all
times when involving themselves in the planning process. (This includes when taking part
in the decision making meetings of the Council in exercising the functions of the Local
Planning Authority or when involved on less formal occasions, such as meetings with
officers or the public and consultative meetings). It applies as equally to planning
enforcement matters or site specific policy issues as it does to planning applications.

If you have any doubts about the application of this Protocol to your own
circumstances you should seek advice early, from the Monitoring Officer or one of
his or her staff, and preferably well before any meeting takes place.

1. Relationship to the Code of Conduct for Councillors

° Do apply the rules in the Code of Conduct for Councillors first, which must be
always be complied with.

o Do then apply the rules in this Probity in Planning Protocol, which seek to explain
and supplement the Code of Conduct for Councillors, for the purposes of planning
control. If you do not abide by this Probity in Planning Protocol, you may put:

the Council at risk of proceedings on the legality or maladministration of
the related decision; and

yourself at risk of either being named in a report made to the Standards
Committee or Council or, if the failure is also likely to be a breach of the
Code of Conduct, a complaint being made to the Standards Board for

England.
2. Development Proposals and Interests under the Code of Conduct for
Coungillors
o Do disclose the existence and nature of your interest at any relevant meeting,

including informal meetings or discussions with officers and other Members.
Preferably, disclose your interest at the beginning of the meeting and not just at the
commencement of discussion on that particular matter. (Use the disclosure form
provided for disclosing interests.)

° Do then act accordingly. Where your interest is personal and prejudicial:-

- Don’t participate, or give the appearance of trying to participate, in the
making of any decision on the matter by the planning authority. You may
attend the meeting of the Planning Committee, but only for the purpose of

Constitution July-2007February 2008 redline

5-19




02-§
8Ujjpel 800z Merugad00z-Ahf uognsuoD

oy} Buneooape Jo Buuedsaid ul Juswaajoaul jeuosiad jueoniubis 1noA ybnoiyy jeyy
INg ‘seapiwwod uonjeulwlsep Buluueld pue Buisodoid syl Yioq jo diysiaquisw Jo
Jayew e uey} alow s siy]) ‘jesodoid syj 10} 9)e00ApPE JoIYo B ‘Buiaq se paAiediad
2q p|noo 10 ‘se pajoe aAaey noA pue jedidde Jo JadojeAsp ‘lsumopue| sy
S| IOUNOYD) By} 818YM UOIBIISIP INOA palaya) aAeY 0} Aj9yI| 8le noA jey) aieme aq o °

"S}IJeW s)| UO palapisuod aq 0} jesodolid ay) Buljgeus siojoe} 8y} Jo || Junodoe
OlUl 8% E} 0} 8in|ie} e Jo uoieulwalep-aid 1o seiq jo Jebuep e Buleq a1y} Jo spunoib
8y} uo sbuipaaoold |ebe] Jo pue uonesnsiuiwpelew jo Buipul e Jo jsu e |Iouno) sy}
Ind M uolsioap ayl ul yed Buye) usayj pue Aem siU} Ul uoljaiasip JnoA Buisje4

"S9pIS Yjoq uo syuswnbie pue aouspire pue uofjejuesald s o010
ay} Buueay Jnok jo pue Ajuoyiny Buiuue|d (8207 oy} 0 Bunesw oy} je 1epew oy}
JO uoljeIapISUOD [ewlo) 0} Joud Jenew Buiuueld Aue uo 9)0A [im noA moy uo ‘(dnoib
AQQo| J0 1Salsjul |eulelxe ue 0} uofiejal ul Apenoted) puiw JnoA dn apew aAey
0} Buueadde Apesjo Jo ‘puiw InoA dn Bupjew Aq pouno) siyj je Bupjew uoisioap

Buiuueid u) eyedioiped o0y Aljige JnoA 810jei8y} pue uonpalIdsIp INOA isapse) juoQ @
'$S920.1d Buluueld ayj ul uopaiasig buepe4 €
"99NILIWOD)

1e Bupjeads ongnd Aue pue sieoo yum Buijesp ul jlesodoid ay)
uo jieyaq JnoA uo joe o0} Juebe ue Aojdwa noA jey} s|gesiApe si i

pue ‘siemod
pejebsjep Jopun si921)0 AQ Yyium }eep Jou pue wae) ulew e se
sanIwwo) buluueld ay) 0} pauodas aq sAemie |im |esodoid ay

‘uoneoldde ay) JO UOISSILIGNS Y} JO BWI} 8y} Uey)
Jale| ou apew aq p|noys JeoiO Buuouuop 8yy 0} uoneouiiou

:Jey; ajou pue uoneoydde umo JInoA
Bumwgns noA jo jusas ayy ul Bunum ul 18O Buuoyuop ay; Ajjou oQg -

("Ase)jeb o1ignd 8yl wol} )l Jo uoeIapIsuoD s Bunesw
8y} 9A19sg0 0} 9|ge ag pjnom o1ignd 8y} JO Jeguaul AIBuIpIO UB sealaym ‘)l
slopisuoo Bunesw a8y} Is|iym Jaquieyo JO WOl 8y} WOol) meipylm 0} aAey
M noA ‘Bunesw e ai0jeq ind aq 03 |esodoud B uil }sai8iul |eipnfaid pue
|euosiad e aABY NOA aloym ‘sjdwexs J04) oiqnd ay; JO JaquisLl |BULIOU B
0} Ajdde pjnom ueyj |esodoid jey Buyuasaidal ul noA uo suoneywl| 1syeslb
seoe|d 1000044 @yl ‘Bupum ul 10 uosied ul ‘Jeoiyo sjeudoidde ue o}
1saJ8)ul [eroipnfaid pue [euossad e aaey noA yoiym ui jesodoid e Ajsnl pue
uiejdxs o3 Bupjess woly pajusAsld Jjou ale noA isjiym eyl eleme aq o( -

'0s op 0} Ajjunuoddo swes 8y} aAeY J0u pjnom djjgnd 8y} Jo slequiaL
18ylo usym siagquiawl Jo siaod1yo yum |esodouid jey) ssnosip 0} uoisod JnoA
Buisn ‘jesodoud e U 1sa1eiul [eipnieid pue |euosied B eABY NOA alaym
‘epnjoul pjnom Siy | "I0[jlounod € se uoilisod JnoA Jo esneosq ‘Jusuliean;
[enualejeld Buinieoas ale noA yulyy o) oignd ey) pes| pinod eyl uoinisod
e ul JjesinoA aoeld Jo ‘yuswieal; enuaisjeld Aue jdesoe 1o yeses juoQ .

‘uoneoldde ay; Jo Buissad0oid ay) ul paAjoAul 386 j.uoQ -

‘pes)sul
0S Op 0} Jequws|y plepp Jayjoue 196 ‘smalA piepp Juesaldes 03 Al juoQ -

‘osodind swes
eyl Joj Bunesw jeyy puspe 0} pemoje osje aie aiqnd ayj 18yl pepiroid
‘1sesojul |eipnfeld B aAey noA yoiym ul uonedidde Buiuued sy 0}
Bunejes aouepine Buialb Jo suonsenb Buusmsue ‘suopejussaidas Bupjew



proposal you will be, or perceived by the public as being, no longer able to act
impartially or to determine the proposal purely on its planning merits.)

Do also be aware that, whilst you may regard yourself as not having a prejudicial
interest in matters which relate to the organisations mentioned below, you must
exercise your discretion in deciding whether or not to participate in each case and
where:

- you have been significantly involved in the preparation, submission or
advocacy of a planning proposal on behalf of:

another local or public authority of which you are a member; or

a body to which you have been appointed or nominated by the
Council as its representative; or

- you are a trustee or company director of the body submitting the
proposal and were appointed by the Council

you should always disclose a prejudicial as well as personal interest and withdraw.

Do consider yourself able to take part in the debate on a proposal when acting as
part of a consultee body (where you are also a member of the parish council, for
example, or both a district/borough and county councillor), provided:

- the proposal does not substantially affect the well being or financial
standing of the consultee body;

- you make it clear to the consultee body that::

your views are expressed on the limited information before you
only;

you must reserve judgement and the independence to make up
your own mind on each separate proposal, based on your
overriding duty to the whole community and not just to the people
in that area, ward or parish, as and when it comes before the
Committee and you hear all of the relevant information; and

you will not in any way commit yourself as to how you or others
may vote when the proposal comes before the Committee; and

you disclose the personal interest regarding your membership or role
when the Committee comes to considers the proposal.

Don’t speak and vote on a proposal where you have fettered your discretion. You
should also withdraw.

Do explain that you do not intend to speak and vote because you have or you could
reasonably be perceived as having judged (or reserve the right to judge) the matter
elsewhere, so that this may be recorded in the minutes. (Use the disclosure form
provided for disclosing interests.)

Do take the opportunity to exercise your separate speaking rights as a Ward/Local
Member where you have represented your views or those of local electors and
fettered your discretion, but do not have a personal and prejudicial interest. Where
you do:

- advise the proper officer or Chairman that you wish to speak in this
capacity before commencement of the item;

- remove yourself from the member seating area for the duration of that
item; and

- ensure that your actions are recorded.

Constitution Julby-2007February 2008 redline

5-21



s

BUTpal 00 AJBTUqeaa£00 AR UORMSUOD

‘Alunuoddo 1saljies ay) je Jebeuey |01U0D
Juswdojeas(g 8y 0} aAIedal NoA aouspuodsaliod Buikqqo] Aue uo ssed 1o Adoo og

‘(Ayjendsoy pue syib uo sojni
s Ajuoyine ay} Y)Im aouepIodoe Uul) GZ3F JOA0 S| anjea s)i asaym Ajendsoy Jo yib ey}
191s1ba1 0} Jequiswal pue 9)qissod se UOOs Se palejoap S| 9oueydadoe s) ‘Wwnwiuiw
e JO S| Jl ainsus ‘@jgeploAeun Ajamua si Ajjeydsoy jo aaibap e j| ‘jesodoid Bujuueid
e Aq pejyaye 1o ul paAjoAul uosiad Aue woly Ajjepdsoy Jo syib jdeooe juoqg

‘Ajijeoo] 10 dnoib ‘Auedwoo
‘uosiad Aue ‘unoaey Apedosdwi o} Jeadde Jo ‘anoAe} Apedoidw jou pinoys noA ey
‘Alenuedwl suoIsIOap a)eW 0} peau ay) Jo Junoooe Bupe; ‘pue piem JnoA ur aidoad
ay; 0} 1snl Jou Ajunwuwioo sjoym ayy 0} si Ajnp BulpLuaao JnoA ey} Jequiswal og

"Buiy} swes ay} 0} SJUNOWE i Jeyl MaIA JO Juiod Wil e yons 1o
Jayjoue 10 Aem auo 9)0A 0} UojUBUI UB SSaldxs 0] Bupjew Uois|osp S,99RILLWO0Y) By}
ul ayedioiged o) Aljige JnoA a1ojaiay) pue Ajjeiuedwi JnoA seolpnfaid I ‘pies Si jeym
0} ua)s!| ued noA isiym ‘yeyy nok Aqqo| oy Bundwepe 1o BulAqqo) esoy; 0y uiejdxs oqg

s10]||19uno’) jo Buikqqo

"9)J0A WBIW sJequispy J8YI0 10 NOA MOy S)e)S 10 MalA Buols
Aue sseidxa jou 1snw noA pue BulAqqol Jo wo} e si uoneluesaid e jey) aieme 8q oQ

‘Ajuoyine Buiuueld sy Jo sspiwwo) ajeudoidde
ay} Aq 1no pauled aq |Im sIyl eyl pue ‘uonedljdde juenbasqgns Aue jo uoleuluLg}ep
pue ajeqap jJo sseo0.d |ewuo} 8y} jo ped jou s) uoneussald ayj jey) Jaguswal oqg

‘sjesodoud
ay} jo Buipueisiepun JnoA BuiAjueo Jo sasodind ay) Joj suonsanb jueAsial yse oq

"s1901yo Aq pasiueblio
usaq sey J Jo/pue jussaid si Jeowo ue ssejun uoneuaseald Buiuueld e pusye j,uog

:s1odojenap/sjuesijdde Aq suonejuasaid Jo jJoadsal ul uonippe uj

9|} Bujuueld sy}
UO paplooal S! SIY) 1By} 2INSuUd PUB ‘Way) Ul JUSWSA|OAUI JNOA puE S}oBju0D
ay) Jo @sodind pue ainjeu 8y} Buluieidxs ‘seiued Jeyjo pue juedjdde ay;
yum joejuoo jueoyiubls Aue sebeuepy jonuo) juswdopas 8yl 0} podal

pue ‘pajorRjuod UBUM S8)ou
g)ew 0} SeoUBISWNDJI0 Y} Ul Juepnid ©q pPiNOM i JOU JO JaYIaym JBpISuod

‘Bulfgqgo] uo sajn ay} Moj|o}
:@SIMIBYI0 0Q

‘senRIWWO) 8y} Aq pasepisuod si uoneddde ay) uaym pasojasip sl Bunesw sy}
JO p10981 ayy.pue o|i uonedldde ey} uo papiodal Apadold si Bunssw sy jey; ‘uonoe
Jo @sinoo Jenoiped Aue 0} Ajuoyine oy} puig Jou |IM SUOISSNISIP 8y} ey} uels
8y} wolj pesiape ale Bunesw ay) je Juesald asoy) jeyl ainsus uayj [iim (s)ieolyo
ay]l ‘u eswebio o} Jebeuejy jonuo) uewdopasg oy 1senbal pinoys Ing jjesinoA
Bunsew jey; abuelie 0} %08s Joadu pjnoys noA ‘sanss| ay) Bulfjuep ul njesn
8q pinom Buesw [ewlo} B ey} |89 NOA aldypA ‘) PIOAB UBD NOA alaym s10308lqo
jo sdnoib Jo siedojpaep ‘sjueoldde yum Bupssw jewuo} Aue o) esibe juo(q

"SJ9O10 0} SJIAPE
|eoiuyos) Jo |einpaoosd ‘Bujuueid 1o} noA yoeoidde ouym asoyy Jojes sAemie o(g

s10309(q O pue siadojaaa(g ‘syueslddy yum joejuod

v



Do promptly refer to the Development Control Manager any offers made to you of
planning gain or constraint of development, through a proposed S106 Planning
Obligation or otherwise.

Do inform the Monitoring Officer where you feel you have been exposed to undue or
excessive lobbying or approaches (including inappropriate offers of gifts or
hospitality), who will in turn advise the appropriate officers to follow the matter up.

Do note that, uniess you have a personal and prejudicial interest, you will not have
fettered your discretion or breached this Probity in Planning Protocol through:

- listening or receiving viewpoints from residents or other interested parties;

- making comments to residents, interested parties, other Members or
appropriate officers, provided they do not consist of or amount to pre-
judging the issue and you make clear you are keeping an open mind;

- seeking information through appropriate channels; or

- being a vehicle for the expression of opinion or speaking at the meeting as
a Ward Member, provided you explain your actions at the start of the
meeting or item and make it clear that, having expressed the opinion or
ward/local view, you have not committed yourself to vote in accordance
with those views and will make up your own mind having heard all the
facts and listened to the debate.

Lobbying by Councillors

Don’t become a member of, lead or represent an organisation whose primary
purpose is to lobby to promote or oppose planning proposals. If you do, you will
have fettered your discretion and are likely to have a personal and prejudicial
interest and have to withdraw.

Do join general interest groups which reflect your areas of interest and which
concentrate on issues beyond particular planning proposals, such as the Victorian
Society, CPRE, Ramblers Association or a local civic society, but disclose a
personal interest where that organisation has made representations on a particular
proposal and make it clear to that organisation and the Committee that you have
reserved judgement and the independence to make up your own mind on each
separate proposal

Don’t excessively lobby fellow councillors regarding your concemns or views nor
attempt to persuade them that they should decide how to vote in advance of the
meeting at which any planning decision is to be taken

Don’t decide or discuss how to vote on any application at any sort of political group
meeting, or lobby any other Member to do so. Political Group Meetings must never
dictate how Members should vote on a planning issue.

i

Site Inspections
Do try to attend Site Inspections organised by the Council where possible.

Don’t request a Site Inspection unless you feel it is strictly necessary because:

particular site factors are significant in terms of the weight attached to them relative
to other factors or the difficulty of their assessment in the absence of a site
inspection; or

there are significant policy or precedent implications and specific site factors need
to be carefully addressed.

Constitution July-2007February 2008 redline

5-23



¥e-S

BUlpel go0z AenIqaL£00ZAA1 uomysuo

"SI9QUIBJN SN JO S3RIWILIOYD 8Y) JO SUOISIOap JO suojuldo ‘SMaIA 8y} Ulim Sppo
1B 8Q UoISea20 uo Aew yoiym ‘eouspuadapul |euoissajoid jo uonebijqo Buipuiano
19y} JO siseq 8y} uo pajussald aqg (Im suonepuswiwodal pue suoudo ‘smela
SsJoowo Buuueld ‘Jnsal B Sy "JoNpuo) |BUOISS9J0Id JO 8p0) S.eImisu| Buluueld
umo] |ehoy oy Aewnud ‘onpuod JO s8pod [euoissajold Jleyl pue Jonpuod
JO 8p0D S1921YO S.JIoUn0D 8y} Yim aoueploooe ul joe jsnw siepew buuueld jo
uoneulualep pue Buissasold ayy ul paAjoAUl S192140 Jey) 10adsal pue asiubodal oqg o

‘|oAd| Joaquis|y e je |esodoid ay; yum [esp
0} Jebeuepy sielodion ay; Ag pasUoyIne ale oym SJaollo asoy) Jo Jabeuepy |013u0D
wawdoprsg oyl ‘(YyesH |eluswuolAug pue jonuo) Buping ‘uswdorsq)
Jabeuely eojelodion oy ywm ‘Bupesw pebueue Aue jo episjno ‘jesodoid
B sSnosip Ajuo pue ainjonJs juswebeuew e jo ped aie s1821o jeyy asiuboosal oqg .

‘(podal
oapIWwoo Aue ojul psjelodiooul aq Aew yoiym ‘Jebeuepy jonuon juswdoleasq
ay} 0} smaian Bumpwgns Jo suopsenb Bupise woly noA jueasid jou seop

siy]) ‘uonepuswwooal Jenojted e plemo) ind 0) s1eoo uo ainssaid nd juoQ .
Si0O ‘6
‘Bunjeads

olignd jo joadses ur sainpsooid s jounod ayl yum Aldwod nok jey; sunsus oqQ o

‘selq Jo aoueseadde ay) aAIb 03 Aj9¥| SI SIY) se
‘Bupjeads ongnd 1o} awayos oy} ybnoiy) ueyy sayio (Bunum ul Jo Ajjeso) sbuipesooid
s, 99IWWOoY) 8y} Buunp noA yim ajesiunwiiod 0} o1jgnd a8y} Jo siaquiaw mojje juog °

sBbupeay Je Bupjeads oljqnd '8

‘SIISIA

alis uo sajnt aonoeird poob asay) yim Aldwoo |IIm NoA ainsua ueo noA
pue (31} 8y} UO paplodal 8q ||IM UYdIym) AUm pue 0s op 0} Uonuajul

InoA jnoge sebeuely jonuon juswdojeasq oy} 0} usyods jsily aaey noA
pue uonoadsu| 8)1S [BIoIL0 8y}

Buipuane ybnoiy; uey) Jayjo als ay) NUSIA 0} NOA 10} [enuasss si Jl |98 NoA

:$89|Un seiq

Jo uoissaidwi ayy aaIb Aew siyj Se ‘uonejAul ue 0} asuodsal ul usAs ‘uonoadsu|

ayIs [eoiyo ue jo ped se uey; Jayjo jesodolid e 0} 108[qns s! yoiym alis e 1sjuse juoqg e
"‘auoAue 0} sSmala J0 suojuido ssaidxs j,uoQ °

"Juase.d 19010 U} LWIojU] JO 0} Wy} 198lip pue Ajuoyine ey 0} Bupum
ul suonejuasaldal exew pinoys Asyl jeyy weyy asiape ‘Aued paiuj e Jo juedidde
ay} Aq payoeoidde aie noA aleyp ‘Aued Jeyjo Aue wolj suonejussaldal Jeay juog .

‘uonoedsu| 8)iS 8yl O} JUBAS|aS 848 UYOIYM Siepew uo
WISy} WO} UOiBoIIEID Yoos JO suonsenb uonoadsu) 8} 8y} 18 s1ediyo 8y} yse oq .

"B)IS 8U) 8AI9SUO 0} pUB UOjjeLLIoU
¥o8s 0} Ajunpoddo ue se Ajuo uondedsu| 8)g 8yl jeal] NOA ey} ainsus og °

uonjeoijdde ay) o} buifjdde suonelapisuod [elsjew ay) Jo J0adsal
Ul UONBWIOU| SWES 8} BARY SIOqUUS ||B 1By} 0S ‘9aliluo)) ay) 0} 3oeq pauodal
S| uopoadsu| 8)g oyl woy paueb noA yoym uoneuojul Aue jeyl einsue og =



10.

11.

Decision Making

Do ensure that, if you request a proposal to go before the Committee rather than be
determined through officer delegation, that your reasons are recorded and repeated
in the report to the Committee.

Do come to meetings with an open mind and demonstrate that you are open-
minded.

Do comply with section 38 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and
make decisions in accordance with the Development Plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise.

Do come to your decision only after due consideration of all of the information
reasonably required upon which to base a decision. If you feel there is insufficient
time to digest new information or that there is simply insufficient information before
you, request that further information. If necessary, defer the application.

Don’t vote or take part in the meeting’s discussion on a proposal unless you have
been present to hear the entire debate, including the officers’ introduction to the
matter.

Do have recorded the reasons for Committee’s decision to defer any proposal.

Do make sure that if you are proposing, seconding or supporting a decision
contrary to officer recommendations or the development plan that you clearly
identify and understand the planning reasons leading to this conclusion/decision.
These reasons must be given prior to the vote and be recorded. Be aware that you
may have to justify the resulting decision by giving evidence in the event of any
challenge.

Do ensure that if you request an application to go before the Committee rather be
determined by officer delegation that your reasons on planning grounds are
submitted to officers in writing, preferably within the 21 day consultation period.

Training

Don’t participate in decision making at meetings dealing with planning matters if
you have not attended the mandatory planning training prescribed by the Council.

Do endeavour to attend any other specialised training sessions provided, since
these will be designed to extend your knowledge of planning law, regulations,
procedures, Codes of Practice and the Development Plans beyond the minimum
referred to above and thus assist you in carrying out your role properly and
effectively.

Do participate in the annual review of a sample of planning decisions to ensure that
Members™ judgements have been based on proper planning considerations.

Constitution July-2007February 2008 redline

5-25



9¢-§

aulpel g0z MEIGedAH02ARf UoMASUCD

‘Ajda1 0} Aylunpoddo ey
aAeY Aay} jey} ainsua 0} pajoruCD o4 ||m Jued)dde ay) yeads 0} pusjul $J0309[qo J|

0}, 8q OS|E ||iM 90B|d pajedo|eal au} Joj, Sem Uohelisibal [euiblio ag)
J o1 SISeq ayl] 10} 9%1] 8} U0 94 |IM UOEJ0[[eal Jons 1gnop JO S0UBPIOAE 8y} J04)
Eads 0] peysSIM SABY SSIMISLI0 PiNOM OUM Juasald oljgnd oy} JO Joquiall Jayjoue
0] 90B|d bunjeads Jey; ejedo|jeal 0] UonaIosip a4) oAy [[eys Jieqy ay) bunesaw
8} pusne 0] sjiej] g yeeds 0] palejsibal sey ojqnd eyl Jo Jequiall & SJoUpA

‘sjulod Jiayj ssouoe nd ued Asyj JI 88s 0} J0||IDUN0)
pPJEAA U} JOBJUOD PINOYS 99)IWIWOD Y} O} UMOUY SMSIA 1oy} ayew o} Buiysim
uosied e palo)sibel Apealje aaey ajdoad om) jey) jueAse ayj u| “Aojjod  peanies
1811} 2WO09 js11), B 9jetado [|Im [10UN0D 8Y| ‘pieay g Jou |Im suonejussaidal sjen

(62288 $0910) @aniwwo) Buluueld ‘1900

seoineg Buneeyy 8y} Jo uonuBe By} JO} [IDUNOD 8y} 0} JONDIOS 8yl .0} xe} Ag
‘" AOD UOJdWEBUHOUDISe0IAIoSShIW (0} [lew-8 Ag
29RILIWO0YD

Buiuueld ‘oo seo1eg Buneeyy oyl Jo uonusye oyl Joj ‘Ial LNN
uoydweypoN ‘alenbg sa|i9 1S ‘|leypiing 8y L ‘[UN0Y dy) 0} JOYoloS 0} Bupum u

(GGE/€8 10 8G£/€8 ¥09L0)  :euoydele]
:AQ ©q ued uonessibey

eads
01 UONU3aIU] JI9y) JO bUn@all aU) JO JUSWISoUsLIWIod ay) 0] Joud Jieyy) syl AJjou [[eus
SIO[[IPUN0) PIEAA  "Slojjiounod plep) Buipatoutideoxe ‘siexeads (e o} saidde siyl
"9ORILIWOY JO ABp 98U} UO UOOU Z| UBY} Jaje| Jou JusAe Aue Ul pue a|qissod se uoos
Se ||leypiing Y] 18 uonoes seoines Bunsspy oyl yum JejsiBal 0} Alesseosu Si i

ONINVIdS ¥O0d SLNIFWIONVHIV

"Sejeja) UoNEeol|dde ey eale asouMm Ul |louno) ysued e Jo aAljejuasaldal vy -

selepunoq s,|louno) ybnolog uojdweyuoN
uiypm Aousniisuoo Jiay) Jo ped 1o sjoym syl Yim Juswieled JO SIsquisiy o

‘(yeads 0} Jojjlounoy) 8njIsgns e

ajeulwou Aew Asy} ‘espniwiwo) Buluue|d 8y} uo }IS SI0[jIdUN0Y PIEAA Ylog
JI) esniwwo) Buuueld 8yl JO Slequiawl JOU 8l OymM SIO0||Idunod pIEpA °

epusby ay} uo Jepew |eipnl-isenb Jayjo Aue 10 uonepuswILIcIal

Jusweoiojue ue  ‘uopedydde  Buuueld [enpiaipul ue  poddns
0} ysim oym sidoad om} 03 dn pue 03 }199[qo 0} ysim oym ajdoad omy 01 dn o

SONILIIN FILLINNOD ONINNVId LV MVIdS NVO ONIMOT104 FHL

SONILLIIN F3LLININOD ONINNVTId LV ONIIVIdS

XION3ddV

A

L



2. PROCEDURE AT THE MEETING

A planning officer may update the written committee report then those objecting to
or supporting the application and Ward Councillors will be invited to speak.

A planning officer may summarise issues before the matter is debated by the
Planning Committee Members and a vote taken.

21 TIME

All speakers are allowed to speak for a maximum of three minutes.

2.2 NOTES
e Speakers are only allowed to make statements. They may not ask
questions or enter into dialogue with Councillors, officers or other
speakers.
. Consideration of an application will not be delayed simply because

someone who has registered to speak is unable to attend the meeting.

o Addresses should only be about planning issues and should not refer to
non-planning issues such as private property rights, moral issues, loss of
views or effects on property values.

o Fresh material may not be circulated to the Councillors which has not first
been seen by officers of the planning section.

Constitution July-2007February 2008 redline
5-27






Part 8

Delegations to Officers by the
Council, its Cabinet and Committees

Constitution July 2007
8-1



0Z-8

2002 Ainr uonnigsuod

's9o1yaA ally ayeAld pue sebelued
Aeuxoey Jo j0adsal ul 9761 PV (SUOISINOIH SNOBUR|I9ISIA) JUSWIUIBAOS)
|00 8y} jJo g9 uopdeg o) juensind siojadsu)] dpIysA bBunuioddy

SMOUS PUB SUOBIQIYXe JB SaSSauUISNg pue saped) [iejad 1o} sinoy Buisolo
ayl Builien siepiQ JO juswpuswe Jo [emausl ‘uelb sy Buuwsleq

(1010811 JuBASJS1 AUB UlIM UOHEINSUOD Ja)ie) °
pue !s19AuUp aaly ajeAld s

! s9[oIyeA aily areaud B

¢ s10jesodo aly ayeaud o

‘s1onup abeles Asuxoey o

‘sebeled Aauoey o

-110} S20USD| JO JUSWIPUSWE JO [emausl ‘Juelb ay) Buluiuiejeq

"@apwwod ajeudoidde sy jo Bunesw
Xau ey} 0} Joud aoe|d 8B} 0} UONDS0D B JOS PaAddal ale suonedidde
aJeym sapueyo palsisibal 0} sjpued uonos|on 1sans Jo Buinss) syl

‘ybnoiog
uoydweyuoN Jo eale ayj JO Sjueligeyul sy} Jo S}salajul 8y} Jo uoposiold 10
uonowoid sy} Joj Jusipadxe palspISuod S| ) alaym saAel JO seed asnoy
pioe Jo suosiad jueasjal Joyjo Jo siesiuebio sy jsuiebe sbBuipsssoid
10 uopoe Alessedau Jayjo Aue JO suopounful @ouswwod 0} Jamod 8y

"SUOIJ3IqO PI|EA DUIPUB}SING OU Je 818y} aJauMm
SIopi() UoneAlosaeld @el] 'UleeH [ejeusloliAUg puUe |oJjuos) buipjing

i1

vl

7l

‘€l

C

JUSlWdo[eAa(q © Jebeuepy 8jelodio) oyl JO SOIAPE oUj U0 DUlliguod Z 2z L1

IJESH |ejUaliuolAUg g JOIJUOD) Bulpjing 'JualldojoAe(] Jebeuepy

8]e10dI0) o) JO SJIApE 8] U0 Siepl() UONeAlald o8i] 10 DUMEWN L 2 L1

. "UllesH |ejuswiuosaug B jo4uo) Buipling ‘Juswdojeasq ‘1ebeuepy
8jei0dio) eyl JO aJIApE 8y} UO SIeplQ uopeAlesald 991 jo Bunep

‘'sa|es asnoy
AiejunjoA Jo sewayas Aue pue uope|sibs| ,Ang o3 by, oy} Bunuswe|dw|

i

0l



Planning Act 1990 and the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation
Areas) Act 1990, except:

2.1.1 Any applications called in for determination by Planning Committee by any
Member of the Council, following a written request which gives a planning
reason for the call-in. (For this purpose, a list of new applications will be
regularly circulated to all Councillors which will specify a date in relation to
each application by which any call-in request must be made. A Councillor
may subsequently withdraw a call-in request at any time before the
application appears on a published Committee agenda.)

2.1.2 Any application which would otherwise be delegated to the Corporate
Manager but which the Corporate Manager considers should come before
the Planning Committee

2.1.3 Any application made by a Member or a person who has been a Member
within the five years prior to making the application, or a relative or partner
of such a person

2.1.4 Any application made by an officer/employee of the Council, or a person
who has been an officer/employee in the 5 years prior to making the
application, or a relative or partner of such a person

2.1.5 Any application involving the Borough Council either as applicant or
landowner, either on its own, or jointly with another party .

2.22.2Making responses to the West Northamptonshire Development |
Corporation on planning applications for which they are the determining
authority where this would not prejudice the policies and provisions of the
Development Plan or have other strategic consequences, including its impact
on or prejudice to the Councils strategic or corporate priorities. |

2.3 To advise the Solicitor to the Council to make and confirm a Tree Preservakion
Order.

3.1 To accept and agree minor amendments to planning permissions.

3.2 To make application for planning permission on behalf of the Council.

3.3 To determine an application for a determination of whether a prior
approval of the Council is required to the method of proposed demolition
and any proposed restoration.

3.4 To determine whether prior approval is required to the siting and
appearance of telecommunication apparatus and to determine such

Constitution July 2007
8-10



sban ‘Gonvcy |;
W éﬁ WIL—‘H ]

@ AOdECEL | o CELUARIGU OV RRUSI D) g Denkay
woeky, sug adves Wi L 1o Dol heuitsoue
.:;a-_:ﬁ_
[ SOREE B FORGHOL O (1 COnua 0 0aye BUG S0 S S piese )
r
DLSIGiteE O jUs CONe . Jonay OLjIs2!
LIRS AT T, LG . tis - vrednsLeay ol ye mubecy
Bl HhE A L A aue of e
1 i el Ss I CpEeuLITLti0
LIS r b WS [isAasiobuisy;
Sy fire W= A0hgc L
oL buoe | TOTS
b Lt Y] - T
- ¥ LY = 3 o .lll._
= J l; L 1
| L = i -r aj LA d T}
GLELI14fR (SR I I Narlf; 58
1= HIL :‘- - )2 UL [ e

mum M MIIDU
uhd-‘.pmmpau O MpaE ¢ Buod



Appendices: 1

Rgendagtem 8

COUNCIL
12 May 2008

Agenda Status: Public Directorate: Chief Executive’s
Report Title MEETINGS CYCLE 2008/09
1. Summary

To seek Council's approval to the Meetings Cycle for 2008/09.

2. Recommendations

That the Meetings Cycle for 2008/09 be approved as amended by Cabinet on 6 May 2008.
3. Report Background

Following a wide ranging consultation process Cabinet considered the report which is appended
on 6 May 2008.

4. Implications (including financial implications)
4.1 Resources and Risk

None.

4.2 Legal

None.

4.3 Other Implications

Agreeing the Meetings Cycle allows members and officers to plan for the year ahead. It also
allows meetings to be advertised to the general public well in advance.

5. Background Papers

N/A

Report Author and Title:  F McGown, Meetings Services Team Leader
Telephone and Email: 837101; fmcgown@northampton.gov.uk

O:\LegaltF MCGOWN\COUNCIL\Report 12 05 08 - Meetings Cycle 2008-09.doc



> Item No.
Appendices
1
CABINET REPORT
Report Title MEETINGS CYCLE 2008/09
AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC
Cabinet Meeting Date: 6 May 2008
Key Decision: NO
Listed on Forward Plan: NO
Within Policy: NO
Policy Document: NO
Directorate: Chief Executive
Accountable Cabinet Member: Councillor Woods
Ward(s) N/A
1. Purpose

1.1 Torecommend to Council the adoption of Meetings Cycle for 2008/09.

2. Recommendations

2.1 That Council approve the Meetings Cycle for 2008/09.

3. Issues and Choices

3.1 Report Background
The attached Meetings Cycle (Appendix A) has been drawn up following
extensive consultation and follows the usual conventions previously accepted
by the Council. The main points are:-

3.1.1 Cabinet is moved to a three weekly cycle. This is in recognition of the amount
of business coming forward and the need over recent months to arrange a
number of extra meetings.

Wsmemservw2k3.nbcdomain.nbe.gov.ukimgDataRootiAgendaltemDocs\1\6\8141000248611MeetingCycle200809Report060508.
doc



3.1.2 The proposed budget cycle of meetings during December, January and

3.1.3

February follows the same pattern established during this municipal year.

Mini cycles of Audit, Cabinet and Council have been programmed for June of
both years and September for agreeing the Statement of Accounts as done in
previous years.

3.2 Issues
On 29 September 2008 Cabinet and Council both meet on the same evening.
Whilst the Cabinet is an ordinary meeting it will consider the Final Statement
of Accounts and will make a recommendation to Council. The Council has
been called to confirm acceptance of the Final Statement of Accounts. It is
suggested that Cabinet commence at 5.00pm on this occasion and Council at
7.00pm. (There is a statutory deadline of 30 September for this).

3.3 Choices (Options)
None.

4. Implications (including financial implications)

41 Policy

This report follows existing precedent.

4.2 Resources and Risk
There will be an increase in costs of printing and distributing Cabinet agendas
by virtue of the increased frequency of meetings although it is anticipated that
these costs can be contained within the existing budgets.

4.3 Legal
None.

44 Equality
None.

4.5 Consultees (Internal and External)

Mayor — no comment.

Group Leaders — no comment.

All Councillors — 2 comments re alterations, which have been accommodated.
Group Whips — none.

Chief Executive & Directors — 2 comments re public holiday weeks and the
need for meetings by particular deadlines, which have been accommodated.
Corporate Managers — none.

Head of Finance — Included in Director's comments.

Revenues, Benefits Partnership Co-ordinator — no comment.

Neighbourhood Partnership & Forums Co-ordinator — request not to include
Women’s or Youth Forum pending discussions about the future of these
meetings — accommodated.

Overview & Scrutiny Officer — no comment.

Development Control Assistant Manager — to maintain four-weekly cycle —
accommodated.

People Development Manager — to include Member Development Dates —
accommodated. :

NCC - none.

WWsmemservw2k3.nbedomain.nbe.gov.ukimgDataRootiAgendaltemDocs\1\6\81A10002486 1\MeetingCycle200809Report060508.

doc



4.6 How the Proposals deliver Priority Outcomes
Not directly, although the business of individual meetings themselves will give
effect to or report on the Improvement Plan, Corporate Strategy, Corporate
Plan etc themselves.

4.7 Other Implications
None.

5. Background Papers

5.1 None.

F McGown
Meetings Services Team Leader

Wsmemservw2k3.nbcdomain.nbe.gov.ukimgDataRoot\AgendaltemDocs' 11618\A100024861\MeetingCycle200809Report060508.

doc



200'Z UISIBA B00Z-8D0Z BI9AD HUEIVTTIAD SONILIFWNSIDIAYIS SONILIIRnEIa O

Aepsan|
0¢ Repuopy
ft i g W Le U 62 Aepung
HEHHi e HitiHitiitiin 6e I 0g I 82 Aepinjeg
I 0 T 82 fHHEIH N LE TR BT HIHIINEIN L2 Aepu4

00'tL 1D 2id

TNINNOD/AYD
¢SO B2 LSO L2 N3d 02 8¢ LE @ N3Id 92 Aepsinyj
S1d 82 5 92 62 d e d 0€ 1SO Gz | Aepssupap
2142 0t S1d 52 d9 B2 ovd 0 001 GNSS 92 d9 62 Y OldN ¥2 ABpsan |

{00°61) @ TIONNOD
0071 1D 8Id 009l V0 2id

£50 92 62 CldN ¥#C TIONNOD L2 (00°21) avo 62 BRI SE £1dN 82 £C Aepuojy
A S B2 THITETTT €T HIHI I 92 S B2 T A I L2 I € Aepung
FHRTTTIN ¥e [N L2 H 2C B T4 U LT NI €2 HE T B 4 Aepinjeg
I €2 Keq Buxog 9z FHHRTE Ve I Ve fH T 82 Ittt 22 I G2 I 0 Keply
N3d 0ldN 22 AeQ SEWSUYD G2 aw 0g £c Vv 52 an g L4 25061 Aepsiny |
LSO LE |44 d 61 i=R44 d ¥2 0c ZlLdN £2 6dN 81 | AEpsaupap

d9
B6dN 02 4 B6dN Bl 00'¥L GNSS LE J1EC 6L J1¢e 00'FL GNSS G921 21 Aepsen |

00°%1L 10 8id
TIONNOD 6L | 0€'91 GvD 8ld gvo 22 AdN 2L | 0£'9L g¥D 8ld gv0 02 alsée 8l 10 814 TIONNQD L2 als gl ABpUuopy
I 8L [t 12 T 9L I Bl Mt e |eAlsad uoojeg /L1 MR 02 I Sl Aepung
I L) I Q2 SHIE S I B [T 02 |[BANSa4 UCojleg 91 KT B M 1 Aepinjes
HIHIH I 9L I 6L T v L I L) HHHIHTE 6L |EAlIS84 UOO|[BY G| TN BL I €L AEpL
8dN S aJ.Ls 8l €l aw 9L dW N3d 8L 145 Ll [4" AepsinyL
d vl Id L1 8dN 2} Sl L1S0 2L £l ] 8dN LI | Aepsaupsm
LZdNEL | 00°0L gNSS LLdN 9L WSO LL ZLdN vl 6dN 91 43 13 o101 Aepsan |
0E°9L gv¥D 8id
avyo 2L ELdN Gl | 0£°9L g0 3id gvD 0} ELdN €L Sl LI | 0E91 V0 3id gvd ¥l S1d 6 Aepuopy
At L I ) HITITR 6 RN 2L I L ST DL I €L HIIHH I 8 Aepung
Wi oL I L SN 8 Hn 1L I €L I 6 HIE 2L M L Aepinjeg
HIHIININ 6 L A TR L KA 0L I 2L [T 8 S L IR 9 Aepl
840718 OLdAN LL 84919 280 6 8dN |1 7 0l S AepsinyL
/ €S0 01 5 siae g971 0} 9 LLdN 6 7d ¥ | Aepseupaph
9 016 v LLdN 2 d9) 6 S 8 WSO € Aepsan|
00'¥L TO ®id 0€° 1L dST1

S TIONNOD 8 £ 9| 00FLID 84 IPUN0D 8 | 0E'9L g¥08id vl ¥ 0£1LLdST14 | 029 8YDaldavde Kepuopy
SHHIN T v A I € I S I L T € TSR 9 | - T L ABpung
M € M 9 HHHER T HHH I v I 9 I 2 TN G I Le Aepimeg
HIII I € M G HHHTT € T Tt L I % WA 0g ABpLS
AB(Q SJBOA MBN | (421084 OldN € 4 £S0¢€ OYH 62 Aepsiny |
dD OV € £SO L AN E 1de 87 | Aepsaupaph
ve WsoZ L v /2 Repsen]
0£'9L g¥deiddvD L DE'9L geD A avd | 9¢ AEPUOW

Adenuep Jaquasag 120UIBADN 13qo150 lequiydag 1enbny Anp aunp

60/800C 3TOAD ONILITW LIVHA

dALSVIN




a|qeIewl | [004OS 9Y) PuncIe paseq aq o) s3ieq
WNIoS YINOA — JA
aN

Ayenb3 aoey — vy

juawdolaae siequepn — aw

0g:2) wnio- pe|gesiq - Sia

0g:g1 wnio4 sjdoad |enxesig g Aec) ‘ueigse — g9
00:7) Wnio4 sieuolsuad — N3d

0€:¢) Wniog SUsWom — WOM

pieog uoydweypion JaBuong Jajes - GNSS
diysiaupied 2169jeng 2007 — 487

00:81 sesoding |B18uas) — 49

(0£:61 18 £L.dN 1d39x%3)
00:61 1€ ||e sdiysiauped poounoqubiay — dN
00:8L PNy — ¥
00:8 eapuWo)

juswabeuey AUNNIDS § MBIAIBAQ — N SO

00:gL soueuly
¥ 90UBULIONa “Juswanosdw) :AUNnIoS g maasa0 — £80
00:g} JuswuoNAuT B BuisnoH :AuNIIS ¥ MBIAIBAQD — 280

00:81 Wwewebebuz p Asjes
‘uonessusbsy ‘sdiysiauped :Aunniog $ masn0 — LSO
00:41 spiepugis —d1s

00:81 1BUIgED —avD

00:g1 @anjwwo) Buisusor] — o7
00:8} Buuueld —7d

081 1OUNOD =10

SJUNODY JO JuBWBIElS [BUl4 §
SJUND2Y JO JUBWSIRIG [BNUUY ©
lounonebpng +

Bumes xe| |ounosy

30p°Z UOISISA 500Z-8002 BI040 HUBIENITOAD SONILITMNSIOIAYTS SONILIINIETE O

Aepsen | 1
Aepuopy LE 0€
Repuns | i og I A e KK 6e
AepIMIES | [l 62 TR M og TN B2 | (N 8¢
Repud | Mttt 8e I LE T R T TN 22 | IR Le
AepsIny L 4 o€ 8¢ €S0 0€ 9 ++ TIONNCD 8¢
Aepsoupsp 1d 92 d 62 4 ¢ldN 62 6dN ST 14
Aepsan | S¢ d9 8¢ o€ 9¢ 8¢ e ¥e
0E'9l gvD 8id
AepijoH @ 7IONNOD AepijoH 0E'9L gvd 8ld 0€'9l gvD =id
Aepuopy jueg 3snbny ¥ EldN L2 1990 6¢ yueg Bundg 6z av0 L2 £ avo ee
RepuUNS | it €2 | Mttty 92 | ST 8 | HEIHIIIRIE $2 | IR 92 | IR 22 | I 22
ACPIMES | NI €2 | W G2 | I L2 | R CT | RGN S | BN Ve | iR e
Repud | fassitiiitinst Ve | aitiiiininitiint w2 | a2 | BRI 22 | I R | I O | i 0g
AepsinyL 0¢ £¢ N3d 52 TONY LE 2SO £¢ N3d 84N 61 +8v2 61
Aepsaupap 6l 44 LSO v 0¢ LLdN 22 d9 8l 8l
AepssnL 8l ZldN LE OLdN €2 SId 6L 8971 1¢ 0141 Vil
0£'9L gvD &8ld 0€'91 gv0 8id 00°FL 1D 8id 0€'9} av0 =ld
Aepuopy L1 avd 0¢ 44 avo 8l TIONNOD 02 avo 91 €LdN 91
RBpUNS | ittty OV | Wi 6L | HUHEIIIE Ve | TG LV | BN B | SRR S | R S
Repames | [ Sy | it 8L | BRI OZ | SRR OV | TN 8L | BRI YL | R v
Repud | it vV | snniiiiii AN | KR 8L | I SV | BRI LN | I eV | R €L
Aepsiny| an el £80 91 8l aw OvH pL an gt aw g91¢l ancet
Aepsaupap 4} Sl 6dN L1 LdN €L Sl Id bi ad L1
Aepsen| L o1vl d9 €89191 cl Pl Siaol ¢LdN O}
00t 10 8d
Aepuop 0k TIDNNOD €1 alts st WSOLL | Aepuop seised ¢ alse 6
Aepung R L AR W A W TR Reqisyseq gl | dHiiiinininig 8 WG 8
ARpINES | I 8 | R L | S €L R R W L R W L L L L A N W A
RepUd [ JHARHIEIIIEE L | IR QL | IHHIHERERET L | R 8 Repld pooSy QL | AHHMIIIIE 9 | iy 9
Aepsiny | 9 an 6 anw Ll L 6 VY S S
Aepsaupap S LEdN 8 8dN 0L d 9 d 8 LdN ¥ do ¥
Aepseny 4 L 216 €LldN § OLdN £ WSO € LLdN €
0£'9L g¥0 8id 0€°9L ged ald 001 10 @ld 0£°91 gv0 3ld
Aepuopy £ 9 gavo 8 Aeq Aep ¢ avo g JIONNOD € avo z
Repung | ittt € | HEHIEEINER S | IR L R € | SR S | I L | R )
Apames | gyt L | s v | I Q| AT 2 | R v -
Aepud B R W L I V| Wi €
Repsiny L zs0¢ v (4
Aepsaupapy ad | d € LSO |
Aepsen| Ye
00°'v1 10 =id
Aepuopy IJuUNcy |
18nBny Anp sunp ARy 1ady yolep Areniga4

60/8002 3TOAD ONILIAW LdVHd
H3ALSVIN




Appendices:1 l-l|!"|l-l Q%Q‘q\% Bem 9

il

NORTHAMPTON
BOROUGH COUNCIL

COUNCIL
12 May 2008

Agenda Status: Public Department: Solicitor to the Council

Report Title Senior Management Restructure Delegations to the Chief
Executive

1. Summary

The purpose of this report is to report Cabinet’s decisions in relation to its delegations to the
Chief Executive and to report Cabinet’s specific recommendations that Full Council delegate
to the Chief Executive certain powers to enable him to implement the new Senior
management structure.

2. Recommendations

2.1 Full Council note Cabinet’s decision to delegate to the Chief Executive its (Cabinet’s)
relevant powers in relation to implementing the staff structure (recommendations 2.3
and 2.5 of appendix 1 attached).

2.2 Full Council note Cabinet’s decision to recommend to Full Council that it delegates all
its (Full Council’s) relevant powers to the Chief Executive in relation to implementing
the staff structure (recommendations 2.4 and 2.5).

2.3  Full Council delegate to the Chief Executive all Full Council’s powers (non-executive
powers) necessary to enable him to progress all relevant processes necessary to
implement the structure.

2.4  Full Council requires that the above delegations are undertaken in consultation with
the Leader of the Council, relevant Portfolio Holders as appropriate, the Chair of
General Purposes Committee and the Leaders of the two minority groups of the
Council.

3. Report Background

3.1 Cabinet considered and agreed the senior management structure on 6 May 2008. A
copy of the report to Cabinet is attached at appendix 1.

D:\modernGov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\0\1\Al00025106\councilreport12mayrestruccover0.doc




3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

Currently under the Constitution and the general law, decisions in relation to
restructures and the detailed implementation processes are split between Cabinet and
Full Council (or its sub-committees). Cabinet can make certain executive decisions in
relation to the structures but cannot make decisions that require, for example the
appointment of staff or the terms upon which they hold office. This means that broad
staff structures can be agreed by Cabinet under its executive authority, but where
detailed employment terms are concerned, for example the determination of the
grades and associated documentation, these need to be agreed by Full Council or
particular sub-committees, for example General Purposes or the Appointment and
Appeals Committee.

Cabinet considered and agreed the senior management structure on 6th May 2008
(see appendix 1). Cabinet also delegated to the Chief Executive all Cabinet’'s powers
necessary to implement the structure. Cabinet further recommended to Full Council
that it delegates its (Full Council’s) implementation powers to the Chief Executive.
The reasons for so doing are to enable the Chief Executive to deal with the restructure
as smoothly and expeditiously as possible.

If the delegations are agreed, the Chief Executive will have the powers to make the
decisions required to implement the structure including a review of the terms and
conditions of relevant staff. The decisions will, of course, be made using established
consultation mechanisms, for example with staff and Unions. In addition the Chief
Executive will be required to consult the various members outlined in recommendation
2.4 above.

For the avoidance of doubt the actual appointments of Chief Officers will not be made
under delegated powers but will be made by the Appointments and Appeals
Committee.

4. Implications (including financial implications)
4.1 Resources and Risk

These are covered in the body of the Cabinet report attached at appendix 1. Given the stage
of the restructure it is not possible to provide further details at this stage.

4.2 Legal

The Chief Executive is the Council’s Head of Paid Service, for the purposes of Section 4 of
the Local Government and Housing Act 1989. As such he has statutory responsibilities to
report to the Council the organisation of the Council’s staff including the number and grades
of staff required by the authority for the discharge of its functions. Delegations sought in this
report are consistent with that duty.

4.3 Other Implications

None specifically

D:\modernGov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\0\1\Al00025106\councilreport12mayrestruccover0.doc



5. Background Papers

FJF File Constitution

Report Author and Title: Francis Fernandes Solicitor to the Council
Telephone and Email: 01604 837334 ffernandes@northampton.gov.uk

D:\modernGov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\6\0\1\Al00025106\councilreport12mayrestruccover0.doc



Item No.
Appendices =yt
3|o|o <3 2% 12
()

NORTHAMPTON

BOROUGH COUNCIL

CABINET REPORT
Report Title SENIOR MANAGEMENT RESTRUCTURING
AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC

Cabinet Meeting Date:

Key Decision:

Listed on Forward Plan:
Within Policy:

Policy Document:

Directorate:

Accountable Cabinet Member:

Ward(s)

6th MAY 2008

YES

YES

YES

NO

Chief Executive

Councillor Woods

NONE SPECIFICALLY

1. Purpose

1.1 The purpose of this report is to make proposals with regard to the second stage
of senior management restructuring following agreement by the Cabinet on 28th
January 2008 of the first stage of proposals. The purpose of the restructuring is to
align the Council’s management capacity with its priorities and to ensure that the
Council has the necessary management capacity arranged in a structure geared
to meeting the Council’s ambition to be amongst the best Councils in the country

by 2013.

2. Recommendations

2.1Cabinet is recommended to agree the Senior Management Structure outlined in
this report, replacing the Council’s existing Senior Management Structure.

2.2 Cabinet is recommended to instruct the Chief Executive to implement the
proposed senior management structure outlined in this report, replacing the
Council’s existing senior management structure as described from 1st October

2008.

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/08/05/08




2.31In order to facilitate the fastest possible progress towards implementation of this
structure, Cabinet is recommended to delegate to the Chief Executive the
relevant Cabinet authority to make all necessary arrangements for establishing
this structure.

2.4 Cabinet is asked to recommend to Full Council that it delegates to the Chief
Executive all the powers necessary to enable him to progress all relevant
implementation process, which currently do not fall under the authority of Cabinet.
For the avoidance of doubt the actual appointments of Chief Officers will be made
by the Appointments and Appeals Committee.

2.51t is recommended to Cabinet and Full Council that the above delegations are
undertaken in consultation with the Leader of the Council, relevant Portfolio
Holders as appropriate, the Chair of General Purposes Committee and the
Leaders of the two minority groups on the Council.

2.6 Cabinet is recommended to note that full recruitment processes are to be put in
hand immediately for the positions of Director of Housing, Director of Planning
and Regeneration, Director of Environment and Culture, Head of Planning, Head
of Human Resources, Director of the Northampton Local Strategic Partnership,
and Head of Procurement.

2.7 Cabinet is recommended to require the Chief Executive to keep Cabinet informed
on progress in this matter.

3. Issues and Choices

3.1 Report Background

On the 7™ December 2007, the Chief Executive issued a consultation brief about the
future management direction of the Council and the future Directorate level structure
of the Council’'s management. This was Stage One of the consultation on senior
management restructuring.

On the 28th January 2008, in pursuance of the Council’'s improvement agenda, the
Cabinet agreed to restructure the Council’s senior management into four Directorates
of Housing, Finance and Support, Planning and Regeneration, and Environment and
Culture reporting each to a Director who reports to the Chief Executive. In addition
the Cabinet agreed to the post of Borough Solicitor also reporting to the Chief
Executive.

On the 17th March 2008, the Chief Executive issued a consultation document which
is attached as Appendix A. Consultation on these proposals was completed on 17th
April 2008. There was a substantial response to this consultation, particularly in
terms of the depth of consideration given to the issues by respondents. As a result
this report has taken a short while to prepare in order to give sufficient time for the
Chief Executive to consider fully all matters raised in the responses.

Consultation has commenced with the Trades Unions on the process for
implementing any decisions that Cabinet make consequent on this report. That
consultation is not yet complete, however it has no implications for the structure
adopted.

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/08/05/08



Further consultation is to follow on the structure proposed below “Head of Service”
level, subject to Cabinet’s decision at this meeting. That next level of consultation is
intended to be on a service-by-service basis, with priority being given in the first
instance to the Housing service where the creation of the new Housing Directorate
needs to be moved forward as a priority given the urgent need for improvement in
that area, and certain others flagged as critical through the consultation process.

This report has been written as a public report given that the organisational structure
of the Council is of public importance. One of the main aims of the restructure is to
deliver an organisation which can be understood more easily (and therefore
accessed more easily) by the public as customer or citizen. However there are of
course matters which Cabinet may wish to discuss which would, if raised, require the
exclusion of the press and public from the Cabinet meeting. For this purpose,
provision has been made on the Cabinet agenda for private discussion as well as
public discussion.

3.2 Issues for Consideration

The consultation paper is attached. It is not intended to repeat the arguments and
proposals in that paper in this report. However this report will explain changes which
it is proposed to make as a result of the consultation. As part of the consultation, all
members were made aware of the paper and therefore Cabinet will already be aware
of its content.

3.3 The Consultation Response

The consultation response was of a high quality with much considered discussion
about the future of services and their management and organisation. Comments
broadly divided into the following main areas.

- issues about the culture of the Council’s management and organisation

- issues about the organisation of services below Head of Service level

- issues about process for implementation

- issues of individual or personal interest

- issues about overall strategic direction

- issues about the Council’s capacity to improve and meet demands upon it

- issues about the exact structure and responsibilities of senior management
posts proposed

As a result, it is not possible to respond to a large proportion of the consultation
responses by making amendments to the proposed structure. Many require other
action, such as training and development, changes in working practices, wider
cultural change, or changes in the pressures and demands on the Council. Some
would require additional resources.

The Chief Executive has personally read and considered each response. He will be
writing to each individual consultee in the weeks following this Cabinet meeting to
provide feedback on their comments and to explain how their concerns are being
addressed, or that they will be included in later processes, or why their comments will
not be agreed with or addressed.

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/08/05/08



This is an important dialogue with the people who deliver service to the public on
behalf of the Council. The consultation has been carried out as part of the employer-
employee relationship and will not therefore be published in full. A summary has
been prepared by the Chief Executive and is attached as Appendix B.

3.4 Proposed Changes in response to consultation

The following changes are proposed in response to comments made by consultees.
a) The Assistant Chief Executive post needs to be filled by an officer who, as well
as the requirements laid out in the consultation paper, has experience of
managing programmes or projects relevant to this role and a good
understanding of the processes required to manage programmes and projects
well. (see page 5 of Appendix B)

b) Community Engagement should be included within the responsibilities of the
Head of Policy and Democratic Services (this title is to be amended — see
later). (page 5)

c) No decision on the future location of the Print Unit is to be taken until the value
for money study currently under production is completed. However it is still the
case that the Head of Communications and Consultation will take a lead on all
publishing matters including the website. (page 6)

d) The Head of Improvement will be retitted as Head of Performance and
Improvement. (page 6)

e) It is proposed to include responsibility for complaints within the Chief
Executive’s Office, and this will be more fully consulted about the next stage of
this process. (page 7)

f) Community Forums are to be managed within Policy and Democratic
Services. (page 7)

g) ltis proposed to re-adjust the proposal for all Democratic Services to be within
the Chief Executive’s Office and carry out a further review at the next stage to
identify the correct balance of responsibilities between the Borough Solicitor
and the Assistant Chief Executive / Head of Policy and Democratic Services.
In broad principle it is proposed that support to governance would rest with the
Borough Solicitor whereas policy analysis, community engagement, scrutiny
advice and member development would rest with the Chief Executive’s Offices
subject to further review and consultation. Civic Support would rest with the
Chief Executive’'s Office because of the Civic responsibilities of the Chief
Executive. (page 8)

h) It is proposed to retitle the Head of Policy and Democratic Services to Head of
Policy and Community Engagement.

i) Neighbourhood management, area partnerships and community development
support are proposed to report to the Head of Policy and Community
Engagement. (page 9) The future management of Community Centres is to be
further reviewed at the next stage (page 17). One of the key responsibilities of
this Head will be to work with Management Board and in particular the Director
of Environment and Culture to develop further the Council’'s arrangements for

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/08/05/08



engagement with the public on matters affecting policy decisions at
neighbourhood level and providing clear links between this and
neighbourhood service delivery. (page 9)

j) The proposed review of managerial support and in particular secretarial
support will need to be in place by 1.10.08 (page 9)

k) Further examination is needed of the detailed staffing arrangements for
Concessionary Fares. (page 11)

l) The professional qualifications for the Director of Housing and the Heads of
Service in Housing are to be amended in light of advice from the Council’s
Interim Director for Customer Service and Delivery. (page 12)

m) The case for tenant participation and customer engagement to be located with
Housing Strategy, Investment and Performance rather than Landlord Services
was well argued and is to be further considered as part of the next stage of
consultation on Housing structure which will start very soon. (page 13)

n) Neighbourhood Wardens are proposed to be located in Public Health, Safety
and Sustainability rather than Neighbourhood Environment Services. (page
14)

o) The title of Public Health, Safety and Sustainability is not a clear
understandable title and therefore will be reviewed and amended in discussion
with those involved in the service. (page 15)

p) The Head of Leisure and Culture will need to have a recognised, but broadly
defined, professional qualification. (page 15)

g) The Town Centre Manager will report to the Director of Environment and
Culture, but will not be designated a Head of Service. (page 16)

r) Finance and Assets will retain responsibility for facilities management. (page
17)

s) The proposal to relocate Asset Development is deferred for later consideration
in light of capital accounting issues. (page 17)

Other comments listed in Appendix B have been fully considered, as have the details
of every response received. The above list is the extent of proposed changes.

A revised structure chart for the new proposed structure after consultation is attached
as Appendix C.

3.5 Implementation

Following discussion, a proposed process for managing the implementation of the
changes proposed in this report has been issued to the Trade Unions for comment
and they have shared this with all affected staff. Union meetings are understood to
be taking place and further meetings will be arranged between management and
unions to seek an agreement on process. The process to be adopted will relate to
this stage of restructuring only.

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/08/05/08



Work has started on recruitment to the posts of Director of Housing, Director of
Planning and Regeneration, Director of Environment and Culture, Head of Human
Resources and Head of Planning. Recruitment is also to commence to the posts of
Director of the LSP and Head of Procurement. These processes are subject to the
final arrangements for implementation which are the subject of discussion with the
Unions.

It is important that implementation can be managed in a timely and effective manner.
It is therefore proposed that Cabinet and Full Council delegate relevant
responsibilities to the Chief Executive in consultation.

It is proposed to implement the new structure on Wednesday 1 October 2008. It is
therefore important that rapid progress is made.

3.5 Pay Levels and Grades

The consultation paper proposed the use of the HAY evaluation scheme for
determining relative job content. The Trade Unions are aware of this and have raised
no objections, so it is proposed to proceed on that basis.

The Council needs to be able to attract and retain the best possible managers for
these positions. On that basis it is proposed that the Chief Executive should have
discretion to award salaries that will enable the best candidate to be appointed,
including market enhancements where this is necessary.

The Chief Executive will also carry out a review of the terms and conditions of senior
managers (excluding the Chief Executive), provisions for performance-related pay,
and recruitment incentives including relocation costs.

4. Implications (including financial implications)

4.1 Policy
There are no new policy implications from this report.
4.2 Resources and Risk

Overall, the proposals contained in this report represent a significant strengthening in
the Council’s management, particularly in Housing, Planning and in corporate
capacity. As such, the overall cost of management in the Council will increase.

However an examination of potential cost scenarios has been undertaken on a
confidential basis by the Director of Finance. This shows that, based on a reasoned
assessment, if there are additional costs on the General Fund, these will be of a
relatively minor and manageable nature.

This does not include the additional costs involved in the Head of Planning position
agreed by Cabinet in July 2007. Those costs were not budgeted for, and therefore an
examination is in hand of the budget position within People, Planning and
Regeneration to establish how these costs will be met.

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/08/05/08



The Housing Revenue Account will face higher management costs because there is
an insufficient senior management arrangement in that area at the moment. This can
be managed within the existing HRA and is absolutely essential to delivering better
services to tenants and meeting the requirements of, for example, Decent Homes
where the Council needs enhanced management leadership to move forward in that
area.

There will be significant one-off costs in recruitment and in managing this change.
These costs will be met from reserves.

4.3 Legal

Any restructure carries with it risks of legal challenge or of applications to Tribunals.
The legal service are advising on all such matters and all possible steps are being
taken to ensure fairness for all those affected and to minimise these risks.

4.4 Equality

There are no specific equality implications from this report. Implementation will be
handled with due regard for equality and diversity issues and responsibilities.

4.5 Consultees (Internal and External)

This is dealt with in main body of the report.

4.6 How the Proposals deliver Priority Outcomes

This is dealt with in the main report and Appendices A and B
4.7 Other Implications

There is nothing additional to draw to members attention

5. Background Papers

This Week, 7" December 2007 — consultation brief

Report to Cabinet on Senior Management Restructuring, 28" January 2008
Consultation paper for Stage 2 consultation issued 17" March 2008 (attached)
Consultation responses (which are exempt and confidential)

Planning restructure report to Cabinet July 2007

Correspondence and consultation with Trade Unions (which are exempt and
confidential)

David Kennedy, Chief Executive, 7726

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/08/05/08



APPENDIX A
Introduction

1.1

Welcome to this important consultation document. In it, the Chief Executive as
Head of Paid Service is seeking the views of all Council employees,
particularly those potentially affected by the consultation proposals, and Trade
Union representatives, on proposals for the next stage of restructuring the
Council’'s management. No decisions will be taken as a result of the proposals
contained in this consultation paper until the consultation has been concluded.

Consultation Paper

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

This paper sets out a proposed structure below Chief Executive and Director
level. This level is referred to throughout as “Head of Service level”. The
previous stage of this process of restructuring addressed the structure for the
Chief Executive, Directors and where the Borough Solicitor would sit as
statutory Monitoring Officer. The proposed job role of the Borough Solicitor is
dealt with in this consultation.

This phase of consultation is to cover:

e The proposed number of Heads of Service together with an indicative job
role, qualifications, skills and levels of up-to-date experience which may be
required for each;

e The Directorates under which each of the proposed Heads of Service
would fall; and

e The services which it is proposed report to each of the Heads of Service.

Structure Charts are attached to this report and these provide a visual
representation of the reporting relationships of the posts referred to in this
report. The structure below each Head of Service will become clearer
following the outcome of this stage of consultation and will be worked on over
the coming weeks and months when further consultation will take place in
each area as appropriate.

This consultation follows the decision taken on 28" January 2008 to
reorganise the Council’s Directorates to create the following Director positions
in addition to the Chief Executive, to replace existing Corporate Director posts.
o Director of Planning and Regeneration

o Director of Housing

o Director of Finance and Support

. Director of Environment and Culture

The new structure is intended to promote a culture where we will all work as a
single team (“Team Northampton”) to deliver better public service and enable
the Council to realise its ambition to be among the best Councils in the country
within 5 years.



2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

29

210

The key elements of the 28" January report approved by Cabinet are
repeated in the Background section of this consultation document for ease of
reference.

The proposed new structure of management is underpinned by the following
principles :

e Grouping related services together

¢ Re-establishing professional leadership in the Council

e Being understandable — to employees, customers and partners
e Enabling Improvement and Delivery

¢ Promoting teamwork, partnership and neighbourhood/area working

To this end the following proposals for consultation centre on the creation of a
“Heads of Service” structure consisting of Heads of Service who will be
appropriately qualified and experienced in the areas that they manage. Each
proposed Head of Service job role is described for this consultation, showing
the proposed alignment of services at Head of Service level.

Change, although very much required, must not disrupt the Council’s
performance if it is to overall improve it. Ensuring a basic stability to the
Council’s improvement path whilst making change and accelerating
improvement is essential. The approach taken in this paper, whilst containing
some significant challenge, is intended to promote and accelerate
improvement by building on what works as well as addressing barriers to
improvement.

The intention is that we will take at least a month from March 17" 2008 for a
consultation for comments on these proposals. Consultation itself will be
ongoing but we would expect to receive all comments on issues associated
with this consultation document by 17™ April 2008. A Cabinet meeting will be
held in late April or early May where consultation responses will be
considered. Please take the time to consider your views and respond.
Responses can be emailed to : newstructure@northampton.gov.uk

Consultation proposals will be changed if new and relevant ideas come
forward and are supported. If any changes are proposed in response to
consultation which require further input they will be circulated for further
comment.

Background

3.1

3.2

The starting point for this consultation paper is the report presented to Cabinet
on the 28" January 2008 and agreed. It is important to repeat therefore the
key elements of that report before explaining the further proposals that are the
subject of this consultation.

The first and most critical matter is that change, although very much required,
must not disrupt the Council’s performance if it is to overall improve it.



3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9
3.9.1

Ensuring a basic stability to the Council’'s improvement path whilst making
change and accelerating improvement is essential.

The Council therefore needs to ensure that alongside any management
reorganisation there is a strong emphasis on ensuring that service to the
public is maintained and that key improvement milestones are met. The
approach taken with the following recommendations is intended to achieve
this.

Management Ambition

The following is the approved ambition of the Council in management terms.

To be recognised as one of the best Councils,
in terms of public service, within five years.

Management Aims

The Council has clear aims that management and staff must work to and that
guide the Council’s upward improvement agenda. We aim to :

¢ Provide excellent customer service

¢ Engage in meaningful dialogue — with citizens, customers etc...

e Make best use of resources

¢ Be a single effective Team — Team Northampton.

e Focus on a better Northampton

The purpose of these aims is to focus management effort and attention on the
key aspects of a good Council.

Ways of Working

In terms of management and organisation of the Council’s officers, the Council
has been good at starting things, having another idea, and moving on leaving
things half done.

It is clear that the Council needs to work differently. The Council’s
management will not produce different results unless it does different things.
As someone once said: if you always do what you always did, you’ll always
get what you always got. Change in the way the Council’s management and
organisation works is therefore essential.

Some of the areas that management needs to focus hard on are :

Doing the big things well — The Council needs to approach each programme
or project with a clear mind and a strong plan. Good project and planning
management with a clear focus is therefore essential.



3.9.2

3.9.3

3.94

3.9.5

3.9.6
3.9.7

3.9.8

3.9.9

Seeing commitments through — not doing this has had a major impact.
People have not had confidence that management can lead, and it needs to
develop further. If something can’t be completed then this must be explained.
Recent experience with Pay and Grading is a reminder of past difficulties in
seeing commitments through.

Explaining change — the Council’s management and organisation need to
change. The change needed is very straightforward. Those involved in driving
change must take more time to explain what steps are taken and why.

Being disciplined and behaving well — The Council must never
underestimate the importance of both organisational and individual discipline.
We must create opportunities for people to grow and give more. All behaviour
should be focussed on improving performance, not tolerating inadequacy or
failure.

Focusing on the customer — without whom the Council would not be here.
Focusing on results — in terms of performance and outcomes for the public.

Addressing system weaknesses — Management will be reviewing the
Council’s systems.

Valuing performance rather than rank — People need to be valued for what
they achieve for the public, and not simply on status. Where there is
excellence, it must be celebrated, and there is much excellence in NBC as
well as major problems.

Acting as “Team Northampton” — essential to NBC and to delivery of NBC'’s
own activities as well as those in partnership with others. Team Northampton
means all of NBC and our partners.

3.9.10 Using Common Sense — If something doesn’t look right or if it looks like it can

3.10

be done in a better way, then maybe it isn’t right or it could be done in a better
way. There is a necessary complexity to many things, and sometimes what
sounds like common sense may not be the most effective or practical way to
deal with something, but the more we do to make things simply effective the
better.

The principles to underpin our new management structure

Creating a new management structure is not about changing for the sake of
change. There are five key principles that underpin the new management
structure.

3.10.1 Grouping related services together — where people are doing similar jobs or

working for the same group of customers then it makes sense to bring them
together. Quite apart from the fact that they will be better able to share
information and ideas, they will also see ways — much more quickly than
otherwise — of improving what they do. Customers will be able to make more
sense of it too. At present the Council’s structure, based on generic managers,
groups services together in ways that do not help address the needs of
customers and thereby does not help support improvement.



3.10.2 Re-establishing professional leadership — this is about recognising that

people who are professionally trained in particular fields will be in a better
position to lead and develop a service. This approach works in virtually every
other council in the country and not having strong enough leadership of
professions with career structures and pathways for individuals is major
weakness of the current management structure and organisation of the
Council.

3.10.3 Being understandable — The Council is a customer-facing organisation and

must become ever more so. If customers can’t understand the Council, then
it's a lot harder for them to engage with services and issues. If staff can’t
understand how the Council works, then they can’t explain this to the public
and it acts as a major demotivator. The Council being understandable as an
organisation should range from the way we organise ourselves to the way we
communicate with local people and communities.

3.10.4 Enabling improvement and delivery — This should always be part of our

everyday work. Management should assume that there is always a better way
of doing things — and then find it. It is Management'’s job to create the climate
within which improvement takes place. To do that, managers need to enable
all staff to contribute to making things improve. Improvement is also about
understanding how the best operate, looking at the gap between NBC’s work
and theirs, and then putting together an action plan that improves performance
relative to others.

3.10.5 Promoting teamwork, partnership and neighbourhood/area working — as

3.11

well as developing more positive team working, the organisation needs to look
at how services relate to areas and communities, and move more towards
serving the public as close to them as we can.

Chief Executive, Directorates and Borough Solicitor

Cabinet have agreed to a team of Chief Executive and four Directors. The
Directors are for Housing, Planning and Regeneration, Environment and
Culture, and Finance and Support. Cabinet have also agreed that there will be
a post of Borough Solicitor, who will hold the statutory Monitoring Officer role.

3.12 Chief Executive

3.12.1 The prime responsibility of the Chief Executive is to lead the Council’s

management towards the goals of the Council (determined through the
Corporate Plan and related processes) and the management ambition to be
recognised as being among the best Councils in five years.

3.12.2 The Chief Executive is also responsible for:

¢ ensuring that the Council is properly organised to deliver these priorities
and to improve on a continuous basis;

¢ linking the Council at the highest officer level with equivalent people in
partner organisations, promoting strong and effective partnership and joint
working throughout NBC, and



e developing the reputation of the Council, and of Northampton, acting as an
ambassador and the officer figurehead of the Council in support of the
Council and in particular the Leader and Cabinet.

3.12.3 The Chief Executive, to ensure the performance of this role, needs to have a
relatively small set of functions reporting to him. These are proposed to be
included in a Chief Executive’s Office. The Chief Executive is and will remain
the statutory Head of Paid Service. The Borough Solicitor, who will be
Monitoring Officer, will report to the Chief Executive independently.

3.13 Planning and Regeneration Directorate

3.13.1 The Planning and Regeneration Directorate will be focussed on the delivery of
the Growth Agenda which is being pursued in Northampton, including dealing
with the longer term sustainability of communities, and the built and natural
environment in particular. This is the Directorate that will be responsible for
ensuring that the Council does all it can to get the best for Northampton from
the Growth Agenda, and that the legacy enhances Northampton. As all these
matters are delivered in partnership in Northampton, this Director will have a
major responsibility for partnership-working across the Growth Agenda. Due to
the importance of the Council’s strategic planning responsibilities in this area
and the drive for growth through the planning system, it is proposed that this
Director be a professionally qualified Planner appropriately experienced for
this level of post.

3.14 Housing Directorate

3.14.1 The Housing Directorate will develop a clear focus on housing, on homes and
communities, which will both manage the landlord functions of the Council and
also manage the way that the Council relates to the wider housing market and
to the enhancement of communities of all tenures. It is proposed that this
Director be a highly-skilled Housing professional appropriately experienced for
this level of post.

3.15 Finance and Support Directorate

3.15.1 The Finance and Support Directorate will bring support services together to
develop a strong customer orientation to the rest of the Council and to ensure
that these vital services are geared to promote efficiency, value for money in
operations, customer service, and to ensure that the Council’s people are
supported and directed to best effect. This Director will therefore be
responsible for ensuring that the Council’s support services support and equip
all other services with capacity and skills to underpin and promote
improvement. This Director will be the statutory Section 151 Officer and will
therefore need to be a Finance professional appropriately experienced for this
level of post.



3.16

Environment and Culture Directorate

3.16.1 The Environment and Culture Directorate will bring together those services

which impact on people’s day-to-day lifestyles, health, safety and local
environment most. This Directorate will provide opportunities to participate in
leisure and community activity, enrichment of the Council’s cultural activity,
and provide both service delivery and regulation and enforcement services.

3.16.2 It is proposed therefore that this Director will lead on the important area of

3.17

environmental sustainability, and major aspects of the quality of life for the
people of Northampton and, working closely with Housing and other services,
on developing the local geographic focus of services including neighbourhood
or area-based provision of services.

There is no automatic professional area from which this Director should be
drawn. They will however need to be experienced in the major lead priorities
of this post, and therefore it is likely that they will have professional abilities
and experience in relation to environmental sustainability, quality of life issues,
and neighbourhood/area working, appropriate to this level of post. It is
proposed that a good understanding of the role of Culture in driving forward
Northampton will be sought, experience in this area would be an advantage.

Considering Options

4.1

4.2

4.3

All of the above matters have been taken into account in developing the
proposals in this consultation paper for a Head of Service structure. In
addition, management have been mindful of the Council’s obligations to
potentially affected employees, as well as to the need for all proposals to be
affordable and to provide a sustainable organisational structure.

Management are keen to listen to views on these proposals as well as ideas
that could improve these proposals.

As well as needing to make a judgement on whether any alternatives are
affordable and meet the Council’s obligations as an employer, the tests that
will be applied to any suggestion or proposal put forward in response to this
consultation are:

e Will it help the Council achieve its ambition and aims more quickly, more
effectively, or at better value than the consultation proposals? (see
paragraphs 3.4 and 3.5 above for the ambition and aims)

e Will it enable the principles of the restructuring to be better met than is the
case with the consultation proposals? (see paragraph 3.10)



Chief Executive’s Office

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

It is proposed to create a Chief Executive’s Office reporting to an Assistant
Chief Executive and containing Heads of Service for key areas of
responsibility.

The Chief Executive’s Office role is to support the Chief Executive. In doing
so, the Office acts as a support to Cabinet and to the Management Board as
well, and is corporate capacity for the whole organisation, directed by the
Chief Executive.

The Chief Executive’s office needs to contain corporate capacity to lead and
co-ordinate key areas of activity. It is proposed that an Assistant Chief
Executive be appointed to head the Chief Executive’s Office.

Assistant Chief Executive

If this proposal is accepted following consultation, the Assistant Chief
Executive would be responsible for managing Heads of Service covering the
range of corporate capacity needed by the Council. This would include
managing and leading staff within the Chief Executive’s Office (“the CE
Office”) on the Chief Executive’s behalf and providing co-ordination amongst
and between permanent staff within the CE Office and assigned temporary
staff or consultant/interim staff as described later in this section. The Assistant
Chief Executive would be a key adviser to Management Board, responsible for
the management of the Corporate and Service Planning cycles, the
Northampton Improvement Plan, and successor documents. They would also
have a key role in supporting the Board on Medium Term Planning and
strategic value for money.

The Assistant Chief Executive would act on the Chief Executive’s behalf as a
line manager. The Assistant Chief Executive would manage specialist
expertise needed in the CE Office, and flexible resourcing particularly on
major projects.

It is not proposed that the CE Office should be staffed to carry out all major
corporate projects. Instead it is proposed that the Head of Improvement (see
below) should manage the standards to be followed on corporate projects and
the permanent support that is needed to ensure high standards of change
management and project discipline.

The Assistant Chief Executive would be expected to take an oversight of the
largest corporate change management projects, acting on behalf of
Management Board. Some maijor projects will require some flexible/interim
staffing, which may be managed by the Assistant Chief Executive or one the
Heads reporting to them. It is anticipated that this would be a major additional
support to all managers charged with delivering major change and will help
ensure effective management.



5.8

5.9

5.10

5.11

5.12

5.13

It is proposed that the Assistant Chief Executive would have a strong
background in corporate management, able to show relevant experience
across the challenging agenda faced by the Council and a background in
managing major positive organisational change and working with significant
external partners. No particular professional specialism is implied.

Borough Solicitor

The Borough Solicitor must maintain an independent objective position hence
reporting to the Chief Executive. Legal Services will report to the Borough
Solicitor. It is proposed as part of the consultation that Licensing becomes part
of Environment and Culture and that Meeting Services comes within the
responsibilities of the Assistant Chief Executive. For reasons of maintaining
independence, it is proposed that Elections, Electoral Registration and
Information Management come within the Borough Solicitor’s department.
Due to the customer relationships with solicitors, it is proposed that Land
Charges also comes within the Borough Solicitors department.

The Borough Solicitor needs to a Solicitor with ability and experience at the
level required to undertake this post and in particular experienced in local
government law sufficient to be able to carry out the substantial statutory role
of Monitoring Officer.

Director of the Local Strategic Partnership

Separately from these consultation proposals, a recommendation is to be
brought to Cabinet to create a new post of the Director of Northampton Local
Strategic Partnership (LSP) part-funded by the Council and also by the Police.
It is anticipated that this post will be accountable to the LSP and charged with
driving forward the work of the LSP and the Safer Northampton Partnership,
replacing the current interim part-time Director of that Partnership. This post
may extend in time to manage wider partnership activity. For management
purposes, it is proposed that this post reports to the Assistant Chief Executive.
This post will be responsible for the Safer Northampton Partnership.

The Director needs to have a strong background in partnership-working,
particularly in urban areas, and experience relevant to the nature and level of
the post. The requirements for the post will need to be agreed between
partners.

Head of Policy and Democratic Services

It is proposed that the Head of Policy and Democratic Services reports to the
Assistant Chief Executive and be responsible for supporting Councillors and
Management Board in the effective governance of the Council. This post
would be responsible for developing the Council’s ability to develop effective
policy and strategies to meet the many challenges facing Northampton. It is
proposed that Meeting Services would transfer to this Head, alongside
Councillor Support, Overview and Scrutiny, and Community Forums. The
Mayoralty and Civic Support would also be part of this Head’s responsibility.
Further, it is also proposed that Relations with the community and voluntary
sector be managed by this Head, who would have a key role in driving forward
the community engagement strategy with the Head of Communications and

9



5.14

5.15

5.16

5.17

5.18

5.19

5.20

5.21

Consultation (see below) under the direction of the Assistant Chief Executive.
Equalities would be part of the responsibility of this post.

At present Managerial Support is included with Councillor Support. It is
proposed at a further stage of consultation to consider aligning managerial
support with service management.

It is anticipated that the Head of Policy and Democratic Services may come
from a variety of professional backgrounds but would need to be experienced
in corporate governance and policy development, working with members and
managers at strategic level in support of corporate decision-making.

Head of Improvement

The proposed Head of Improvement would report to the Assistant Chief
Executive and be responsible for the existing Performance and Improvement
team.

In addition a further review will be undertaken to develop a proposal for a
Business Support team to report to this Head. This proposal is made as a
means of addressing two key weaknesses in the Council’s corporate capacity
and improvement management.

There is a need to increase the Council’s ability to gather, analyse and act
upon information about its own performance and about Northampton, and
about best practice. At present the Council is not adequately aware of the
impact of what it is doing, and therefore there is a risk that the Council may not
be doing the right things or having the right impact. There is also a need to
establish better ongoing review processes to achieve improvement and better
outcomes for the public.

It is also widely recognised that the Council is underdeveloped in project
management, particularly in terms of projects involving change management
or business development. This has had significant impact on the Council’s
improvement and significant wasted time and effort has occurred due to this.
An attempt has been made to correct this in the past but the capacity created
is insufficient.

It is therefore proposed to create a team within the Head of Improvement’s
remit, capable of managing the data and information requirements of
improvement and service or policy development, alongside a corporate
capacity to set and enforce good project management. This proposal will be
developed for the next stage of restructuring and will be subject to
consultation. For the present consultation it is sufficient to state that this
proposal may lead to further proposals which could involve the transfer of
some existing capacity elsewhere in the Council to this Head, but this is an
area which will probably need additional investment as well.

The Head of Improvement may be from a variety of professional backgrounds

but needs to be experienced in corporate support to performance
management and improvement, appropriate to the level of the post.

10



5.22

5.23

5.24

5.25

5.26

5.27

5.28

5.29

Head of Communications and Consultation

The proposed Head of Communications and Consultation will report to the
Assistant Chief Executive and be responsible for Press and Public Relations,
communications and marketing standards, advice and support, and
consultation standards, advice and support and key corporate consultation
and engagement projects. This post, working with the Head of Policy and
Democratic Services under the direction of the Assistant Chief Executive, will
have a key responsibility for driving forward community engagement.

It is proposed that this Head should have a more active involvement in
publishing undertaken by the Council and it is therefore proposed that this
Head will lead on all publishing matters. Subject to further review this will
include either a commissioning role for all print and web publications or
possible direct management of the Print Unit and web publishing, or both.

The Council has some of the toughest communication and reputation
management challenges of any local authority. Northampton is and will
remain for years a key priority for Government in terms of delivering national
priorities for growth and improvement. The Council needs to be in constant
dialogue with Government, other decision-makers, local and regional interests,
and Northampton residents and partners if it is to get the best legacy possible
from being in this position.

It is a key priority of the Council that this reputation improves. It will only
improve if both the Council addresses its weaknesses in performance and
communicates better. That means with the public, media, local opinion-
formers, major partners, Government and others.

This postholder will be a critical part of raising the Council’s reputation. Doing
this has major advantages for the Council when, for example, seeking
investment from Government in Northampton, seeking a better financial
settlement, seeking recategorisation of the Council in performance terms,
seeking investment and commitment from partners to improving the life of
Northampton people, and many other critical areas of business.

It is therefore vital that this postholder has a very well-developed professional
abilities in communication, reputation management, lobbying and influencing.
A highly-skilled communications professional with an established track record
and a considerable portfolio of critical contacts and networks is needed.

Other Matters

Community Centres are currently managed from within the Governance and
Communications Division. They do not logically form part of the corporate
management capacity that it is proposed should form the Chief Executive’s
Office.

It may be more sensible for Community Centres that are community-run to
become the responsibility of Asset Management. Where Community Centres
are Council-run they may more appropriately be managed in Environment and
Culture. Further review is needed to examine this proposal in the next stage of
restructuring the Council.

11



Planning and Regeneration

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

The Director is proposed to have two direct reports, Head of Regeneration,
and Head of Planning. The Joint Planning Unit Manager is a partnership post
employed by South Northants Council but located at Cliftonville, and not part
of Northampton Borough Council’s establishment.

Investment by the Council in planning and regeneration is increasing with
significant additional resources agreed in the 2008/9 Budget. This creates a
strong opportunity for this Directorate to begin to move forward, which is vital
to the future of Northampton and West Northants.

Head of Planning

This role is required to be filled by an experienced and professionally qualified
Planner. This post, as with the Development Control Manager and Building
Control Manager posts, has been approved previously by Cabinet in 2007 and
are included in this document for completeness. The recruitment to the Head
of Planning post is at an advanced stage. Recruitment is also in hand to posts
of Development Control Manager and Building Control Manager.

The Head of Planning is responsible for Development Control, Building
Control and Spatial Planning.

As part of the proposals to create a unified Housing function in the Housing
Directorate, it is proposed to transfer the Housing Strategy function from the
current People Planning and Regeneration Directorate to the Housing
Directorate (see later). The Head of Planning and the Spatial Planning
Manager will need to maintain close involvement in Housing Strategy from a
Planning perspective in order to ensure that policies are properly co-ordinated.

The services reporting to this Head include a significant community
involvement and consultation role. The relationship between this role and the
proposed role of the Head of Communications and Consultation in the Chief
Executive’s Office will be subject to further review, and consultation if changes
are proposed at the next stage of restructuring the Council.

It is proposed to transfer the Concessionary Fares function to Customer
Services as this would link well with the customer service function of
administering and issuing passes. The financial monitoring of Concessionary
Fares is proposed to be transferred to corporate accountancy.

It is proposed to re-allocate the function of responding to WNDC major
planning applications to the proposed new Head of Regeneration (see below).
This would ensure that the responses are not constrained by a Development
Control and Planning perspective and could take broader issues into account.
The Head of Planning would still be expected to have a major part in
responding, but responses would be formulated using a ‘whole Council’ officer
approach to enable all considerations to be examined. This would be a key
change and is proposed to ensure that the legacy of the growth is the best
achievable.

12



6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

6.14

It is required that this role be held by an experienced and professionally
qualified Planner. As stated in para 3.13.1, it is proposed that the Director be
need to be an appropriately experienced and qualified planner as well. These
proposals are made to develop a strength in planning which is needed
because the conurbation of Northampton faces some of the greatest planning
challenges in the nation. Northampton is at present around the 24" largest
conurbation in England and Wales. Anticipated growth may take Northampton
to around 12™ in this hierarchy. High quality and very experienced professional
Planning abilities are critical to Northampton’s future.

Head of Regeneration

A key part of meeting the growth challenge is being able to deliver effective
regeneration projects as planned in the Northampton Economic Regeneration
Strategy and to engage with the many regeneration agencies (NEL, WNDC,
EMDA. MKSM) and partners in the public sector, developers and investors,
private business and the third sector in making economic regeneration
happen.

Capacity in this area has been over-stretched. Creating greater strength in
Planning would be key to enabling a Head of Regeneration to focus on
delivery of economic and physical regeneration projects, and achieving
alignment in policies and programmes between NBC and other agencies.

It is proposed that the focus for this Head will need to be on achieving the
economic and social regeneration needed to ensure that the legacy of growth
enhances Northampton as a place. To do this, the Head, and the Director,
would need to take a “Whole Authority” approach to achieving that legacy and
would not simply be reliant on the resources they are expected to directly
manage. This proposal is about brigading the Council as a whole behind
issues that need to be addressed in this area rather than dealing with
regeneration in different pockets of the Council.

The Economic Intelligence function and the Programme and Project
Management functions may be affected by the proposal to create a Business
Support team in the Chief Executive’s Office (paragraphs 5.17-5.20). However
as outlined there would also be a need for some intelligence and project
management strength within the Head of Regeneration’s team as well, and to
increase capacity in data analysis and project management overall. These
matters will be for the next stage of restructuring and will be subject to
consultation.

This role would require an experienced regeneration practitioner with a
demonstrable track record of delivering successful and considerable
regeneration, relevant to Northampton.

13



Housing

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

This Director is proposed to have three direct reports, Head of Housing
Strategy Investment and Performance, Head of Housing Needs and Head of
Landlord Services.

The creation of a Housing Directorate, agreed by Cabinet on 28" January
2008, is a critical step to delivering major change in a service area which has
experienced significant challenges in improvement over the last few years.

The national focus on housing is stronger than it has been for the last thirty
years. In Northampton, the housing agenda is as demanding as anywhere
else in the country. The Borough is part of the Milton Keynes South Midlands
Growth Area and is scheduled to deliver just under 30,000 new homes over
the next 15 years representing an enormous challenge for the Council and its
partners.

The existing housing stock, particularly the 12,000 homes in Council
ownership is in need of significant investment and upgrading to meet current
and future needs and expectations. Alongside growth and migration, bringing
new families and working age residents, the population will grow through
aging and social change, thereby creating a demand for accessible and
flexible homes to meet the needs of both active and frail older people and
separated and extended families.

Despite retaining a primary role as landlord, the Council has a growing and
increasingly complex strategic housing role and needs to understand and
influence housing markets within and beyond its boundaries, as well as
enabling investment and development in owner occupied, private rented, and
other social housing, including forms of low cost home ownership and
intermediate tenures.

In terms of service quality, housing has major challenges in its landlord role
and needs to develop the skills and capacity in order to sustain real
improvement in repairs and maintenance, housing management including
voids management, in strategic investment in its stock over the longer term,
and in its engagement and involvement of tenants and customers generally.

New service challenges include the introduction of Choice Based Lettings in
July 2008, and the need to sustain effective services for homeless people and
people needing support.

Head of Housing Strateqgy, Investment and Performance

It is proposed that this Head of Service would take on the current housing
strategy functions currently in Regeneration (see para 6.5), develop the
Council’s capacity to invest in and regenerate its own estates including
delivery of Decent Homes and developing a broader focus on Decent and
Sustainable Neighbourhoods, as well as having an overall responsibility for
performance in housing.

14



7.9

7.10

7.11

712

7.13

7.14

An indicative structure is currently under development for the organisation
under this Head and will be issued for further consultation. The functions
currently proposed under this Head are :

e Housing Strategy and Enabling

o Estate Investment and Renewal

e Capital Programme (for Housing)

e Project Management (of Housing projects)

e Performance and Improvement (within Housing)

Given the extent of improvement needed in this service and the extent of work
required to move the Borough forward on Decent Homes and Affordable
Housing delivery, it is judged that Housing needs dedicated project and
performance capacity. These proposals, therefore envisage close working
links between this Head, the Head of Regeneration, the Head of Improvement
and the Head of Planning in order to co-ordinate the work being pursued
around Housing growth and the wider implications of this, and around
regeneration of key neighbourhoods and finally around improvement.

This proposed Head will need to be a qualified professional appropriately
experienced for this level of post. Given the nature of this post it is possible
that a regeneration professional or a qualified planner with experience of
working particularly on Housing matters may be as well qualified as a specific
Housing professional.

Head of Housing Needs

It is proposed that this Head of Service would combine a range of services
which enable people to access housing across all tenures and which also
address the need for support for older people and people with disabilities, as
well as the investment and enforcement of standards in private sector
housing.

An indicative structure is currently under development for the organisation
under this Head and will be issued for further consultation shortly. The
functions currently proposed under this Head are :

e Homelessness

e Housing Options and Advice

e Choice Based Lettings

e Call Care (transferred from Customer Services, see later)

e Private Sector Housing Grants and Enforcement (transferred from
Environmental Health)

e Disabled Facilities Grants (transferred from Environmental Health)

¢ Aids and Adaptations

This Head will need to be a qualified Housing professional appropriately
experienced for this level of post.

15



7.15

7.16

717

Head of Landlord Services

It is proposed that this Head of Service combines all responsibilities for
management and maintenance of all the housing owned by the Council, and
has a particular responsibility for tenant and resident involvement within an
area/neighbourhood context.

An indicative structure is currently under development for the organisation
under this Head and will be issued for further consultation shortly. The
functions currently proposed under this Head are :

e Housing Management

e Housing Repairs and Maintenance (transferring from the Directorate in
which it currently falls, namely Customers and Service Delivery)

e Tenant and Resident Engagement
e Area Based Governance
e Sheltered Housing Management

¢ Housing Revenue Account Business Planning and Strategy

This proposed Head will need to be a qualified Housing professional
appropriately experienced for this level of post.

Environment and Culture

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

The Director of Environment and Culture is proposed to have three Head of
Service reports, Head of Public Health, Safety and Sustainability, Head of
Neighbourhood Environment Services, and Head of Leisure and Culture.

It is also proposed that the Town Centre Manager reports to this Director, but
would not be a Head of Service.

Most residents look to the Council to provide basic everyday services, such as
collecting waste and keeping the streets clean and free of litter. Many
residents enjoy the cultural and leisure facilities that the Council provides, and
increasingly the Council is involved in a variety of activities contributing to the
personal public health and safety of our communities.

The ‘Cleaner, Greener, Safer’ agenda is one which matters to every resident
and is about the quality of the services which the Council provides now as well
as how well we manage resources for future sustainability. The diversity and
range of these services impacts not only on residents but also on the business
community, particularly through regulatory services and licensing and through
community safety services.

The Council has a range of Culture and Leisure services including 3 Leisure
Centres in neighbourhood locations, and a Town Centre Museum and Art
Gallery as well as Abington Park Museum. A range of specialist and outreach
services, particularly to younger people and specific communities. A key
culture and leisure asset of the Borough is the extensive network of 161 Parks
and open spaces managed by the Council which provide both environmental,
health and leisure opportunities for residents.

16



8.6

8.7

8.8

8.9

8.10

8.11

8.12

8.13

Head of Public Health, Safety and Sustainability

It is proposed that this Head of Service would be the Council’s lead officer for
Environmental (‘Cleaner, Greener, Safer’) Policy and Strategy and a range of
specialist services including Commercial and Environmental Protection
Services, and Community Safety. It is proposed that the Licensing function
currently in the Legal Services department is transferred.

It is proposed that this Service has responsibility for driving forward the
environmental agenda under the leadership of this Head and the Director, acts
as the service that sets environmental standards and plans (such as in waste
management or carbon reduction management), promotes and educates the
public on these issues and encourages the public to be more aware and to
comply with environmental standards, and finally leads on the enforcement of
environmental legislation and standards.

This Head of Service will therefore have both a policy development,
prevention/education and regulatory role in relation to environmental
concerns. There is the potential to create a centre of capability within the
Council for enforcement, particularly of environmental legislation but also in
terms of setting standards for enforcement activity. Such an ambition will need
further thought and development before it can be consulted upon.

A detailed review of the structure required below this proposed Head of
Service will be carried out and consulted upon.

This Head will need to be a professional qualified in an appropriate discipline,
and appropriately experienced for this level of post. It is possible that the most
suitable professional qualification for this role is Environmental Health
although candidates would be considered from other environmental disciplines
with good skills and experience in the key services in this area, including
environmental health.

Head of Neighbourhood Environment Services

It is proposed that this Head of Service will manage the Council’s
environmental direct frontline operation. This will include Waste Management,
Streetscene including Grounds Maintenance, Neighbourhood Wardens and
Construction Services, plus any contracted services relating to these.

The principle established as part of the Cabinet report on the 28" January was
that the Council wished to move towards organising some services on an area
basis, delivering services in a co-ordinated fashion at local level within the
Borough. It is therefore intended that at the next stage of restructuring there
will be consultation on the development of area-based teams across the
services within this division.

This proposed Head will need to be a qualified professional appropriately
experienced for this level of post. It will be essential that this Head has a
background in implementing neighbourhood or area-based multi-disciplinary
teams delivering front-line environmental services. A strong and effective
leader in pursuit of excellent services and a good operational manager is
essential in this role.

17



8.14

8.15

8.16

8.17

8.18

8.19

8.20

8.21

Head of Leisure and Culture

It is proposed that this Head of Service leads the Council’s policy, strategy and
management of operations of Leisure Centres, Sport and Play, Museums and
Cultural services and Parks and Open Spaces.

There are proposals for further consideration mentioned elsewhere in this
paper which suggest that Community Centres run by the Council and the
Facilities Management of the Guildhall may be transferred into this service
division. These proposals will be the subject of further consultation.

Whilst it is proposed that maintenance of Parks and Open Spaces will be part
of the Head of Neighbourhood Environment Services, this Head will be
responsible for promoting and developing the use of Parks and Open Spaces
for sports, leisure and cultural activity.

The Council provides some very good Leisure facilities. There is a need to
continue to develop these to improve the health of local people and to engage
the community in activity which promotes quality of life and community
cohesion. Equally, the cultural life and activity in the Borough needs to
continue to develop as befits an expanding urban area of the size of
Northampton.

This Head will need to be a professional in the arts, leisure or culture field with
experience in managing related activities and/or facilities at a level appropriate
to this position. A related professional qualification or membership would be
an advantage but is not essential.

Town Centre Management and Operations

The Town Centre has substantial needs for environmental services and is a
particulat type of neighbourhood. Elsewhere in this paper it is proposed to
transfer the management of the Markets to be part of Town Centre
Management (paragraph 9.9).

Management and support of the Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership
(CDRP) is proposed to be transferred to report to the Director for the Local
Strategic Partnership as part of the Chief Executive’s responsibilities.

Given these proposals, further consultation will be needed on the appropriate
reporting line for the Town Centre management role, which could be to the
Head of Neighbourhood Environment Services or to a different Head or
Director. However it is not proposed as part of this consultation to create a
Head of Service post specific to Town Centre management.

18



Finance and Support

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

It is proposed that the Director of Finance and Support has five direct reports,
Head of Finance and Assets, Head of Revenues and Benefits, Head of
Customer Services and ICT, Head of Human Resources, and Head of
Procurement.

The post of Head of Procurement is a partnership position funded by six
Northamptonshire local authorities and the creation of this post is subject to
agreement being reached on a shared procurement service by partner
authorities. If this is not agreed, the Director of Finance and Support will have
four direct reports unless this Council decides to propose a post funded solely
by the Borough Council.

The Head of Human Resources will also have a management relationship with
the Chief Executive on matters of overall organisational development and
human resources strategy. This reflects and supports the Chief Executive’s
role as Head of Paid Service.

The aim of the Directorate is to bring together a number of financial and
support services to ensure that internal and external customers receive a high
quality service. The proposed structure is intended to group services together
logically, playing to strengths in each area.

The Director of Finance and Support will be responsible for developing and
facilitating the delivery of operational value for money across the Council.
This will be delivered through improved contracting arrangements, and
operational service reviews. The proposed structure for the directorate will
underpin this function and support the Director in its delivery.

Head of Finance and Assets

Finance and Assets are proposed to be grouped together as in the existing
structure. Finance’s role is to deliver the statutory finance functions to the
organisation along with the provision of strong financial management and
governance to the organisation. Assets’ role is to ensure that the Council is
managing its assets to best effect.

It is proposed that the Cashiers service moves to work within Customer
Services and ICT (see below), Debt Recovery moves to Revenues and
Benefits (also see below) and that the Payments function currently at
Westbridge as part of the Streetscene and Property Maintenance division
transfers to the central Payment function in Finance and Assets, enabling all
of Council’s invoices to be processed within Finance and Assets on the
Agresso financial system.

19



9.8

9.9

9.10

9.11

9.12

9.13

9.14

9.15

To enable a greater focus on the management of the Council’s assets, it is
proposed that the traditional valuation and asset management functions
become part of Finance and Assets along with the management and
maintenance of commercial property and maintenance of the Council’s
property portfolio excluding housing and community facilities run by the
Council.

However it is proposed to transfer the running of the Markets to Town Centre
Management within the Environment and Culture Directorate, Facilities
Management to Customer Services and ICT, and Asset Development to
Regeneration within the Planning and Regeneration Directorate. It is also
proposed to transfer the Facilities Management of the Guildhall to Leisure and
Culture within the Environment and Culture Directorate.

All of the above proposals in paragraphs 9.7 to 9.9 will require detailed
proposals to be drawn up and consulted upon as part of the next stage of
restructuring as outlined in para 1.3.

This Head of Service will need to be an appropriately qualified accountant
sufficiently skilled and experienced for a post at this level.

Head of Revenues and Benefits

It is proposed that Revenues and Benefits will move from its current place in
Housing Services to report to the Director of Finance and Support. This brings
together the delivery of the service to the public, the strong customer service
profile of this service, and the financial expertise required to account for the
service, in one Directorate.

Currently Kendrick Ash supports Revenues and Benefits. At the end of the
second year of the three-year contract with Kendrick Ash the improvements in
this service area have been enormous and the service is now formally
disengaged from tight Government Monitoring. There is now, in the final year,
the need to ensure that this improvement is sustained and embedded. A key
part of this is, as was always anticipated, the appointment of a proposed Head
of Revenues and Benefits to run the service.

It is proposed, following on from paragraph 9.7, to position Debt Recovery,
with the exception of debt relating to current housing tenants, within Revenues
and Benefits. This will allow focus on the recovery of the Council’s debt an
improve performance.

This proposed Head of Service will need to be appropriately qualified in this
area of service and sufficiently experienced for a post at this level. It will be
particularly important that this Head of Service has the management skills to
embed the improvement made over the last two years for the longer term.

20



9.16

9.17

9.18

9.19

9.20

9.21

9.22

9.23

9.24

Head of Customer Services and ICT

It is proposed that Customer Services and ICT are brought together under one
Head of Service, with ICT being transferred from the current Performance and
ICT division.

ICT underpins customer service and delivery for both internal and external
customers. The proposal is that the Service will develop and lead customer
service strategy underpinned by ICT development.

This Service is an essential part of the Council’s improvement agenda. This is
not a “meet and greet” service but a division that needs to take a leading role
on changing the way the Council relates to the customer. A significant part of
this role is therefore about cultural change as well as changing systems and
business processes. This proposed Head will demand and expect high and
improving customer service and efficiency from the whole Council.

It is proposed to transfer the Call Care service to the new Housing Directorate.
This creates a better synergy with that Directorate’s particular responsibilities
for older residents and those with particular home care needs.

Consideration will be given at the next stage of restructuring and consultation
as to the correct relationship between the Head of Communications and
Consultation and the Print Unit and ICT’s management of the Council’'s web
publishing arrangements.

As outlined in para 9.9, it is proposed to move Facilities Management, with the
possible exception of the management of the Guildhall, into Customer
Services. Finally, it is proposed that the cleaning of the Council’s buildings will
move into Facilities Management from their current location in Streetscene
and Property Maintenance.

This proposed Head of Service may not be technically qualified, but will need
to be appropriately skilled and experienced at a level relevant to this post in
driving forward customer service across a service organisation and exploiting
the potential of ICT to do that. Experience in developing and implementing
large ICT projects and changing business processes to improve customer
service would be advantageous.

Head of Human Resources

It is proposed that Head of Human Resources (HR) reports to the Director of
Finance and Support. The Head of HR will also have a direct line relationship
with the Chief Executive as Head of Paid Service as discussed in para 9.3.

Strong and effective people management is critical to any organisation. There
is much to do in the organisation on these issues. Current sickness absence,
and the recent issues with Pay and Grading, are illustrations on a larger scale
of a need to be more pro-active in dealing with employees and with changing
the way the Council relates to its employees. HR needs to lead cultural
change and support the development of a performance management culture
which supports and sustains improvement.

21



9.25

9.26

9.27

9.28

9.29

9.30

This means being a caring employer, striking the right balance between
supporting employees with genuine needs and addressing under-performance
or outdated cultures and practices that hold improvement back.

In addition to recruiting a Head of Service with this brief, there is an identified
improvement need in HR, and this will need to be considered as part of the
overall improvement agenda.

The only proposed change in the composition of the Human Resources
division is the transfer into HR of Health and Safety as it applies to the Council
as an organisation. A closer relationship with people management at a
corporate level will aid delivery of high standards of Health and Safety.

There is a need at the next stage of this restructuring to consult on the detail
of this proposal to move Health and Safety and in particular the location of
Emergency Planning, currently part of Health and Safety. Alternative locations
may include the Chief Executive’s Office or Environment and Culture.

This Head of Service is proposed to be a well-qualified HR professional
appropriately skilled and experienced for this level of post. It will be important
that this Head is well experienced in managing change well in challenging
circumstances, probably within local government.

Head of Procurement

It is proposed that the Head of Procurement in proposed report to the Director
of Finance and Support, but will be responsible for the development of a
shared procurement service under the banner of Northampton Area
Procurement Services. The post will be jointly funded by the partners subject
to final agreement between the partners on the nature of the role.

9.31 Good procurement underpins value for money and is one of the key tools in
delivering value for money in any organisation. Savings are expected to be
delivered through the creation of this post, to the benefit of all partners.

9.32 This proposed Head will need to be appropriately qualified and experienced in
procurement, relevant to the level of this post.

10 Pay Levels and Grades

10.1 Pay levels for Directors and Heads of Service have not been determined at

this stage and the results of this consultation will inform the decision on what
system of pay and grading will be used. Key considerations will be the need to
attract and retain managers able to meet the requirements of proposed job
roles and the affordability and sustainability of proposed remuneration. For this
reason a relevant pay structure will need to be established. At this stage it is
proposed that the HAY system for pay and grading for Director and Head of
Service levels will be implemented.

Published 17*" March 2008
Chief Executive, David Kennedy

22



APPENDIX

PROPOSED STRUCTURE FOR
CONSULTATION 17 March 2008

HEAD OF PUBLIC
HEALTH, SAFETY &
SUSTAINABILITY

HEAD OF
NEIGHBOURHOOD
ENVIRONMENTAL

HEAD OF LEISURE
AND CULTURE

SERVICES
HEAD OF FINANCE
. AND ASSETS
DIRECTOR OF
ENVIRONMENT AND
CULTURE
HEAD OF
|| REVENUES AND
DIRECTOR OF BENEETES
FINANCE AND
BOROUGH SUPPORT
SOLICITOR HEAD OF .
CUSTOMER. .
] SERVICES AND.
LG.T.
l HEAD OF HUMAN
CHIEF EXECUTIVE o e e
HEAD OF POLICY ASSISTANT CHIEF e L | _
AND DEMOCRATIC EXECUTIVE ===
SERVICES
HEAD OF
L |  PROGUREMENT
HEAD OF
COMMUNICATIONS
AND..
CONSULTATION, DIRECTOR OF
HOUSING DIRECTOR OF
PLANNING AND
HEAD OF REGENERATION
IMPROVEMENT
!
!
I' HEAD OF HEAD OF HEAD OF HOUSING HEAD OF PLANNING HEAD OF
i STRATEGY, LANDLORD NEEDS REGENERATION
s INVESTMENT AND SERVICES
' PERFOMANCE

DIRECTOR OF !
NORTHAMPTON
LOCAL STRATEGIC
PARTNERSHIP

I
I
]
1
I
I
1
1
[

JOINT PLANNING
UNIT MANAGER
[(SOUTH
NORTHANTS)




APPENDIX TWO:
CURRENT STRUCTURE ON COMPARABLE
BASIS

CORPORATE
MANAGER HUMAN
RESOURCES

¥

CORPORATE
MANAGER
REGEMERATION
AND GROWTH

JOINT PLANNING
UNIT MANAGER

HEAD OF PLANNING

ENVIRONMENTAL
HEALTH MANAGER

CORFORATE
MANAGER
DEVELOPMENT
CONTROL,

BUILDING CONTROL
AND
ENVIRONMENTAL
HEALTH

COMMUNICATIONS
MANAGER

HEAD OF FINANCE

PERFORMANCE POLICY AND
MANAGER GOVERNANCE
MANAGER
CHIEF CORPORATE CORPORATE CORPORATE
LEGAL ADVISER/ MANAGER MANAGER
SOLICITOR TO THE PERFORMANCE, IT GOVERMANCE AND
COUNCIL AND IMPROVEMENT COMMUNICATIONS
- i -
e -~
S~
DIRECTOR OF ~~ | cHIEF ExECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF
PEOPLE, PLANNING FINANCE
H AND
REGENERATION
DIRECTOR OF
CUSTOMER
SERVICE &
DELIVERY
CORPORATE CORPORATE CORPORATE CORPORATE
MANAGER STREET MANAGER MANAGER MANAGER
SCENE AND.. CUSTOMER COMMUNITY HOUSING
PROPERTY SERVICES SAFETY, LEISURE SERVICES
MAINTENANCE AND TOWN CENTRE.
CULTURE AND
LEISURE MANAGER




APPENDIX B : SUMMARY OF CONSULTATION AND RESPONSES TO THE COMMENTS MADE

This Appendix has been prepared by the Chief Executive in order to summarise for Cabinet comments which question or propose alternatives
in relation to the proposals in the consultation paper. Every attempt has been made to reflect these comments openly. These comments have
all been taken into account in determining the final proposals to Cabinet.

A response is shown against each area of comment, written by the Chief Executive

Consultation Comments

Response from the Chief Executive

Overall Comments

There needs to be recognition that the
Council has improved but that this
improvement is fragile and organisational
change has the risk of causing disruption
to that improvement.

It is recognised that the Council has improved. This is important but it is also clear that the
Council has a long way to go to meet its ambition to be amongst the best Councils in the country.
The Council must not simply aim to be “not poor” but raise its horizons and build for the longer
term.

It is true that the current improvement may be fragile. It is therefore intended to implement
change in a planned manner and to build the strength needed to retain improvement. There is a
risk of disruption but this can be significantly mitigated by a planned and measured change
process. The Council’s current structures do not exhibit the ability to always retain improvement.

There is no automatic link between
structural change and improved
performance.

That is agreed. It is therefore important that structural change goes alongside improvements in
customer service, organisational culture, and many other changes. The lack of an automatic link
does not render restructuring unnecessary or undesirable, but the Council must have a clear
understanding of both the potential and limitations of structural change in improving performance.




There is a danger that the new structure
could create silos, creating barriers
between services rather than promoting
cross-Council working.

The Council already operates with a silo culture although there are signs that this is already
beginning to break down. Silos are not created by structures but by a lack of team work and a
lack of cross-Council engagement. Since arriving in Northampton | have promoted the approach
termed “Team Northampton” and this needs to be extended and expanded.

The new structure does not create new silos or promote barriers between services. Indeed, quite
the opposite, the structure is based on a strong Management Team supported by cohesive
corporate support and Directorate Management Teams with clear roles in delivering the corporate
objectives and priorities of the Council.

There is support for re-establishing clear
professional leadership in the Council.

It is pleasing to note a number of positive comments on this aspect.

The current structure is seen as
disjointed and confusing.

| agree. The current structure of the Council is hard to grasp, even for an experienced officer, and
the balance of management does not reflect the priorities of the Council or the demands of work
across the Council.

What is the evidence that a Head of
Service structure will work better than a
Corporate Manager based structure?

The current approach to structuring the Council has created confused accountabilities and a lack
of understandable and transparent service organisation. Customers in the Housing Service for
example are receiving services from a range of different management structures within the
Council and accountability for meeting their overall housing needs is not clear.

A Head of Service structure makes accountabilities clear. That enables managers to manage and
deliver to the needs of the customer and to the priorities of the Council.

Each Head of service is still part of the corporate whole but with proper accountability as Head of
a definable and understandable group of services and as a member of a Directorate Team with a
clear and definable role in corporate management.

There is substantial evidence that managers and employees as a whole deliver better when roles
are properly defined in terms of understandable responsibilities and also in terms of their
contribution to the wider Council.




There will be disparity between the levels
of responsibility of Heads of Service,
unlike Corporate Managers.

There will. This is because services will not always be of the same size and scale. To suggest
that services can be grouped to create Heads at a similar level would be repeating former errors.

Will Heads of Service have autonomy to
develop structures beneath Head of
Service level?

Heads of Service will be expected to lead their services, but as always these will need to be
within the overall policy and management framework of the Council.

Consultation Process

Is this consultation meaningful? There is
not enough detail to judge the full
implications.

This is the second stage. Future stages will go into more detail. | believe that enough information
exists for judgements to be made as to the conclusion of this stage.

Is the stage-by-stage approach helpful,
as it can create uncertainty and concerns
among employees.

Adopting a staged process allows for dialogue about implications at each stage and is a
respected and pragmatic approach to such restructuring. Whilst this may mean some uncertainty,
the process allows for expression of concerns and for this to be addressed. Trying to develop
fully comprehensive proposals for all stages in one go is unrealistic and would create more,
rather than less, uncertainty.

Can we be assured that there will be
further consultation on future stages of
this reorganisation, involving all those
potentially affected?

Yes.




How does the proposed structure help
meet the tests outlined in the
consultation paper?

(The tests are that the new structure
should help the Council achieve its
ambition and aims more quickly,
effectively, or at better value, and that it
should enable the principles of the
restructuring to be better met)

If the tests are applied to considering the current proposals against the existing structure, | would
make the following response.

As explained above, the current structure is holding back improvement and does not have the
strength to retain improvement. Unchanged, it is my judgement that whilst the Council could
improve above its Poor rating this would not be embedded or sustainable.

The new structure, by establishing clear and defined accountabilities that are understandable
within and without the Council, helps create tendencies to drive beyond current performance on a
sustained basis. The new structure also creates better focus on key priorities which will help
improve effectiveness.

The proposed structure also deals with gaps in professional leadership and some gaps in
capacity without which the Council could never make significant progress beyond the current
level. For instance in Housing and Planning.

Chief Executive’s Office

The Assistant Chief Executive (ACE)
should have a more “free” corporate role
able to intervene to get things done,
move the organisation forward.

The ACE will have an important role in chasing and intervening to ensure that progress is
constantly being made. This is not a free-ranging role, but a role carried out on behalf of the Chief
Executive within a planned framework for long-term improvement.

The status of the ACE needs to be
clarified. Is this a Director? Is this a
Deputy Chief Executive?

The ACE is not a Director, however they will be a key support to Management Board. The ACE
and the Head of Human Resources will attend Management Board, which will be made up of the
Chief Executive, Directors, and Borough Solicitor, as appropriate.

This is not a post of Deputy Chief Executive. Where the Chief Executive requires a deputy, then
cover will be provided by Directors. The ACE may represent the Chief Executive at meetings, as
may Directors.




The ACE should have experience of
managing and delivering large projects
relevant to the role.

This is a very good point. The ACE needs to have experience of managing programmes or
projects relevant to this role and a good understanding of the processes required to manage
programmes and projects well.

Who will lead on corporate planning?

The Assistant Chief Executive, directed by the Chief Executive and Management Board and the
Leader of the Council or assigned portfolio holder/s

There should be a distinction between
consultation and community
engagement. Community Engagement
should be led from a policy development
perspective. Consultation may be more
linked to communications.

Consultation should be with policy
development

Consultation capacity should not be
centralised, there is value in some
consultation support being located in
services.

It should be clear that the Heads reporting to the ACE will be working as a team. | am looking for
a team that works across policy / communication / community engagement / performance /
improvement / partnership etc... activities and support a common work programme across the
team.

| agree that community engagement is a wider activity than communication and that consultation
has strong synergy with community engagement. Effectiveness will therefore be affected by good
teamwork.

| therefore propose to place community engagement with the proposed Head of Policy.

| note the concerns about possible centralisation of consultation capacity. As stated in the
consultation proposals, this will be subject to further detailed review.




Do not support the inclusion of the Print
Unit in Communications and Consultation
— prefer in IT as there is a synergy with
that service.

The Communications team could not
reasonably commission all the work of
the Print Unit

Do not support the inclusion of the
website in Communications and
Consultation — prefer in IT as the
technical work is currently carried out in
IT and they have relevant expertise.

There is currently a value for money study being undertaken in relation to the Print Unit. It is not
proposed to make decisions on this matter until that review has been concluded.

However the proposal that this Head should take a lead on all publishing matters (not the same
as commissioning all the Print Unit's work) is retained for later discussion as detailed in the
consultation paper. This role will include the website but does not suggest a technical role for the
Head. This is a role akin to a commissioning editor.

The Communications role is important
and the structure below the Head of
Service needs to be resolved.

This will be for the next stage of this process.

The Head of Improvement should include
Performance

| propose to change the job title to Head of Performance and Improvement.

The need for Business Intelligence is
supported but should be with Policy

Given other changes proposed in this paper, | consider that the right balance is to inciude this
role in Performance and Improvement.

The Council will be expected, as part of the CAA and LAA, and by future Use of Resources
processes, to have strong data on outcomes, on the impact the Council is having on
Northampton. The line between data used for policy planning and development and used for
performance and improvement is increasingly disappearing and the requirements for
performance and improvement are becoming more significant very rapidly.




The Chief Executive’s Office should be
responsible for complaints

| propose to include this proposal in the next stage of consultation.

Customer Services should be part of the
Chief Executive’s Office

See later comments.

It is a good idea to have project support
in the Chief Executive’s Office but this
must not involve taking capacity away
from Regeneration

There is a recognised need for project support in Regeneration and it is intended to retain the
right capacity for that team’s needs in that team.

The Chief Executive’s Office should be
responsible for sustainability policy rather
than Environment and Culture

Sustainability is clearly a major corporate issue, as is economic development or community
safety.

It is not my view that such issues should automatically be managed within the Chief Executive’s
Office, although there could be merits in some cases.

The Director of Environment and Culture will have an important lead role here, as outlined in the
consultation paper, and | believe that this will work well.

Community Forums should be managed
by the Policy (and Democratic Services)
division

Subject to establishing appropriate admin support arrangements, this is agreed.




Democratic Services should be placed
with the Borough Solicitor and not with
Policy

Meetings Services should be placed with
Borough Solicitor

The Borough Solicitor should have
responsibility for Democratic Services
and Meeting Services as part of taking
an overview of Governance in the
Monitoring Officer role.

The role of the Borough Solicitor in establishing good governance is an important matter. Under
the consultation proposals the Borough Solicitor did not manage these services but would have
maintained an overview.

At the same time it is important to avoid the Head of Policy and Democratic Services getting
diverted into administrative support for meetings and similar matters rather than working on the
development of the Council’s policy framework and dialogue with the public on policy matters.

It is therefore proposed to readjust this proposal and carry out a further review at the next stage
to identify the correct balance of responsibilities between the Borough Solicitor and the Assistant
Chief Executive / Head of Policy and Democratic Services.

In broad principle it is proposed that support to governance would rest with the Borough
Secretary whereas policy analysis, community engagement, scrutiny advice and member
development would rest with the Chief Executive’s Office. Civic support would rest with the Chief
Executive’s Office.

Economic Intelligence should remain with
Regeneration.

The comment is noted for discussion in the proposed review of Business Intelligence.




Where will Neighbourhood Management
as opposed to Neighbourhood service
delivery be placed? There is good reason
to keep this in the Chief Executive’s
Office

Neighbourhood Management could
report to the Director of the LSP

Neighbourhood Management could be
part of Environment and Culture

It is unclear what the position is proposed
to be for Neighbourhood Management,
including Area Partnerships and
Community Development support. The
proposed transfer of Community Centres
raises concerns.

The consultation paper was not entirely clear on this matter.

It is proposed that these currently existing structures report into the Head of Policy and
Democratic Services. Whilst links to other services or the LSP can be made, these have not yet
been tested or assessed in detail.

One of the key tasks of this Head, working with the Management Board but particularly the
Director of Environment and Culture, will be to develop further the Council’s arrangements for
engagement with the public on matters affecting policy decisions at neighbourhood level, and
providing clear links between this and neighbourhood service delivery.

This may, in due course, lead to further change in this area as part of developing a wider
neighbourhoods approach.

Community Centres present an immediate issue and this is discussed later in this Appendix.

The proposal to carry out further
consultation to consider aligning
managerial support with service
management, particularly in relation to
secretarial functions is supported and
should be seen as an early priority for
review.

This is agreed with and will need to be in place for the new structure implementation date,
1.10.08




Planning and Regeneration

There is no need for the Director to be a
professionally qualified Planner, the role
is wider than Planning and what is
needed is someone who can lead across
planning and regeneration, with
experience of major projects and
commercial development.

The Director could have an alternative
professional qualification such as a
Chartered Surveyor.

The Planning profession could be
adequately led at Head of Service level

| have considered this matter in depth.

Northampton and West Northants face one of the most challenging Planning situations of any
local area in the country. And whilst progress has been made on performance in terms of
processing times, there is still much to do on delivering the LDF.

Because of the unique planning arrangements in West Northants there is a need for high level
planning professional leadership to get the best for the area. As the largest of the three local
planning policy authorities, and as most development will be focussed in and around
Northampton, it is critical that NBC provides the highest level of planning leadership it can
reasonably provide.

The next few years will see the development of a planning policy framework which will direct the
expansion of Northampton from a large town to a City. We need a strong Planning professional
as Director to lead this. This could not be led strategically at Head of Service level or by a non-
Planner.

Clearly the Director must also be able to relate to and lead the Regeneration side of the
Directorate but the emphasis in requirements for this post must remain on Planning.

10




The proposal for Regeneration to lead on
responses to WNDC major planning
applications is not supported, this should
be carried out by the Planning function.

The proposal for Regeneration to lead on
responses to WNDC major planning
applications, taking a ‘whole Council’
approach is supported.

I do not intend to change this proposal. The role described is for Regeneration to lead and co-
ordinate responses. Planning (Development Control mainly) will continue to comment as they do
now, but Regeneration will be responsible for ensuring that the responses reflect all Council
interests in a development proposal.

The Joint Planning Unit needs to be
recognised as part of the Council’s
structure and not just as South Northants
Council. This is a partnership
arrangement.

It is. This can be recognised but it will remain the case that the JPU manager is an employee on
South Northants Council.

The transfer of Concessionary Fares is
supported but the detailed staffing
implications need further examination.

This is agreed.

The Finance service should not be
responsible for financial monitoring of
Concessionary Fares, this will confuse
their relationship with service
management who are accountable for
service expenditure and income.

There appears to be a misunderstanding as to the role involved, this will be discussed and
resolved.

11




Housing

Not all the Heads of Service should
require Housing qualifications.

| have taken advice from the Interim Director of Customer Service and Delivery, who is a
nationally recognised Housing expert.

Her proposals are:

The Director should have substantial operational and strategic housing experience supported by
a relevant qualification. The clearly relevant qualification would be MCIH, although someone with
other housing, development or construction-related qualifications at a post-graduate level might
be suitable.

The requirements for the Head of Strategy, Investment and Performance, and the Head of
Landlord Services would be broadly the same except in so far that the length and depth of
experience required would be less. For the former post a planning, development and construction
qualification may be as relevant as a housing qualification. It should be a requirement of the Head
of Landlord Services that they have substantial (over 5 years) experience in the management of
social housing.

For the Head of Housing Needs, experience in managing housing services, as well as experience
in managing community or individual support services should be required. A range of professional
qualifications including housing, social work and community development could be considered
relevant.

In light of this advice | propose to adjust the requirements of these posts as suggested.

The location of Housing Strategy in the
Housing function is supported.

Noted.

12




Tenant Participation / Customer
Engagement / Resident Engagement
should be located under Housing
Strategy, Investment and Performance
rather than Landlord Services.

This was a well-argued representation from a number of people. | am therefore referring this for
further consideration at the next stage of the restructuring.

Private Sector Housing Enforcement is
carried out by qualified Environmental

Health Officers and is supported well in
that team, particularly by admin and PR

support. It should not move into Housing.

Locating Private Sector Housing in the
Housing Directorate is in the best
interests of our customers.

Private Sector Housing and Grants for
housing should remain located together.

There is clearly concern that these services will not be as well supported in Housing. However
there is also, from other responses, support for the principle of change.

I do not propose to change this proposal. However | will be requiring that in the next stage,
developing the detailed proposals, there is discussion with all the staff involved and the concerns
expressed reviewed and addressed.

For professional purposes, a link will need to remain with the Council’s lead Environmental Health
professional, and this will need to thought through at the next stage.

13




Environment and Culture

Licensing should be located with
Environmental Health as there are
significant similarities between these
services.

Licensing should remain separate from
Environmental Health, and with Borough
Solicitors, as this will continue to provide
access in the Town Centre (at the
Guildhall), ensure that licensing
specialisms are recognised and
developed, and provide a better
customer focus. If moved, there is a
danger of dislocation from the main
customer base and a move to generic
approaches rather than having
specialists in Licensing.

There are significant and understandable concerns that Licensing could lose some identity as a
function distinct from enforcement. There is also a feeling that the service could become distant
from customers and from legal support.

The integration of Licensing with other, usually environmental, disciplines is causing some
negative comment nationally. However these problems seem to arise where the specialisms
involved in Licensing are not recognised rather than where this is recognised and worked with.

I do not therefore propose to change this recommendation but at the next stage the issues raised
in the consultation need to be fully addressed in establishing this new division.

Neighbourhood Wardens should be
located in Public Health, Safety and
Sustainability. This is where these
services best connect particularly to
enforcement activities.

Having reviewed the extensive submissions made | agree with this response.

Therefore Neighbourhood Wardens are proposed to be located in Public Health, Safety and
Sustainability.

14




The Public Health, Safety and
Sustainability division should be
identified as Environmental Health as this
will be more understandable to the
public.

However this would not reflect the full nature of the division. The current title needs to be
amended, and it is suggested that this will be resolved by discussion with those involved.

It is not clear that Community Safety is
part of Public Health, Safety and
Sustainability

It is part of this division. The CDRP relates to the Director of the LSP.

Sustainabilty should be located in the
Chief Executive’s Office

See earlier comments.

The Head of Leisure and Culture should
be expected to have a relevant
professional qualification as an essential
requirement.

There are a number of possible qualifications that could be relevant to this post. Experience is of
greater significance, but as long as it is recognised that the required qualification will be quite
broadly defined, | am willing to agree this comment.

The proposals for Parks and Open
Spaces to be managed from Leisure and
Culture, but maintained by
Neighbourhood Environmental Services,
is supported. However this needs to be
worked through in practice at the next
stage.

| agree.

15




The Town Centre Manager should report
to the Director and be a Head of Service

The proposed wider responsibilities in
the Town Centre role are supported, can
it be clarified that these include parking
and the bus station?

There is a need to be clear as to the
forward strategy for organisation of
services in the Town Centre

Will the Town Centre Manager’s
responsibilities include responsibility for
the Fishmarket?

The TCM role is a very interesting combination of operational management and strategic
partnership development.

In the future this role may become more detached from the Council, particularly if it is possible to
combine service management with other agencies and to increase private sector leadership by
the development of a BID.

For this reason, | do not see this post in the same way as Heads of Service. | do however
consider that this post should have some autonomy and access to Management Board on an
ongoing basis. For that reason | support the option for this post to report to the Director.

The post will include the bus station and car parking. The issue of the Fishmarket can be taken
under advice at a later date.

Finance and Support

The Finance and Support Directorate is
too large for one Director.

| disagree as long as the right management arrangements reporting to the Director are in place.

The proposed creation of a Recovery
section is supported

Noted.

Given the wider scope of the “Use of
Resources” assessment in 2008/9, the
Finance service and the Improvement
service will need to work closely
together. Possibly the lead for this should
now move to the Chief Executive’s
Office.

This is not a structural issue. The Use of Resources will require corporate effort and undoubtedly
will need to have leading contributions from Finance and from the Chief Executive’s Office

16




Facilities Management should remain
with Asset Management and in particular
the Guildhall should be managed
alongside other Facilities Management
functions.

Having reflected on the responses made, | agree.

The proposed reallocation of Community
Centres is supported, however the
splitting of centres between Asset
Management and Leisure and Culture is
debated. Clarity will be needed as to
staffing arrangements.

This will need to subject to review at the next stage.

The proposed location of Asset
Development in Regeneration is
supported but concerns are raised about
capitalisation and relationship to
Housing.

Until the capitalisation position of these services is clarified, the proposal to relocate Asset
Development is deferred.

17




The proposed combination of IT and
Customer Services will not ensure that IT
is led by a Head with clear understanding
and experience of IT.

It is suggested that a Head of IT would
be a better proposal.

Not convinced about the links between
Customer Services and IT

Customer Services should be located
with Revenues and Benefits

Customer Services should be located
with the Assistant Chief Executive

Compilaints should be located with the
Chief Executive’s Office

There are real benefits from a link to IT,
but there are also potential problems of
dominance of Customer Services over IT
priorities

Customer Services could be dominated
by Finance and not be a sufficiently high
priority for the Director

Having considered these options in detail, it is felt that the best location for Customer Service
remains in conjunction with IT.

If Customer Services was to be located with a major customer such as Revenues and Benefits,
then there is a danger that this service will dominate. Location with the Chief Executive’s office
would draw that department into a significant operational role and away from its main purpose.

The risk of Customer Service’s needs dominating IT is not considered a high risk and there are
positive benefits of linking these together. The Director will need to ensure that they provide
unbiased support across all services.

It is not clear who “owns” the Council’s
website. Communications are too busy.
Propose locating in IT.

See earlier comments

18




The Print Unit should be located in IT.

See earlier comments

Human Resources should be located
with the Chief Executive in order to
support the corporate improvement
agenda strategically.

Human Resources could be dominated
by the requirements of Finance and
Support and lose its focus on strategic
organisational change

The HR function needs the gravitas and
status of being directly responsible to the
Chief Executive

The proposed structure includes a dotted line to the Chief Executive. The Head of Human
Resources will attend Management Board. The postholder will have their own voice with the
Chief Executive and Board and indeed Members.

I do not consider that it is realistic to think that HR would lose its strategic role in these
circumstances.

Health and Safety (of employees) should
not be located in Human Resources.

| disagree. Health and Safety of employees is a key HR responsibility.

19




APPENDIX © :
PROPOSED STRUCTURE AFTER

CONSULTATION 1= May 2008

HEAD OF PUBLIC
HEALTH, SAFETY &
SUSTAINABILITY

HEAD OF
NEIGHBOURHOOD
ENVIROMMENTAL

HEAD OF LEISURE
AMND CULTURE

(title to be reviewed) SERVICES
|
HEAD OF FINANCE
| AND ASSETS
TOWN CENTRE DIRECTOR OF
MANAGER ENVIRONMENT AND
CULTURE
HEAD OF
|| REVENUES AND
DIRECTOR OF EEMERRE
FINANCE AND
BOROUGH SUPPORT
SOLICITOR HEAD.OF .
CUSTOMER .
| SERVICES AND.
LG.T.
HEAD OF HUMAN
CHIEF EXECUTIVE RESOURCES
HEAD OF POLICY ASSISTANT CHIEF — ] |
AND COMMUNITY EXECUTIVE | pEse
ENGAGEMENT
HEAD OF
| PROCUREMENT
HEAD OF
COMMUNICATIONS
AND..
CONSULTATION DIRECTOR OF
HOUSING DIRECTOR OF
PLANNING AND
HEAD OF REGENERATION
PERFORMANCE
AND IMPROVEMENT
T
I
HEAD OF HOUSING HEAD OF HEAD OF HOUSING HEAD OF PLANNING | | HEAD OF
STRATEGY, LANDLORD NEEDS I REGENERATION
INVESTMENT AND SERVICES I
PERFOMANGCE |
|
DIRECTOR OF :
NORTHAMPTON :

LOCAL STRATEGIC
PARTNERSHIP

JOINT

PLANNING

UNIT MANAGER

(Partnership position,

employed by South
Morthants Council)




	Agenda
	5 Cabinet Member Presentations
	6 Northampton Economic Regeneration Strategy
	council12may08reportcab
	NERS - Final 7 04 08
	council12may08reportapp2

	7 Report of the Constitutional Review Working Party
	Appendix 1 Motions from Council
	Appendix 2 & 3 Constitution report 12.05.08

	8 Meetings  Cycle 2008/09
	9 Staff Restructure - Delegations
	Structure Report 080506 Final
	APPENDIX A
	APPENDIX B
	APPENDIX C


